
      
 

Session No. 14Session No. 14
JULY 6, 2023JULY 6, 2023

 April N.M. Baskin
Chair

Timothy J. Meyers
Majority Leader

John J. Mills
Minority Leader

Robert M. Graber
Clerk of the Legislature

      

ROLL CALLROLL CALL
 

INVOCATION - Mr. BargnesiINVOCATION - Mr. Bargnesi
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mr. MeyersPLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mr. Meyers
 

TABLED ITEMSTABLED ITEMS
 

ITEMS FOR RECONSIDERATION FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGITEMS FOR RECONSIDERATION FROM PREVIOUS MEETING
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - Meeting No. 13MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - Meeting No. 13  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGPUBLIC HEARING
 

MISCELLANEOUS RESOLUTIONS:MISCELLANEOUS RESOLUTIONS:
 

 
BASKIN  Honoring Buffalo Urban League Young

Professionals (BULYPNY) - Celebrating 10
Years of Service in the Western New York
Community

 

 

 
BASKIN  Acknowledging and Honoring Barbara Glover

 

 

 
VINAL  In Remembrance of Steven Christopher Smith -

Successful Business Owner of Steve's
Landscaping Service

 

 

 
VINAL  Recognizing Amherst High School Pit Orchestra

- Kenny Award Recipients  

 

 

 
VINAL  In Remembrance of William Bauer - Graduate of

SUNY at Buffalo School of Dental Medicine

 

 

 
BASKIN & JOHNSON  Honoring National Minority Mental Health

Awareness Month

 

 

 
KOOSHOIAN  Recognizing Linda Ullmark-Nichols School,

2022-23 - Named Gatorade New York Girls
Soccer Player of the Year

 

 

 
VINAL  Honoring Sage Sabatino, Amherst High School

Quarterback Co-Player of the Year - Section IV
Girls Flag Football

 

 

 
JOHNSON  Recognizing the 40th Annual Taste of Buffalo  

 

 



 
GREENE  Honoring Amherst Police Detective Herbert

Leising on His Retirement

 

 

 
GREENE  Honoring Marvin's Bar and Grill on National

Dive Bar Day

 

 

 
MILLS  Honoring Taffy's Hot Dog Stand on National

Hot Dog Day

 

 

 
MILLS  Honoring George's Hot Dog Stand on National

Hot Dog Day

 

 

 
MILLS  Honoring Connor's Hot Dog Stand on National

Hot Dog Day

 

 

 
MILLS  Honoring Lucas William Thornton on Earning

the Rank of Eagle Scout

 

 

 
MILLS  Honoring Coda Mulligan for His Courage

 

 

 
TODARO  Recognizing Rick Penny for His Commitment to

the Alden Central School District and
Community

 

 

 
TODARO  Honoring Zorba's Texas Hots Stand on National

Hot Dog Day

 

 

 
TODARO  Honoring Ted's Hot Dog Stand on National Hot

Dog Day

 

 

 
TODARO  Honoring the Life of Father Joseph Bayne

 

 

 
MALCZEWSKI  Honoring Sheila McMahon Curry on Her

Retirement from Erie County

 

 

 
GILMOUR  Congratulating Quentin Musty - Drafted by the

San Jose Sharks (2023 National Hockey League
Draft) 

 

 

 
VINAL  Congratulating Jonah Heim - Named Starting

Catcher (2023 MLB All-Star Game) 

 

 

 
VINAL  Congratulating Lily Zhang - Second Youngest

Golfer to Win NYS Women's Amateur  

 

 

LOCAL LAWS:LOCAL LAWS:
 

 
LL INTRO. 1-1
(2022)

 TODARO, GREENE,
LORIGO & MILLS

 A Local Law Authorizing Twelve
and Thirteen-Year-Old Licensed

 Energy & 
Environment



Hunters to Hunt Deer with a
Firearm or Crossbow During
Hunting Season with the
Supervision of a Licensed Adult 

 

 
LL INTRO. 3-1
(2022)

 BASKIN, MEYERS,
JOHNSON, VINAL
& GILMOUR

 The Erie County Language Access
Act

 Health & 
Human Services

 

 
LL INTRO. 3-1
(2023)

 JOHNSON  The Occupancy Tax Modernization
Act

 Finance & 
Management

 

 
LL INTRO. 6-1
(2023)

 BARGNESI,
MEYERS,
GILMOUR &
KOOSHOIAN

 A Local Law Providing for the
Extended Lease of Real Property
Located at 13 Centre Drive, Orchard
Park, NY, 14127

 Public Safety

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS:COMMITTEE REPORTS:
 

 
REPORT No. 10  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
REPORT No. 10  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
REPORT No. 8  ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
REPORT No. 6  FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
REPORT No. 7  HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
REPORT No. 1  GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE  

 

 

LEGISLATOR RESOLUTIONS:LEGISLATOR RESOLUTIONS:
 

COMMUNICATIONS DISCHARGED FROM COMMITTEE:COMMUNICATIONS DISCHARGED FROM COMMITTEE:
 

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES:SUSPENSION OF THE RULES:
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS:COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS:
 

 
COMM. 14E-1  SHERIFF  Award Correctional Health

Optometry Services RFP &
Authorize Contract

 Public Safety

 

 
COMM. 14E-2  SHERIFF  Contracts for Incarcerated Individual

Programming
 Public Safety

 

 



COMM. 14E-3  COMPTROLLER  Apportionment & Distribution
Report - Sales & Compensating Use
Tax

 Finance & 
Management

 

 
COMM. 14E-4  COMPTROLLER  Report on Audit of the EC

Department of Law Contract
Expenditures for Indigent Services -
1/1/2022-12/31/2022

 Finance & 
Management

 

 
COMM. 14E-5  COMPTROLLER  Annual Comprehensive Financial

Report - 2022
 Finance & 

Management
 

 
COMM. 14E-6  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 EC Emergency Medical Services

Advisory Board
 Public Safety

 

 
COMM. 14E-7  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Appointments to the Youth Services

Board
 Health & 

Human Services
 

 
COMM. 14E-8  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Enter Into Contract

with Buffalo AKG for Mural at 608
William

 Health & 
Human Services

 

 
COMM. 14E-9  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Update to the EC Forest

Management Plan - Authorization to
Enter Into an Agreement with a
Consultant

 Energy & 
Environment

 

 
COMM. 14E-10  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Enter Into

Contracts for Mandated Special
Education Preschool Services

 Health & 
Human Services

 

 
COMM. 14E-11  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Enter Into Contract

for Rath Building - ErieNet POP
Server RM 15th Floor Project

 Economic 
Development

 

 
COMM. 14E-12  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 EC Medical Examiner's Office

Renovations - Phase 7
 Economic 

Development
 

 
COMM. 14E-13  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 2021-2022 Large Culvert &

Pedestrian Bridge Condition
Inspections - Extension to 2023-
2024

 Economic 
Development

 

 
COMM. 14E-14  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Cultural Capital Grant Program -

Authorization to Enter Into a
Contract with Hispanic Heritage
Council of WNY

 Economic 
Development

 

 
COMM. 14E-15  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Enter Into

Contracts for Holistic Mental Health
Interventions

 Health & 
Human Services

 

 
COMM. 14E-16  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 2022 Storm Damage Restoration -

Various Towns
 Economic 

Development
 

 



COMM. 14E-17  COUNTY
EXECUTIVE

 608 William Lease for Endeavor
Health Services

 Health & 
Human Services 

 
COMM. 14E-18  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Submit

Agricultural & Farmland Protection
Planning Grant Application &
Provide Matching Funds

 Energy & 
Environment

 

 
COMM. 14E-19  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Watershed Regulation Review Grant

Contract & Monsanto Settlement
Funding

 Immediate
Consideration Requested

 

 
COMM. 14E-20  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 SUNY ECC North Campus Sports

Playing Fields - Term Agreement
 Economic 

Development
 

 
COMM. 14E-21  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Buffalo & EC Central Library

Electrical Switchgear Replacement
 Economic 

Development
 

 
COMM. 14E-22  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Teamsters Local 264, 2024-2026

Collective Bargaining Agreement
 Finance & 

Management
 

 
COMM. 14E-23  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Indigent Legal Services Grant - 2nd

Upstate Family Defense (Child
Welfare) Quality Improvement &
Caseload Reduction

 Public Safety

 

 
COMM. 14E-24  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Re-Appropriate

ARPA Funding for Affordable
Housing Development

 Economic 
Development

 

 
COMM. 14E-25  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Authorization to Contract with EC

Soil & Water Conservation District
for Admin. of the Nov. 2022 Storm
Lake Effect Storm Damage Fund
Program

 Energy & 
Environment

 

 
COMM. 14E-26  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Indigent Legal Services Grant -

Counsel at First Appearance #4
 Public Safety

 

 
COMM. 14E-27  COUNTY

EXECUTIVE
 Indigent Legal Services Grant - 3rd

Upstate Quality Improvement &
Caseload Reduction

 Public Safety

 

 
COMM. 14E-28  COMPTROLLER  EC Comptroller's Office - Audit of

the County Clerk's Office, Registrar
Division Operating Budget
Revenues 1/1/2022-12/31/2022

 Finance & 
Management

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE DEPARTMENTS:COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE DEPARTMENTS:
 

 
COMM. 14D-1  COUNTY

ATTORNEY
 Filing for Local Law No. 5-1-2023

- A Local Law in relation to
Ensuring that Service-Disabled
Veterans have Greater Participation
in Erie County Contracts

 R&F



 
 
COMM. 14D-2  DIRECTOR OF

BUDGET &
MANAGEMENT

 2023 Mid-Year Budget Hearings
Data

 Finance & 
Management

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PEOPLE AND OTHER AGENCIES:COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PEOPLE AND OTHER AGENCIES:
 

 
COMM. 14M-1  NYS

AGRICULTURE &
MARKETS

 EC Agricultural District No. C8 -
Eight-Year Review Notice

 Energy & 
Environment

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:ANNOUNCEMENTS:
 

MEMORIAL RESOLUTIONS:MEMORIAL RESOLUTIONS:
 

ADJOURNMENT:ADJOURNMENT:
 

 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - Meeting No. 13MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - Meeting No. 13

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Meeting No. 13 Minutes



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

511 

ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
MEETING NO. 13 

JUNE 22, 2023 
  

The Legislature was called to order by Chair Baskin.  
 
All members present. 

  
An Invocation was held, led by Mr. Kooshoian, who requested a moment of silence. 

  
 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. Greene. 
   

Item 1 – No tabled items. 
 

 Item 2 – No items for reconsideration from previous meeting. 
 
 Item 3 – MR. MEYERS moved for the approval of the minutes for Meeting Number 12 from 
2023.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
 Item 4 – No Public Hearings. 
 

 
MISCELLANEOUS RESOLUTIONS 

 
 Item 5 – Miscellaneous Resolutions were offered, as follows: 
 
BASKIN & JOHNSON    Celebrating African American Music Appreciation  
      Month  
  
VINAL      Congratulating and Recognizing Chris McDuffie - New  
      Principal of Mill Middle School  
  
BASKIN      In Remembrance of Barbara Kirkland Dennis  
  
VINAL      Celebrating the 20th Anniversary of Garden Walk  
      Williamsville  
  
JOHNSON      Recognizing Home Beneath Our Feet, Inc.   
  
BASKIN & JOHNSON    Honoring National Soul Food Month  
  
KOOSHOIAN & BARGNESI   Congratulating and Recognizing Michael Godzisz on  
      Completing His Eagle Scout Project 
  
  



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

512 

BARGNESI & KOOSHOIAN   Recognizing William Strassburg Retiring After  
      33 Years of Service - City of Tonawanda Police  
      Department  
  
VINAL      Honoring Chris Marcello  
  
GILMOUR      In Remembrance of Charod C. Chambers  
  
VINAL      In Remembrance of Elaine Apczynski - Former  
      Teacher, Williamsville School District     
  
GILMOUR      In Remembrance of Elijio Rodriguez   
  
GREENE      Recognizing Ainsley Stoll on Being Named to the  
      Oneonta Athletics Hall of Fame Class of 2023  
  
MALCZEWSKI     Celebrating the Grand Opening of Mario’s Bistro  
      and Brews  
  
TODARO      Honoring Depew’s Varsity Baseball Team on Earning  
      the Class B New York State Championship Title  
  
MINORITY CAUCUS    Honoring Russell Stoll on His Retirement  
  
MALCZEWSKI     Honoring Diane Meaney on Her Retirement from West  
      Seneca Central School District and Being Awarded the  
      Lifetime Achievement Award  
  
MALCZEWSKI     Recognizing and Honoring Cam Geising for Being  
      Named Super 7 Athlete of the Week  
  
GREENE      Congratulating Smaranda Stan McNerney on Being  
      Named the Intercollegiate Tennis Association Northeast  
      Region Assistant Coach of the Year 
  
TODARO      Celebrating the Grand Opening of The Yard at  
      Buffalo Airport Hotel  
  
TODARO      Honoring Isabella Klink as Valedictorian for Depew  
      High School  
  
TODARO      Honoring Katelyn Greene as a Top 10 Student at  
      Lancaster High School  
  
TODARO      Honoring Jayden Neidel as a Top 10 Student at  
      Lancaster High School 
  



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

513 

TODARO      Honoring Dylan Lumb as a Top 10 Student at Lancaster  
      High School  
  
TODARO      Honoring Madison Buscaglia as a Top 10 Student at  
      Lancaster High School  
  
TODARO      Honoring Eleanor Zybala as a Top 10 Student at  
      Lancaster High School  
  
TODARO      Honoring Sophia Khangi as a Top 10 Student at  
      Lancaster High School  
  
TODARO      Honoring Addyson Buechi as a Top 10 Student at  
      Lancaster High School  
  
TODARO      Honoring Olivia Conners as a Top 10 Student at  
      Lancaster High School  
  
TODARO      Honoring Nicolena Fazio for Scholastic Achievement  
  
TODARO      Honoring Riley Streit for Scholastic Achievement  
  
TODARO      Honoring Sophia Daddario for Scholastic Achievement  
  
TODARO      Honoring Jordan Kanick as Salutatorian for Depew  
      High School  
  
TODARO      Recognizing and Honoring Samuel William Tadio,  
      Founding Member of the Western New York Good  
      Government Club  
  
MILLS      Recognizing the Village of Angola on Its  
      Sesquicentennial Celebration  
  
MILLS      Celebrating the Hamburg House Garden Club “Where  
      Work, Play and Growth Flourish”  
  
MILLS      Celebrating Orchard Park Little League “One Team,  
      One Little League, One Community”  
  
MILLS      Recognizing Springville Little League Baseball in  
      Conjunction with National Little League Baseball  
      Week in Erie County  
  
GREENE      Honoring Hope Totes Buffalo Founders Colleen  
      Marchetta and Amy Velez as Citizens of the Month  
  



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

514 

GREENE      Recognizing James E. Thielmann as a Clarence  
      Veterans Memorial Wall Honoree  
  
GREENE      Recognizing Richard A. Marquart as a Clarence  
      Veterans Memorial Wall Honoree  
  
GREENE      Recognizing John F. Griffin as a Clarence Veterans  
      Memorial Wall Honoree  
  
GREENE      Recognizing Thomas M. Thielmann as a Clarence  
      Veterans Memorial Wall Honoree 
 
 MR. MEYERS moved for consideration of the above forty-three items.  MR. JOHNSON 
seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 MR. MEYERS moved to amend the above forty-three items by including Et Al Sponsorship.  
MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 MR. MEYERS moved for approval of the above forty-three items as amended.  MR. 
JOHNSON seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
  
 

LOCAL LAWS 
 
 Item 6 – CHAIR BASKIN directed that Local Law No. 1 (Print #1) 2022 remain on the table 
and in the ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE.  
  
 GRANTED. 
 
 Item 7 – CHAIR BASKIN directed that Local Law No. 3 (Print #1) 2022 remain on the table 
and in the HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE.  
  
 GRANTED.   
  
 Item 8 – CHAIR BASKIN directed that Local Law No. 3 (Print #1) 2023 remain on the table 
and in the FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE.  
  
 GRANTED. 
 
 Item 9 – MR. MEYERS moved to take Local Law No. 2 (Print #2) 2023 from the table.  MR. 
JOHNSON seconded. 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

515 

 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

            COUNTY OF ERIE 
 

            LOCAL LAW INTRO. NO. 2-2-2023 
 

          LOCAL LAW NO. ______-2023 
 
                                THE PUBLIC ART ACT OF ERIE COUNTY 
 
A Local Law providing for public financial support for public art in the County of Erie. 
 

 Be it enacted by the Legislature of the County of Erie as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legislative Findings and Intent 
 
The Erie County Legislature desires to support and promote worthwhile initiatives that help to 
promote the public good and improve the quality of life of our community.  Like many other 
municipalities and local governments around the country, the Legislature wishes to further develop 
the County’s financial support of public art through the County’s construction of new infrastructure.  
This initiative seeks to make art accessible to all Erie County residents and visitors and to foster a 
sense of community connection and civic pride. 
 
The County already has a robust financial contribution and commitment to arts and cultural 
institutions, through annual budgetary funding and occasional, one-time capital or operational 
funding for cultural assets.  In addition, the County has been funding a position of Public Art Curator 
located at the Albright-Knox Art Gallery for several years. 
 
The County also values artists and believes that artists should be compensated in a manner consistent 
with their experience. This will ensure that artists’ expenses and labor on public art projects are 
adequately compensated and will strengthen our public art artists community by properly valuing 
their need in Erie County.  
 
As contrasted with annual operational funding for the County’s cultural assets (which are already 
financially subsidized and supported by the County of Erie), this initiative proposes to create a 
funding mechanism for public art related to certain Erie County capital construction projects.  Under 
the proposal, depending on the size and type of the project, the County would allocate 1% of the cost 
of a building construction project (up to a maximum of $10,000 allocated). The Committee will 
decide where in Erie County the public art will be installed in an annual Public Art Master Plan. Art 
won’t need to be implemented where every capital improvement exists. All the 1% monies collected 
from the previous year’s capital improvements will be allocated to fund the design, supplies and 
commission of the next year’s Public Master Art Plan.  
 
Section 2. Funding 
 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

516 

Capital projects on buildings that are $250,000 or greater, whether funded by capital (bonded) funds 
or operating funds, shall include the appropriation of funds equal to 1% of the cost of the project, 
with said funds to be appropriated for the acquisition, maintenance and management of public art, 
except where the appropriating resolution, bond resolution or budget may provide otherwise; 
provided, however, that, where applicable, such amount shall be reduced to the extent that state 
funds, federal government funds,  and funding  derived from water rates, water quality treatment 
charges, sewer rents and sewage, wastewater and refuse collection charges in the County, are not 
authorized to be used for such purpose.  The maximum allocated for public art shall be $10,000 from 
each eligible capital project. 
 
A “Public Art Fund” shall be created by the Division of Budget and Management to hold funds for 
implementation of the projects finalized in the Master Public Art Plan and/or projects chosen by the 
Arts in Public Places Committee. 
 
The use of any funds appropriated for any project for public art purposes shall be in accordance with 
the Master Public Art Plan, except that any such funds provided from the proceeds of County serial 
bonds or notes shall be used only for public art purposes related to the project for which such bonds 
or notes were authorized. To the extent the total appropriation of a project is not used for the 
acquisition of works of art for said project, upon the approval of the County Legislature, the 
remainder may be used for: 
 

1. Arts program administrative costs, insurance costs or for the repair and maintenance of 
any works of art acquired under this law; or 

2. Supplementing other appropriations for the acquisition of works of art under this law or 
to place works of art in or near government facilities which have already been 
constructed. 

 
Section 3. Definitions 
 
As used in this law, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: 
 
“Public Art” includes any application of skill and taste to production of tangible objects according to 
aesthetic principles, including but not limited to paintings, sculptures, engravings, carvings, frescoes, 
mobiles, murals, collages, mosaics, statues, bas-reliefs, tapestries, photographs, fountains, 
streetscapes, drawings and ceramics, as well as decorative seating, topiary, and other decorative 
public use features. 
  
“Capital Projects” includes: (a) new construction of a building or of additional space added to a 
building; and/or (b) any reconstruction or renovation of a building or part of a building, whether 
financed through the issuance of bonds or pay-as-you-go funding or other (non-County) sources of 
funds. 
 
“Projects” shall not include those which are solely for rehabilitation of equipment. 
 
“Cost of a Project” includes design, architectural and engineering fees, site work, construction, and 
contingency allowances for a project.  
 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

517 

“Public Art Fund” means the new fund to which 1% of the value of a new capital project will be 
allocated to pursue Public Art initiatives (to a maximum of $10,000 for each capital project). 
 
“Committee” refers to the Arts in Public Places Committee. 
 
“Master Public Art Plan” (“Plan”) means the annual plan created by the Committee by March 1 to 
ensure a coherent acquisition program and implementation guidelines for Public Art. 
 
Section 4. The Arts in Public Places Committee 
 
A. There shall be an Arts in Public Places Committee, hereinafter referred to as the 
“Committee,” consisting of five (5) members. The County Executive shall appoint three (3) 
members, and the Majority Caucus and Minority Caucus of the Legislature shall each appoint one 
member. All five members shall be subject to Legislature confirmation. The Chairperson of such 
Committee shall be selected from the members of the Committee for a term of one year.  
 
B. The five (5) members shall be experts in the fields of art, art history, architecture or 
architectural history and must be Erie County residents and may not serve on any other County 
advisory board or be a County employee or officer. The members shall be professionally associated 
with local visual arts groups, such as art galleries or art schools, or have at least ten (10) years’ 
experience in creating professional art.  
 
C. In addition to the five (5) voting members of the Committee, The County Executive, the 
Chairperson of the Legislature, the Chairperson of the Legislature’s Community Enrichment 
Committee, the Legislature Minority Leader, and the Commissioner of Public Works or their 
designees, shall serve as ex officio non-voting members of the Committee. 
 
D. The Committee shall choose the methods of acquisition of public art for each project. Such 
methods of acquisition may include but are not limited to projects of preexisting art, direct 
commission, art competition, request for proposals, or acceptance of donations. 
 
E. The Committee may, for each project, convene a project panel comprised of at least three 
members of the Committee, one of whom shall be designated Chairperson. The Committee may also 
appoint additional art experts as members of the project panel. The Committee may appoint 
additional members to the panel to serve as advisors, who may be community representatives, 
County employees, project managers or others who will have frequent contact with the public art 
when it is completed. An architect or engineer shall be an ex officio member of each panel. The 
panel shall review the scope of each project and shall make recommendations to the Committee on 
the nature of the public art to be considered for the project, on the method of acquisition for each 
project, on the specific artist and the specific art for each project and what portion of the budget for 
each project shall be used for refurbishing or restoring existing works of art or to be set aside for the 
maintenance of a work of art. 
 
F. The acquisition and siting of all art work shall be approved by the County Executive and the 
County Legislature. 
 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

518 

G. Ownership and title of all works of public art acquired by the County under this section shall 
be vested in the County of Erie. 
 
H. The Committee shall create by-laws which will govern the conduct and operations of the 
Committee. 
 
I. The Erie County Department of Environment and Planning shall serve as coordinator for the 
program and provide staff support to the Committee. 
  
J. The Committee shall deliver an annual report to the County Executive and the County 
Legislature detailing its operations, Plan and art created under its auspices. 
 
Section 5. Master Public Art Plan 
 
The Committee shall prepare a Master Public Art Plan (“Plan”) annually to ensure a coherent 
acquisition program and implementation guidelines, which shall be approved by the Erie County 
Legislature.  The Committee shall hold a public hearing on the Plan prior to its approval. The Plan 
shall be approved by the Committee and submitted to the Legislature annually by March 1. 
 

1. All acquisitions and sales of public art shall be in accordance with the Master Public Art 
Plan. The Committee shall recommend acquisitions, the hiring of artists, and shall oversee 
the public education and curatorial aspects of the acquisition program.  
 

2. The Plan shall make affirmative efforts to be equitable and diverse and to include artists 
selected for public art projects who are racially and ethnically diverse.  The siting of such art 
projects shall be throughout the County, but with efforts undertaken to place art in areas of 
diversity. 
 

3. The Plan shall strive to use artists that are County residents.  
 

4. The Plan shall emphasize the importance of adequate compensation of artists. 
 

5. The Plan shall be voted on by the Legislature and presented to the Department of 
Environment and Planning by May 1st annually.  

 
6. The Committee shall, through the Plan and its acquisition efforts, make efforts to call for 

artist submissions and publicize the intention to find appropriate art within thirty (30) days of 
the Plan’s approval annually. 
 

7. Final contracts for authorizing public art contracts and hiring of artists are subject to approval 
by the Erie County Legislature.   
 

Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Local Law shall take effect upon filing with the New York State Secretary of State. 
 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

519 

Section 7. Severability  
 
If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this law or the application thereof 
to any person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, or business shall be adjudged by any court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such order or judgment shall not affect, 
impair or invalidate the remainder thereof but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, 
sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this law, or in its specific application. 
 
Sponsors: 
 
April N.M. Baskin 
Timothy Meyers 
Howard Johnson 
Jeanne Vinal 
Michael Kooshoian 
John Bargnesi 
John Gilmour 
 
 ***MR. GILMOUR entered the Legislature Chamber at 12:29 P.M. 
 
 MR. MEYERS moved to approve Local Law No. 2 (Print #2) 2023.  MR. JOHNSON 
seconded. 
 

CHAIR BASKIN directed that a roll-call vote be taken. 
 
AYES: MR. GREENE, MR. MALCZEWSKI, MR. MILLS, MR. TODARO, MR. 

BARGNESI, CHAIR BASKIN, MR. GILMOUR, MR. JOHNSON, MR. KOOSHOIAN, MR. 
MEYERS and MS. VINAL.  NOES: None.  (AYES: 11; NOES: 0) 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
 Item 10 – CHAIR BASKIN directed that Local Law No. 6 (Print #1) 2023 remain on the 
table and in the PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE. 
 
 GRANTED. 
 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
 Item 11 – MR. JOHNSON presented the following report and moved for immediate 
consideration and approval.  MR. MILLS seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 93 
 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

520 

June 15, 2023 PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 9 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT. 
  
1. COMM. 12E-3 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
WHEREAS, the Erie County Probation Department is responsible for public safety through 

the community supervision of justice involved adults and juveniles; and 
 

WHEREAS, our community has seen criminal, antisocial, and violent behavior incidents at 
the Walden Galleria Mall impacting negatively on the public safety and requiring a large law 
enforcement presence to disperse; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Erie County Probation Department, Cheektowaga Police Department, and 

the Pyramid Walden Company, L.P. have worked together over the last year to implement a pilot 
Community Engagement Services program at the Walden Galleria Mall to reduce the negative 
behavior and engage in non-confrontational, violence de-escalation and preventative interventions; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Probation Commissioner Michelle Olszowy has submitted a 40-week status 

report on the project, highlighting positive community interaction, increased opportunities for 
Probation Officers to foster relationships with probationers and their families, and the opportunities 
to deescalate emerging issues; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Erie County Probation Department, Cheektowaga Police Department, and 

the Pyramid Walden Company, L.P. agree the results of the pilot project have been favorable and are 
interested in the continuation of program beyond the pilot period; and 

 
WHEREAS, no County funds will be necessary for the Erie County Probation Department to 

continue collaborating in this project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 
 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the County Executive 
to enter into a successor one year agreement and any amendments with the Pyramid Walden 
Company, L.P. to reimburse the county for overtime and related fringes for County Probation 
Officers to provide Community Engagement Services at the Walden Galleria Mall; and be it further  
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby authorized to make the following budgetary 
adjustment in the Probation Departments 2023 General Fund Budget: 
 

Erie County Department of Probation 
Fund 110, Fund Center 12610 

 
Revenue Increase 
Account 479100 – Other Contributions $33,510 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

521 

 
Appropriations Increase 
Account 501000 - Overtime $26,009 
Account 500300 - Shift Differential                                                  $  1,092 
Account 502000 - Fringe Benefits  $ 6,409 

 
and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that revenue and expenses of the project for the following years will be 
reflected in the Probation Department’s 2024 budget submission, and subsequent years budget 
submissions; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the Erie County Division of Budget and 

Management to make any budgetary adjustments to properly reflect the revenue and expense of the 
project, provided all program expenses are paid for by the Pyramid Walden Company, L.P.; and be it 
further  

 
RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be furnished to the: Erie County 

Executive’s Office, Comptroller’s Office, Division of Budget and Management, Department of Law 
and the Department of Probation. 
(5-0) 
 
2. COMM. 12E-16 (2023) 
 DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
 WHEREAS, the District Attorney’s Office’s has been awarded $1,862,145 under the NYS 
Division of Criminal Justice Services (DCJS) Gun Involved Violence Elimination (GIVE) initiative 
to help combat gun violence in Erie County; and 

 
WHEREAS, authorization is required by the Erie County Legislature for the County 

Executive to enter into a grant contract and accept funding for an additional three prosecutors; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2507b of the Erie County Charter states that independent elected 

officials, including the District Attorney, have the power to manage their departments within the 
parameters of their adopted budget. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
 RESOLVED, that the County Executive is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with the 
New York State Division of Criminal Justice Services to fund additional prosecutors for the District 
Attorney’s Office; and be it further  
 

RESOLVED, that effective July 1, 2023, authorization is hereby provided to add two 
positions of Assistant District Attorney VII (JG 18) and one position of Assistant District Attorney 
VI (JG 17) in fund 281, cost center 1140050, grant 114GIVE2324; and be it further 
 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

522 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby provide authorization to 
reallocate funds within the GIVE grant to comply with State approved funding levels, to be adjusted 
as follows: 

 
Gun Involved Violence Elimination Grant 

114GIVE2324 
July 1, 2023– June 30, 2024 

           
    ORIGINAL  CHANGE   FINAL 
Revenue 
409000 State Aid Revenue          $ 772,758 $1,089,387            $1,862,145 
479000 County Share Cont.                223,274             (200,274)                      23,000 
Total Revenue                                  $ 996,032         $   889,113                 $1,885,145 
 
Appropriation     
500000 Full Time Salaries   $ 668,142      $629,184            $1,297,326 
502000 Fringe Benefits      327,390        254,845       582,235 
510100 Out of Area Travel                         500                     2,500                        3,000 
516060 Professional Services                       - 0 -                   2,584                        2,584 
Total Appropriations                           $ 996,032             $889,113               $1,885,145     
 
and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby provide authorization to 

reallocate funds in the 2023 District Attorney budget to allow for additional equipment, technology 
and other case related expenses, to be adjusted as follows: 
 

Fund 110, Fund Center 11400 
 

                       CHANGE 
516020 Professional Services                                                                 $   40,000 
561410 Lab & Technical Equipment                                                           60,000 
559000 County Share Contribution                                                          (100,000) 
                           $       - 0 -  
 
and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that during the grant fiscal year, the Director of Budget and Finance is hereby 
authorized to adjust budgets to comply with grantor approved funding levels, including 
interdepartmental billing adjustments; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be forwarded to the Erie County District 

Attorney, the Erie County Executive, Erie County Personnel, Erie County Comptroller and the 
Director of Budget and Management. 
(4-0)  Legislator Gilmour not present for vote. 
 
 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

523 

HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 
CHAIR 

 
 Item 12 – MR. JOHNSON presented the following report and moved for immediate 
consideration and approval.  MR. GILMOUR seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 94 
 
June 15, 2023 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 9 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT. 
 
1. RESOLVED, the following item is hereby received and filed: 
 
a. COMM. 12D-2 (2023) 
 BUDGET DEPARTMENT: “Capital Projects Update” 
 (Chair’s Ruling) 
 
2. COMM. 12E-2 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the County regularly contracts with NYSDOT for the design and construction 
of projects utilizing federal aid; and 

 
WHEREAS, NYSDOT has instituted a new web based civil rights reporting system called 

Equitable Business Opportunities (EBO); and  
 
WHEREAS, NYSDOT has made use of the EBO system mandatory on all federal aid 

projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, NYSDOT requires that in order to access the EBO system Erie County must 

designated an EBO administrator. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby approves the County Executive’s 

designation of the Director of the Division of Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO), James 
Blackwell, as the County’s EBO Administrator; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the Director of the Erie County Division 
EEO, James Blackwell, to complete the EBO application and submit it to NYSDOT; and be it 
further 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

524 

RESOLVED, that once approved as Erie County’s EBO administrator the Director, Division 
of EEO will be responsible for providing access to other County staff as required for the 
management of NYSDOT sponsored federal aid projects; and be it further  

 
RESOLVED, that ten (10) certified copies of this resolution be forwarded to the Department 

of Public Works, Office of the Commissioner and one each to the Office of the County Executive, 
the Division of Budget and Management, the Office of the County Attorney, the Office of the 
Comptroller and the Division of the Equal Employment Opportunity. 
(5-0) 
 
3. COMM. 12E-8 (2023)  
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works, Division of Highways, and the New York State 
Department of Transportation (NYSDOT) perform annual and biannual inspections of County-owned 
bridges and culverts; and 

 
WHEREAS, conditions noted from these inspections, department engineering or 

maintenance staff, or taxpayer notifications, Erie County desires to respond to conditions which may 
restrict access or present a hazard to the traveling public with a plan of action as soon as practicable; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, engineering and design services are necessary for the annual bridge inspection 

and maintenance program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works, Division of Highways, determined that CHA 

Consultants, Inc. has the appropriate expertise and experience in emergency bridge design, 
technical/engineering services, construction management and inspection, short schedule projects and 
bridge maintenance design through an RFP process; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works, Division of Highways, must be able to 

respond to these cited County bridge and culvert deficiencies with appropriate action, and deemed 
emergency conditions Legislative approval is required to authorize the County Executive to award a 
contract to CHA Consultants, Inc. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to 

enter into a contract with CHA Consultants, Inc. for the 2023-2024 On-Call/Emergency Bridge and 
Culvert Engineering Services project in an amount of $547,176 for this contract; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that funds, in the total amount of $547,176, be made available for the Project 

from the following Projects in Fund 420, Funds Center123: 
 
B.16050 – 2016 Capital Overlays      $  98,176 
B.20053 – 2020 Federal Aid Bridge Preservation – Design   $200,000 
B.20056 – 2020 Preservation of Bridges & Culverts – Design  $149,000 
B.21151 – 2021 As Directed/Emergency Engineering Design Services $100,000 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

525 

TOTAL         $547,176 
 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, a possible two (2) year extension to this contract and the necessary funding for 
it may be appropriated pending legislative approval in the future; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that five (5) certified copies of this resolution be sent to the Department of 
Public Works, Commissioner’s Office, and one copy each to the County Executive’s Office, the 
Comptroller’s Office, the Division of Budget and Management, and the Division of Purchase. 
(5-0)  
 
4. COMM. 12E-9 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 WHEREAS, authorization is being requested for the County Executive to execute an 
amendment to the Professional Services Agreement for the Back Creek Road (CR438) Slope and 
Slide Remediation (the “Agreement”), which was authorized through COMM. 4E-21 on March 5, 
2019 under the retired 2018-2021 On-Call Civil & Geotechnical Engineering Term Agreement, 
which was subsequently extended to the end of 2022, with Bergmann Associates, Architects, 
Engineers, Landscape Architects & Surveyors, D.P.C. (Bergmann Associates) for additional and 
alternative design phase engineering services performed under the Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the estimated total cost of the amendment shall not exceed $48,178.00 and funds 
are available in Fund 420, Funds Center 123, Capital Projects B.16011 and B.17014. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  
 
 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to 
execute an amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Bergmann Associates for 
additional and alternative design phase engineering services in an amount not to exceed $48,178; 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, the sufficient funding to cover the costs associated with this amendment 
budget exist in the Division of Highways’ Capital Projects (Fund 420, Funds Center 123) B.16011 – 
2016 Road Design Countywide, and B.17014 – 2017 Road Slide Design Countywide; and be it 
further 

 
 RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature be instructed to forward five (5) certified copies 
of this resolution to the Department of Public Works, Division of Highways, and one (1) certified copy 
each to the Office of the County Executive, the Division of Budget and Management, and the Office of 
the Comptroller. (5-0)  
 
5. COMM. 12E-11 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, consistent with Erie County’s Commitment to Paris goals, the County 
encourages the development of solar facilities which reduce dependence upon fossil fuels and further 
climate goals to mitigate global warming; and   



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

526 

 
WHEREAS, Project Owner, (Gowans Road Solar, LLC) has submitted a Notice of Intent to 

the Taxing Jurisdictions that it plans to build and operate a Solar Energy System as defined in New 
York Real Property Tax Law (“RPTL”) Section 487(1)(b) (the “Project”) with an expected 
nameplate capacity (“Capacity”) of approximately 3.75 Megawatts AC on six parcels totaling 
approximately 128 acres of land located within the Town of Evans on Gowans Road and Eden 
Evans Center Road and identified by SBL numbers 236.00-1-28, 236.00-1-2.11, 236.00-1-1, 236.00-
1-3.1, 236.00-1-2.12, and 236.00-1-29; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has not opted out of RPTL § 487; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to RPTL § 487(9)(a) the County has indicated their intent to require a 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement (“PILOT”) with the Project Owner, under which the Project 
Owner will be required to make annual payments to the Taxing Jurisdictions for each year during the 
term of this Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project Owner has submitted or will submit to the Assessor of the Town of 
Evans an Application for Tax Exemption of Solar or Wind Energy Systems or Farm Waste Energy 
Systems (“Form RP-487”); and 
  

WHEREAS, the Real Property not part of the Project will be assessed for any statutory real 
property taxes levied by the Taxing Jurisdictions.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the County Executive is hereby authorized to execute a Payment in Lieu of 
Taxes (PILOT) Agreement with Gowans Road Solar, LLC, and any other organizations necessary to 
complete this PILOT Agreement, pertaining to the Real Property located on Gowans Road and Eden 
Evans Center Road, Evans New York (SBL numbers 236.00-1-28, 236.00-1-2.11, 236.00-1-1, 
236.00-1-3.1, 236.00-1-2.12, and 236.00-1-29); and be it further 

RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall include an annual approximate PILOT payment in 
the amount $2,793, subject to annual escalation of 2%; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall include an estimated annual PILOT based on the 

amount of taxes due as set forth on Schedule A attached hereto; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution shall be forwarded to the Office of 
County Executive; the Division of Budget and Management; the Division of Real Property Tax 
Services; the Department of Environment and Planning; the Office of County Comptroller; and the 
County Attorney’s Office. 
 

Schedule A 
PILOT Schedule 

 

Calendar Year* Term Year County PILOT 
Payment** 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

527 

2024 1 $2,793 
2025 2 $2,849 
2026 3 $2,906 
2027 4 $2,964 
2028 5 $3,023 
2029 6 $3,084 
2030 7 $3,145 
2031 8 $3,208 
2032 9 $3,272 
2033 10 $3,338 
2034 11 $3,405 
2035 12 $3,473 
2036 13 $3,542 
2037 14 $3,613 
2038 15 $3,685 

 TOTAL $48,299 
 
* The following schedule is for illustrative purposes only. The PILOT will commence in accordance 
with Section 2(b) of the Agreement. 
 
**Per the Agreement, this payment schedule is subject to adjustment if the capacity of the Project 
changes.  
(5-0) 
 

HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 
CHAIR 

 
 Item 13 – MR. MEYERS presented the following report and moved for immediate 
consideration and approval.  MR. TODARO seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 95 
 
June 15, 2023 ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT 

COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 7 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT. 
 
1. RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 
 
a. COMM. 12E-13 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD No. 8 - Engineering Term Contract Agreement” 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

528 

(Chair’s Ruling) 
 
b. COMM. 12E-14 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD No. 3 - Engineer Term Contract Agreement”  
(Chair’s Ruling) 

 
c. COMM. 12E-15 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “ECSD No. 3 - Engineering Term Contract Agreement” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 
 

d. COMM. 12M-1 (2023) 
NYSDEC: “Notification of Brownfield Cleanup Program Application from Amherst 
Commons, LLC” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 

 
2. COMM. 7E-23 (2023) AS AMENDED 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Department of Environment and Planning has received the 
following lowest responsible bid for Contract No. 74P-R at 10:00 a.m. on May 25, 2023: 
 
Contract   Lowest Responsible Bidder          Amount 
74P-R    O’Connell Electric             $6,027,231.00 
    20 Lancaster Parkway 
    Lancaster, NY 14086 
 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the aforementioned lowest responsible bidder has successfully completed 
projects for the Division of Sewerage Management in the past; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Division of Sewerage Management has determined this project is a New 
York State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR) Unlisted Action and after due consideration a 
Negative Declaration was issued pursuant to Part 617 of the implementing regulations pertaining to 
Article 8 (State Environmental Quality Review Act) of the Environmental Conservation Law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 

RESOLVED, that the Southtowns Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility Electrical 
Substation and Plant-Wide Generator Equipment Procurement, Erie County Sewer District No. 3, 
Contract No. 74P-R be awarded as follows: 

 
Contract   Lowest Responsible Bidder          Amount 
74P-R    O’Connell Electric             $6,027,231.00 
    20 Lancaster Parkway 
    Lancaster, NY 14086 
 
and be it further 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

529 

 
RESOLVED, that the County Executive be, and hereby is, authorized to execute a Contract 

with the aforementioned lowest responsible bidder, subject to approval as to form by the County 
Attorney’s office and approval as to content by the Commissioner of Environment and Planning; and 
be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the Director of Budget and Management and the County Comptroller are 

authorized to allocate up to $5,718,996.00 in Capital Account No. C.21150 (American Rescue Plan 
funds), Fund 430, Funds Center 180 to fund Contract No. 74P-R; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby provided for the partial closing of up to 
$308,235.00 in ECSD No. 3 Capital Reserve Account C.00007, Fund 430, Funds Center 183 to fund 
Contract No. 74P-R; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby provided for the Division of Budget and 
Management to process a residual equity transfer of up to $308,235.00 from ECSD No. 3 Capital 
Reserve Account C.00007 to Erie County Sewer District No. 3 Capital Bond Account C.23350, 
Fund 430, Funds Center 183; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that $308,235.00 be allocated in Erie County Sewer District No. 3 Capital 
Bond Account C.23350, Fund 430, Funds Center 183 to fund Contract Nos. 74P-R; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Budget and Management is hereby 
authorized to implement any budget adjustments necessary to facilitate this funding; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that unused funds for this Contract will be returned to the account(s) in which 

they originated based on guidance from the Division of Sewerage Management and the budgets for 
said account(s) be adjusted accordingly; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature be directed to send a certified copy of this 
resolution to the County Executive, the County Comptroller, the Director of Budget and 
Management, Richard Stanton, Assistant County Attorney, and Joseph Fiegl, P.E., Deputy 
Commissioner, Department of Environment and Planning. 
(5-0)  
 
3. COMM. 8E-5 (2023) AS AMENDED   
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Department of Environment and Planning has received the 
following lowest responsible bid for Contract No. 89 at 10:00 a.m. on May 10, 2023: 
 
Contract   Lowest Responsible Bidder          Amount 
Contract No. 89  Kandey Company, Inc.            $1,048,419.50 
    19 Ransier Drive 
    West Seneca, NY 14224 
 
and 
 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

530 

 WHEREAS, the aforementioned lowest responsible bidder has successfully completed 
projects for the Division of Sewerage Management in the past; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Division of Sewerage Management has determined this project is a New 
York State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR) Unlisted Action and after due consideration a 
Negative Declaration was issued pursuant to Part 617 of the implementing regulations pertaining to 
Article 8 (State Environmental Quality Review Act) of the Environmental Conservation Law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 

RESOLVED, that the Various Sanitary Sewer Replacements, Erie County Sewer District 
Nos. 1 & 3, Contract No. 89 be awarded as follows: 

 
Contract   Lowest Responsible Bidder          Amount 
Contract No. 89  Kandey Company, Inc.              $1,048,419.50 
    19 Ransier Drive 
    West Seneca, NY 14224 
 
and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that the County Executive be, and hereby is, authorized to execute Contracts 
with the aforementioned lowest responsible bidder, subject to approval as to form by the County 
Attorney’s office and approval as to content by the Commissioner of Environment and Planning; and 
be it further  

 
RESOLVED, that the Director of Budget and Management and the County Comptroller are 

authorized and directed to transfer up to $632,126.60 from Erie County Sewer District No. 1 Capital 
Reserve Account C.00033 to Sewer Management Capital Account C.20001 and establish the 
budgets necessary to facilitate the transfer; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the Director of Budget and Management and the County Comptroller are 

authorized and directed to transfer up to $416,292.90 from Erie County Sewer District No. 3 Capital 
Reserve Account C.00007 to Sewer Management Capital Account C.20001 and establish the 
budgets necessary to facilitate the transfer; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Budget and Management is hereby 
authorized to implement any budget adjustments necessary to facilitate this funding; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that any unused funds for this Contract will be returned to the Erie County 
Sewer District Capital Reserve Account from which they came based on guidance from the Division 
of Sewerage Management and budgets for the Capital Reserve Accounts will be adjusted 
accordingly; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature be directed to send a certified copy of this 
resolution to the County Executive, the County Comptroller, the Director of Budget and 
Management, Richard Stanton, Assistant County Attorney, and Joseph Fiegl, P.E., Deputy 
Commissioner, Department of Environment and Planning. 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

531 

(5-0)  
 
4. COMM. 12E-12 (2023) 
 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the Big Sister Creek and Lackawanna Water Resource Recovery Facilities Roof 
Replacements Project – Contract No. 94 was bid on May 20, 2022 by the Division of Purchase, 
under Bid No. 222140-002; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 19.08 of the Erie County Administrative Code, Contract 
No. 94 was awarded to Progressive Roofing, Inc., (331 Grote Street, Buffalo, New York 14207), to 
replace certain building roofs at the Big Sister Creek and Lackawanna Water Resource Recovery 
Facilities in Erie County Sewer District Nos. 2 & 6; and  
 

WHEREAS, during the demolition of the existing roofs, Progressive Roofing encountered 
unforseen damages that could not be repaired by the contingency amount within the formal bid; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Division of Sewerage Management recommends that the unforseen  

damages identified by Progressive Roofing be repaired as part of Contract No. 94. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 

RESOLVED, that this Honorable Body approves of increasing the total Contract amount for 
Contract No. 94 between the County of Erie and Progressive Roofing, Inc., (331 Grote Street, 
Buffalo, NY 14207) by an amount not to exceed $217,000.00; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby waives the procedures, as impractical, 

provided for in Section 19.08 of the Erie County administrative code for the purposes of securing the 
unforeseen roofing repairs while keeping the continuity of the current performing vendor; and be it 
further 
 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the Division of 
Purchase to process all necessary documents to continue the roof repairs; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Purchase be authorized to execute Change 

Order No. 1 for Contract No. 94; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that the Director of Budget and Management and the County Comptroller are 
authorized to allocate up to $217,000.00 in Capital Account No. C.21150 (American Rescue Plan 
funds) to fund Change Order No. 1; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Budget and Management is hereby 
authorized to implement any budget adjustments necessary to facilitate this funding; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that at the close of the project unused funds may be returned to the capital 
project and the budgets be adjusted accordingly; and be it further 
 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

532 

 RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature be directed to send a certified copy of this 
resolution to the Office of the County Executive, the Office of the County Comptroller, the Division 
of Budget and Management, the County Attorney’s Office, the Division of Purchase, and the 
Division of Sewerage Management. 
(5-0) 
 

TIMOTHY J. MEYERS 
CHAIR 

 
 Item 14 – MR. GILMOUR presented the following report and moved for immediate 
consideration and approval.  MR. TODARO seconded. 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 96 
 
June 15, 2023 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 

COMMITTEE 
REPORT NO. 6 

 
ALL MEMBERS PRESENT. 
 
1.  RESOLVED, the following item is hereby received and filed: 
 
a.  COMM. 11D-2 (2023) 

COMMISSIONER OF HEALTH: “COVID-19 Outbreaks at Nursing Homes (Intro. 20-2)” 
(Chair’s Ruling) 

 
2. COMM. 12E-4 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
WHEREAS, the Erie County Department of Homeland Security & Emergency Services is 

responsible for providing public safety through comprehensive emergency management planning, 
preparedness, training, response and coordination of emergency services resources in Erie County 
during actual or potential disaster events; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Research Foundation (RF) is the largest comprehensive university-

connected research foundation in the country that provides essential administrative services that 
enable State University of New York (SUNY) faculty to focus their efforts on educating students 
and performing life-changing research across a wide range of disciplines; and 

 
WHEREAS, General Municipal Law § 99-r authorizes the County to enter direct 

negotiations with any unit of SUNY to contract for technology services, equipment, or any other 
services of government that the SUNY unit is authorized to provide; and 

 
WHEREAS, authorization is required from the Erie County Legislature for the County 

Executive to enter into contact with the Research Foundation to execute the project; and  
 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

533 

WHEREAS, funding is available in the Department of Homeland Security and Emergency 
Services as made available through the 2022 Year-End Budget Balancing Amendments and 
Designations Resolution COMM 8E-1 (2023); and  

 
WHEREAS, the contract will be managed by the Erie County Department of Homeland 

Security and Emergency Services. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the County Executive 
to enter into contract with the Research Foundation in an amount not to exceed $350,000 for the 
purposes of creating a winter storm rating system; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that General Municipal Law § 99-r authorizes the County to enter direct 

negotiations with any unit of SUNY to contract for technology services, equipment, or any other 
services of government that the SUNY unit is authorized to provide without use of a Request for 
Proposal; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that sufficient funding for this contract exists within the Department of 

Homeland Security and Emergency Services 2023 General Fund Budget (Fund 110, Funds Center 
16700) Account 516020 – Professional Service Contract and Fees; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be sent to the County Executive’s Office, 
the Comptroller’s Office, the Division of Budget and Management, the Department of Homeland 
Security Emergency Services, and the Department of Law.  
(5-0) 
 
3. COMM. 12E-5 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
WHEREAS, Erie County, like many communities across New York, is experiencing a 

movement where there’s a significant reduction in certified ambulance personnel and volunteers to 
staff and respond in ambulances resulting in longer wait times for ambulances and delay in care; 
and  
  

WHEREAS, the lack of available ambulances in designated areas have led to an increase in 
mutual aid requests with other surrounding agencies in order to provide some level of care, however 
this is not a sustainable solution to the areas with inadequate coverage; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Erie County Executive and Legislature worked to address this need by 

allocating funding on April 27, 2023, to establish a municipal ambulance service to pay for the 
necessary costs of personnel, equipment, supplies, and location; and 

 
WHEREAS, Erie County will be the “safety net” ambulance service and be available to 

assist the volunteer and commercial ambulance services across Erie County when needed; and 
 
WHEREAS, Erie County seeking to apply to New York State for a Municipal Certificate of 

Need (Muni-CON) – Ambulance (Transport) that is required to operate a municipal ambulance 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

534 

service as stated in New York State Public Health Law Article 30 to transport throughout all of Erie 
County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT  
  
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes Erie County to apply for a 

Muni-CON as defined by New York State Public Health Law Article 30, Section 3005; and be it 
further 

 
RESOLVED, that this resolution takes effect immediately upon passage by the Erie County 

Legislature; and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, the Clerk of the Legislature shall forward certified copies of this Resolution to 

the County Executive, the Commissioner of Emergency Services and Homeland Security, the 
Department of Law, the New York State Department of Health, the New York State Emergency 
Medical Services Council, and the Commissioner of Health.  
(5-0) 
 
4. COMM. 12E-6 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
WHEREAS, the Erie County Department of Mental Health (ECDMH) is responsible for the 

delivery of a comprehensive range of mental and behavioral health services for the residents of Erie 
County; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Erie Path Mobile Application was created via a Request for Proposal (RFP), 
entitled Solicit Community Input, Identify Features and Functionality, Organize and Assemble 
Content for a Mobile Application for Parents and Caregivers to Address Mental Health Challenges 
of Children and Adolescents-RFP #2022-036VF awarded to CCNY, Inc. and a second RFP, entitled 
Mobile App Development Services-RFP #2022-046VF awarded to V3iT, Inc.; and 

 
 WHEREAS, upon completion of the Erie Path App, the ECDMH requests to contract with 
V3iT for ongoing maintenance of the application and to contract with Well Connected, Inc. which 
provides the software platform that allows access to the 211 resource directory; and 

 
WHEREAS, no additional County funds are necessary for this request in 2023; any funding 

needed moving forward will be requested via subsequent annual budget submissions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to 

enter into contract with V3iT, Inc. and Well Connected, Inc. for maintenance, hosting, and other 
costs related to the operations for the Erie Path application for the remainder of 2023, waiving the 
procedures in Section 26.08 of the Erie County Administrative Code; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, sufficient funding exists within the Department of Mental Health – Program 

Administration’s 2023 Budget (Fund 110, Funds Center 12410) Account 516020 Professional 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

535 

Services, Contracts and Fees for an amount not to exceed $27,600 in fiscal year 2023; and be it 
further 
 

RESOLVED, that the Division of Budget and Management is hereby authorized to make any 
technical adjustments necessary to effectuate this resolution; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be furnished to the County Executive’s 

Office, the Comptroller’s Office, the Department of Mental Health, Division of Information and 
Support Services, and the Division of Budget and Management. 
(5-0) 
 
5. COMM. 12E-7 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
WHEREAS, the Erie County Department of Mental Health (ECDMH) is responsible for the 

delivery of a comprehensive range of mental and behavioral health services to the residents of Erie 
County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the need to provide emergency/disaster response services to the local population 
is critical for the proper function of the ECDMH; and 
 

WHEREAS, the ECDMH has identified an opportunity to fill this need with both current  
year and future years unallocated state aid from NYS Office of Mental Health (OMH); and 
 

WHEREAS, no more than $62,930 in funding will be required for the remainder of 2023 
from available state funding; and 

 
WHEREAS, a combination of OMH state aid and Federal Salary Sharing will cover 100% of 

the necessary funding starting in 2024. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the County Executive 
to enter into contract with OMH for the purposes of accepting $62,930 in State Aid to be budgeted 
within the Department of Mental Health’s Division of Program Administration’s 2023 Budget (Fund 
110, Funds Center 12410) as follows: 

 
Department of Mental Health 

Fund, 110, Funds Center 12410 
 

Revenue Increase/(Decrease) 
406830 State Aid – Mental Health II 
TOTAL 
 
Expense 
500000 Full Time – Salaries  
502000 Fringe Benefits 

$62,930    
$62,930 
 
 
  40,600 
$22,330 

TOTAL $62,930    



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

536 

 
and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to create one Mental Health 
Emergency/Disaster Response Coordinator, Job Group 14 Step 1, (B100 #13743) in the CSEA 
bargaining unit effective July 1, 2023; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the Director of Budget and Management 

to adjust items of appropriations and revenues, provided there are no changes to authorized 
personnel levels; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be forwarded to the Office of the County 

Executive, the Office of the Comptroller, the Personnel Department, the Division of Budget and 
Management, and to the Department of Mental Health. 
(5-0) 
 

JOHN J. GILMOUR 
CHAIR 

 
 

LEGISLATOR RESOLUTIONS 
 

Item 15 – MR. MEYERS presented the following resolution and moved for immediate 
consideration and approval.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 

 
 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 97    RE: Transfer of Surplus Property to  
        the Town of West Seneca 
        (INTRO. 13-1) 

 
A RESOLUTION TO BE SUBMITTED BY 

LEGISLATOR MALCZEWSKI 
 

WHEREAS, on Christmas Day, 2021, a fire at the Town of West Seneca Highway 
Department destroyed a number of vehicles and pieces of equipment; and 

 
WHEREAS, to date, not all of that equipment has been replaced; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of West Seneca has recently requested a transfer of property from the 

County’s surplus warehouse and has identified an item that would be of tremendous use to them, 
replacing one of the pieces of equipment destroyed in the fire; and 

  
WHEREAS, the item no longer serves a purpose for the County of Erie and representatives 

of the Department of Purchasing have indicated that the request is proper and therefore the vehicle 
identified below could be transferred to the Town of West Seneca. 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

537 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

  
RESOLVED, that ownership of the following item is hereby transferred from the County of 

Erie to the Town of West Seneca: 
 
County Vehicle #                        Description 
 
5129     2014 Freightliner Vactor Truck, Model 114SD 
     (VIN 1FVHG3CY3EHFX3282) 
  
and be it further 
 
            RESOLVED, that this item is to be used for a purpose related to the operations of the Town 
of West Seneca and should not be transferred to any other entity without prior consent of the Erie 
County Legislature; and be it further 

  
RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be sent to the Department of Purchase, 

Superintendent of Highways Brian Adams for the Town of West Seneca, and any other party 
deemed necessary and proper. 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS DISCHARGED FROM COMMITTEE 
 

 There are none. 
  

 
SUSPENSION OF THE RULES 

 
Item 16 - MR. MEYERS moved for a Suspension of the Rules to include an item not on the 

agenda.  
 
GRANTED. 
 

 COMM. 13D-3 from COUNTY ATTORNEY  Re:  Opinion as to Form Local Law Intro. 
No. 2-2 (2023) 

 
CHIAR BASKIN directed that the letter by received, filed and printed. 
 
GRANTED. 

 
June 21, 2023 
 
Via Email Only 
Hon. April N.M. Baskin, Chairwoman 
Erie County Legislature 
Old Erie County Hall 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

538 

92 Franklin Street, 4th Floor 
Buffalo, New York 14202 
 
 Re: Opinion as to Form Local Law Intro No 2-2 2023 
 
Dear Chairwoman Baskin: 
 
In accordance with the obligations of the Erie County Attorney set forth in subsection 3, Section 204 
of Article 2 of the Erie County Charter, this legal opinion concerns Local Law Intro No. 2-2 2023 
(2-2). 
 
Preemption 
 
Under New York state law, preemption occurs when a local law directly conflicts with a state 
statute, or where a state statute expressly states that local laws on a given subject matter are 
preempted.  Preemption can also occur where the State Legislature has assumed full regulatory 
responsibility in a field related to the proposed local law.   
 
Here, 2-2 does not present any direct conflicts with state statute and since the State Legislature has 
not taken specific action to assume sole regulatory authority on this topic, 2-2 does not present a 
preemption issue of concern.   
 
Grammar  
 
 The stated purpose of 2-2 is to make art accessible to all Erie County residents and visitors 
and to foster a sense of community connection and civic pride, by developing financial support for 
public art through the County’s construction of new infrastructure. We find the grammar and usage 
of 2-2 to be sufficient in order to achieve the stated purpose.   
Ambiguities 
 
 While every hypothetical circumstance or eventuality cannot be addressed in the scope of 
this opinion, 2-2 does not present any facial ambiguities that would frustrate its implementation and 
enforcement.  
  
Conclusion 
 
We find that Local Law Intro. 2-2 2023 is sufficient as to form. 
 
      Very truly yours, 
      JEREMY C. TOTH 
      Erie County Attorney 
 
      By: Aaron Rubin 
      Assistant Erie County Attorney 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

539 

 
FROM THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

 
Item 17 – (COMM. 13E-1)  Appointments to the Mental Hygiene Community Services 

Board 
 
Received and referred to the HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE. 
 
Item 18 – (COMM. 13E-2)  Appointments to the Fire Advisory Board 
 
Received and referred to the PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE. 
 

FROM THE COMPTROLLER 
 
Item 19 – (COMM. 13E-3)  Questions & Concerns Regarding Sheriff Request to Lease 13 

Centre Drive 
 
Received and referred to the PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE. 
 

FROM CHAIR BASKIN 
 
Item 20 – (COMM. 13E-4)  2023 Mid-Year Budget Hearings 
 
Received and referred to the FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. 
 

FROM THE COUNTY CLERK 
 
Item 21 – (COMM. 13E-5)  Resolution to Authorize Entry Into Lease with Bella Vista Group 

for Cheektowaga Satellite Auto Bureau Office 
 
Received and referred to the FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. 
 

FROM THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 
Item 22 – (COMM. 13E-6)  Authorization to Enter Into Contract for Managed Print Services 
 
Received and referred to the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE. 
 
Item 23 – (COMM. 13E-7)  GIVE Personnel & Budget Adjustment 
 
Received and referred to the PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE. 
 
Item 24 – (COMM. 13E-8)  EC Storefront Revitalization Program - Authorization to Amend 

Existing Agreements for Architectural & Program Administration Services 
 
Item 25 – (COMM. 13E-9)  EC Cultural Plan - Authorization to Accept Grant Funding & 

Enter Into an Agreement with a Consultant 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

540 

 
The above two items were received and referred to the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE. 
 
Item 26 – (COMM. 13E-10)  Professional Services for Rain Barrel & Compost Bin Sales 
 
Received and referred to the ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE. 
 
Item 27 – (COMM. 13E-11)  EC Medical Examiner's Office - Anthropology Lab Phase 6 

Renovations Contingency Fund Increase 
 
Item 28 – (COMM. 13E-12)  Erie County Health Lab Building 17 Renovations - Phase 3 
 
Item 29 – (COMM. 13E-13)  Erie County - On-Call Special Inspections & Tests Amendment 
 
The above three items were received and referred to the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE. 
 
Item 30 – (COMM. 13E-14)  Authorization to Enter Into Contracts for Youth Sports Services 
 
Received and referred to the HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE. 
 
Item 31 – (COMM. 13E-15)  Authorization to Accept Grant Funding for the FY 22 

Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness Grant 
 
Received and referred to the PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE. 
 
Item 32 – (COMM. 13E-16)  Levy of the 2023-2024 School Tax Budgets 
 
Received and referred to the FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. 
 
Item 33 – (COMM. 13E-17)  Appointment to Western Region OTB Board of Directors 
 
Received and referred to the GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE. 

 
Item 34 – MR. MEYERS presented the following resolution and moved for immediate 

consideration and approval.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
 

CHAIR BASKIN directed that a roll-call vote be taken. 
 
AYES: MR. GREENE, MR. BARGNESI, CHAIR BASKIN, MR. GILMOUR, MR. 

JOHNSON, MR. KOOSHOIAN, MR. MEYERS and MS. VINAL.  NOES: MR. MALCZEWSKI, 
MR. MILLS and MR. TODARO.  (AYES: 8; NOES: 3) 

 
CARRIED. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 98   RE: SUNY Erie Community College 2023- 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

541 

       2024 Budget    
       (COMM. 13E-18) 
 
RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby approves the SUNY Erie 2023-2024 

Budget as submitted by the Erie County Executive. 
 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE DEPARTMENTS  

 
FROM THE DIRECTOR OF 

BUDGET & MANAGEMENT 
 

 Item 35– (COMM. 13D-1)  Budget Monitoring Report for Period Ending April 2023 
 

Received and referred to the FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. 
 

FROM THE COUNTY ATTORNEY 
 

 Item 36 – (COMM. 13D-2)  Transmittal of New Claims Against Erie County 
 

Received and referred to the GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE. 
 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PEOPLE AND OTHER AGENCIES 
 

FROM THE NYS DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION & FINANCE 
 

 Item 37 – (COMM. 13M-1)  List of Certified 2023 Class Equalization Rates 
 

Received and referred to the FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 Item 38 – Chair Baskin announced that the Legislature will conduct committee meetings on 
Thursday, June 29, 2023, and the schedule will be distributed.  Chair Baskin further announced that 
the next session of the Legislature will be held on Thursday, July 6, 2023.   
 
 

MEMORIAL RESOLUTIONS 
 
 Item 39 – Legislator Meyers requested that when the Legislature adjourns, it do so in 
memory of Frank E. Swiatek. 
 
 Item 40 – Legislator Vinal requested that when the Legislature adjourns, it do so in memory 
of Richard W. Fickhesen Jr. 



MEETING NO. 13 
June 22, 2023                                                                                ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE 
  
 

 

542 

 
 Item 41 – Legislator Todaro requested that when the Legislature adjourns, it do so in 
memory of Collin Tytka. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Item 42 – At this time, there being no further business to transact, CHAIR BASKIN 
announced that the Chair would entertain a Motion to Adjourn. 
 
 MR. MEYERS moved that the Legislature adjourn until Thursday, July 6, 2023 at 12:00 
Noon.  MR. JOHNSON seconded. 
  
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 CHAIR BASKIN declared the Legislature adjourned until Thursday, July 6, 2023 at 12:00 
Noon. 
 
 

ROBERT M. GRABER 
CLERK OF THE LEGISLATURE 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

BASKIN  
Honoring Buffalo Urban League Young Professionals
(BULYPNY) - Celebrating 10 Years of Service in the Western
New York Community

A ttachmentsA ttachments
BULYPNY





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
BASKIN  Acknowledging and Honoring Barbara Glover

A ttachmentsA ttachments
BARBARA GLOVER







  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

VINAL  In Remembrance of Steven Christopher Smith - Successful
Business Owner of Steve's Landscaping Service

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Steven Christopher Smith





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

VINAL  Recognizing Amherst High School Pit Orchestra - Kenny
Award Recipients  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Kenny Award Recipients





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

VINAL  In Remembrance of William Bauer - Graduate of SUNY at
Buffalo School of Dental Medicine

A ttachmentsA ttachments
William Bauer





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
BASKIN & JOHNSON  Honoring National Minority Mental Health Awareness Month

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Minority Mental Health





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

KOOSHOIAN  Recognizing Linda Ullmark-Nichols School, 2022-23 - Named
Gatorade New York Girls Soccer Player of the Year

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Linda Ullmark-Nichols





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

VINAL  Honoring Sage Sabatino, Amherst High School Quarterback
Co-Player of the Year - Section IV Girls Flag Football

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Sage Sabatino





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
JOHNSON  Recognizing the 40th Annual Taste of Buffalo  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Taste of Buffalo





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

GREENE  Honoring Amherst Police Detective Herbert Leising on His
Retirement

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Herbert Leising





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
GREENE  Honoring Marvin's Bar and Grill on National Dive Bar Day

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Marvinâ€™s Bar and Grill





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
MILLS  Honoring Taffy's Hot Dog Stand on National Hot Dog Day

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Taffyâ€™s Hot Dog Stand





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
MILLS  Honoring George's Hot Dog Stand on National Hot Dog Day

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Georgeâ€™s Hot Dog Stand





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
MILLS  Honoring Connor's Hot Dog Stand on National Hot Dog Day

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Connorâ€™s Hot Dog Stand





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

MILLS  Honoring Lucas William Thornton on Earning the Rank of
Eagle Scout

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Lucas William Thornton





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
MILLS  Honoring Coda Mulligan for His Courage

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Coda Mulligan





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

TODARO  Recognizing Rick Penny for His Commitment to the Alden
Central School District and Community

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Rick Penny





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
TODARO  Honoring Zorba's Texas Hots Stand on National Hot Dog Day

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Zorbaâ€™s Texas Hots





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
TODARO  Honoring Ted's Hot Dog Stand on National Hot Dog Day

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Tedâ€™s Hot Dog Stand





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
TODARO  Honoring the Life of Father Joseph Bayne

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Father Joseph Bayne





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

MALCZEWSKI  Honoring Sheila McMahon Curry on Her Retirement from Erie
County

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Sheila McMahon Curry





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

GILMOUR  Congratulating Quentin Musty - Drafted by the San Jose
Sharks (2023 National Hockey League Draft) 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Quentin Musty





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

VINAL  Congratulating Jonah Heim - Named Starting Catcher (2023
MLB All-Star Game) 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Jonah Heim





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

VINAL  Congratulating Lily Zhang - Second Youngest Golfer to Win
NYS Women's Amateur  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Lily Zhang





  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LL INTRO. 1-1
(2022)  TODARO, GREENE,

LORIGO & MILLS  

A Local Law Authorizing Twelve and
Thirteen-Year-Old Licensed Hunters to Hunt
Deer with a Firearm or Crossbow During
Hunting Season with the Supervision of a
Licensed Adult 

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LL INTRO. 1-1 (2022)



1-1

LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 1 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 2 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 3 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 4 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 5 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 6 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 7 of 8



LL Intro. 1-1 
4/5/2022 

Page 8 of 8



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LL INTRO. 3-1
(2022)  

BASKIN, MEYERS,
JOHNSON, VINAL &
GILMOUR

 The Erie County Language Access Act  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LL INTRO. 3-1 (2022)



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

1 of 6

3-1



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

2 of 6



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

3 of 6



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

4 of 6



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

5 of 6



LL Intro. 3-1 
11/17/2022 

6 of 6



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
LL INTRO. 3-1
(2023)  JOHNSON  The Occupancy Tax Modernization Act  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LL INTRO. 3-1 (2023)











































  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

LL INTRO. 6-1
(2023)  

BARGNESI, MEYERS,
GILMOUR &
KOOSHOIAN

 
A Local Law Providing for the Extended
Lease of Real Property Located at 13 Centre
Drive, Orchard Park, NY, 14127

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
LL INTRO. 6-1 (2023)



6-1

1

Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
REPORT No. 10  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
PS Report No. 10



 

 

June 29, 2023 PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

REPORT NO. 10 

 

ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATORS GILMOUR & GREENE. 

  

1. RESOLVED, the following item is hereby received, filed and printed: 

 

a. COMM. 13E-2 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “Appointments to the Fire Advisory Board” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

June 8, 2023 

 

Erie County Legislature 

92 Franklin Street – 4
th

 Floor 

Buffalo, NY 14202 

 

 Re: Appointments to the Fire Advisory Board 

 

Dear Honorable Members: 

 

 Pursuant to the powers vested in me by Section 1403 of the Erie County Charter, I hereby appoint 

the following persons to the Fire Advisory Board for a term ending December 31, 2024.  

 

Shad Garner 

16 Samantha Court 

West Seneca, NY 14224 

New Appointment 

Tom Partridge 

4999 Tim Tam Trail 

Blasdell, NY 14219 

New Appointment 

Jack Chiappone 

4421 Richwood Drive 

Hamburg, NY 14075 

New Appointment 

 

Should you have any questions regarding these appointments please feel free to contact my office 

at (716) 858-8500. 

 

Sincerely yours,  

 

Mark C. Poloncarz, Esq. 

Erie County Executive 

 

2. COMM. 13E-7 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, funding for the Gun Involved Violence Elimination (GIVE) grant awarded by the 

New York State Division of Criminal Justice Services (DCJS) has increased to include funding for the 

costs associated with implementing the Probation GIVE Model; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2023 Erie County Adopted Budget includes an approved budget for Gun 

Involved Violence Elimination (GIVE) grant for funding period July1, 2023-June 30, 2024 that did not 

include these additional positions; and  

 

WHEREAS, authorization is requested to add four GIVE Probation Officer positions, one GIVE 

Probation Supervisor, one GIVE Probation Assistant and one GIVE Assistant Crime Analyst within the 

Erie County Department of Probation under our Gun Involved Violence Elimination (GIVE) grant for the 

2023-2024 funding period; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the costs include additional departmental staffing to address new supervision 

requirements and data analysis, overtime for GIVE after hour operations, the implementation of GPS 

monitoring of gun crime probationers, delivery of a cognitive behavioral intervention, supervision at 

Greatest Risk levels and additional requirements for preparing gun crime Presentence Investigations and 

will enable the Probation Department to meet its contractual obligations for the GIVE grant. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the Probation Department to 

accept an additional $1,175,364 in funding from New York State Division of Criminal Justice Services 

(NYS DCJS) for the 2023-24 GIVE grant to be budgeted as follows: 

 

Erie County Probation Department 

Grant Fund 281, Fund Center 1261020 

Gun Involved Violence Elimination 

126GIVE2324 

July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024 

 

Account                Revenues Increase (Decrease) 

409000 - State Aid Revenue $1,175,364 

479000 - County Share Contribution $(49,895) 

  $1,125,469 

 

Account               Appropriations Increase 

500000 - Full Time Salaries $562,354 

500300 - Shift Differential $7,500 

501000 - Overtime  $68,420 

502000 - Fringe Benefits $294,622 

510000 - Mileage $7,940 

510100 - Out of area Travel $3,300 

510200 - Training and Education $25,757 

516030 - Maintenance Contracts  $151,384 

530000 - Other Expenses $1,000 

980000 - DISS $3,192 

  $1,125,469 



 

 

and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to create the following positions for which 

sufficient funding for personnel services and fringe benefits will be added to the 2023-24 GIVE program 

effective July 1, 2023: 

 

Four full-time Probation Officers (JG-11)  

B-100 #13754 

 

One full-time Probation Supervisor (JG-12) 

B-100 #13752 

  

Full-time Probation Assistant (JG-7)  

B-100 #13751 

 

Full-time Probation Assistant Crime Analyst 

(JG-12) B-100 #13695 

 

and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the Division of Budget and Management to 

adjust the grant budget as required to comply with State approved funding levels including 

interdepartmental billing adjustments; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution will be forwarded to the: County Executive's 

Office, Division of Budget and Management, County Comptroller, County Attorney, Personnel 

Department and the Probation Department.  

(3-0) 

 

3. COMM. 13E-15 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

 WHEREAS, the Erie County Department of Homeland Security & Emergency Services is 

responsible for providing public safety through comprehensive emergency management planning, 

preparedness, training, response and coordination of emergency services resources in Erie County during 

actual or potential disaster events; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management 

Agency with administration of the funds through the New York State Division of Homeland Security & 

Emergency Services has agreed to provide funding in the amount of $16,000 to continue the 

implementation of a program to enhance the ability of Erie County to manage emergency and disaster 

situations; and 

 

WHEREAS, a 20% local match in the amount of $4,000.00 is required and will be made in the 

form of in-kind services from the City of Buffalo Fire Department’s participation.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby authorize the County Executive to 

enter into contract and accept funds from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (FEMA) administered through the New York State Division of Homeland Security 

& Emergency Services in the amount $16,000 to be budgeted within the Erie County Department of 

Homeland Security & Emergency Services’ 2023 Budget (Fund 110, Funds Center 16700) as follows: 

 

Department of Homeland Security & Emergency Services 

Fund 110, Funds Center 16700 

 

Revenue  Increase 

414000 - Federal Aid $16,000.00 

 

Appropriation Increase 

516020 – Professional Services, Contracts and Fees $16,000.00 

 

and be it further  

 

RESOLVED, that the 20% local share match of $4,000 will be made in the form of in-kind 

contributions towards the program from the City of Buffalo Fire Department; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, these funds will be utilized to enhance the ability of Erie County to manage 

emergency and disaster situations; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the Director of Budget and Management to 

adjust items of appropriations and revenues which may be impacted by changes to the grantor award, 

provided there are no changes to county share amounts; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be sent to the County Executive's Office, 

Comptroller’s Office, Department of Personnel, Department of Homeland Security & Emergency 

Services, Department of Law and Division of Budget and Management.  

(3-0)   

 

 

HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 

CHAIR 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
REPORT No. 10  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
ED Report No. 10



 

 

June 29, 2023 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

REPORT NO. 10 

 

ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATOR GILMOUR. 

 

1. COMM. 13E-6 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Division of Information and Support Services provides   printing 

and copying services to all County departments; and  

 

WHEREAS, the contract with the current vendor for printing and copying services ends on 

August 19, 2023; and  

  

 WHEREAS, a Request for Proposal was issued to seek proposals for printing and copying 

services; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the proposal submitted by Usherwood was found to provide the best solution for 

Erie County's printing and copying needs. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to 

enter a five (5) year services contract, including lease of equipment and consent to assignment of 

payment with Usherwood for printing and  copying services at an annual cost $476,820 (or $39,735 a 

month); and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that the prorated cost of this contract for the remainder of 2023 is approximately 

$198,675; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that sufficient funding for the current year of this contract exists within the 

Division of Information and Support Services 2023 Budget (Fund 110, Funds Center 105) in Account 

545000 - Rental Charges; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the Division of Budget and Management to 

make any technical adjustments necessary to effectuate this resolution; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution shall be forwarded to the Erie County 

Executive’s Office, the Comptroller’s Office, Division of Information and Support Services, Department 

of Law, and Division of Budget and Management. 

(4-0) 

 

 

2. COMM. 13E-8 (2023)  

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, our local small business economy has been adversely affected by the Covid-19 

pandemic; and 

 

WHEREAS, an initial $10 million was allocated as part of the 2022 Adopted Erie County Budget 

for a Storefront Revitalization Program; and 

 

WHEREAS, Erie County has reinvested into our local business economy by offering grants of up 

to $40,000 to improve the visual aesthetic, functionality, and pedestrian/customer interface of such 

business facades; and 

 

WHEREAS, an additional $5 million has been allocated as part of the 2022 Year-End Budget 

Balancing Amendments and Designations resolution COMM 8E-1 (2023) to help more area businesses 

with their recovery and continued growth; and 

 

WHEREAS, contracts were previously awarded to H. Sicherman and Company, LLC to provide 

project administration services, and Clinton Brown Company Architecture, P.C., La Bella Associates, 

P.C., Anowara Architecture, P.C., and Bammel Architects, P.C., to provide architectural design services as 

a result of RFP processes; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to expeditiously move forward with additional storefront revitalization 

awards to businesses, the County would like to continue working with the existing contractors for project 

administration and architectural services.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to execute 

all agreements necessary to implement the second round of the Storefront Revitalization Program; and be 

it further 

  

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the County Executive to execute a second 

amended contract for consultant services in an amount not to exceed $13,350,000 with H. Sicherman and 

Company, LLC; and be it further  

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the County Executive to execute Contracts for 

Consultant services in an amount not to exceed $1,650,000 with Clinton Brown Company Architecture, 

P.C., La Bella Associates, P.C, Anowara Architecture, P.C, and Bammel Architects, P.C.; and be it further 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLVED, that sufficient funding is available for this purpose in the Erie County 2023 Budget 

in Funds Center 1332010, Account 516340 – Storefront Community Revitalization; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Budget and Management is hereby authorized 

to implement any budget adjustments as required to comply with State and local funding requirements; 

and be it further                                                                                           

 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be sent to the County Executive’s Office; the 

Comptroller’s Office; the Director of the Division of Budget and Management; the County Attorney; and 

the Commissioner of the Department of Environment and Planning.  

(4-0)  

 

3. COMM. 13E-9 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, Erie County has long recognized the importance of cultural organizations, providing 

annual appropriations for over 40 years; and 

 

WHEREAS, the nonprofit arts and culture sector in Western New York spent $156 million in the 

region, including expenditures for facilities and capital asset acquisition, with an additional $196.1 million 

spent by their audiences to generate $352.1 million in total economic activity in 2015; and 

 

WHEREAS, the sector also provided 10,160 full-time equivalent jobs, generating $208.2 million 

in household income to local residents. This economic activity and investment in WNY delivered $40.3 

million in local and state government revenue in 2015; and 

  

WHEREAS, a plan is needed to more effectively connect the arts and cultural sector and its 

numerous assets to tourism, urban design/land use, education, economic development, and community 

development, in order to provide a workplan that all stakeholders can contribute to in a coordinated 

manner; and 

 

WHEREAS, Erie County was awarded a $75,000 Empire State Development (ESD) Strategic 

Planning and Feasibility Studies grant on a reimbursement basis; and 

 

WHEREAS, Arts Services, Inc. is the fiscal agent for $57,000 in grants secured by the Greater 

Buffalo Cultural Alliance for the creation of a Cultural Plan; and   

 

WHEREAS, in the approved 2023 Erie County Budget funding for the development of the 

Cultural Plan was allocated for this purpose, including a $15,000.00 county share; and  

 

 

 

WHEREAS, Erie County is desirous of engaging planning services for the Erie County Cultural 

Plan; and  

 

WHEREAS, in compliance with Section 26.08 of the Erie County Administrative Code a 

consultant selection process was undertaken to evaluate responses to Request for Proposal #2023-019VF; 

and 

WHEREAS, Erie County desires to engage AEA Consulting to complete the Cultural Plan, the 

ranking and selection is further detailed in “Attachment A”. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to enter 

into agreement with the New York State Department of Economic Development and the New York State 

Urban Development Corporation, d/b/a Empire State Development (collectively referred to as ESD) to 

accept $75,000 in funding through the ESD Strategic Planning and Feasibility Studies grant program and 

to be used towards the Erie County Cultural Plan; and be it further  

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the County Executive to enter into agreement 

with Art Services, Inc. to accept $57,000 to be used towards the Erie County Cultural Plan; and be it 

further 

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for $15,000 be transferred within the Department 

of Environment and Planning’s 2023 Budget and be made available as Interfund Revenue Subsidy to 

cover the $15,000 County share of the Erie County Cultural Plan project as follows: 

 

Department of Environment and Planning 

Fund 110, Funds Center 16200 

 

ACCOUNT APPROPRIATION      CHANGE 

516020 Prof Svcs Contracts & Fees      $(15,000) 

570050 Interfund Transfer Capital     $ 15,000 

 TOTAL     $          0 

 

and be it further 



 

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to create a new capital project in Fund 410, 

Funds Center 162 for the Erie County Cultural Plan project as follows: 

 

Project A.213XX – Erie County Cultural Plan 

Fund 410, Funds Center 162 

 

                 REVENUES 

409000 State Aid Revenue    $  (75,000.00) 

479100 Other Contributions     (57,000.00) 

486000 Interfund Revenue Subsidy     (15,000.00) 

 TOTAL $(147,000.00) 

 

                 APPROPRIATIONS 

 Capital Project Expense $(147,000.00) 

and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the County Executive to enter into contract 

with AEA Consulting in an amount not to exceed $124,740 for planning services for the Erie County 

Cultural Plan; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the County Executive to execute amendments 

or change orders as necessary in the amount not to exceed $22,260; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the Director of the Division of Budget and 

Management to implement any budget adjustments as required to comply with private, State and local 

funding requirements; and be it further                                                                                           

 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be sent to the County Executive’s Office, the 

Comptroller’s Office, the Director of the Division of Budget and Management, the Department of Law, 

and the Department of Environment and Planning.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1: Consultant Selection Scores 

 

 

 

 

(4-0)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

4. COMM. 13E-11 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, on February 18, 2021 your Honorable Body authorized the Construction Contracts 

for the Erie County Medical Examiner’s Anthropology Lab Phase 6 Renovations via Comm. 3E-7 (2021); 

and  

 

WHEREAS, unforeseen conditions incurred during the execution of the Project brought on by 

delays during the COVID pandemic, as well as, ECMEO’s increased demand on the facility along with 

additional scope requested by the Erie County Medical Examiner’s Office to accommodate additional 

staff, made it necessary for the Construction Contingency to be increased.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to 

increase the current construction contingency fund by $60,000.00 from $140,467.42 to $200,467.42; and 

be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that change order reductions will result in these funds being returned to the 

Construction Contingency fund; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the County Executive to negotiate and issue 

Contract Amendments to the previously approved contractors on site to complete the additional work; and 

be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the Comptroller’s Office be to make payment 

for all the above from the following Capital Projects in Fund 410, Funds Center 122 as follows: 

 

A.20003 – 2020 Erie County Medical Examiners Toxicology/Pathology Phase 6      $44,861.52 

A.21108 – 2021 Erie County Medical Examiners Toxicology/Pathology Phase 7      $15,138.48 

TOTAL              $60,000.00 

 

and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Legislature shall forward certified copies of this Resolution to 

the County Executive’s Office, the Comptroller’s Office, the Department of Public Works, the Department 

of Health - Medical Examiner’s Office, and the Division of Budget and Management. 

(4-0) 

 

 

 

 

 

5. COMM. 13E-12 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the existing layout of the Health Lab Building is situated in a manner that does not 

meet the needs of the Health Department due to increased staff as well as operational needs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County of Erie received general construction and electrical construction bids for 

the Renovation project on February 22, 2023, but did not receive any mechanical construction or plumbing 

construction bids at that time; and 

 

WHEREAS, the mechanical construction and plumbing construction were rebid on April 12, 

2023 but did not receive any bids; and 

 

WHEREAS, while Sicoli Construction Services was the apparent low-bidder on for the General 

Construction Contract, they withdrew their bid prior to uploading a resolution for construction contract 

award per the terms of General Municipal Law 105; and  

 

WHEREAS, in consultation with the Department of Law, and in conformance with General 

Municipal Law 103, the Department of Public Works was permitted to negotiate directly with mechanical 

contractors and plumbing contractors directly to award the work since no bids were received for two 

consecutive publicly advertised bids for mechanical construction and plumbing construction scope of 

work; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works requested mechanical construction and plumbing 

construction bid proposals directly from several contractors, and received mechanical construction and 

plumbing construction bids for the project on May 24, 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works, along with Foit Albert Associates is 

recommending award of the contract to the lowest responsible bidders for the general construction and 

electrical construction received on February 22, 2023 and to the lowest responsible bidders for the 

mechanical and plumbing construction received on May 24, 2023. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to enter 

into a contract with the lowest responsible bidders for the Erie County Health Lab Building 17 

Renovations – Phase 3 for an amount not to exceed as follows: 

 

General Construction Work 

Rodriguez Construction Group  Base Bid:  $1,708,000 

 

Electrical Construction Work 

CIR Electrical Construction Corp.  Base Bid:  $  269,680 



 

 

 

Mechanical Construction Work 

John W Danforth Co.    Base Bid  $  498,000 

 

Plumbing Construction Work 

MKS Plumbing Corp.   Base Bid  $  122,122 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Total Award of Construction Contract:    $2,597,802  

 

and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for a sum of $250,000 be allocated to a 

Construction Contingency Fund with authorization for the County Executive to approve change orders in 

an amount not to exceed the Contingency Fund; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that change order deductions will result in these funds being returned to the 

Construction Contingency Fund; and be it further 

  

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the Comptroller’s Office to make payment for 

all the above from the following Capital Projects in Fund 410, Funds Center 122 as follows: 

 

A.23001 - DPW (Buildings and Grounds) – Roof Replacement and Exterior 

Waterproofing (Countywide) 

$     17,934.41 

 

A.22004 - DPW (Buildings and Grounds) – EC Health Department – Improvements to 

Building 17 (Buffalo) 

$2,591,718.89 

A.22002 - DPW (Buildings and Grounds) – Roof Replacement and Exterior 

Waterproofing (Countywide)  

$     98,485.00 

 

A.21153 – EC Health Lab  $     10,710.00 

A.20002 - DPW (Buildings and Grounds) - Roof Replacement and Exterior 

Waterproofing (Countywide) - General 

$     93,850.57 

 

A.19002 - Roof Replacement and Exterior Waterproofing (Countywide)  $     35,103.13 

TOTAL $2,847,802.00 

 

and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that two certified copies of this resolution be sent to the Department of Public 

Works, Commissioner’s Office, and one copy each to the County Executive’s Office, the Comptroller’s 

Office, and the Division of Budget and Management. 

(4-0) 

 

 

6. COMM. 13E-13 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner of Public Works desires to engage in services for Special 

Inspections and Testing in order to comply with the requirements of Building Code on various County 

projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works entered into a contract with SJB Services Inc.  for 

Special Inspections and Testing on July 8, 2019, per COMM 8E-6 (2019); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works was made aware that SJB Services has been 

acquired by Atlantic Testing Laboratories on April 13, 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works is recommending transferring the contract from 

SJB Services, Inc. to Atlantic Testing Laboratories at the revised rate schedule provided by Atlantic 

Testing after they acquired SJB Services, Inc.; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works is requesting an extension of the Special 

Inspections and Testing contract for the 5
th

 year and final one-year extension of the original contract per 

the terms of the original Request for Qualifications received on March 6, 2019 to provide the required 

services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the remaining funds originally authorized per COMM 8E-6 (2019) will be used for 

the final year of the term contract (Contract # 19-492-PW); and 

 

WHEREAS, all terms of the original Request for Qualifications COMM 8E-6 (2019) and contract 

(19-492-PW) will remain with the amendment wage rate schedule.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to execute 

an amendment to the contract with the SJB Services, Inc./Atlantic Testing Laboratories for the Erie 

County – On-Call Special Inspections and Tests for a one-year extension of the term contract valid 

through June 1, 2024 with an amended wage rate schedule; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, the authorization is hereby given for the County Executive to transfer the terms of 

the original contract with SJB Services, Inc. to Atlantic Testing Laboratories based on Atlantic Testing 

Laboratories acquiring SJB Services, Inc.; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that the total cost of this contract including the one-year extension will still not 

exceed the original contracted amount of $150,000; and be it further 

 



 

 

RESOLVED, that sufficient funding was previously authorized in COMM 8E-6 (2019) to cover 

the total cost of this contract as memorialized below:  

 

A.18004 – Code and Environmental Compliance   $  75,000.00 

Sewer Operating Fund 220     $  75,000.00  

Total Payment Not To Exceed:     $150,000.00 

 

and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that two certified copies each of this resolution be sent to the Department of Public 

Works, Commissioner’s Office, and Department of Environment and Planning, Division of Sewerage 

Management and one copy each to the County Executive’s Office, the Comptroller’s Office, and the 

Division of Budget and Management. 

(4-0) 

 

 

HOWARD J. JOHNSON, JR. 

CHAIR 

 

 

 

 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
REPORT No. 8  ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
EE Report No. 8



 

 

June 29, 2023 ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

REPORT NO. 8 

 

ALL MEMBERS PRESENT. 

 

1. COMM. 13E-10 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the Erie County Department of Environment and Planning (DEP) in partnership 

with the Western NY Stormwater Coalition, sponsors an annual rain barrel and compost bin sale; and

  

WHEREAS, this year there are two grants for the subsidy of rain barrels and compost bins in 

specific municipalities which were detailed in two previous resolutions COMM. 18E-22 (2022) and 

COMM. 7E-24 (2022); and 

 

WHEREAS, DEP issued a Request for Proposals seeking professional services for rain barrel 

and compost bin sales (RFP# A2023-027VF); and 

 

WHEREAS, Brand Builders was rated most highly by the selection committee due to both 

experience and price. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to enter 

into an agreement with Brand Builders in an amount not to exceed $170,000, as part of the annual rain 

barrel and compost bin sale; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that sufficient funding for this contract exists within the DEP grant budgets 

(Fund 281) for 162WNYSCRBP2226 and 162WNYSCRB2223; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Budget and Management is hereby 

authorized to implement any budget adjustments as required to comply with local funding 

requirements; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution shall be forwarded to the County 

Executive’s Office; the Division of Budget and Management; the Department of Law; and the 

Department of Environment and Planning. 

(5-0) 

 

 

TIMOTHY J. MEYERS 

CHAIR 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
REPORT No. 6  FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
FM Report No. 6



 

 

June 29, 2023 FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

REPORT NO. 6 

 

ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT LEGISLATORS GILMOUR & GREENE. 

 

1. RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 

 

a. COMM. 5E-19 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “Authority to Extend Usherwood Office Technology Contract” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

b. INTRO. 6-2 (2023) 

 MALCZEWSKI, TODARO, GREENE & MILLS: “Calling on New York State to Not Impose 

 a Good Cause Eviction Mandate” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

c. COMM. 12E-1 (2023) 

COMPTROLLER: “Financial Statements & Management Letter for ECC - Fiscal Year Ending 

8/31/2022” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

d. COMM. 13E-4 (2023) 

BASKIN: “2023 Mid-Year Budget Hearings” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

e. COMM. 13D-1 (2023) 

DIRECTOR OF BUDGET & MANAGEMENT: “Budget Monitoring Report for Period 

Ending April 2023” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

f. COMM. 13M-1 (2023) 

NYS DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION & FINANCE: “List of Certified 2023 Class 

Equalization Rates”  

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. COMM. 13E-16 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
WHEREAS, the several non-city school districts lying within the County of Erie have adopted 

their school budgets for the current school year, determined the amount thereof to be raised by real 

property tax and will have fixed their school tax rates, said budgets, amounts and rates to be certified to 

and filed with the Real Property Tax Services Department of Erie County, no later than August 10, 2023; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Director for said Real Property Tax Services Department will spread and extend 

said school tax amounts, at the school tax rates certified to him, against the taxable real property appearing 

on the respective school assessment rolls. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

 RESOLVED, that there is hereby levied and assessed upon the taxable real property appearing on 

the school assessment rolls for the respective school districts the amounts to be raised by school taxes, as 

spread and extended by the Director of the Real Property Tax Services Department, which amounts shall 

be collected from the persons and corporations liable therefore in accordance with and pursuant to the 

provisions of the statutes in such cases made and provided; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that the Chairman and the Clerk of the Legislature are hereby directed to execute in 

the name and under the seal of the County of Erie, and to annex to the respective school district tax rolls as 

they are compiled by the Director of the Real Property Tax Services Department, a good and sufficient 

warrant, addressed to the proper tax collecting officials, commanding them to collect such school district 

taxes in accordance with applicable law; and be it further  

 

 RESOLVED, that the Director of the Real Property Tax Services Department is hereby directed 

to deliver such school district tax rolls and warrants to such tax collecting officials to be acted upon in 

accordance with applicable law; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, that each and every act of the Director for the Real Property Tax Services 

Department in connection with the foregoing is hereby ratified and confirmed; and be it further 

 

 RESOLVED, the Clerk of the Legislature is hereby directed to cause such non-city school district 

budgets, tax rates and resolutions to be printed in the journal of the proceedings of the Legislature; and be 

it further 

 

 



 

 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be forwarded to the County Executive’s 

Office, the Comptroller’s Office, the Department of Real Property Tax Services, the Department of Law, 

and the Division Budget and Management. 

(3-0)   

 

TIMOTHY J. MEYERS 

CHAIR 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
REPORT No. 7  HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
HHS Report No. 7



 

 

June 29, 2023 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 

COMMITTEE 

REPORT NO. 7 

 

ALL MEMBERS PRESENT. 

CHAIR BASKIN PRESENT AS EX-OFFICIO MEMBER. 

 

1.  RESOLVED, the following item is hereby received, filed and printed: 

 

a.  COMM. 13E-1 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “Appointments to the Mental Hygiene Community Services Board” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

June 8, 2023 

 

Erie County Legislature 

92 Franklin St, 4
th

 Floor 

Buffalo, NY 14202 

 

 RE: Appointments to the Mental Hygiene Community Services Board 

 

Dear Honorable Members, 

 

Pursuant to the powers vested in me by Section 1303 of the Erie County Charter, I hereby          

appoint the following persons to the Erie County Mental Hygiene Community Services Board for a term 

ending December 31, 2024. 

 

Sarah Bonk 

Erie County Department of Homeland Security and 

Emergency Services 

45 Elm Street 

Buffalo, NY 14203 

New Appointment 

Charles Syms 

University at Buffalo 

School of Social Work 

685 Baldy Hall 

Buffalo, NY  14260 

Re-Appointment 
 

Should you have any questions regarding this appointment please feel free to contact my office at 

(716)858-8500. 

 

Sincerely,  

Mark C. Poloncarz 

Erie County Executive 

2. COMM. 13E-14 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
WHEREAS, the Department of Social Services – Youth Services Division is seeking approval to 

execute contracts with community providers for Youth Sports Services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the availability of New York State Funding enables this program’s implementation; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, these awards are designed to promote positive youth development and family 

engagement; and 

  

WHEREAS, a Request for Proposal (RFP # 2023-018VF) was distributed for this program and 

Youth Board panel recommendations were utilized to determine contract award amounts; and 

 

WHEREAS, there is no additional local share necessary for these awards, and there is no fiscal 

impact based on this resolution. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

 

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive and 

Commissioner of Social Services to accept the State Aid Award of $124,025 for Youth Sport Services; 

and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given for the County Executive and the Commissioner 

of Social Services to execute contracts with the following providers for Youth Sports Services, using Fund 

Center 12530, Account 517876 (Youth Development Programs) and Account 408000 (State Aid – Youth 

Programs) in the Youth Bureau: 

  

Agency Award 

G.I.R.L.S. SPORTS FOUNDATION, INC. $10,000.00 

THE SALVATION ARMY $10,000.00 

WNY STEM HUB $10,000.00 

BOYS ON THE RIGHT TRACK $5,000.00 

ERIE REGIONAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

$10,000.00 

KAREN SOCIETY OF BUFFALO $10,000.00 



 

 

UNITED CHURCH HOME $5,325.00 

TOWN OF HAMBURG, NEW YORK $10,000.00 

SENECA-BABCOCK COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC. $10,000.00 

VALLEY COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC. $10,000.00 

NORTHWEST BUFFALO COMMUNITY CENTER INC $10,000.00 

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF THE NORTHTOWNS $10,000.00 

TOTAL PACKAGE SPORTS, INC. $6,850.00 

PEOPLE UNITED FOR SUSTAINABLE HOUSING INC $6,850.00 

TOTAL $124,025.00 

and be it further 

RESOLVED, that after contracts are executed and filed, the Department of Social Services, 

Division of Budget and Management and Office of the Comptroller are authorized to effectuate 2023 

payments for these agencies for providing Youth Sports Services; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be transmitted to the Erie County Executive’s 

Office, Comptroller’s Office, Department of Social Services, and Division of Budget and Management. 

(6-0) 

 

 

JOHN J. GILMOUR 

CHAIR 

 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
REPORT No. 1  GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
GA Report No. 1



 

 

June 29, 2023 GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

REPORT NO. 1 

 

ALL MEMBERS PRESENT. 

CHAIR BASKIN PRESENT AS EX-OFFICIO MEMBER. 

 

1. RESOLVED, the following item is hereby received, filed and printed: 

 

a. COMM. 13E-17 (2023) 

 COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “Appointment to Western Region OTB Board of Directors” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

June 16, 2023 

 

Erie County Legislature 

Old County Hall 

92 Franklin Street, 4
th

 Floor 

Buffalo, New York 14202 

 

Re: Appointment to Western Region OTB Board of Directors 

 

Dear Honorable Members, 

 

Please be advised that pursuant to legislation adopted in the 2023-2024 New York State budget, I 

hereby appoint the following individual to the Board of Directors of Western Region OTB: 

 

Jennifer Hibit 

 

Should you have any questions regarding these appointments please feel free to contact my office 

at (716) 858-8500. 

 

Sincerely yours,  

 

Mark C. Poloncarz, Esq. 

Erie County Executive 

 

 

 

 

 

2. RESOLVED, the following items are hereby received and filed: 

 

a. COMM. 14E-1 (2022) 

COMPTROLLER: “Letter Regarding Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

b. COMM. 14E-4 (2022) 

COUNTY CLERK: “Erie County Auto Bureau Services in East Buffalo” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

c. COMM. 14E-18 (2022) 

COMPTROLLER: “Letter Concerning the Hotel at Batavia Downs” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

d. COMM. 14E-22 (2022) 

COMPTROLLER: “Letter Regarding Health, Dental & Vision Benefits for WROTB Board 

Members” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

e. COMM. 15E-4 (2022) 

COMPTROLLER: “Outside Legal Counsel Retained by WROTB” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

f. COMM. 15E-6 (2022) 

COMPTROLLER: “Lobbyists/Advocates Retained by WROTB” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

g. COMM. 15E-14 (2022) 

COMPTROLLER: “NYS Comptroller Audit on Marketing & Promotional Program - WROTB” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

h. COMM. 15M-5 (2022) 

PRESIDENT OF WESTERN REGIONAL OTB: “Letter Replying to Comptroller Inquiry” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

i. COMM. 15M-7 (2022) 

ERIE COUNTY BOARD OF ETHICS: “Annual Report of Activities for 2021” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

 



 

 

j. COMM. 18D-2 (2022) 

DEPARTMENT OF LAW: “Transmittal of New Claims Against Erie County” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

k. COMM. 18M-1 (2022) 

TOWN OF WALES: “Opposition to New York State Actions Restricting 2nd Amendment 

Rights” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

l. COMM. 19M-4 (2022) 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FULTON COUNTY: “Resolution Objecting to Recent NYS 

Gun Legislation”  

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

m. COMM. 19M-5 (2022) 

TOWN OF CONCORD: “Resolution Objecting to Recent NYS Gun Legislation” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

n. COMM. 19M-8 (2022) 

ASSIGNED COUNSEL PROGRAM: “Quarterly Report of the Assigned Counsel Program for 

the 3rd Quarter of 2022” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

o. COMM. 20D-3 (2022) 

DEPARTMENT OF LAW: “Transmittal of New Claims Against Erie County” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

p. COMM. 20M-2 (2022) 

CHAIR, ECMC BOARD OF DIRECTORS: “Letter to County Executive Concerning 

Appointments to the Erie County Medical Center Corporation Board of Directors” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

q. COMM. 23E-4 (2022) 

COMPTROLLER: “Letter to WNYOTB CEO Regarding Requested Information” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

r. COMM. 2D-4 (2023) 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: “Transmittal of New Claims Against Erie County” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

s. COMM. 2M-1 (2023) 

TOWN OF ALDEN: “Certified Resolution Opposing NYS Laws Concerning Firearm 

Restrictions” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

t. COMM. 3M-1 (2023) 

ASSIGNED COUNSEL PROGRAM: “Financial & Meeting Minute Disclosure” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

u. COMM. 3M-2 (2023) 

ASSIGNED COUNSEL PROGRAM: “4th Quarter Report of the Assigned Counsel Program” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

v. COMM. 3M-6 (2023) 

EC FAIR HOUSING BOARD CHAIR: “EC Fair Housing Board Annual Report” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

w. COMM. 4E-6 (2023) 

COMPTROLLER: “Unanswered Questions Regarding WROTB Operations” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

x. COMM. 4E-24 (2023) 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE: “Support & Possible Addition to LL 1-1 (2023)” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

y. COMM. 4D-4 (2023) 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: “Transmittal of New Claims Against Erie County” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

z. COMM. 5E-3 (2023) 

COMPTROLLER: “Letter to County Clerk Concerning Challenger Newspaper Invoice” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

aa. COMM. 5D-4 (2023) 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: “Transmittal of New Claims Against Erie County” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

bb. COMM. 5M-1 (2023) 

VISIT BUFFALO NIAGARA: “Visit Buffalo Niagara - 2022 Quarterly Report Q4” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 



 

 

cc. COMM. 5M-2 (2023) 

VISIT BUFFALO NIAGARA: “Budget Accountability Act Submission” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

dd. COMM. 7D-3 (2023) 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: “Transmittal of New Claims Against Erie County” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

ee. COMM. 10D-2 (2023) 

DEPUTY COMPTROLLER OF AUDIT: “EC Comptroller's Office Audit of the EC Clerk's 

Office - Notification of Expanded Scope & Separation into Two Audits” 

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

ff. COMM. 10D-3 (2023) 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: “Transmittal of New Claims Against Erie County” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

gg. COMM. 10M-1 (2023) 

ASSIGNED COUNSEL PROGRAM: “Quarterly Report of Assigned Counsel Program - 1st 

Quarter of 2023” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

hh. COMM. 10M-2 (2023) 

ECIDA: “ECIDA 2022 Annual Financial Statements” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

ii. COMM. 12E-17 (2023) 

TODARO: “Constituent Concern - Civil Service Hiring Practices”  

(Chair’s Ruling) 

 

jj. COMM. 12D-1 (2023) 

COMMISSIONER OF SOCIAL SERVICES & COUNTY ATTORNEY: “Migrant Situation” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

kk. COMM. 13D-2 (2023) 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: “Transmittal of New Claims Against Erie County” 

 (Chair’s Ruling) 

 

JOHN A. BARGNESI, JR. 

CHAIR 



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-1  SHERIFF  Award Correctional Health Optometry
Services RFP & Authorize Contract  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-1



COMM. 14E-1 
Page 1 of 6



COMM. 14E-1 
Page 2 of 6



COMM. 14E-1 
Page 3 of 6



COMM. 14E-1 
Page 4 of 6



COMM. 14E-1 
Page 5 of 6



COMM. 14E-1 
Page 6 of 6



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-2  SHERIFF  Contracts for Incarcerated Individual
Programming  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-2



COMM. 14E-2 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 14E-2 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 14E-2 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 14E-2 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-3  COMPTROLLER  Apportionment & Distribution Report - Sales
& Compensating Use Tax  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-3



COMM. 14E-3 
Page 1 of 5



COMM. 14E-3 
Page 2 of 5



COMM. 14E-3 
Page 3 of 5



COMM. 14E-3 
Page 4 of 5



COMM. 14E-3 
Page 5 of 5



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-4  COMPTROLLER  
Report on Audit of the EC Department of Law
Contract Expenditures for Indigent Services -
1/1/2022-12/31/2022

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-4



COMM. 14E-4 
Page 1 of 9



COMM. 14E-4 
Page 2 of 9



COMM. 14E-4 
Page 3 of 9



COMM. 14E-4 
Page 4 of 9



COMM. 14E-4 
Page 5 of 9



COMM. 14E-4 
Page 6 of 9



COMM. 14E-4 
Page 7 of 9



COMM. 14E-4 
Page 8 of 9



COMM. 14E-4 
Page 9 of 9



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-5  COMPTROLLER  Annual Comprehensive Financial Report -
2022  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-5



COMM. 14E-5 
Page 1 of 187



COUNTY OF ERIE 

NEW YORK 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

DR. KEVIN R. HARDWICK 

Erie County Comptroller 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 2 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 3 of 187



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
 

 

 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

Erie County Comptroller’s Office 

Dr. Kevin R. Hardwick 

Erie County Comptroller 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 4 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 5 of 187



 

 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Table of Contents 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 

Page     

Introductory Section: 
 

Letter of Transmittal ....................................................................................................................... i 
 

GFOA Certificate of Achievement ................................................................................................. vii 
 

Organizational Chart ....................................................................................................................... viii 

 

Summary of Elected Officials ......................................................................................................... ix 
 

Financial Section: 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report ......................................................................................................... 1 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis......................................................................................... 4 

  

Basic Financial Statements: 
  

 Government-wide Financial Statements: 

 Statement of Net Position .............................................................................................................. 15 

 Statement of Activities ................................................................................................................... 16 

 Fund Financial Statements: 

 Balance Sheet—Governmental Funds ........................................................................................... 17 

 Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet—Governmental Funds  

  to the Government-wide Statement of Net Position ................................................................ 18 

 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 

  Balances (Deficit)—Governmental Funds .............................................................................. 19 

 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,  

  and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit)—Governmental Funds to the  

  Government-wide Statement of Activities .............................................................................. 20 

 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances—  

  Budget and Actual—General Fund (Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting) ................................. 21 

 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances—  

  Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting)—Emergency  

Response Special Revenue Fund ............................................................................................. 22 

 Statement of Net Position—Proprietary Funds .............................................................................. 23 

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net  

  Position—Proprietary Funds ................................................................................................... 24 

 Statement of Cash Flows—Proprietary Funds ............................................................................... 25 

 Statement of Fiduciary Net Position—Custodial Fund .................................................................. 27 

 Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position—Custodial Fund ............................................... 28 

(continued) 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 6 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 7 of 187



 

 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 

Table of Contents 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 

Page 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements ...................................................................................................... 29 

 

Required Supplementary Information: 

 

Schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of the 

Net Pension Liability/(Asset)—Employees’ Retirement System—Primary Government ........... 87 

Schedule of the County’s Contributions—Employees’ Retirement System— 

Primary Government ..................................................................................................................... 88 

Schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of the 

Net Pension Liability/(Asset)—Teachers’ Retirement System—Primary Government ............... 89 

Schedule of the County’s Contributions—Teachers’ Retirement System—  

Primary Government ..................................................................................................................... 90 

 Schedule of Changes in the County’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ............................... 91 

 Notes to the Required Supplementary Information ............................................................................. 94 

 

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules: 

 

 Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds ............................................................. 95 

 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund  

  Balances—Nonmajor Governmental Funds ................................................................................. 98 

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances—  

  Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting)—Nonmajor Governmental Funds: 

  Road Special Revenue Fund ............................................................................................ 101 

  Sewer Special Revenue Fund .......................................................................................... 102 

  Downtown Mall Special Revenue Fund .......................................................................... 103 

  E-911 Special Revenue Fund .......................................................................................... 104 

  Pharmaceutical Litigation Settlements Special Revenue Fund ....................................... 105 

  Debt Service Fund ........................................................................................................... 106 
   

 Balance Sheet—Library Component Unit ......................................................................................... 107 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet—Library Component Unit   

  to the Government-wide Statement of Net Position .................................................................. 108 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance—   

  Library Component Unit to the Government-wide Statement of Activities ............................. 109 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund  

Balance—Library Component Unit to the Government-wide Statement of 

  Activities ................................................................................................................................... 110 

 Combining Statement of Net Position—Other Component Units ..................................................... 111 

 (continued) 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 8 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 9 of 187



 

 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Table of Contents 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 

(concluded) 

Page 

 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net  

  Position— Other Component Units ............................................................................................ 112 

 

Statistical Section:  

Financial Trends: 

Net Position by Component ......................................................................................................... 113 

 

Changes in Net Position ............................................................................................................... 114 

 

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds ....................................................................................... 117 
 

 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds .................................................................... 118 

Revenue Capacity: 

Taxable Sales by Category ........................................................................................................... 120 

 

Assessed and Equalized Full Value of Taxable Property ............................................................ 121 

 

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates ................................................................................ 122 

 

Principal Taxpayers ..................................................................................................................... 123 

 

Property Tax Levies and Collections ........................................................................................... 124 

Debt Capacity: 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type ........................................................................................... 125 

 

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding ............................................................................... 126 

 

Legal Debt Margin Information ................................................................................................... 127 

 

Pledged-Revenue Coverage ......................................................................................................... 128 

 

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt ............................................................... 129 

 Demographic and Economic Information: 

Demographic and Economic Statistics ........................................................................................ 130 

 

Principal Employers ..................................................................................................................... 131 

Operating Information: 

Full-time County Government Employees by Function .............................................................. 132 

 

Operating Indicators by Function/Program .................................................................................. 133 

 

Capital Asset Statistics by Function ............................................................................................ 134

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 10 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 11 of 187



 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 

 

 

This section contains the following: 

 

 LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 

 GFOA CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 

 ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

 SUMMARY OF ELECTED OFFICIALS 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 12 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 13 of 187



ERIE COUNTY COMPTROLLER
KEIN R. HARDWICK

June 16, 2023

Honorable Members
Erie County Legislature
92 Franklin Street, 4" Floor
Buffalo, New York 14202

Honorable Mark C. Poloncarz
Erie County Executive
95 Franklin Street, 16" Floor
Buffalo, New York 14202

Dear Honorable Members and County Executive Poloncarz:

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report ("ACFR") ofthe County ofErie, New York (the "County"),
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 is hereby submitted in accordance with Section 1202 (i) ofthe
Erie County Charter.

INTRODUCTION

This report was prepared by the Erie County Comptroller's Office in conformance with current accounting
and financial reporting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
("GASB") and the New York Office of the State Comptroller. County management assumes full
responsibility for the completeness and reliability ofthe information contained in this report, based upon a
comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of
internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free ofany material misstatements.

The certified public accounting firm Drescher & Malecki LLP, the County's independent external auditor,
has issued an unmodified ("clean") opinion on the County's financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2022. The independent auditors' report is located at the front ofthe financial section ofthis
report.

Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") immediately follows the independent auditors' report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis ofthe basic financial statements. The MD&A
complements this letter oftransmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Basic Information

The County is a metropolitan center covering 1,058 square miles that is located on the western border of
New York State, adjacent to Lake Erie. Situated within the County are 3 cities, 25 towns, and 16 villages,
including the City ofBuffalo, which serves as the County seat and is the State's second most populous and
largest city. The County provides a variety ofmandated and discretionary services covering the areas of

- ]
95 FRANKLIN STREET • ROOM 1100 • BUHALO, N.Y. • 14202

PION: (716) 858-8400 • EA: (716) 858-6195 • wwwerie.gov/comptroller
COMM. 14E-5 

Page 14 of 187



culture, parks and recreation, social services, police, libraries, youth, health, senior services, roads, mental
health, probation, corrections, emergency services, license bureau, and sanitary sewerage.

The County is a major New York industrial and commercial center and is favorably located relative to the
commercial markets of both the United States and Canada. Access to these markets is enhanced by the
County's standing of being among the largest rail centers in the United States; that it is provided trucking
services by numerous transcontinental, international and common carriers and is a focal point of
international water-borne transportation.

Subject to the New York State Constitution and Laws, the County operates pursuant to a County Charter
("Charter") and Administrative Code. Additionally, various New York State laws govern the County to
the extent that such laws are applicable to counties operating under a charter form ofgovernment.

Legislative authority of the County is vested in an 11-member governing body, the County Legislature
("Legislature"), each member ofwhich is elected for a two-year term. Principal functions ofthe Legislature
include adoption of the annual budget, levying of taxes, review and approval of budget modifications,
adoption of local laws, and authorization of the incurrence of all County indebtedness.

In addition to the members of the Legislature, there are five County-wide elected officials, each elected to
four-year terms: County Executive, County Comptroller, County Clerk, District Attorney, and Sheriff. The
County Comptroller serves as the County's chieffiscal, accounting, financial reporting and auditing officer.

Component Units

Consistent with criteria promulgated in the GASB Codification, the financial statement reporting entity
includes the County ofErie, New York (the primary government) and its significant component units: the
Buffalo and Erie County Public Library, the Erie County Medical Center Corporation and its three
component units (i.e., Research for Health in Erie County, Inc., ECMC Foundation, Inc. and The Grider
Initiative, Inc.), two component units of the Erie Community College proprietary fund (i.e., the Auxiliary
Services Corporation ofErie Community College, Inc. and the Erie Community College Foundation, Inc.),
the Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority, the Erie Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation ("ETASC"),
ErieNet Local Development Corporation ("ELDC"), and the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation, Inc. ("ILDC").

Additional detailed information relating to the specific organizations and the manner of inclusion (discrete
presentation or blending) in the reporting entity as component units, and the basis for making such
determinations, are also discussed in Note l to the financial statements.

Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority

In July 2005, the New York State Legislature and Governor created the Erie County Fiscal Stability
Authority ("ECFSA") to monitor the County's finances. Under the Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority
Act ("Aet"), the legislation establishing the ECFSA, the County is required to develop and submit a Four
y ear Financial Plan to ECFSA for its approval. Under the Act, if the County fails to meet certain criteria,
or if the County meets other criteria such as the County having "incurred a major operating funds deficit of
one percent or more in the aggregate results of operations of such funds of the County during its fiscal
year," (§ 3959 of the Act) the ECFSA may declare and enter into a "control period." Under the Act, in a
control period, the ECFSA may engage in a number of actions including establishing a wage and/or hiring
freeze, setting maximum levels of County spending and requiring its approval for any County borrowing.
On November 3, 2006, citing deficiencies in the County's 2007-2010 Four Year Financial Plan, ECFSA

- 1l

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 15 of 187



imposed a control period onErie County, which continued until June 2009, at which time the ECFSA voted
to return to an advisory status in which it continues to function.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Local Economy

Historically the local economy was built on railroad commerce, steel manufacturing, automobile
production, Great Lakes shipping and grain storage. However, following heavy job losses in the
manufacturing sector in the 1970's and early 1980's, the local economy has become more diversified with
growth in the financial, health and service sectors. This diversification has cushioned local impacts during
economic downturns, but redevelopment of the local economic base and improvement of the local economy
has been a gradual, sometimes sporadic, ongoing process since the mid-1980s.

Erie County has increasingly become a center of bioinformatics and medical research including
development at the University at Buffalo, Hauptman-Woodward Medical Research Institute, and Roswell
Park Cancer Institute. The Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus in downtown Buffalo has continued to grow
since its inception in 2001. Roswell Park is involved in the federal government's National Cancer Plan
(called OperationMoonshot).

Technology employment in Buffalo is projected to increase by 7% from 2022 to 2032. During 2021, Buffalo
doubled its startup venture capital, raising more than $530 million. 43North is an annual tech startup
competition that has invested in 51 startups from around the world and created more than 800 local jobs in
industries and verticals range from artificial intelligence to medical devices, consumer products,
manufacturing and all-in-one software platforms.

In Buffalo, at the edge of the Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus, the redevelopment of the former Trico
Products plant in downtown Buffalo by the Krog Group has re-started after delays due to the COVID
pandemic. The $112 million project is converting the former 500,000 square foot windshield wiper plant
into 242 apartments, office space, and indoor and on-site parking.

One of the largest projects in Buffalo has been the redevelopment of Seneca One, the tallest building in the
city. The structure has been brought back to life with offices, apartments and event spaces. The mixed-use
building's anchor tenant is M&TBank, which is also one of the region's largest employers. In addition to
M&TBank, several tech companies have made the move into Seneca One. In April 2023, Highmark Blue
Cross Blue Shield announced it was moving its offices into Seneca One. Developer Douglas Jemal, who
owns Seneca One, has made significant other local investments, purchasing large commercial properties in
downtown Buffalo, multiple hotels, and engaging in construction and redevelopment.

During the past ten years, Erie County and New York State have spent over $50 million to buy land, move
rail lines and create road, water and sewer infrastructure at the former Bethlehem Steel site in Lackawanna.
The Erie County Industrial Development Agency ("ECIDA") owns 25% of the complex (now known as
Renaissance Commerce Park) and has remediated the land. Since then, the private sector has invested more
than $100 million at the property creating manufacturing and warehouse complexes. Welded Tube of
Canada built a $48 million facility in 2013; TMP Technologies constructed a $22.7 million factory to make
the Mr. Clean Magic Eraser; Suero Sourcing invested $19 million to buy and refurbish several existing
buildings into a new sugar refinery and storage operation; and Total Quality Assurance International has
leased 108,000 square feet of Uniland Development Company's first 150,000-square-foot warehouse,
constructed at a cost of $17 million. Max Advanced Brakes ofMarkham, Ont., has signed a long-term lease
with Uniland to occupy 42,000 square feet in the recently opened warehouse.

- 111 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 16 of 187



Uniland is currently building another warehouse on the site of between 170,000-200,000 square feet at a
cost of $20 million. Uniland announced in May 2023 that they are buying a third site from ECIDA and
will build a third warehouse totaling 150,000 square feet. Ciminelli Real Estate Corp. is also working on
plans for a mixed-use building and work may begin later in 2023 on the 250,000-square-feet building.
Tecumseh Redevelopment, which owns most of the property that has not been purchased by the ECIDA,
has committed to spending $69 million over the next 1 O years to remediate 489 acres to allow for new
construction. At the Port of Buffalo, adjacent to the site, operator New Enterprise Stone & Lime Co. has
14 tenants on site, including: Castaloop USA, CDI Investigations, Compass Minerals, Cryptalo Ltd.,
Engineered Mix, Ferrous Manufacturing Inc., Linta Design and Manufacturing Corp., NESL Redi-Mix,
Powers Coke & Coal, Rybo Marine, Southside Precast, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and WS Services
LLC.

In Hamburg and Tonawanda, Amazon has constructed distribution/delivery centers. In June 2020, Amazon
opened a 117,000 square foot facility with more than 600 full and part-time associates in the Riverview
Solar Technology Park in the Town of Tonawanda. In 2021, Amazon began construction on a 181,500
square foot warehouse and distribution facility at the Lake Erie Commerce Center inHamburg (across from
a large FedEx center) in a project estimated to cost $47 million. In March 2023, media reported that
Amazon had begun installing systems in the facility, with the intention to start operating there by October
2023.

The County and the ECIDA are developing a 240-acre Agribusiness Park in the Town of Evans. The County
is designing the road and infrastructure for the site and partnered with the Town of Evans to construct a
new 1.5-million-gallonWater Tower on the parcel to provide water to the Agribusiness Park.

Due in part to the County's receipt of federal funds and budget surpluses, the County Executive and the
County Legislature have allocated and appropriated tens of millions of dollars for public benefit agencies
and projects such as Shea's Perfonning Arts Center, cultural agencies (for capital needs), the Buffalo
Zoological Gardens, the Buffalo History Museum and other sites. Other significant investment in the
County's parks, roads and sewer systems have been budgeted and planned using County share and federal
stimulus funds.

Using federal stimulus funds, Erie County finished the planning and design for the $36.7 million ErieNET
broadband open-access Internet network that will lay hundreds of miles of fiber optic lines across the
County. Construction began in late spring 2023.

In 2021, in conjunction with the economic development organization 43 North, the County developed a
Back-to-Business grant program to make up for the gaps in the federal Paycheck Protection Program. In
total, 1,399 small businesses were provided $19.2 million in direct financial assistance from the County
using federal funds. In 2022, the County provided $10 million in American Rescue Plan grant funds for
eligible businesses for a storefront (façade) renovation project. In 2023 and 2024, the County is continuing
the investment with a new round of storefront (façade) renovation grants for eligible businesses totaling $5
million.

In June 2023, the world-renowned Buffalo AKG Art Museum (formerly the Albright Knox-Art Gallery)
re-opened after a $195 million construction project, including a $5 million contribution from the County.
The project features a new 30,000 square foot Grundlach Building, 20,000 square feet of new exhibition
space, an underground parking garage, and a rehabilitated auditorium. Following the expansion, the
museum can now show about three times more of its collection of modern and contemporary art than ever.

The County, New York State and the Buffalo Bills completed agreements for the construction of the new
Buffalo Bills stadium in May 2023. The project cost is estimated at $1.4-$1.7 billion, of which the County

- 1V

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 17 of 187



share is $250 million (half of which is funded by assigned fund balance and the remainder will be bonded
in 2024). A groundbreaking ceremony was held in June 2023 and construction is expected to take three
years.

OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION

Relevant Financial Policies

The County Charter, amended by Local Law 3-2006 and the Budget ModernizationAct Local Law 2-2012,
includes specific provisions for fund balance. The Charter requires the County to establish and maintain
"a balance in the General Fund established in the budget equal to or greater than five percent of the amount
contained in the budget of the Fund in the immediately preceding fiscal year." The Charter also provides
for limits and specific requirements governing the County's use/appropriation of fund balance including
legislative approval and that the County may not appropriate fund balance below the five percent level.

Monthly Accrual/Monitoring System

Since 1985, the County has maintained a Budget Monitoring System which compares budgetary estimates
at the department and account level to fully accrued actual data on a monthly basis. The monitoring reports
are used as a management tool during the fiscal year. All major variances are reconciled and, as appropriate,
corrective measures are taken to ensure any projected deficit condition will be prevented or minimized.
The County Administration is also required to submit monthly budget monitoring reports to the County
Legislature.

Independent Audit

Since 1975, it has been the County's policy to have an independent external audit of its annual financial
statements performed by a certified public accounting firm. The Charter provides for an independent Audit
Committee that is responsible for recommending one or more specific firms to conduct annual audits of the
County and the Erie Community College. The County has complied with the Charter's requirement to have
an independent audit performed and the auditors' opinion is provided in the Financial Section of this report.

Erie County's 2023 Budget

Under the Charter, the County Executive is required to submit the tentative annual budget to the County
Legislature by October 15. On October 14, 2022, the County Executive presented his 2023 Tentative
Budget to the Legislature for review and action. OnDecember 1, 2022, the County Legislature adopted the
2023 Amended Budget.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada ("GFOA") awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County for its annual
comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. This was the seventeenth
consecutive year that the County has received this award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial
report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

- V -

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 18 of 187



A Certificate ofAchievement is valid for one year. We believe the County's ACFR for fiscal year 2022
continues to meet the Certificate ofAchievement Program's requirements and we will submit the document
to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation ofthis report would not have been possible without the efforts ofthe Comptroller's Office's
Accounting Division staff, other cooperating County departments, and Drescher & Malecki LLP. I extend
my appreciation to everyone who assisted and contributed to the preparation ofthe County's ACFR for the
2022 fiscal year.

Respectfully submitted,

7a.
Kevin R. Hardwick, Ph.D.
Erie County Comptroller

KRH/tc

- Vl -

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 19 of 187



Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of 
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial 
Reporting

Presented to

County of Erie
New York

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2021

Executive Director/CEO

- vii - 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 20 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 21 of 187



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
December 31, 2022

BOARD OF

ELECTIONS

COUNTY

LEGISLATURE

COUNTY

CLERK

ENVIRONMENT

& PLANNING

BUDGET &

MANAGEMENT

PERSONNEL REAL PROPERTY

TAX

COUNTY

ATTORNEY

PUBLIC

ADVOCACY

EEO VETERAN'S

AFFAIRS

LABOR

RELATIONS

PROBATION EMERGENCY

SERVICES

CENTRAL

POLICE SERVICES

INFORMATION &

SUPPORT SERVICES

SOCIAL

SERVICES

PUBLIC

WORKS

PARKS &

RECREATION

HEALTH PURCHASING MENTAL HEALTH SENIOR

SERVICES

ECC BOARD

OF TRUSTEES

COUNTY

EXECUTIVE

DISTRICT

ATTORNEY

SHERIFF COMPTROLLER

CITIZENS OF

ERIE COUNTY

- viii -

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 22 of 187



 

 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 

SUMMARY OF ELECTED OFFICIALS 
December 31, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY CLERK 
COUNTY 

EXECUTIVE 

DISTRICT 

ATTORNEY 
SHERIFF 

COUNTY 

COMPTROLLER 

    Michael P. Kearns Mark C. Poloncarz John J. Flynn John C. Garcia Dr. Kevin R. Hardwick 

         
                                   

                                                 

 

ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATORS 
 

 

         

         

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

District No. 1 Howard Johnson District No. 7 Timothy J. Meyers 

District No. 2 April N.M. Baskin District No. 8 Frank J. Todaro 

District No. 3 Michael H. Kooshoian District No. 9 John J. Gilmour 

District No. 4 John Bargnesi District No. 10 James Malczewski 

District No. 5 Jeanne M. Vinal District No. 11 John J. Mills 

District No. 6 Christopher D. Greene   

    

    

- ix -

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 23 of 187



FINANCIAL SECTION 

 

 

This section contains the following: 

 

 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

 

 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

 COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND  

 STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 24 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 25 of 187



 

- 1 - 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

Honorable County Executive 

Honorable County Comptroller 

Honorable Members of the County Legislature 

County of Erie, New York: 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Opinions 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 

activities, the discretely presented component units, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each 

major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Erie, New York (the “County”), 

as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 (with the Erie Community College for the year ended August 

31, 2022), and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic 

financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the accompanying financial statements 

present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the 

business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, the aggregate discretely presented 

component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of 

December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 

thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison of the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

 

We did not audit the financial statements of the Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority (“ECFSA”), which 

represent 4.1% and 2.0% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the governmental activities. We did not 

audit the financial statements of the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation, Inc. 

(“ILDC”), which represent 13.7% and 0.2% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the business-type 

activities. We did not audit the financial statements of Erie County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”), 

a discretely presented component unit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Erie Community 

College Foundation, Inc. (“Foundation”), which is shown as an aggregate discretely presented component 

unit, and represents 67.1% and 42.0% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the aggregate discretely 

presented other component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports 

thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the 

ECFSA, ILDC, ECMCC, and Foundation, is based solely on the reports of other auditors. 

 

Basis for Opinions 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standard generally accepted in the United States of 

America (“GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 

independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 

ethical requirements relating our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  

DRESCHER & MALECKI LLP  

 2 7 2 1  Tra ns i t  Ro ad ,  S u i te  1 1 1   

E l m a,  N e w Yo rk  1 4 0 5 9   

 Te l e p h on e :  7 1 6 . 5 6 5 . 2 2 9 9   

 Fax :  7 1 6 . 3 8 9 . 5 1 7 8  

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 26 of 187



 

- 2 - 

 

Emphasis of Matter 

 

As discussed in Note 19 to the financial statements, during the year ended December 31, 2022, the County 

implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinion 

is not modified with respect to this matter. 

 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

 

The County’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 

design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 

events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to continue as a 

going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 

information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our 

opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 

of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 

or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 

statements.  

 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:  

 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 

examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 

financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 

raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 

period of time. 

 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related matters 

that we identified during the audit.  

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 27 of 187



 

- 3 - 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis and other Required Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of contents, be 

presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 

and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 

statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 

procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 

accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 

preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 

inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 

financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 

limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 

comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements 

and Schedules, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 

required part of the basic financial statements.  

 

The Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules, as listed in the table of contents, are 

the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 

other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 

including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 

used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 

additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America by us and the other auditors. In our opinion, the Combining and Individual Fund Financial 

Statements and Schedules, as listed in the table of contents, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation 

to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

 

Other Information 

 

Management is responsible for the other information provided in the County’s Annual Comprehensive 

Financial Report. The other information comprises the Introductory Section and Statistical Section, as 

listed in the table of contents, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not 

express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider whether a material 

inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial statements, or the other information 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an 

uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our 

report. 
 

 
 

June 16, 2023 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 28 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 29 of 187



 

- 4 - 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 
As management of the County of Erie, New York (the “County”), we offer readers of the County’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the County’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2022. We encourage the reader to consider the information contained in this analysis in 
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the County’s financial statements, which 
follow this narrative. All amounts in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis, unless otherwise 
indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars. 
 

Financial Highlights 

 

 The primary government’s liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded its assets and 
deferred outflows of resources at the close of the 2022 fiscal year by $616,037. This consists of 
$229,582 restricted for specific purposes (restricted net position), $525,170 net investment in 
capital assets and unrestricted net position of $(1,370,789) at December 31, 2022. 
 

 As a result of current year activity, the primary government’s total net position increased by 
$269,759. Governmental activities increased the County’s net position by $261,251 and business-
type activities increased the County’s net position by $8,508. 
 

 As of December 31, 2022, the County’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of 
$815,954, an increase of $203,721 in comparison to the prior year.  Approximately 16.7% of the 
total combined governmental funds fund balance, $136,067, is available to meet the County’s 
current and future needs (unassigned fund balance). 
 

 At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $136,463, or 33.0%, 
of the total General Fund fund balance of $414,103. Nonspendable, restricted and assigned General 
Fund fund balance totaled $277,640 at December 31, 2022. 
 

 The total bonded debt of the primary government decreased by $26,080, or 2.9%, during the 2022 
fiscal year as a result of principal payments made during the year and partially offset by the issuance 
of general obligation serial bonds, and annual net interest accretion of the ETASC Subordinate 
Turbo Capital Appreciation Bonds (“CABs”). 

 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

 
The discussion and analysis provided here is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic 
financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements include three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. In addition 
to the basic financial statements, other supplementary information is included. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements—The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of County finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 

The Statement of Net Position presents financial information on all County assets, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position 
of the County is improving or deteriorating. 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 30 of 187



 

- 5 - 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how net position changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise 
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., 
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).  

 
Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all, or a significant portion, of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 

activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, public safety, health, 
transportation, economic assistance and opportunity, culture and recreation, education, and home and 
community service.  
 
The business-type activities of the County include Erie Community College (“College”), the Buffalo and 
Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (“ILDC”), the Utilities Aggregation Fund, and 
ErieNet Local Development Corporation (“ELDC”). A fiscal year ending August 31 is mandated by New 
York State law for the College. Accordingly, financial information for the College is presented as of and 
for the fiscal year then ended. 
 
On July 12, 2005, the Governor of the State of New York signed legislation creating the Erie County Fiscal 
Stability Authority (“ECFSA”). The ECFSA began its work during 2005 in an advisory role and provides 
the County with financial oversight while giving local leaders the ability to improve the County’s fiscal 
condition without further State intervention. The ECFSA is included within governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  
 
The government-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (i.e., the primary government) 
but also the legally separate Buffalo and Erie County Public Library (the “Library”), Erie County Medical 
Center Corporation (the “ECMCC”) and other component units. Financial information for these discretely 

presented component units of the County is reported separately from the financial information presented 
for the primary government itself. The Library does not issue separate financial statements. 
 

Fund Financial Statements—A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All 
funds of the County are divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 

funds.  

 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 

activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 

spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a county’s near-term financing requirements. 

 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental funds’ Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 

funds and governmental activities. 

 
  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 31 of 187



 

- 6 - 

The County maintains fifteen (15) individual governmental funds. Additionally, the County reports the 
activities of its blended component units within its governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental funds’ Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, Emergency Response Fund, and the General Fund of 
the ECFSA blended component unit (reported as a major special revenue fund). Data from the other 
governmental funds and nonmajor blended component units are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation.  

 
The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for the General Fund and Emergency Response Fund. 

 

Proprietary funds—The County maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for the College, ILDC, ELDC, and the Utilities 
Aggregation Fund which is used to account for the bulk purchase and resale of gas, oil, and electric 
utilities.  

 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, 
only in more detail. The College and the ILDC are considered to be major proprietary funds of the 
County. 

 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. 
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of 
those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The County has one fiduciary 
fund, the Custodial Fund, which is used to report resources held by the County in a custodial capacity 
for individuals, private organizations and other governments.  

 

Notes to the Financial Statements—The notes to the financial statements provide additional information 
that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements. 
 
Required Supplementary Information—In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying 
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the County’s net 
pension liability/(asset), and the changes in the County’s total other postemployment benefits (“OPEB”) 
obligation. Required supplementary information and the related notes to the required supplementary 
information can be found immediately following the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules—This report also provides 
combining statements and schedules for nonmajor governmental funds and combining statements for other 
component units. They are presented immediately following the required supplementary information. 
 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

 
As noted earlier, net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. 
In the case of the County’s primary government, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded 
assets and deferred outflows of resources by $616,037 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 32 of 187



 

- 7 - 

Summary Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 

 

2021 2021 2021

2022 (as restated) 2022 (as restated) 2022 (as restated)

Current and other assets 1,377,442$   1,116,765$   86,182$         68,912$         1,463,624$   1,185,677$     
Capital assets and noncurrent assets 914,411        829,982        38,944           26,328           953,355        856,310          

    Total assets 2,291,853     1,946,747     125,126         95,240           2,416,979     2,041,987       

Total deferred outflows of resources 464,290        573,231        70,722           80,364           535,012        653,595          

Current and other liabilities 343,501        271,340        63,113           25,890           406,614        297,230          
Long-term liabilities 2,116,519     2,360,685     196,668         228,752         2,313,187     2,589,437       

    Total liabilities 2,460,020     2,632,025     259,781         254,642         2,719,801     2,886,667       

Total deferred inflows of resources 742,386        595,467        105,841         99,244           848,227        694,711          

Net position:
  Net investment in

    capital assets 500,682        486,065        24,488           26,327           525,170        512,392          

  Restricted 228,974        139,114        608                652                229,582        139,766          
  Unrestricted (1,175,919)    (1,332,693)   (194,870)        (205,261)        (1,370,789)    (1,537,954)      

     Total net position (446,263)$     (707,514)$    (169,774)$      (178,282)$      (616,037)$     (885,796)$       

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

 

A significant portion of the County’s primary government net position at December 31, 2022, $525,170, 
reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, and equipment), 
net of accumulated depreciation/amortization and less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is 
still outstanding and any unspent proceeds from bond issues. The County uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; accordingly, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources used to 
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. 
 
An additional portion of the County’s primary government net position, $229,582, represents resources that 
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. 
 
The remaining component of the County’s primary government net position, $(1,370,789), represents 
unrestricted net position which reflects all liabilities that are not related to the County’s capital assets and 
which are not expected to be repaid from restricted resources. Long-term liabilities are typically funded 
annually in the funds with revenues of that year. The combined total of (1) Erie Tobacco Asset 
Securitization Corporation (“ETASC”) (a blended component unit of the County) bonds net of discount, 
($361,217), issued to be paid back with future tobacco proceeds which are anticipated to be received 
annually over the next forty (40) years, and (2) the long-term liability associated with other post-
employment benefits (“OPEB”) ($1,319,702), is greater than this deficit. As the revenue recognition criteria 
for the future funding of these liabilities has not been met, no assets have been recorded to offset these 
liabilities. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in two of the three 
categories of net position for the County as a whole. Governmental and business-type activities have an 
unrestricted net position of $(1,175,919) and $(194,870), respectively, at December 31, 2022.  
 
  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 33 of 187



 

- 8 - 

The following table indicates the changes in net position for governmental and business-type activities for 
the current and prior fiscal years: 

 

Summary of Changes in Net Position for the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Revenues:
  Program revenues:

     Charges for services 92,672$        96,046$     57,785$     50,336$     150,457$      146,382$      
     Operating grants and 

        contributions 559,271        477,946     35,003       22,220       594,274        500,166        
     Capital grants and
       contributions 12,814          12,049       -             -             12,814          12,049          

  General revenues:
     Property taxes 333,107        329,267     -             -             333,107        329,267        

     Sales and use taxes 1,032,034     963,524     -             -             1,032,034     963,524        
     Transfer and other taxes 22,026          20,177       -             -             22,026          20,177          
     Federal, state and

       local appropriations -                -             50,016       50,193       50,016          50,193          
     Unrestricted interest earnings 9,831            2,574         11              11              9,842            2,585            
     Miscellaneous and other 14,133          28,621       -             -             14,133          28,621          

Total revenues 2,075,888     1,930,204  142,815     122,760     2,218,703     2,052,964     

Expenses:

     General government support 563,319        545,831     -             -             563,319        545,831        
     Public safety 193,748        180,322     -             -             193,748        180,322        
     Health 108,537        104,764     -             -             108,537        104,764        

     Transportation 112,044        95,994       -             -             112,044        95,994          
     Economic assistance
       and opportunity 568,411        538,427     -             -             568,411        538,427        

     Culture and recreation 28,671          25,317       -             -             28,671          25,317          
     Education 80,687          73,019       -             -             80,687          73,019          

     Home and community services 101,460        68,503       -             -             101,460        68,503          
     Interest and fiscal charges 36,103          37,123       -             -             36,103          37,123          
     College -                -             117,960     115,785     117,960        115,785        

     ILDC -                -             2,755         1,006         2,755            1,006            
     Purchase and resale of utilities -                -             35,022       23,464       35,022          23,464          

Total expenses 1,792,980     1,669,300  155,737     140,255     1,948,717     1,809,555     

Excess (deficiency)
     before transfers 282,908        260,904     (12,922)      (17,495)      269,986        243,409        

     Transfers (21,657)         (18,949)      21,430       18,809       (227)             -                

Change in net position 261,251        241,955     8,508         1,314         269,759        243,409        

Net position - beginning (707,514)       (948,888)    (178,282)    (179,596)    (885,796)      (1,128,484)    
Restatement -                (581)           -             -             -                (581)              

Net position - ending (446,263)$     (707,514)$  (169,774)$  (178,282)$  (616,037)$    (885,796)$     

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 34 of 187



 

- 9 - 

Governmental Activities  
 
During the year ended December 31, 2022, governmental activities increased the County’s net position, as 
restated, by $261,251. Revenues increased by $145,684 (7.6%) and expenses increased by $123,680 (7.4%) 
from 2021 to 2022. Key elements of these changes are as follows: 

 

 Operating grants and contributions increased by $81,325 (17.0%) from the prior year due to the 
recognition and spending of Federal American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”) funding, as well as the 
receipt of opioid settlement funds.  

 The $68,510 (7.1%) increase in the sales and use tax category was primarily the result of increased 
sales tax receipts. 

 Home and community services expenses increased $32,957 (48.1%) primarily due to an increase 
in spending of pandemic funding ($31,515). 

 Economic assistance and opportunity expenses increased by $29,984 (5.6%) primarily due to 
increases in child care and family assistance social service programs ($15,399), workforce 
development action fund program ($8,653), and local Medicaid share costs ($3,639). 

 General government support expenses increased by $17,488 (3.2%) primarily due to an increase in 
sales tax payments made to local governments ($25,125). 

Business-type Activities 
 
Business-type activities increased the County’s net position by $8,508 in the 2022 fiscal year. The College 
generated an increases in net position of $9,079 and $1,221 for the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. The College’s operating loss at August 31, 2022 was less than the operating loss at August 
31, 2021 by $5,410, as operating revenues increased $7,584. Revenues generated during the fiscal year 
ended August 31, 2022 increased primarily due to an increase in federal grants and contracts related to 
continued COVID-19 assistance from the Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund. The County 
sponsorship share of support to the College for the College’s fiscal year ended August 31, 2022 was 
$21,432, and is reported as a 2022 operating transfer to the College from the County’s General Fund. The 
ILDC generated a decrease in net position of $513 and an increase in net position of $820 for the years 
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.   
 

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds—The general government functions are contained in the General, Special Revenue, 
Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is 
useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance, which is 
available to meet the County’s current and future operational needs, may serve as a useful measure of a 
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. At December 31, 2022, the 
County’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $815,954, which is an increase of 
$203,721 in comparison with the prior year. 
 
Nonspendable fund balance totaling $20,599 consists of a long-term interfund loan and prepaid items. 
Nonspendable amounts represent net current financial resources that are either not in in spendable form or 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 35 of 187



 

- 10 - 

Restricted fund balance in the amount of $309,288 is constrained to specific purposes and consists of $155 
for education, advocacy and increased public awareness of handicapped parking laws, $27,351 for 
community development loans, $7,204 for opioid prevention, $40,754 for the future repayment of bonded 
debt service and $233,824 to fund capital projects and the purchase of capital assets.  
 
Assigned fund balance includes amounts intended to be used for a specific purpose that are subject to a 
purpose constraint imposed by a formal action of the Erie County Legislature. Significant assignments by 
the County at December 31, 2022 include $15,378 to meet expenditure requirements in the 2023 fiscal year, 
$3,520 assigned to fund future settlements of various claims and litigation, $254,922 for approved 
supplemental appropriations in the 2023 fiscal year, $13,952 to fund year-end encumbrances, and $61,703 
that represents the positive residual balances. 
 
Approximately 16.7% of the County’s total fund balances consists of unassigned fund balance, $136,067.  
 
Following is a discussion of the significant balances and operations of the major and selected nonmajor 
funds. 
 

 General Fund—The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At December 31, 
2022, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $136,463, while total fund balance was 
$414,103. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it is useful to compare both unassigned 
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 
9.1% of total expenditures (excluding other financing uses), while total fund balance represents 
27.6% of that same amount. Fund balance in the County’s General Fund increased by $106,430 
during the 2022 fiscal year, primarily due to more revenue received by the County in comparison 
to the 2021 fiscal year. Sales and use tax revenue increased by $35,724 due to an increase in sales 
tax receipts, including the amounts received by ECFSA and subsequently transferred to the General 
Fund, while intergovernmental revenue increased by $33,817 due to additional federal and state 
aid received. 
 

 Emergency Response Special Revenue Fund—Ending fund balance increased by $13,701 
compared to a $907 increase during 2021. Total expenditures increased by $24,335 due to greater 
spending of ARPA funds in 2022. Similarly, total revenues increased by $20,036 due to ARPA 
federal funding received during 2022 as a response to the pandemic. 

 

 ECFSA General Fund—This fund is the chief operating fund of the ECFSA and is reported as a 
special revenue fund of the County. Total fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year was 
$528, an increase of $89 from the 2021 amount, and is classified as nonspendable for prepaid items 
($3) and assigned fund balance ($525) in the County’s fund financial statements. The ECFSA 
General Fund increased from the 2021 fiscal year due to an increase in sales and use taxes. 

 

 Road Special Revenue Fund—Ending fund balance increased by $7,763 from 2021. Total 
revenues increased by $1,544. Total expenditures increased by $4,016 primarily due to increases 
in contractual costs.  

 

 Sewer Special Revenue Fund—Total fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year was 
$44,486, a decrease of $1,462 from the 2021 amount. Total expenditures increased by $3,747 
mainly due to increases in supplies and contractual costs. 

 

 Capital Projects Funds—The County reports five (5) capital projects funds which account for the 
construction and re-construction of general public improvements. At the end of the 2022 fiscal year, 
the total fund balances restricted for future capital projects amounted to $233,824, of which $44,584 
was encumbered for contracted projects underway. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 36 of 187



 

- 11 - 

During 2022, the County’s capital outlay increased in the General Government Buildings, 
Equipment and Improvements Fund ($9,556), Highways, Roads, Bridges and Equipment Fund 
($3,942), Sewers, Facilities, Equipment and Improvements Fund ($8,029) and the Special Capital 
Projects Fund ($3,238). 

 

Proprietary funds—The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements but in more detail. The College had an unrestricted net position of 
$(201,966) at August 31, 2022, while ILDC and the Utilities Aggregation Fund had unrestricted net position 
of $6,742 and $354, respectively, at December 31, 2022. 
 
The following table shows actual revenues, expenses, and results of operations for the current and prior 
fiscal years: 

 

Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds For the Year 

Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2022 2021

Operating revenues 55,582$    47,998$    191$       11$        34,964$    22,732$   -$        90,737$    70,741$     
Operating expenses 117,949    115,775    655         506        35,022      23,464     -          153,626    139,745     

Operating (loss) income (62,367)    (67,777)     (464)       (495)       (58)            (732)         -          (62,889)     (69,004)      
Non-operating revenues (expenses), net 50,016      50,194      (49)         1,315     -            -           -          49,967      51,509       

Net (loss) income before
   contributions and transfers (12,351)    (17,583)     (513)       820        (58)            (732)         -          (12,922)     (17,495)      
Transfers 21,430      18,804      -          -         -            5              -          21,430      18,809       

      Change in net position 9,079$      1,221$      (513)$     820$      (58)$          (727)$       -$        8,508$      1,314$       

Nonmajor Fund

Total

College

(August 31,) ILDC

Utilities

Aggregation

Major Funds

Erie

Net

 

The net loss before contributions and transfers of enterprise funds during 2022 of $12,922 is comprised of 
a net loss of $12,351 for the College, $513 for the ILDC, and $58 for the Utilities Aggregation Fund. 
 
The College reported a total deficit net position of $177,478 at August 31, 2022.  The ILDC reported net 
position of $7,350, the Utilities Aggregation Fund reported net position of $354, and the ELDC reporting 
a net position of $0 at December 31, 2022. 

Other factors concerning the activities of these funds have been addressed in the previous discussion of the 
County’s business-type activities. 
 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights  

 

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for the General Fund on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles, except that encumbrances are reported as budgeted expenditures in the year of 
incurrence of commitment to purchase. 
 
During the 2022 fiscal year there was a $444,471 decrease in total budgeted revenues between the original 
and final budget. The main component of the net decrease is the reclassification of $582,639 from the ‘Sales 
and use taxes’ line to the ‘Transfers in’ line to match sales tax transfers received from the ECFSA which 
intercepts the County portion of sales tax remitted by the New York State Department of Taxation and 
Finance.  
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 37 of 187



 

- 12 - 

The budget for other financing sources was increased during the year by $627,579, for the sales and use 
taxes reclassification referred to in the previous paragraph, as well as the transfer in of American Rescue 
Plan Act (“ARPA”) funds from the Emergency Response Fund that were subsequently transferred out to 
the County’s Capital Projects Funds. 
 
Budgeted appropriations and other financing uses increased by $188,618. Budgeted expenditures increased 
in general government support ($33,915), primarily for sales tax ($31,733); budgeted interfund transfer out 
increased ($135,323); budgeted expenditures decreased in economic assistance and opportunity ($11,925), 
due primarily to various community assistance and social service programs ($13,133).  
 
For the year, actual revenues were less than budgeted revenues by $3,145. This was mainly due to a negative 
variance in intergovernmental revenue of ($16,620), offset by a positive variance in real property taxes of 
($7,957). 
 
Actual expenditures were less than final budget by $105,377, primarily due to economic assistance and 
opportunity ($77,277), due primarily to various community assistance and social service programs 
($51,043) and public benefit agencies ($16,826); there were also savings in general government support 
($14,620), in public safety ($13,111). There were higher than budgeted expenditures in culture and 
recreation of ($3,473), due to higher than expected expenditures in youth development programs ($1,072). 
 
The County experienced a negative variance in other financing sources and (uses) $1,530, with offsets of 
lower interfund transfers in of ($44,934), but less interfund transfers out of ($43,209). 
 
The total budget to budgetary actual variance for the year amounted to a positive $100,702. 

 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

 

Capital Assets 

 

The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 
31, 2022, amounted to $855,297 (net of accumulated depreciation/amortization). This investment in capital 
assets includes land, infrastructure, buildings and improvements, improvements other than buildings, 
equipment, right-to-use leased assets, College library collections, and construction in progress. The total 
increase in the County’s investment in capital assets for the current period was 0.01%. 

 

The County’s infrastructure assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost in the 
government-wide financial statements as required by GASB. The County has elected to depreciate 
infrastructure assets.  
 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included an increase to the governmental activities 
right-to-use leased assets ($5,510) and construction in progress ($14,174). 
 
  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 38 of 187



 

- 13 - 

Capital assets net of depreciation/amortization for the governmental and business-type activities are 
presented below: 
 
Summary of Capital Assets at December 31, 2022 and 2021 (net of depreciation/amortization) 

 

2021 2021 2021

2022 (as restated) 2022 (as restated) 2022 (as restated)

Land 34,969$      34,951$        -$         -$              34,969$    34,951$        
Construction in progress 68,724        54,550          804          741               69,528      55,291          

Buildings and improvements 247,029      256,610        19,427     21,175          266,456    277,785        
Sewer and transportation

   networks 420,340      432,992        -           -                420,340    432,992        
Improvements other 
   than buildings 17,805        16,383          9              12                 17,814      16,395          

Machinery and equipment 17,012        8,500            3,596       3,634            20,608      12,134          
Right-to-use leased assets 24,722        25,996.00     206          -                24,928      25,996          
Library collections -              -                654          766               654           766               

   Total 830,601$    829,982$      24,696$   26,328$        855,297$  856,310$      

Activities
Governmental Business-type

Activities Total

 

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Notes 1 and 6 of this report. 

 

Debt Administration 

 

At December 31, 2022, the primary government had total bonded debt outstanding of $874,154, as 
compared to $900,234 in the prior year. During the year, payments and other reductions of bonded debt 
amounted to $69,414, while additions and accretions amounted to $43,334. The issuance of long-term debt 
is a direct function of the County and is reported within the governmental activities columns in the 
government-wide financial statements. 
 

Summary of Long-term Bonded Debt Outstanding at December 31, 2022 and 2021 

 

2022 2021

Erie County bonds 324,224$   347,143$    
   Less: ECFSA mirror bonds (62,035)     (89,665)      

Net Erie County bonds 262,189     257,478      

ECFSA bonds 196,875     228,305      
ETASC tobacco settlement bonds 371,468     367,792      
Unamortized bond discounts - ETASC (10,251)     (10,372)      
Unamortized bond premiums 53,873       57,031        

   Total primary government long-term bonded debt outstanding 874,154$   900,234$    

Governmental Activities

 

 
Tobacco settlement bonds are payable only from the assets of ETASC and are not legal obligations of the 
County. 
 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 39 of 187



 

- 14 - 

New York State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 7% 
of its five-year valuation. The current available debt-limitation for the County is $4,643,441, which is only 
6.44% exhausted by the County’s outstanding general obligation debt of $319,430 (which includes a 
$61,135 bond guaranty to ECMCC). 
 
The County’s current bond ratings are as follows: Standard & Poor’s at AA- (stable outlook); Moody's at 
A1 (stable outlook); and Fitch Ratings at A+ (stable outlook). 
 
Additional information on the County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 13 of this report. 

 

Requests for Information 

 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all those with 
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to the Erie County Office of 
the Comptroller, 95 Franklin Street, Room 1100, Buffalo, New York 14202. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 40 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 41 of 187



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 42 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 43 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 44 of 187



 

- 15 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Statement of Net Position 

December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

Activities Activities Total Library ECMCC Other

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 383,510$            32,880$          416,390$     19,317$        46,805$        1,885$          

Restricted investments 19,486                -                 19,486         -               8,345            5,515            

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 345,823              34,000            379,823       -               169,390        -               

Receivables (net of allowance):

Real property taxes, interest, penalties and liens 97,813                -                 97,813         -               -               -               

Leases 277                    1,304              1,581           -               -               -               

Other 45,071                15,434            60,505         271              147,596        136               

Due from component unit 150,951              11,812            162,763       -               -               -               

Internal balances 13,422                (12,927)           495              -               -               -               

Intergovernmental receivables 306,041              3,583              309,624       283              -               -               

Prepaid items 15,048                96                   15,144         532              15,923          54                

Noncurrent net pension asset 83,810                6,951              90,761         3,701            77,538          -               

Noncurrent other assets -                     430                 430              -               -               1,004            

Land held for sale -                     6,867              6,867           -               -               -               

Capital assets not being depreciated/amortized 103,693              804                 104,497       11,778          21,643          -               

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization 726,908              23,892            750,800       4,999            306,528        223               

Other assets -                     -                 -              -               6,288            16                

Total assets 2,291,853           125,126          2,416,979    40,881          800,056        8,833            

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred charge on refunding 12,995 -                 12,995         -               -               -               

Deferred outflows—relating to pensions 178,331 23,383            201,714       8,214            143,693        -               

Deferred outflows—relating to OPEB 269,098 47,339            316,437       13,717          22,684          -               

Deferred outflows—relating to forward 

purchase agreement swap 3,866                 -                 3,866           -               -               -               

Deferred outflows—other -                     -                 -              -               12,034          -               

Total deferred outflows of resources 464,290              70,722            535,012       21,931          178,411        -               

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 47,002                4,183              51,185         1,009            73,067          33                

Accrued liabilities 134,130              7,341              141,471       851              81,138          60                

Due to component unit 224                    -                 224              -               -               -               

Due to primary government -                     -                 -              -               162,763        -               

Due to other governments 28,839                256                 29,095         -               -               -               

Retainaged percentages payable 2,215                 -                 2,215           23                -               -               

Unearned revenue 131,091              51,333            182,424       3,063            98,828          93                

Noncurrent liabilities:

Net assets held on behalf of others -                     -                 -              -               -               1,004            

Due within one year 92,547                3,353              95,900         785              11,843          -               

Due in more than one year 2,023,972           193,315          2,217,287    78,539          407,842        -               

Total liabilities 2,460,020           259,781          2,719,801    84,270          835,481        1,190            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred gain on refunding 116 -                 116              -               -               -               

Deferred inflows—relating to leases receivable 285                    1,304              1,589           -               1,440            -               

Deferred inflows—relating to pensions 296,872 25,616            322,488       13,109          280,189        -               

Deferred inflows—relating to OPEB 445,113              78,921            524,034       29,131          114,812        -               

Total deferred inflows of resources 742,386              105,841          848,227       42,240          396,441        -               

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 500,682              24,488            525,170       16,777          82,489          -               

Restricted for:

Community development loans 27,351                -                 27,351         -               -               -               

Opioid prevention 7,204                 -                 7,204           -               -               -               

Capital projects 160,910              -                 160,910       -               -               -               

Debt service 33,354                -                 33,354         -               -               -               

Other purposes 155                    608                 763              -               92,126          7,643            

Unrestricted (deficit) (1,175,919)          (194,870)         (1,370,789)   (80,475)         (428,070)       -               

Total net position (446,263)$           (169,774)$       (616,037)$    (63,698)$       (253,455)$     7,643$          

Primary Government Component Units

Governmental Business-type

 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 45 of 187



 

- 16 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

 

Operating Capital

Grants and Grants and 

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Activities Activities Total Library ECMCC Other

Primary government:

Governmental activities:

General government support 563,319$       28,362$     84,261$        1,380$           (449,316)$      -$             (449,316)$       -$             -$          -$         

Public safety 193,748        8,154        3,740           1                   (181,853)        -               (181,853)         -               -            -           

Health 108,537        2,236        83,487          -                (22,814)          -               (22,814)           -               -            -           

Transportation 112,044        -            17,367          3,888             (90,789)          -               (90,789)           -               -            -           

Economic assistance and opportunity 568,411        19,536      309,041        -                (239,834)        -               (239,834)         -               -            -           

Culture and recreation 28,671          1,824        3,774           3,132             (19,941)          -               (19,941)           -               -            -           

Education 80,687          666           43,952          3,572             (32,497)          -               (32,497)           -               -            -           

Home and community services 101,460        31,894      9,638           841               (59,087)          -               (59,087)           -               -            -           

Interest and fiscal charges 36,103          -            4,011           -                (32,092)          -               (32,092)           -               -            -           

Total governmental activities 1,792,980      92,672      559,271        12,814           (1,128,223)     -               (1,128,223)      -               -            -           

Business-type activities

College 117,960        22,617      32,965          -                -                (62,378)        (62,378)           -               -            -           

ILDC 2,755            204           2,038           -                -                (513)             (513)               -               -            -           

Utilities aggregation 35,022          34,964      -               -                -                (58)               (58)                 -               -            -           

Total business-type activities 155,737        57,785      35,003          -                -                (62,949)        (62,949)           -               -            -           

Total primary government 1,948,717$    150,457$   594,274$      12,814$         (1,128,223)     (62,949)        (1,191,172)      -               -            -           

Component units:

Library 27,467$        214$         3,807$          -$              (23,446)        -            -           

ECMCC 822,536        660,779     66,547          -                -               (95,210)     -           

Other 3,576            1,986        461              -                -               -            (1,129)       

Total component units 853,579$       662,979$   70,815$        -$              (23,446)        (95,210)     (1,129)       

333,107         -               333,107          -               -            -           

-                -               -                 26,436          -            -           

1,032,034       -               1,032,034       -               -            -           

Transfers and other taxes 22,026           -               22,026            -               -            -           

Unrestricted state and local appropriations -                29,203          29,203            -               -            -           

Federal and state student financial aid -                20,813          20,813            -               -            -           

9,831             11                9,842              25                -            -           

Gain on sale of capital assets 567                -               567                -               -            -           

Miscellaneous 13,566           -               13,566            301              62,398      214           

Transfers (21,657)          21,430          (227)               227              -            -           

1,389,474       71,457          1,460,931       26,989          62,398      214           

261,251         8,508           269,759          3,543           (32,812)     (915)         

(707,514)        (178,282)       (885,796)         (67,241)        (220,643)   8,558        

(446,263)$      (169,774)$     (616,037)$       (63,698)$       (253,455)$  7,643$      

General revenues:

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

 Program Revenues Primary Government Component Units

Charges for Governmental Business-type

Contributions Contributions

Net position—beginning, as restated (refer to Note 19)

Net position—ending

Property taxes levied for mall, sewer, and general purposes

Sales and use taxes

Interest earnings

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position 

Property taxes levied for library

 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 46 of 187



 

- 17 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Balance Sheet—Governmental Funds 

December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

          

Emergency ECFSA Total Total

 General Response  General Nonmajor Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 254,356$         48$                 588$                128,518$           383,510$         

Restricted investments -                  -                  -                  19,486               19,486             

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 155                 76,394             974                 268,300             345,823           

Receivables (net of allowance):

Real property taxes, interest, penalties and liens 81,701             -                  -                  38                     81,739             

Leases 277                 -                  -                  -                    277                 

Other 12,930             -                  -                  32,141               45,071             

Due from other funds 105,123           52,038             16                   24,919               182,096           

Due from component unit 57                   -                  -                  1                       58                   

Intergovernmental receivables 193,610           5                     68,287             44,139               306,041           

Prepaid items 11,445             -                  3                     3,600                 15,048             

Total assets 659,654$         128,485$         69,868$           521,142$           1,379,149$      

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 22,220$           2,903$             53$                 21,826$             47,002$           

Accrued liabilities 115,029           6,006               -                  5,695                 126,730           

Due to other funds 359                 -                  69,277             99,038               168,674           

Due to component unit 204                 -                  -                  20                     224                 

Due to other governments 28,763             52                   -                  24                     28,839             

Retainaged percentages payable -                  -                  -                  2,215                 2,215               

Unearned revenue 20,556             104,268           10                   6,257                 131,091           

Total liabilities 187,131           113,229           69,340             135,075             504,775           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes 58,135             -                  -                  -                    58,135             

Deferred inflows—relating to leases 285                 -                  -                  -                    285                 

Total deferred inflows of resources 58,420             -                  -                  -                    58,420             

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

Nonspendable:

Long-term interfund loan 5,551               -                  -                  -                    5,551               

Prepaid items 11,445             -                  3                     3,600                 15,048             

Restricted:

Handicapped parking 155                 -                  -                  -                    155                 

Community development loans -                  -                  -                  27,351               27,351             

Opioid prevention -                  -                  -                  7,204                 7,204               

Debt service -                  -                  -                  40,754               40,754             

Capital expenditures -                  -                  -                  233,824             233,824           

Assigned:

Subsequent year's expenditures -                  -                  -                  15,378               15,378             

Judgments and claims 3,520               -                  -                  -                    3,520               

Other purposes 256,969           15,256             525                 58,352               331,102           

Unassigned 136,463           -                  -                  (396)                  136,067           

Total fund balances (deficit) 414,103           15,256             528                 386,067             815,954           

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 

and fund balances (deficit) 659,654$         128,485$         69,868$           521,142$           1,250,664$       
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 47 of 187



 

- 18 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet—Governmental Funds 

to the Government-wide Statement of Net Position 

December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (page 15) are different because:

Total fund balances (deficit)—governmental funds (page 17) 815,954$      

83,810          

830,601        

58,135          

16,074          

150,893        

23,892$         

154,439         

(296,872)       

Deferred outflows related to OPEB liability 269,098         

Deferred inflows related to OPEB liability (445,113)       (294,556)       

302$             

(116)              
12,693          12,879          

(7,400)          

Serial bonds—County (459,064)$      

Unamortized bond premiums—County (53,873)         

(371,468)       

10,251          

Lease liability (25,597)         

(30,232)         

Judgments and claims (50,888)         

Other postemployment benefits obligation (1,131,782)     (2,112,653)    

    

Net position of governmental activities (446,263)$     

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and other postemployment benefits

("OPEB") are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Deferred outflows related to employer contributions

Deferred outflows related to experience, changes of assumptions,

investment earnings, and changes in proportion for pensions 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported

in the funds. The cost of the assets is $2,217,676 and the accumulated depreciation/amortization is

$1,387,075.

Uncollected property taxes are not available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore are

deferred inflows of resources in the funds.

A long-term asset owed to ETASC by New York State is not available to pay for current period

expenditures and, therefore, is not reported in the funds.

Due from a component unit was deemed to be not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,

not reported in the funds.

Net pension assets are not current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Net accrued interest expense for general obligation bonds of $6,513 and accrued interest on ETASC

bonds of $887 is not reported in the funds.

Compensated absences

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

ETASC Tobacco Settlement Bonds and Subordinate Turbo CABs accreted interest

ETASC Tobacco Settlement Bonds and Subordinate Turbo CABs discount

Certain deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position in a future period and

cetain deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net poisition and, therefore, are not

reported in the funds.
Unamortized deferred charge on refundings

Unamortized deferred charge on refundings - ETASC

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the

funds. The effects of these items are:

Unamortized deferred gain on refundings

 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 48 of 187



 

- 19 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit)—Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

Emergency ECFSA Total Total

 General Response  General Nonmajor Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES

Real property taxes and tax items 319,546$         -$                -$                24,154$             343,700$         

Sales and use taxes 441,297           -                  586,693           4,044                 1,032,034        

Transfer and other taxes 249                 -                  -                  21,777               22,026             

Intergovernmental 384,237           62,258             -                  119,506             566,001           

Departmental 55,547             -                  -                  37,383               92,930             

Interest 6,158               341                 182                 7,161                 13,842             

Miscellaneous 12,176             -                  -                  8,381                 20,557             

Total revenues 1,219,210        62,599             586,875           222,406             2,091,090        

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General government support 531,636           421                 4,147               24,523               560,727           

Public safety 169,955           31                   -                  22,495               192,481           

Health 92,723             4,991               -                  14,094               111,808           

Transportation 30,301             9,254               -                  35,848               75,403             

Economic assistance and opportunity 554,250           224                 -                  18,474               572,948           

Culture and recreation 26,806             -                  -                  -                    26,806             

Education 79,830             -                  -                  -                    79,830             

Home and community services 4,385               33,959             -                  53,050               91,394             

Debt service:

Principal retirement 6,490               -                  -                  61,549               68,039             

Interest and fiscal charges 921                 -                  -                  32,154               33,075             

Capital outlay -                  -                  -                  92,296               92,296             

Total expenditures 1,497,297        48,880             4,147               354,483             1,904,807        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures (278,087)          13,719             582,728           (132,077)            186,283           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of general obligation debt -                  -                  -                  28,190               28,190             

Premium on bond issuance -                  -                  -                  4,828                 4,828               

Issuance of leases 5,510               -                  -                  -                    5,510               

Sale of property 567                 -                  -                  -                    567                 

Transfers in 582,645           25,181             -                  256,217             864,043           

Transfers out (204,205)          (25,199)            (582,639)          (73,657)              (885,700)          

Total other financing sources (uses) 384,517           (18)                  (582,639)          215,578             17,438             

Net change in fund balances (deficit) 106,430           13,701             89                   83,501               203,721           

Fund balances—beginning 307,673           1,555               439                 302,566             612,233           

Fund balances (deficit)—ending 414,103$         15,256$           528$                386,067$           815,954$          
 
 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 49 of 187



 

- 20 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances—Governmental Funds to the Government-wide Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 16) are different because:

203,721$        

Capital asset additions 74,260$        

Loss on disposal of assets (109)             

(73,532)         619                

ETSAC tobacco revenue 1,815$          

Real property taxes (10,593)         (8,778)            

(6,991)            

 $        (7,618)

39,227          31,609           

 $      (20,315)

(170,027)       

(1,452)           (191,794)        

280                

Issuance of serial bonds (28,190)$       

54,909          

Premium on serial bonds issued (4,828)           

Amortization of premiums on serial bonds 7,986            

Repayment of ETASC Tobacco Settlement Bonds 6,640            

Accreted interest on ETASC Subordinate Turbo CABs          (10,316)

Amortization of ETASC bond discounts (121)             

Change in deferred charge (860)             

Change in deferred gain 4                  

Issuance of leases (5,510)           

6,490            

Change in compensated absences            (1,829)

Change in judgments and claims (2,074)           

Change in other postemployment benefits obligation 210,284        232,585          

Change in net position of governmental activities 261,251$        

Net change in fund balances (deficit)—total governmental funds (page 19)

Certain tax and other revenue in the governmental funds is deferred or not recognized because it is not

available soon enough after year end to pay for the current period's expenditures. On the accrual basis,

however, this is recognized regardless of when it is collected.

Net differences between pension contributions recognized on the fund financial statements and the

government-wide financial statements are as follows:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the

cost is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation/amortization expense. This is

the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation/amortization expense and loss on disposal of

assets in the current period.

Depreciation expense

Governmental funds report loans to a component unit to be repaid on a long-term basis as expenditures. In

the statement of net position, however, the cost of those outlays increases the due from component unit

and does not affect the statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of long-term loan principal is a revenue

in the governmental funds and thus contributes to the change in fund balance. In the statement of net

position, however, repayment of long-term loan principal reduces the amount due from the component unit

and does not affect the statement of activities.

Repayment of lease liability

In the statement of activities, interest expense is recognized as it accrues, regardless of when it is paid.

Repayment of serial bonds

County pension contributions

Cost of benefits earned net of employee contributions

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB result from actuarial changes in the census,

changes in medical premiums that are different than expected healthcare cost trend rates, and changes in

assumptions and other inputs. These amounts are shown net of current year amortization and are as

follows: 

Changes of assumptions

Benefit payments subsequent to the measurement date

Differences between expected and actual experience

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the

repayment of principal on long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of

premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and

amortized in the statement of activities. Additionally, in the statement of activities, certain operating

expenses are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however,

expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially, the

amounts actually paid). The net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and the

related items is as follows:

 
 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 50 of 187



 

- 21 - 
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances— 

Budget and Actual—General Fund 

Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

Budgetary Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES

Real property taxes and tax items 308,475$            311,589$           319,546$            7,957$                 

Sales and use taxes 938,518               438,670             441,297               2,627                   

Transfer and other taxes 412                      412                     249                      (163)                     

Intergovernmental 363,940               400,857             384,237               (16,620)               

Departmental 52,194                 53,642                55,547                 1,905                   

Interest 515                      6,112                  6,158                   46                         

Miscellaneous 2,772                   11,073                12,176                 1,103                   

Total revenues 1,666,826           1,222,355          1,219,210           (3,145)                  

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General government support 512,137               546,052             531,432               14,620                 

Public safety 178,109               184,797             171,686               13,111                 

Health 83,342                 92,625                92,621                 4                           

Transportation 28,091                 30,301                30,301                 -                       

Economic assistance and opportunity 643,795               632,500             555,223               77,277                 

Culture and recreation 23,077                 23,451                26,924                 (3,473)                  

Education 79,214                 83,158                79,829                 3,329                   

Home and community services 7,092                   8,039                  7,598                   441                      

Debt service:

Principal -                       6,490                  6,490                   -                       

Interest and fiscal charges 250                      989                     921                      68                         

Total expenditures 1,555,107           1,608,402          1,503,025           105,377               

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures 111,719               (386,047)            (283,815)             102,232               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of leases -                       5,510                  5,510                   -                       

Sale of property 372                      372                     567                      195                      

Transfers in -                       627,579             582,645               (44,934)               

Transfers out (112,091)             (247,414)            (204,205)             43,209                 

Total other financing sources (uses) (111,719)             386,047             384,517               (1,530)                  

Net change in fund balances -$                     -$                    100,702$            100,702$            

Budgeted Amounts

 
            

 
 
 
 
 

 
   The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 51 of 187



 

- 22 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances— 

Budget and Actual—Emergency Response Special Revenue Fund 

Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

 
Original Final Budgetary Variance with

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

REVENUES  

 89,224$         89,344$         62,258$         (27,086)$        

Interest  -                -                341                341                

Total revenues  89,224           89,344           62,599           (26,745)          

 

EXPENDITURES  

Current:

General government support -                1,332             703                629                

Public safety -                1,019             41                 978                

Health 24,000           24,919           3,717             21,202           

Transportation -                14,581           11,555           3,026             

Economic assistance and opportunity  -                211                143                68                 

Home and community services 34,000           33,970           33,959           11                 

Total expenditures  58,000           76,032           50,118           25,914           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues  

over expenditures  31,224           13,312           12,481           (831)              

 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  

Transfers in  -                25,181           25,181           -                

Transfers out  (31,224)          (32,223)          (25,199)          7,024             

 (31,224)          (7,042)            (18)                7,024             

 

Net change in fund balances  -$              6,270$           12,463$         6,192$           

Intergovernmental

Total other financing sources (uses)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 52 of 187



 

- 23 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Statement of Net Position— 

Proprietary Funds 

December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

Buffalo and Utilities Total

SUNY Erie Erie County Aggregation ErieNet Enterprise

(August 31, 2022) ILDC Fund LDC Funds

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 31,615$                   1,265$              -$                      -$                      32,880$        

Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                           -                    34,000                  34,000          

Receivables (net of allowances) 5,102                       10,212              -                        -                        15,314          

Lease receivables 1,304                       -                    -                        -                        1,304            

Loan receivables -                           120                   -                        -                        120               

Due from other funds 98                            -                    340                       -                        438               

Due from component unit -                           -                    11,812                  -                        11,812          

Intergovernmental receivables -                           -                    3,583                    -                        3,583            

Prepaid items 60                            32                     4                           -                        96                 

Total current assets 38,179                     11,629              15,739                  34,000                  99,547          

Noncurrent assets:

Net pension asset 6,951                       -                    -                        -                        6,951            

Loan receivables, net -                           430                   -                        -                        430               

Land held for sale -                           6,867                -                        -                        6,867            

Capital assets, net of depreciation:

Construction in progress 804                          -                    -                        -                        804               

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 23,892                     -                    -                        -                        23,892          

Total noncurrent assets 31,647                     7,297                -                        -                        38,944          

Total assets 69,826                     18,926              15,739                  34,000                  138,491        

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows—relating to pensions 23,383                     -                    -                        -                        23,383          

Deferred outflows—relating to OPEB 47,339                     -                    -                        -                        47,339          

Total deferred outflows of resources 70,722                     -                    -                        -                        70,722          

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 866                          824                   2,493                    -                        4,183            

Accrued liabilities 7,334                       -                    7                           -                        7,341            

Due to other funds 556                          -                    12,809                  -                        13,365          

Due to other governments -                           180                   76                         -                        256               

Unearned revenue 6,761                       10,572              -                        34,000                  51,333          

Lease liability - current 102                          -                    -                        -                        102               

Fringe benefits payable - current 3,251                       -                    -                        -                        3,251            

Total current liabilities 18,870                     11,576              15,385                  34,000                  79,831          

Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued liabilities 802                          -                    -                        -                        802               

Lease liability 105                          -                    -                        -                        105               

Fringe benefits payable 2,697                       -                    -                        -                        2,697            

OPEB obligation 187,920                   -                    -                        -                        187,920        

Net pension liability 1,791                       -                    -                        -                        1,791            

Total noncurrent liabilities 193,315                   -                    -                        -                        193,315        

Total liabilities 212,185                   11,576              15,385                  34,000                  273,146        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows—relating to leases receivable 1,304                       -                    -                        -                        1,304            

Deferred inflows—relating to pensions 25,616                     -                    -                        -                        25,616          

Deferred inflows—relating to OPEB 78,921                     -                    -                        -                        78,921          

Total deferred inflows of resources 105,841                   -                    -                        -                        105,841        

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 24,488                     -                    -                        -                        24,488          

Restricted—Erie County Buisness Development Fund -                           608                   -                        -                        608               

Unrestricted (deficit) (201,966)                  6,742                354                       -                        (194,870)       

Total net position (177,478)$                7,350$              354$                     -$                      (169,774)$     

Business-Type Activities

Major Funds Nonmajor Funds

 
 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 53 of 187



 

- 24 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position— 

Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

 

Buffalo and Utilities Total

SUNY Erie Erie County Aggregation ErieNet Enterprise

(August 31, 2022) ILDC Fund LDC Funds

OPERATING REVENUES

Student tuition and fees 22,617$                -$                -$                   -$                   22,617$       

Intergovernmental revenues and charges 27,692                  -                 135                    -                     27,827         

Administrative fees -                       191                 -                     -                     191             

State and local contracts 4,233                    -                 -                     -                     4,233          

Interfund revenues -                       -                 9,410                 -                     9,410          

Other operating revenue 1,040                    13                   25,419               -                     26,472         

Total operating revenues 55,582                  204                 34,964               -                     90,750         

OPERATING EXPENSES

Employee wages 55,219                  -                 167                    -                     55,386         

Employee benefits 20,977                  -                 76                      -                     21,053         

Scholarships 19,544                  -                 -                     -                     19,544         

Supplies, services and general 16,843                  191                 -                     -                     17,034         

Utilities and telephone 2,340                    -                 34,779               -                     37,119         

Depreciation 3,026                    1                    -                     -                     3,027          

Transfer to Erie County Industrial Development Agency -                       282                 -                     -                     282             

Loss on land held for sale -                       181                 -                     -                     181             

Total operating expenses 117,949                655                 35,022               -                     153,626       

Operating (loss) (62,367)                 (451)                (58)                     -                     (62,876)       

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Unrestricted state and local appropriations 29,203                  -                 -                     -                     29,203         

Federal and state student financial aid 20,813                  -                 -                     -                     20,813         

Income from investments, net 11                         -                 -                     -                     11               

Grant income -                       2,038              -                     -                     2,038          

Grant expenses -                       (1,617)             -                     -                     (1,617)         

Bad debt expense -                       (483)                -                     -                     (483)            

Loss on disposal of plant assets (11)                       -                 -                     -                     (11)              

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 50,016                  (62)                 -                     -                     49,954         

Income (loss) before transfers (12,351)                 (513)                (58)                     -                     (12,922)       

TRANSFERS IN

County contributions 21,430                  -                 -                     -                     21,430         

Total transfers in 21,430                  -                 -                     -                     21,430         

Change in net position 9,079                    (513)                (58)                     -                     8,508          

Net position—beginning (186,557)               7,863              412                    -                     (178,282)      

Net position—ending (177,478)$             7,350$            354$                  -$                   (169,774)$    

Business-Type Activities

Nonmajor FundsMajor Funds

 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 54 of 187



 

- 25 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Statement of Cash Flows— 

Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

Buffalo and Utilities Total

SUNY Erie Erie County Aggregation ErieNet Enterprise

(August 31, 2022) ILDC Fund LDC Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Tuition and fees 22,929$                -$                -$                   -$                   22,929$       

Receipts from utility customers -                       -                 17,279               -                     17,279         

Federal grants and contracts 27,692                  -                 -                     -                     27,692         

State grants and contracts 3,313                    -                 -                     -                     3,313          

Local grants 1,420                    -                 -                     -                     1,420          

Other sources 1,040                    (913)                -                     -                     127             

Personal service payments (55,393)                 -                 -                     -                     (55,393)       

Payments for wages and fringe benefits (27,680)                 -                 (243)                   -                     (27,923)       

Payments to suppliers (17,404)                 578                 (34,774)              -                     (51,600)       

Payments for scholarships (19,544)                 -                 -                     -                     (19,544)       

Internal activity—payments from other funds -                       -                 17,738               -                     17,738         

Transfer to Erie County Industrial Development Agency -                       (560)                -                     -                     (560)            

Chargeback revenues 1,318                    -                 -                     -                     1,318          

Net cash (used for) operating activities (62,309)                 (895)                -                     -                     (63,204)       

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

State appropriations 42,429                  -                 -                     -                     42,429         

County contributions 21,430                  -                 -                     -                     21,430         

Federal and state student financial aid grants 5,755                    -                 -                     -                     5,755          

Net cash provided by noncapital 

financing activities 69,614                  -                 -                     -                     69,614         

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition/funding of capital projects (1,405)                   (22)                 -                     -                     (1,427)         

Lease adjustment 306                       -                 -                     -                     306             

Principal payment on lease (99)                       -                 -                     -                     (99)              

Proceeds from sale of land -                       207                 -                     -                     207             

Grant income -                       2,038              -                     34,000               36,038         

Grant expense -                       (2,100)             -                     -                     (2,100)         

Net cash (used for) provided by capital and related

financing activities (1,198)                   123                 -                     34,000               32,925         

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest, dividends, and realized gains on investments 11                         -                 -                     -                     11               

Net cash provided by investing activities 11                         -                 -                     -                     11               

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,118                    (772)                -                     34,000               39,346         

Cash and cash equivalents—beginning 25,497                  2,037              -                     -                     27,534         

Cash and cash equivalents—ending 31,615$                1,265$            -$                   34,000$              66,880$       

Major Funds Nonmajor Funds

Business-Type Activities

 
(continued) 

 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 55 of 187



 

- 26 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Statement of Cash Flows— 

Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

(concluded) 
 

Buffalo and Utilities Total

SUNY Erie Erie County Aggregation ErieNet Enterprise

(August 31, 2022) ILDC Fund LDC Funds

Reconciliation of operating (loss) to net cash

(used for) operating activities:

Operating (loss) (62,367)$               (451)$              (58)$                   -$                   (62,876)$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) to 

net cash (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 3,025                    -                 -                     -                     3,025          

Bad debt expense -                       -                 -                     -                     -              

Loss on land held for sale -                       181                 -                     -                     181             

Decrease in student receivables, net 311                       -                 -                     -                     311             

Decrease (increase) in other receivables, net 522                       (2,558)             (2,016)                -                     (4,052)         

Decrease in loan receivables -                       117                 -                     -                     117             

(Increase) in due from other funds -                       -                 (48)                     -                     (48)              

(Increase) in due from component unit -                       -                 (6,261)                -                     (6,261)         

Decrease in net pension asset 10,603                  -                 -                     -                     10,603         

Decrease (increase) in prepaid items 264                       (32)                 2                        -                     234             

Decrease in deferred outflows of resources 9,641                    -                 -                     -                     9,641          

(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (329)                      801                 -                     -                     472             

(Decrease) increase in accrued liabilities (173)                      -                 5                        -                     (168)            

(Decrease) in retirement liabilities (2,296)                   -                 -                     -                     (2,296)         

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 187                       (278)                -                     -                     (91)              

Increase in due to other funds -                       -                 8,376                 -                     8,376          

Increase in unearned revenues 1,636                    1,325              -                     -                     2,961          

(Decrease) in OPEB obligation (31,643)                 -                 -                     -                     (31,643)       

Chargeback revenue 1,318                    -                 -                     -                     1,318          

Increase in net pension liability 1,698                    -                 -                     -                     1,698          

Increase in deferred inflows of resources 5,294                    -                 -                     -                     5,294          

Total adjustments 58                         (444)                58                      -                     (328)            

Net cash (used for) operating activities (62,309)$               (895)$              -$                   -$                   (63,204)$      

Nonmajor FundsMajor Funds

Business-Type Activities

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 56 of 187



 

- 27 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position— 

Custodial Fund 

December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

 

Custodial

Fund

ASSETS

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 26,942$        

Receivables 547               

Bonds and securities held in custody 20                

Total assets 27,509          

LIABILITIES

Held in custody for others 8,206            

Total liabilities 8,206            

NET POSITION

Total net position restricted for individuals, 

organizations, and other governments 19,303$         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 57 of 187



 

- 28 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position— 

Custodial Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

 

Custodial 

Fund

ADDITIONS

Funds received on behalf of individuals 254,046$      

Total additions 254,046        

DEDUCTIONS

Funds distributed to individuals 257,373        

Total deductions 257,373        

Change in fiduciary net position (3,327)           

Net position—beginning 22,630          

Net position—ending 19,303$        
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 58 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 59 of 187



 

- 29 - 

 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

The basic financial statements of County of Erie, New York (the “County’) have been prepared in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to 

governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard 

setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 

significant of the County’s accounting principles are described below. 

 

Description of Government-wide Financial Statements 

 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 

report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. 

All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial statements. Governmental activities, which 

normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, are 

reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to 

external customers for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain 

legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.  

 

Reporting Entity 

 

The County was established in 1821. Subject to the New York State Constitution, the County operates 

pursuant to its Charter and Administrative Code (the “Charter”), as well as various local laws. Additionally, 

certain New York State laws govern the County to the extent that such laws are applicable to counties 

operating under a charter form of government. The Charter was enacted by local law and approved by the 

electorate at a general election held in November 1959. The Administrative Code was enacted into local 

law in 1961. The County Legislature is the legislative body responsible for overall operations, the County 

Executive serves as chief executive officer, and the County Comptroller serves as chief fiscal, accounting, 

reporting and auditing officer.  

 

The County provides mandated social service programs such as Medicaid, Temporary Assistance for Needy 

Families and Safety Net. The County also provides services and facilities in the areas of culture, recreation, 

police, libraries, youth, health, senior services, roads, and sanitary sewerage. These general governmental 

programs and services are financed by various taxes, state and federal aid, and departmental revenue (which 

is primarily comprised of service fees and various types of program-related charges). Additionally, the 

County operates SUNY Erie (“the College”). 

 

The financial reporting entity includes the County (the “primary government”) and its significant 

component units. A component unit is either a legally separate organization for which the elected officials 

of a primary government are financially accountable, or another organization for which the nature and 

significance of its relationship with a primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting 

entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

 

  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 60 of 187



 

- 30 - 

 

Blended Component Units—The following blended component units are separate entities from the County, 
but are, in substance, part of the County’s operations and therefore data from the units are combined with 
data of the primary government. 
 

 Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority—Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority (“ECFSA”) is 
included as a blended component unit of the County’s primary government pursuant to GASB. The 
ECFSA was created to monitor and oversee the finances of the County. Agencies and departments 
examined by the ECFSA’s activities include all of the County’s departments and sewer districts, the 
College and the Library. It reports using the governmental model and its general fund is reported as 
part of the County’s special revenue funds. 
 
The ECFSA is a corporate governmental agency and instrumentality of the State of New York (the 
“State”) constituting a public benefit corporation created by the Erie County Fiscal Stability 
Authority Act, Chapter 182 of the Laws of 2005, as supplemented by Chapter 183 of the Laws of 
2005 (the “Act”).  The Act became effective July 12, 2005. 
 
The ECFSA is governed by seven directors, each appointed by the Governor, including one each 
appointed upon the recommendation of the Majority Leader of the State Senate, the Speaker of the 
State Assembly and the State Comptroller. The Governor also designates the chairperson and vice-
chairperson from among the directors. 

 
The ECFSA has power under the Act to monitor and oversee the finances of the County, and upon 
declaration of a “Control Period” as defined in the Act.  The ECFSA is also empowered to issue its 
bonds and notes for various County purposes, defined in the Act as “Financeable Costs.” 
 
On November 3, 2006, the Authority imposed a control period on the County in accordance with 
Section 3595(1)(e) of New York Public Authorities Law through resolution 06-49.  The resolution 
empowered the ECFSA to operate with its maximum authorized complement of control over County 
finances.  During a control period all County contracts of $50,000 or more and filling of any positions 
are subject to ECFSA approval and ECFSA has the power to approve or reject all proposed County 
borrowings and the County may not borrow without formal ECFSA approval.  In addition, the 
ECFSA has the right to freeze wages, although it has not elected to exercise that right. On June 2, 
2009, the ECFSA revoked the control period and reverted to an advisory status with limited control 
over County finances. 
 
In 2011, the ECFSA issued serial bonds to assist ECMCC in the construction of a new residential 
health care facility.  Loan agreements were executed whereby the ECFSA loaned the proceeds to the 
County, who in turn loaned the monies to ECMCC. The facility was opened in February 2013. 
 
Revenues of the ECFSA consist of sales tax revenues, defined as net collections from sales and 
compensating use taxes, penalties and interest authorized by the State and imposed by the County on 
the sales and use of tangible personal property and services in the County (“Sales Tax Revenues”), 
and investment earnings on money and investments on deposit in various ECFSA accounts. Sales tax 
revenues collected by the State Comptroller for transfer to the ECFSA are not subject to appropriation 
by the State or County. Revenues of the ECFSA that are not required to pay debt service, operating 
expenses and other costs of the ECFSA are payable to the County as frequently as practicable. 
Separate financial statements for ECFSA can be obtained from the Erie County Fiscal Stability 
Authority, 295 Main Street, Room 946, Buffalo, NY, 14203. 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 61 of 187



 

- 31 - 

 

 Erie County Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation—Erie Tobacco Asset Securitization 

Corporation (“ETASC”) is a special purpose local development corporation organized under the Not-

for-Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York and is an instrumentality of, but separate and 

apart from the County. ETASC was incorporated for the sole purpose of issuing tobacco settlement 

asset backed bonds in order to provide funds to purchase from the County all of the County’s right, 

title, and interest in annual payments to be received in settlement of certain smoking-related litigation. 

Tobacco settlement bonds are payable only from the assets of ETASC and are not legal obligations 

of the County. Although legally separate and independent of the County, ETASC is considered an 

affiliated organization under GASB and reported as a component unit of the County for financial 

reporting purposes and, accordingly, is included in the County’s financial statements. Separate 

financial statements for ETASC can be obtained from the Erie Tobacco Asset Securitization 

Corporation, Treasurer, 95 Franklin Street, Room 1600, Buffalo, NY, 14202. 

 

 SUNY Erie—SUNY Erie (the “College”) is a locally sponsored, two-year College established for 

the purpose of providing education services primarily to the residents of the County. Resources 

received and used for college purposes are accounted for through the College. A fiscal year ending 

August 31 is mandated by New York State law for the College. Accordingly, financial information 

for the College is presented as of and for the 2021-2022 fiscal year then ended.  

 

The College does not account for certain capital projects, certain capital assets or certain 

indebtedness. These are direct functions of the County and are reported within the governmental 

activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. 

 

Additional information as excerpted from the College’s financial statements is as follows: 

 

 The County Executive and the County Legislature approve the College’s annual budget, 

with the County providing funding for one-half and approximately one-fifth of capital and 

operating costs, respectively. 

 Equipment of the College has been included in the business-type activities column in the 

statement of net position. This equipment is recorded at cost or estimated historical cost. 

Donated assets are stated at estimated fair value as of the date received. 

 

Separate financial statements for the College can be obtained from SUNY Erie, Comptroller, 4041 

Southwestern Blvd., Orchard Park, NY, 14127. 

 

 The Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation—The Buffalo and Erie 

County Industrial Land Development Corporation (“ILDC”) is a legally separate entity of which the 

County, acting by and through the County Executive, is the sole member. It is discretely presented in 

the County’s financial statements because the County is financially accountable for it. The ILDC is 

managed by its Board of Directors. Although ILDC does not meet the GASB requirements to be 

presented as a major fund, the County has elected to show ILDC as a major fund.  

 

In 2009, ILDC by–laws and organizing documents were changed and specific activities first became 

under the direct governance of the County. These changes allow the ILDC to provide tax-exempt 

bond financing for not-for-profit organizations. Such debt of the ILDC can never be the debt of the 

County or any political subdivision thereof and can only be paid out of specific revenues and receipts 

of the ILDC. The ILDC provides no services to the County. Separate financial statements can be 

obtained from Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation Inc., Chief 

Operating Officer, 275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY 14203. 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 62 of 187



 

- 32 - 

 

 ErieNet Local Development Corporation—The ErieNet Local Development Corporation 
(“ELDC”) is a public benefit corporation established in 2022 under Section 1411 of the New York 
Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The ELDC was established to create a foundation to address the 
broadband needs of unserved areas, improve services in unserved areas of the community and enable 
world class broadband investment and deployment county wide. The ELDC is legally separate entity 
of which the County, acting by and through the County Executive, is the sole member. Although 
legally separate and independent of the County, ELDC is considered an affiliated organization under 
GASB and reported as a component unit of the County for financial reporting purposes and, 
accordingly, is included in the County’s financial statements. The ELDC does not issue separate 
financial statements. 

 

Discretely Presented Component Units—The component units column in the basic financial statements 
includes the financial data of the County’s discretely presented component units. These units are reported 
separately from the financial data of the primary government to emphasize that they are legally separate 
from the County. 
 

 The Buffalo and Erie County Public Library—The Buffalo and Erie County Public Library (the 
“Library”), formed through a consolidation of several public and private libraries, was established by 
the County and chartered by the State University Board of Regents in 1953. It is a separate and distinct 
legal corporation that receives an annual budgetary contribution from the County. Library operations 
are governed by a Board of Trustees who are appointed by the County Legislature. Bonds and notes 
for Library capital costs are issued by the County and are obligations of the County. Title to real and 
personal property acquired with County funds vests with the County. The Library is included as a 
component unit of the County in the financial statements based on the fact that it is a legally separate 
entity for which the County is financially accountable. The Library does not issue separate financial 
statements. 
 

 Erie County Medical Center Corporation—Erie County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”) 
is a public benefit corporation created in 2003 for the purpose of acquiring and operating the health 
facilities of the County. Effective January 1, 2004, a transaction was executed which transferred 
ownership of the capital assets, equipment, inventories and certain other assets to ECMCC in 
exchange for a payment of $85,000,000 from ECMCC to the County. Concurrent with the transaction, 
$101,375,000 of ECMCC bonds were issued, which are guaranteed by the County. Pursuant to 
consent decrees entered into between the County and ECMCC, the County is committed to providing 
ongoing operating and capital support to ECMCC. The following component units are included 
within ECMCC: 

 

 Research for Health in Erie County, Inc. (“RHEC”) is a nonprofit organization dedicated 
to developing and increasing the facilities of the public health institutions, agencies, and 
departments of the County. Additionally, RHEC is committed to provide more extensive 
conduct of studies and research into the causes, nature, and treatment of diseases, disorders, 
and defects of particular importance to the public health. RHEC’s support comes primarily 
from investment income. The financial statements of RHEC have been prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting. RHEC is exempt from income tax as a not-for-profit 
corporation under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The entity has not been 
receiving funding in recent years. The annual financial report can be obtained by writing 
Grant Administration, Research for Health in Erie County, Inc., 462 Grider Street, Buffalo, 
NY 14215. 

 

 ECMC Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”), formerly the ECMC Lifeline Foundation, 
Inc., is a nonprofit organization exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) 
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Foundation was formed for the purpose of supporting 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 63 of 187



 

- 33 - 

 

ECMC programs. The annual financial report can be obtained by writing to: Executive 
Director, ECMC Foundation, Inc., 462 Grider Street, Buffalo, NY 14215. 

 

 The Grider Initiative, Inc. (the “Physician Endowment”) is a nonprofit organization 
exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  
The Physician Endowment was formed in 2009, and funded in 2010, for the purpose of 
recruiting physicians who shall practice on the Grider Street campus of ECMCC. The entity 
was funded with an initial transfer of $10,000 from ECMCC. Earnings from the investment 
of the initial transfer may be used only for physician recruitment and reasonable and 
necessary expenses of the entity.  The annual financial report can be obtained by writing 
to:  Chair, The Grider Initiative, Inc., 424 Main Street, Suite 2000, Buffalo, NY 14202. 

 
ECMCC is considered to be a component unit of the County and is discretely presented based on the 
fact that it is a legally separate entity for which the County is financially accountable. Separate 
financial statements for ECMCC can be obtained from ECMCC, 462 Grider Street, Buffalo, NY 
14215. 

 

 The Auxiliary Services Corporation of Erie Community College, Inc. (the “ECC Auxiliary 
Corporation”), and the Erie Community College Foundation, Inc. (the “ECC Foundation”) are both 
included as discretely presented component units of the County’s primary government based on the 
fact that they are legally separate entities for which the College and County are financially 
accountable. They receive or hold economic resources that are significant to, and can be accessed by, 
the College that are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of its constituents (students).  
 
The purpose of the ECC Auxiliary Corporation, a New York nonprofit corporation, is to promote and 
cultivate educational and social relations through the operation of bookstores, on-campus dining 
services, vending facilities, childcare, and student centers for the convenience of the students, faculty 
and staff of the College. The ECC Auxiliary Corporation is funded through sales of merchandise and 
food, federal and state grants, and other fees. Separate financial statements can be obtained from the 
Auxiliary Services Corporation of Erie Community College, Inc., Executive Director, 4041 
Southwestern Blvd., Orchard Park, NY 14127. 
 
The ECC Foundation is a New York State nonprofit corporation established to support the College. 
Its purpose is to raise, receive, and administer all private gifts and program services for the College, 
its programs, and its students. Separate financial statements can be obtained from Erie Community 
College Foundation, Inc., Executive Director, 121 Ellicott Street, Buffalo, NY 14203. 

 

Excluded from the Financial Reporting Entity—Although the following are related to the County, they 
are not included in the County reporting entity:  
 

 Related Organizations—County elected officials nominate and confirm the three-member board of 
the Erie County Water Authority, (“Water Authority”) and also appoint a voting majority of the board 
of the Buffalo Convention Center Management Corporation (“BCCMC”). The Erie County Industrial 
Development Agency (“ECIDA”), is a public benefit corporation created to promote and assist 
private sector industrial/business development thereby advancing job opportunities and economic 
well-being to the people of Erie County. The County’s accountability for these legally separate 
organizations does not extend beyond making the board appointments. Specifically, the County 
cannot impose its will on any of these organizations. In addition, in the case of the Water Authority, 
no financial operating assistance is provided to, nor is the County liable for, any debt issued by this 
public benefit corporation. In regard to the not-for-profit BCCMC, the entity and the County are 
parties to an exchange transaction under which the BCCMC is responsible for operating and 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 64 of 187



 

- 34 - 

 

managing the area’s convention center. These related organizations are not component units of the 

County and do not meet the basic criteria for inclusion in the County reporting entity. 

 

 Joint Ventures: 

 

 Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation—The County is a participant in the 

Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation (“OTB”), a public benefit corporation 

established under New York State Racing, Pari-Mutuel Wagering and Breeding Law. The 

OTB conducts within the region a system of off-track pari-mutuel betting on horse races, 

and distributes net revenues to the participants in accordance with a predetermined formula. 

Separate financial data for this joint venture has been excluded from the financial 

statements, consistent with GASB. Additional information about this joint venture is 

presented in Note 18. 

 

 Buffalo Erie Niagara Land Improvement Corporation—The Buffalo Erie Niagara 

Land Improvement Corporation (“BENLIC”) was organized on June 6, 2012, pursuant to 

Article 16 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York.  BENLIC was 

formed through a joint venture of the County of Erie and Cities of Buffalo, Lackawanna, 

and Tonawanda.  BENLIC was created to confront and alleviate the problems distressed 

properties cause to communities by supporting municipal and regional revitalization efforts 

and strategically acquiring, improving, assembling, and selling distressed, vacant, 

abandoned, and/or tax-delinquent properties. Separate financial data for this joint venture 

has been excluded from the financial statements, consistent with GASB. Additional 

information about this joint venture is presented in Note 18. 

 

Basis of Presentation—Government-wide Financial Statements 

 

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. The 

governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds, while business-type activities 

incorporate data from the County’s enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are provided for 

governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the fiduciary funds are excluded 

from the government-wide statements. 

 

As discussed earlier, the County has four discretely presented component units, with two major component 

units being shown in separate columns and two nonmajor component units being aggregated into a single 

column in the government-wide financial statements. 

 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 

statements. Exceptions to this general rule are interfund services provided and used such as Utilities 

Aggregation Fund billings to other funds.  Eliminations of these charges would distort the direct costs and 

program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
Basis of Presentation—Fund Financial Statements 

 

The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including its fiduciary fund 

and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category—governmental, proprietary, and 

fiduciary—are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and 

enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds and enterprise 

funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major individual governmental funds are aggregated 

and reported as nonmajor funds. 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 65 of 187



 

- 35 - 

 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

 

 General Fund—The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the County and is used to 

account for all financial resources of the general government except those required to be 

accounted for in other funds.  

 

 Emergency Response Fund—The Emergency Response Fund is used to account for revenues 

received from the Federal Emergency Management Agency and expenditures associated with 

winter storms, other natural disasters and certain pandemic response costs. Current activity in 

this fund includes activities related to the County’s COVID-19 pandemic response and funds 

received through the American Rescue Plan Act.  

 

 ECFSA General Fund—The ECFSA General Fund is used to account for all of the operations 

of the ECFSA, included as a blended component unit. This fund accounts for sales tax revenues 

received by ECFSA and for general operating expenditures of ECFSA. 

 

The County reports two major enterprise funds: 

 

 SUNY Erie—SUNY Erie is a blended component unit of the government, is a locally 

sponsored, two-year college established for the purpose of providing education services 

primarily to the residents of the County.  

 

 ILDC—The ILDC is a blended component unit of the government, incorporated for the purpose 

of participating in the acquisition and development of industrial sites and to provide financial 

assistance for the acquisition or renovation of capital assets by industrial companies locating 

or expanding within the County.  

 

Additionally, the County reports the following fund type: 

 

 Fiduciary Funds—These funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee 

capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and/or 

other funds. Trust funds account for resources received and disbursements made in accordance 

with trust agreements or applicable legislative enactments for each particular fund. Fiduciary 

funds include the Custodial Fund. Activities reported in the fiduciary funds include monies 

from outside entities, controlled and administered by the County for the benefit of others, 

including monies related to social services, probation fines, bid deposits, and miscellaneous 

trust programs. 

 

During the course of operations the County has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual 

balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other funds. 

While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in preparation 

of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in governmental 

activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the governmental 

activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the 

enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-

type activities column. 

 

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund 

financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in fund 

financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial 

statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the 

net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 66 of 187



 

- 36 - 

 

funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfer 

in the business-type activities column. 

 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and 

basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current 

financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or 

events for recognition in the financial statements. 

 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 

and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when 

a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as 

revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon 

as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 

focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 

measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 

current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County 

considers tax revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal 

period and considers all other revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 

current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 

accounting. However, debt services expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments, 

are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 

governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 

financing sources. 

 

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period 

are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 

period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time 

requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue 

sources (within 60 days of year-end). Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the 

qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the 

amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 

days of year-end). All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash 

is received by the government. 

 

The proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 

and the accrual basis of accounting.  

 

Budgetary Information 

 

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted and employed for control of the General Fund; the Emergency 

Response Fund; the Road, Sewer, Downtown Mall, and E-911 Special Revenue Funds; the Utilities 

Aggregation Enterprise Fund; and the Debt Service Fund, minimally detailed to the department and account 

level. These budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP, except that encumbrances are reported 

as budgetary expenditures in the year of incurrence of commitment to purchase in the General Fund, the 

enumerated Special Revenue Funds and the Debt Service Fund. All unencumbered appropriations lapse at 

the end of the fiscal year. Budgetary comparisons presented in this report are on the budgetary basis and 

represent the budget as modified. Annual appropriated budgets are not employed for the Grants and 

Community Development Special Revenue Funds. 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 67 of 187



 

- 37 - 

 

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance 

 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments—All highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of 
three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments are stated at fair value, the amount 
at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. 
 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents—Restricted cash represents amounts to support restricted fund 
balance, amounts with constraints placed on their use by either external parties and/or statute, amounts held 
on behalf of others, and for unspent bond proceeds. 
 

Receivables—Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible amounts. Amounts due 
from state and federal governments represent amounts owed to the County to reimburse it for expenditures 
incurred pursuant to state and federally funded programs. All major revenues of the County are considered 
“susceptible to accrual” under the modified accrual basis. These include property tax, sales tax, State and 
Federal aid, and various grant program revenues. 

 

Prepaid Items—Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid 
items is recorded as expenses/expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 
 
Capital Assets—All capital assets which are acquired or constructed for general governmental purposes are 
reported as expenditures in the fund that finances the asset acquisition and are accounted for and reported 
in the government-wide financial statements as capital assets, if they meet the County’s capitalization 
criteria.  These statements also contain the County’s infrastructure assets that are required to be capitalized 
under GAAP.  Infrastructure assets include public domain assets such as roads, bridges, and sewer systems. 
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. Major outlays for capital assets and 
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that 
do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.  Equipment with an 
initial individual cost equal to or greater than $10,000 and an estimated useful life of three or more years is 
capitalized. All purchases of library books are capitalized because there is no minimum capitalization 
threshold.  
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are 
depreciated/amortized using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Estimated Useful

Life (Years)

Improvements other than buildings 5-25

Buildings and improvements 15-40

Infrastructure 20-100

Right-to-use leased assets 5-100

Library collections 5-10  
 

The Buffalo and Erie County Public Library has a rare book collection that is classified as a Work of Art 
and Historical Treasure for financial reporting purposes.  This collection is deemed an inexhaustible asset, 
and therefore, is not depreciated. 

 
When capital assets are retired, or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated 
depreciation/amortization are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in 
income for the period in the government-wide statements. Amortization of right-to-use leased assets is 
computed using the straight-line method over the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the assets, 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 68 of 187



 

- 38 - 

 

whichever is shorter. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; significant renewals and 
betterments are capitalized. 
 
The capital outlays character classification is employed only for expenditures reported in the Capital 
Projects Fund. Routine capital expenditures in the General Fund and other governmental funds are included 
in the appropriate functional category (for example, the purchase of a new sheriff vehicle included as part 
of expenditures—public safety). At times, amounts reported as capital outlays in the Capital Projects Fund 
will also include non-capitalized, project-related costs (for example, furnishings). 
 
Unearned Revenue—Certain cash receipts have not met the revenue recognition criteria for government-
wide or fund financial statement purposes. The County received cash in advance related to grants, but has 
not performed the services, and therefore recognizes a liability. Included within unearned revenues at 
December 31, 2022, the County reported $104,267,940 within the Emergency Response Fund for unspent 
American Rescue Plan Act funds. 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources—In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will 
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. At 
December 31, 2022, the County’s primary government has four items that qualify for reporting in this 
category. The first item is related to the deferred charge on refunding which results from the difference in 
the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over 
the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The second relates to pensions and represents the 
effect of the net change in the County’s proportion of the collective net pension asset or liability, the 
difference during the measurement periods between the County’s contributions and its proportionate share 
of the total contribution to the pension systems not included in the pension expense, and any contributions 
to the pension systems made subsequent to the measurement date. The third item represents the effects of 
the change in the County’s proportion of the collective OPEB liability and difference during the 
measurement period between certain of the employer’s contributions and its proportionate share of the total 
of certain contributions from employers included in the collective OPEB liability. The last item relates to 
the deferred outflow on ETASC’s forward purchase agreement swap relating to the accumulated increase 
in its fair value. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. At December 31, 2022, the primary government of the County 
has five items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first item is a deferred gain on refunding, 
which the County reports within its governmental activities. A deferred gain on refunding results from the 
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and 
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The second item is related to leases 
receivable and reported on the government-wide statements and on the balance sheet of governmental 
funds, is recognized at the commencement of the County’s lease receivable and amortized over the life of 
the lease. The third item represents the effect of the net change in the County’s proportion of the collective 
net pension liability/(asset) and the difference during the measurement periods between the County’s 
contributions and its proportionate share of total contributions to the pension system not included in pension 
expense and is reported on the government-wide statements. The fourth item represents the effects of the 
change in the County’s proportion of the collective OPEB liability and difference during the measurement 
period between certain of the employer’s contributions and its proportionate share of the total of certain 
contributions from employers included in the collective OPEB liability and is reported on the government-
wide financial statements. The final item, reported within the governmental fund financial statements 
represents unavailable revenues from property taxes. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow 
of resources in the period that the amount becomes available.  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 69 of 187



 

- 39 - 

 

 

Net Position Flow Assumption—Sometimes the County will fund outlays for a particular purpose from 

both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the 

amounts to report as restricted—net position and unrestricted—net position in the government-wide and 

proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the 

resources are considered to be applied. It is the County’s policy to consider restricted—net position to have 

been depleted before unrestricted—net position is applied. 

 

Fund Balance Flow Assumption—Sometimes the County will fund outlays for a particular purpose from 

both restricted and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). 

In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance 

in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which 

the resources are considered to be applied. It is the County’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to 

have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the 

components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is 

depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 

 

Fund Balance Policies—Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on 

the nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The County itself can 

establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an 

assignment (assigned fund balance). The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can 

be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action of the County’s highest level of 

decision-making authority. The Erie County Legislature is the highest level of decision-making authority 

for the County that can, by adoption of a Legislative Resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit 

fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the resolution remains in place until a similar action 

is taken (the adoption of another resolution) to rescind or revise the limitation. 

 

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the County for specific 

purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The County Legislature authorizes 

assigned amounts of fund balance. The County Legislature may also assign fund balance when 

appropriating fund balance to lower a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent 

year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other 

words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. 

 

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses 

 

Program Revenues—Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants 

who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 

segment and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the 

operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those dedicated 

for specific purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than 

as program revenues. 

 

Property Tax Revenue Recognition—The County-wide property tax is levied by the County Legislature 

effective January 1 of the year the taxes are recognizable as revenue. Taxes become a lien on the related 

property on January 1 of the year for which they are levied. Accordingly, property tax is only recognized 

as revenue in the year for which the levy is made, and to the extent that such taxes are received within the 

reporting period or 60 days thereafter in the fund financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 70 of 187



 

- 40 - 

 

Delinquent property taxes not collected at year-end (excluding collections in the 60-day subsequent period) 
are recorded as deferred inflow—unavailable revenue in the fund financial statements. The portion of 
delinquent property taxes for prior years estimated to be uncollectible at December 31, 2022, amounted to 
$54,947,585. This amount has been recorded as an allowance against the property taxes receivable account. 
 
Compensated Absences—Most employees are granted vacation, personal, and sick leave and earn 
compensatory time in varying amounts. When they leave service, employees are entitled to payment for 
accumulated vacation and unused compensatory time at various rates subject to certain maximum 
limitations. In addition, depending on the applicable collective bargaining agreement, retirees may be 
eligible to receive a direct cash payment for a portion of unused sick time upon retirement. 
 
Compensated absences for governmental fund type employees are reported as a liability and expense in the 
government-wide financial statements. Governmental funds recognize the expenditure when paid. For 
proprietary fund type employees, the accumulation is recorded as an accrued liability and/or other long-
term obligation of the proprietary fund type. 

 
Payment of compensated absences recorded in the government-wide financial statements is dependent upon 
many factors; therefore, timing of future payment is not readily determinable. However, management 
believes that sufficient resources will be made available for the payment of compensated absences when 
such payments become due. Financial information regarding compensated absences is included in Note 13.  
 
Pension Plans—The County is mandated by New York State law to participate in the New York State 
Teacher’s Retirement System and the New York State Local Employees’ Retirement System. For purposes 
of measuring the net pension liability/(asset), deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the defined benefit pension 
plan, and changes thereof, have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the respective 
defined benefit pension plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value. More information regarding pensions is included in Note 8. 
 
Other Postemployment Benefits—In addition to providing pension benefits, the County provides health 
insurance benefits for retired employees as required by the union contracts. The employees become eligible 
for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the County. More information 
regarding OPEB is included in Note 9. 
 

Proprietary Funds Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses—Proprietary funds distinguish 
operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally 
result from providing educational services and the purchase and resale of utilities in connection with the 
proprietary fund’s ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported 
as nonoperating revenues and expenses. The principal operating revenues of the College and the ILDC, the 
County’s major proprietary funds, are charges to students for tuition and fees and administrative fees, 
respectively. Operating expenses for the College include employee wages and benefits and student 
scholarships. Operating expenses for the ILDC include supplies and services, depreciation expense, and a 
transfer to the Erie County Industrial Development Agency. 
 

Other 

 

Estimates—The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of 
resources, deferred inflows of resources, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 71 of 187



 

- 41 - 

 

Statement of Cash Flows—For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the 
following items: cash on hand; cash in checking and time accounts; and certain short-term items maturing 
three months or less from the date acquired, as permitted by State statute. 

 

Reclassifications—Certain amounts were reclassified from ECFSA’s financial statements to conform to 
the County’s reporting presentation. In the ECFSA’s statement of revenue, expenditures, and changes in 
fund balances, $43,155,544 representing principal and interest revenue received from the County relating 
to mirror bonds and a revenue anticipation note purchased by the ECFSA, and $582,638,936 representing 
sales tax revenue and other distributions to the County, were reclassified as transfers in and transfers out, 
respectively. 
 
Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements—During the year ended December 31, 2022, the County 
implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. GASB Statement No. 87 better meets the information needs 
of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. 
The implementation of GASB Statement No. 87 is discussed in Note 19 to the financial statements. 
 
Future Impacts of Accounting Pronouncements—The County has not completed the process of evaluating 
the impact that will result from adopting GASB Statements No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public 

Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements; No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 

Arrangements; and a portion of No. 99, Omnibus 2022, effective for the year ending December 31, 2023; 
the remaining portion of No. 99, Omnibus 2022; No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—an 

amendment of GASB Statement No. 62; and No. 101, Compensated Absences, effective for the year ending 
December 31, 2024. The County is, therefore, unable to disclose the impact that adopting GASB Statements 
No. 94, 96, 99, 100, and 101 will have on its financial position and results of operations when such 
statements are adopted. 

 

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

 

Legal Compliance—Budgets—The County’s annual procedures in establishing the budgetary data 
reflected in the basic financial statements are as follows: 
 

 In accordance with the County Charter and Administrative Code, no later than October 15, the 
County Executive submits a tentative operating and capital budget which details proposed 
expenditures and the proposed means of financing to the Erie County Legislature for the fiscal year 
commencing the following January 1. The College budget is not included in the County Executive’s 
tentative budget, since it is separately adopted during the first County legislative meeting in July 
for the fiscal year commencing September 1. 

 

 After public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments, the County Legislature 
(governing board) adopts the budget no later than the second Tuesday in December. 
 

 The County Executive is authorized to make budget transfers within the same administrative unit 
up to a cumulative total of $10,000 between accounts or line items. Any proposed transfer which 
would result in an increase exceeding $10,000 in any one line item in the budget, as adopted during 
the fiscal year or would affect any salary rate or salary total, would need prior approval by 
resolution of the County Legislature.  In no instance shall a transfer be made from appropriations 
for debt service, and no appropriations may be reduced below any amount which is required by law 
to be appropriated.  

 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 72 of 187



 

- 42 - 

 

 The Emergency Response Special Revenue Fund was established to account for revenues received 
from the Federal Emergency Management Agency and expenditures associated with the cleanup of 
major storm damage that occurred in October 2006, November 2014, November 2022, and 
December 2022. This fund also includes activities related to the County’s COVID-19 pandemic 
response. 

 

 Capital Projects Funds are subject to project budgets determined primarily by the bonding          
authorizations used to fund a particular project rather than annual budgetary appropriations.       
These budgets do not lapse at year-end; rather, they lapse upon termination of the project. 
 

 Expenditures within the General, Special Revenue, Utilities Aggregation Enterprise, and the        
Debt Service funds may not legally exceed the amount appropriated for such accounts within a 
department. During the year, numerous supplementary appropriations were necessary. 

 
Individual governmental fund comparisons of budgetary and actual data at the legal level of control 
established by the adopted budget (i.e., minimally the department and account level) are not presented in 
this report for those funds with annual appropriated budgets due to the excessive detail involved.  However, 
a separate budgetary comparison report is available which contains this information. An electronic version 
of this report can be obtained by contacting the Erie County Office of the Comptroller. 
 
Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services. 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies are recorded for budgetary control purposes to reserve that portion of the applicable 
appropriations, is employed in all County funds except the Enterprise Funds and the Custodial Fund. 
Outstanding encumbrances at year end, except for grant-related commitments that are not reported in the 
financial statements, are presented for GAAP reporting purposes as assignments of fund balances, and do 
not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent 
year. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.  
 
The County reports its budgetary status with the actual data including encumbrances as charges against 
budgeted appropriations. Following is a reconciliation of the budgetary basis (i.e. non-GAAP) and the 
GAAP basis operating results (dollars in thousands):  
 

Emergency
Response

General Fund Fund

Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis  106,430$         13,701$           

Less:
    Encumbrances at December 31, 2022  9,533               2,766               

Plus:
    Encumbrances at January 1, 2022  3,805               1,528               

Net change in fund balance - basis of budgeting  100,702$         12,463$           
 

 

Budget columns presented in the accompanying financial statements reflect deficiencies of revenues and 
other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses. These deficiencies are caused by the 
anticipated use of prior-year’s fund balance, which had been assigned for 2022 expenditures through the 
budget process. When compared to the final budget, the County overspent on Culture and Recreation, 
$3,473, due to higher than expected expenditures in youth development programs. 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 73 of 187



 

- 43 - 

 

Commitments related directly to the Grants and the Community Development Special Revenue Funds in 
the amounts of $21,051,002 and $2,928,707, respectively, at December 31, 2022, are not reported on the 
GAAP financial statements. Budget appropriations are not made available for these commitments until 
grant revenues are recognized at the time of expenditure. 
 
Deficit Net Position—The Governmental Activities reported a total net position deficit of approximately 
$446,263,000 at December 31, 2022, resulting primarily from the effect of GASB required recognition of 
the obligation for other postemployment benefits annually and also from ETASC’s net position deficit of 
$312,368,954, which is caused by its recognition of bonds payable with no offsetting capital assets. 
 
The College Proprietary Fund reported a total net position deficit of $177,478,198 that primarily represents 
the effect of GASB required recognition of other post-employment benefits annually. It is anticipated that 
this trend will continue. 

 

2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

 
Primary Government, Fiduciary Fund and Library Component Unit 

 

Available cash of the County is deposited and invested in accordance with the County’s own written 
investment guidelines which have been established by the Comptroller’s Office, approved by the County 
Legislature and are in compliance with provisions of applicable State statutes. The ECFSA does not have 
a formal investment policy. 

 

Custodial Fund bank accounts are maintained at financial institutions where monies of the County’s other 
funds are also on deposit. In addition, the Library does not maintain a separate bank account; instead, it 
participates in the pooled cash of the County. The banks calculate and report FDIC coverage and collateral 
requirements for the County’s Custodial Fund, the County’s other funds and Library together, separately 
from that of the College.  
 

Interest Rate Risk—As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from fluctuating interest 
rates, it is the County’s policy to generally limit investments to municipal bonds or investments of 180 days 
or less. 

 

Credit Risk—In compliance with New York State law, it is the County’s policy to limit its investments to 
obligations of the United States of America, obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of 
America where the payment of principal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of America, 
obligations of the State of New York, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit issued by a bank or 
trust company located in and authorized to do business in New York State and certain joint or cooperative 
investment programs.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk—For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, 
the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. A margin of 2% or higher of the fair value of purchased securities in 
repurchase transactions must be maintained and the securities must be held by a third party in the County’s 
name. For deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be 
returned to it. Collateral is required for deposits and certificates of deposit in an amount equal to or greater 
than the amount of all deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance. Banks can satisfy collateral 
requirements by furnishing a letter of credit, a surety bond, or by pledging eligible securities as specified 
in Section 10 of New York State General Municipal Law. New York State Education Law does not require 
collateral for college checking accounts, unless the Board of Trustees deems it necessary. If collateral is 
required, it can be in the form of a surety bond or obligations of the United States, the State, or any 
municipality or college of the State. Certain balances for accounts held in trust are collateralized by the 
State of New York. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 74 of 187



 

- 44 - 

 

 

Concentration of Credit Risk—To promote competition in rates and service cost, and to limit the risk of 
institutional failure, County deposits and investments are placed with multiple institutions.  The general 
rule is not to place more than $200,000,000 or 50% of the County’s total investment portfolio, whichever 
is less, in overnight investments with any one institution. 
 
Deposits—The County deposits cash into a number of bank accounts. Monies must be deposited in demand, 
time or NOW accounts or certificates of deposit issued by FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust 
companies located within the State. Some of the County’s accounts are required by various statutes and 
borrowing restrictions for specific funds, while the remainder are used for County operating cash and for 
investment purposes. 

 

As of December 31, 2022 (August 31, 2022 as to the College), the bank deposits of the primary government, 
Library, and Custodial Fund were either FDIC insured or fully collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution’s agent in the County’s name. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents—All highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months 
or less are considered to be cash equivalents. Existing policies require that any underlying securities for 
repurchase transactions must be only federal obligations. Such obligations are explicitly guaranteed by the 
U.S. Government and therefore not considered to have credit risk. At December 31, 2022, the fair value of 
money market accounts was $50,117,985 which were fully collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution’s agent in the County’s name. In addition, ECFSA has $25,293,879 in money 
market accounts at December 31, 2022. 

 

Investments—All investments are carried at fair value and are held by a third party in the County’s or 
ETASC’s name. Investments for the primary government at year-end are shown below (dollars in 
thousands): 
 

Fair

Value

Municipal bonds  200$        

Corporate commercial paper  19,286      

Total investments  19,486$     
 

The County’s investment in municipal bonds at December 31, 2022 consists of $200,000 of Gulf Coast 
Waste Disposal Authority of Texas revenue bonds maturing September 1, 2025 that were rated Aaa by 
Moody’s.  

 
ETASC’s investment in corporate commercial paper at December 31, 2022 consisted of $19,285,458 of 
General Electric Capital Corporation Commercial Paper which was rated P-1 by Moody’s. 
 
Fair Value Measurements—The County has adopted GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement 

and Application.  This guidance requires entities to expand their fair value disclosures by determining major 
categories of debt and equity securities within the fair value hierarchy on the basis of the nature and risk of 
the investment.  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  Management utilizes 
valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs (Level 1 and 2) and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs (Level 3) within the fair value hierarchy established by GASB.  Assets and liabilities 
carried at fair value are required to be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories: 
 

 Level 1 - Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the County 
has the ability to access. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 75 of 187



 

- 45 - 

 

 Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for similar assets, quoted prices in 
markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, directly or indirectly. 
 

 Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value 
measurement.  These are generally company generated inputs and are not market-based inputs.  The 
County has no Level 3 assets. 

 
The primary government has the following fair value measurements as of December 31, 2022: 
 

Description  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Debt Securities:  

   Municipal bonds  200$             -$             -$             200$             
   Corporate commercial paper  19,286          -               -               19,286          

 
    Total  19,486$        -$             -$             19,486$         

 

Erie County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”) 

 

The ECMCC maintains various accounts for depositing, disbursing and investing its funds. The ECMCC’s 
investments are made in accordance with State regulations and its investment guidelines. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents—Include cash on hand and monies deposited in checking and money market 
accounts. Excluding assets whose use is limited, cash and cash equivalents total $46,805,000 as of 
December 31, 2022. 

 
Interest Rate Risk—Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. ECMCC’s cash equivalent secruities are limited to maturities of no greater than 
eighteen months; short-term fixed income securities are limited to maturities of no greater than five years; 
and long-term fixed income securities are limited to maturities to no more than ten years. Substantially all 
of ECMCC’s investments and assets whose use is limited have stated maturities of less than one year.  
 
Restrict Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments—All investments are carried at fair value, and are 
categorized as insured or uninsured, and collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial 
institution in the ECMCC’s name. The ECMCC’s investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents as 
of December 31, 2022 are shown below (dollars in thousands). 

Fair

Value

Money market mutual funds, bank accounts and deposits  96,213$    
Marketable equity securities  24,976      
Corporate bonds  43,580      

Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents  
  ECMCC primary government  164,769    

Foundation Component Unit  2,298        
RHEC Component Unit  1,092        
Physician Endowment Component Unit  9,576        

 
Total ECMCC investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents  177,735$  

 Fair
 Value

Investments  - unrestricted  8,345$      
Restricted cash and cash equivalents  169,390    

 
Total  177,735$  

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 76 of 187



 

- 46 - 

 

Fair Value Measurements—ECMCC primary government has the following fair value measurements as 
of December 31, 2022 (dollars in thousands): 
 

Description  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments and assets whose use is limited:  
   Cash and cash equivalents 96,213$        -$             -$             96,213$        

   Marketable equity securities: 
      Small/Mid-cap value equities  4,117            -               -               4,117            

      Growth equities  1,459            -               -               1,459            
      Core equities  9,070            -               -               9,070            
      International equities 10,330          -               -               10,330          
   Short-term fixed income  43,580          -               -               43,580          

 
    Total  164,769$      -$                 -$             164,769$      

 

Other Component Units 

 

Erie Community College Foundation, Inc.—The Foundation considers all money market mutual funds 
and highly liquid investments available for current use with an initial maturity of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents.  

 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Foundation to off-balance-sheet credit risk include cash 
and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions which were insured for up to $250,000 by the 
U.S. Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. At various times throughout the year ended August 31, 2022 
the Foundation’s balance in its accounts has exceeded these federally insured limits. 
 
The Foundation uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure the fair 
value of its investments. The Foundation’s investments are reported at fair value as follows (dollars in 
thousands): 

 

Quoted

Fair Market Prices

Value (Level 1)

Fixed income 2,291$       2,291$          

Equity securities 3,224         3,224            

5,515$       5,515$           
 

Auxiliary Services Corporation of Erie Community College, Inc.—For the year ended August 31, 2022 
the Corporation reported cash, cash equivalents and investments of $1,617,422 and receivables of $41,750, 
as financial assets available for general expenditure that are, without donor or other restrictions limiting 
their use, within one year of the balance sheet date. The Corporation ensures funds are invested to provide 
high levels of safety and liquidity, while also looking to maximize yield in a conservative manner.  
  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 77 of 187



 

- 47 - 

 

3. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 

Primary Government 
 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents—At December 31, 2022 the County reported the following 
restricted cash and cash equivalents (dollars in thousands): 
 

Fair Value

Handicapped parking 155$           

Emergency response 76,394        

ECFSA General Fund 974             

Grants 64               

Opioid prevention 7,223          

Debt service 26,003        

Capital expenditures 251,693      

ErieNet LDC 34,000        

Total 396,506$    
 

 

Erie County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”) 

 

Assets Whose Use is Limited—Assets whose use is limited are reported as restricted cash and cash 
equivalents at December 31, 2022 and consist of the following (dollars in thousands), as shown below.  
 

Fair Value

Patient and resident's trust cash 362$            

Restricted for debt service principal and interest 12,185         

Medical and dental staff funds 1,004           

Designated for retiree health obligations 24,831         

Designated for self insurance 31,164         

Designated for long-term investment 9,099           

Designated for DSRIP program 68,534         

NYS voluntary defined contribution plan escrow 129              

Restricted for self-insured workers compensation collateral 5,272           

Foundation Component Unit 2,298           

Physicians Endowment Component Unit 9,576           

Restricted - insured workers' compensation collateral 4,936           

    Total 169,390$       
 

4. PROPERTY TAXES 

 
The Countywide property tax is levied by the County upon the taxable real property in the towns and cities 
in the County in late December of each year at the last meeting of the County Legislature and becomes a 
lien on the next succeeding January 1. Such taxes are collected by the respective collection officers in each 
town and in the cities of Lackawanna and Tonawanda until the date established for return of the tax rolls to 
the County, which can be no later than September 15. For the City of Buffalo, the County collects these 
taxes from the lien date. 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 78 of 187



 

- 48 - 

 

With respect to the cities, the County taxes are due by February 15, and penalties are imposed as follows: 
1.5% prior to March 1; 3% prior to March 16; 4.5% prior to April 1; 6% prior to April 16; 7.5% prior to 
May 1; and 1.5% additional each month thereafter. The cities each levy and collect their city taxes, and the 
County is not responsible for any unpaid city taxes. The County is responsible only for uncollected County 
taxes levied in such cities. 
 
With respect to the towns, the countywide property tax is levied by the County together with town property 
taxes, which include special district, fire district, and highway taxes. In towns of the first class, taxes are 
due without penalties by February 15. Penalties are 1.5% prior to March 1; 3% prior to March 16; 4.5% 
prior to April 2; 6% prior to April 16; 7.5% prior to May 1; and 1.5% additional for each month thereafter. 
In towns of the second class, taxes are due without penalty within ten days after receipt of the tax roll by 
the respective collection agency. Penalties are 1.5% prior to March 16 unless waived; 7.5% prior to May 1; 
and 1.5% additional each month thereafter. All towns first retain their share of taxes from collections and 
remit the balance to the County. The County is responsible for uncollected taxes of all subordinate 
jurisdictions, except for the three cities. 
 
The County levies taxes for most school districts throughout the County and is responsible for uncollected 
school district taxes outside the cities of Buffalo, Lackawanna, and Tonawanda. 
 
Additionally, at the option of villages within the County, the County may also be responsible for uncollected 
village taxes. 
 

Constitutional Tax Limit—The amount that may be raised by the countywide tax levy on real estate in any 
fiscal year (for purposes other than debt service on County indebtedness) is limited to one and one-half per 
centum (subject to increase up to two per centum by resolution of the County Legislature) of the five-year 
average full valuation of taxable real estate of the County, per New York State statutes. On November 13, 
1978, a local law became effective which limits the maximum amount of real estate taxes which can be 
levied other than for debt service to one per centum of such average full valuation of all the taxable real 
estate within the County. 
 
The County constitutional tax limit (per New York State statutes) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2022 is computed as follows (dollars in thousands): 
 

Five-year average full valuation  
   of taxable real estate (2018-2022)  70,898,164$  

 
Tax limit @ 1.5%  1,063,472$    
Statutory additions  60,777           

 
Total taxing power  1,124,249      
Total levy  (367,397)        

 
Tax margin  756,852$       

 
 

5. RECEIVABLES 

 
All major revenues of the County’s governmental funds are considered “susceptible to accrual” based on 
the 60 day rule under the modified accrual basis. These include property tax, sales tax, state and federal aid, 
and various grant program revenues. The proprietary funds record revenues using the accrual basis of 
accounting. 
 
  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 79 of 187



 

- 49 - 

 

Major revenues accrued by the County in the various governmental fund types at December 31, 2022 
include real property taxes, interest, penalties and liens of $139,686,481, net of an allowance for estimated 
uncollectible property taxes of $57,947,585; sales and use taxes in the amount of $68,287,304; state and 
federal assistance for social services of $123,909,419; other state and federal aid (including grants) 
approximating $113,845,000; a lease receivable of $276,962; and other receivables of $45,071,000. 
 

Receivables at year-end of the County’s major individual funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate, 
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are outlined below (dollars in thousands).  
 

Receivables and due from Emergency Other

   other governments - General Response ECFSA Governmental
      Governmental Funds Fund Fund General Funds Total

Real property taxes, interest,
  penalties and liens 139,649$   -$           -$           38$              139,687$   

Sales and use tax -             -             68,287       -               68,287       

Federal and state assistance for
  social services programs 123,909     -             -             -               123,909     

Other federal and state aid 69,701       5                -             44,139         113,845     

Leases 277            -             -             -               277            
Other 12,930       -             -             32,141         45,071       

    Gross receivables 346,466     5                68,287       76,318         491,076     
    Less: allowances for uncollectibles 57,948       -                 -             -               57,948       

        Total receivables 288,518$   5$              68,287$     76,318$       433,128$   

Receivables and due from Utilities
   other governments - College Aggregation
      Proprietary Funds (8/31/22) ILDC Fund Total

Accounts receivable 20,447$     -$           -$           20,447$       

Grant receivable -             10,212       -             10,212         
Leases 1,304         -             -             1,304           
Other -             120            3,583         3,703           

    Gross receivables 21,751       10,332       3,583         35,666         
    Less: allowances for uncollectibles 15,345       -             -             15,345         

        Total receivables 6,406$       10,332$     3,583$       20,321$       

 
 

All Governmental and Proprietary Fund receivables are expected to be collected within one year. 
 
Lease Receivable—The County recognizes the lease of land, buildings, and office space to third parties. 
During the year ended December 31, 2022, the County’s governmental activities recognized $245,482 in 
lease revenue and $12,810 in interest revenue, whereas the County’s business-type activities recognized 
$221,387 in lease revenue and $49,350 in interest revenue, during the current fiscal year related to these 
leases. As of December 31, 2022, the County’s receivable for lease payments was $276,962 as to the 
governmental actvities and $1,304,309 as to the business-type activities. Also, the County has a deferred 
inflow of resources associated with these leases that will be recognized as revenue over the lease term. As 
of December 31, 2022, the balance of the deferred inflow of resources reported within the governmental 
activities and the business-type activities was $284,734 and $1,304,309, respectively. 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 80 of 187



 

- 50 - 

 

6. CAPITAL ASSETS 
  

Primary Government 

 

Governmental activities—Capital asset activity for governmental activities for fiscal year ended December 
31, 2022 follows (dollars in thousands): 

 

Balance

1/1/2022 Balance

(as restated) Increases Decreases 12/31/2022

Capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized:

Land 34,951$           18$                -$                 34,969$           

Construction in progress 54,550             58,124            (43,950)            68,724             

Total capital assets not being depreciated/amortized 89,501             58,142            (43,950)            103,693           

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:

Buildings and improvements 733,160           11,967            -                  745,127           

Transportation network 781,764           22,043            -                  803,807           

Sewer network 341,833           5,965              -                  347,798           

Improvements other than buildings 44,787             3,022              -                  47,809             

Machinery and equipment 123,633           11,561            (2,912)              132,282           

Right-to-use leased assets 31,650             5,510              -                  37,160             

Total capital assets being depreciated/amortized 2,056,827        60,068            (2,912)              2,113,983        

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:

Buildings and improvements (476,550)          (21,548)           -                  (498,098)          

Transportation network (553,944)          (34,188)           -                  (588,132)          

Sewer network (136,661)          (6,472)            -                  (143,133)          

Improvements other than buildings (28,404)           (1,600)            -                  (30,004)            

Machinery and equipment (115,133)          (2,940)            2,803               (115,270)          

Right-to-use leased assets (5,654)             (6,784)            -                  (12,438)            

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization (1,316,346)       (73,532)           2,803               (1,387,075)       

Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized, net 740,481           (13,464)           (109)                 726,908           

Governmental activities capital assets, net 829,982$         44,678$          (44,059)$          830,601$         

 
Depreciation/amortization expense was charged to functions and programs of the governmental activities as 
follows: 
 

Governmental activities:

General government support 21,054$           

Public safety 4,410               

Health 216                  

Transportation 34,806             

Economic assistance and opportunity 2,323               

Culture and recreation 1,720               

Education 1,116               

Home and community services 7,887               

Total depreciation/amortization expense—governmental activities 73,532$           
 

 
  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 81 of 187



 

- 51 - 

 

Business-type activities—Capital asset activity for business-type activities for fiscal year ended December 
31, 2022 follows (dollars in thousands): 
 

Beginning Ending

Balance* Increases Decreases Balance*

Capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized:

Construction in progress 741$            63$              -$            804$            

Total capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized 741              63               -              804              

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:

Building improvements 34,979         -              -              34,979         

Land improvements 64               -              -              64                

Equipment 21,951         765              (893)            21,823         

Library collections 1,806           62               (216)            1,652           

Right-to-use leased assets -              515              -              515              

Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized 58,800         1,342           (1,109)          59,033         

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:

Building improvements (13,803)        (1,749)          -              (15,552)        

Land improvements (52)              (3)                -              (55)              

Equipment (18,318)        (802)            893              (18,227)        

Library collections (1,040)          (162)            204              (998)             

Right-to-use leased assets -              (309)            -              (309)             

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization (33,213)        (3,025)          1,097           (35,141)        

Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized, net 25,587         (1,683)          (12)              23,892         

Total capital assets, net 26,328$       (1,620)$        (12)$            24,696$       

 
 

*Capital asset table above presented for the period of September 1, 2021 through August 31, 2022 for the 
College. 
 
Depreciation expense for the College was $3,025,972 for the year ended August 31, 2022. The Utilities 
Aggregation Fund and the ErieNet LDC do not have capital assets. 
 
ILDC’s land held for resale is recorded at net realizable value based on the assessment of the fair value of 
each project. The net realizable value as of December 31, 2022 amounted to $6,867,153. The ILDC does 
not have capital assets.  
 

  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 82 of 187



 

- 52 - 

 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

 
The Buffalo and Erie County Public Library (the “Library”) 
 
Capital asset activity for the Library for the year ended December 31, 2022 was as follows (dollars in 
thousands): 

Balance Balance

1/1/2022 Increases Decreases 12/31/2022

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Rare book collection 11,764$       14$             -$            11,778$       

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Machinery, equipment, and library materials 54,619         1,983           (1,135)         55,467         

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Machinery, equipment, and library materials (48,913)        (2,526)         971             (50,468)        

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 5,706           (543)            (164)            4,999           

Total capital assets, net 17,470$       (529)$          (164)$          16,777$       

 
Depreciation expense for the Library was $2,525,937 for the year ended December 31, 2022.  
 

Erie County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”) 
 
Capital asset activity for ECMCC for the year ended December 31, 2022 was as follows (dollars in 
thousands): 
 

Balance

1/1/2022 Balance

(as restated) Increases Decreases 12/31/2022

Capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized:

Construction in progress 19,699$       8,216$         (6,272)$       21,643$       

Total capital assets not being depreciated/amortized 19,699         8,216          (6,272)         21,643         

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:

Land and land improvements 41,624         525             (983)           41,166         

Buildings and improvements 547,713       4,763          (7,384)         545,092       

Fixed/major moveable equipment 160,780       5,632          (14,889)       151,523       

Right-to-use leased assets 33,755         8,930          -             42,685         

Total capital assets being depreciated/amortized 783,872       19,850         (23,256)       780,466       

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization (454,754)      (41,566)       22,382        (473,938)      

Total capital assets,being depreciated/amortized, net 329,118       (21,716)       (874)           306,528       

Total capital assets, net 348,817$     (13,500)$      (7,146)$       328,171$     

 
Depreciation/amoritzation expense for ECMCC was $41,566,000 for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
 
 
 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 83 of 187



 

- 53 - 

 

7. PAYABLES, ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

 
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and due to other governments reported by the governmental funds 
and proprietary funds at December 31, 2022, were as follows (dollars in thousands): 
 

Accounts and retained percentage Other

  payable, accrued liabilities and Emergency Nonmajor
  due to other governments - General Response ECFSA Governmental

     Governmental Funds Fund Fund General Funds Total

Accounts payable 22,220$      2,903$        53$          21,827$         47,003$     

Other governments 28,763        52               -           24                  28,839       
Health and social service

   programs and agencies 71,919        3,577          -           3,264             78,760       

Retained percentages -              -              -           2,215             2,215         

Salaries & fringes 13,014        2                 -           2,431             15,447       
Other 30,096        2,427          -           -                 32,523       

    Total  166,012$    8,961$        53$          29,761$         204,787$   

Accounts payable, accrued liabilites

due to other governments and Utilities

fringe benefits payable - current College Aggregation
     Proprietary Funds (8/31/22) ILDC Fund Total

Accounts payable 866$           824$           2,493$     4,183$           

Fringes benefits payable - current 3,251          -              -           3,251             
Other 7,334          180             83            7,597             

    Total 11,451$      1,004$        2,576$     15,031$          
 

8. PENSION PLANS 

 

All tables within this note present dollars in thousands. 
 
Plan Descriptions and Benefits Provided 

 

New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (“ERS”)— The County participates in the ERS, 
a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system (the “System”). ERS provides retirement benefits, as 
well as death and disability benefits. Obligations of employers and employees to contribute and benefits to 
employees are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (“NYSRSSL”). As 
set forth in the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller of the State of New York (“Comptroller”) serves as sole trustee 
and administrative head of the ERS. System benefits are established under the provisions of the NYSRSSL. 
Once a public employer elects to participate in the System, the election is irrevocable.  The New York State 
Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot be 
diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment of a State statute.  
The System is included in the State’s financial report as a pension trust fund.  That report may be found at 
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/index.php or obtained by writing to the New York State and Local 
Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, NY 12244. 
 
The System is noncontributory, except for those employees who joined the ERS after July 27, 1976 who 
contribute 3% of their salary for the first ten years of membership and employees who joined on or after 
January 1, 2010, who generally contribute 3.0% to 3.5% of their salary for their entire length of service. 
Those joining after April 1, 2012 (Tier 6) are required to contribute a percentage ranging from 3% to 6%, 
based on salary. Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller annually certifies the actuarially 
determined rates expressly used in computing the employer’s contributions based on the salaries paid during 
the ERS’s fiscal year ending March 31. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 84 of 187



 

- 54 - 

 

 
New York State Teachers’ Retirement System (“TRS”)—The County participates in the TRS, a cost-
sharing multiple-employer retirement system (the “System”). TRS provides retirement benefits as well as 
death and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the 
NYSRSSL.  TRS is governed by a 10 member Board of Trustees. TRS benefits are established under New 
York State Law. Membership is mandatory and automatic for all full-time teachers, teaching assistants, 
guidance counselors and administrators employed in New York State Public Schools and BOCES who elect 
to participate in TRS.  Once a public employer elects to participate in TRS, the election is irrevocable. The 
New York State Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan 
benefits cannot be diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment 
of a State statute. Additional information regarding TRS may be obtained by writing to the New York State 
Teachers’ Retirement System, 10 Corporate Woods Drive, Albany, NY 12211-2395 or by referring to the 
NYSSTR Annual Comprehensive Financial Report which can be found on TRS’s website at 
www.nystrs.org. 
 

Pension Liabilities/(Assets), Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions—At December 31, 2021, the County reported the following 
liabilities/(asset) for its proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) for ERS and TRS (dollars in 
thousands), shown below. The net pension liability/(asset) was measured as of March 31, 2022 for ERS and 
as of June 30, 2022 for TRS. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability/(asset) 
were determined by actuarial valuations as of April 1, 2021 and June 30, 2021, respectively, with update 
procedures used to roll forward the total net pension liability/(asset) to the measurement dates. The 
County’s proportion of the net pension liability/(asset) were based on projections of the County’s long-term 
share of contributions to the Systems relative to the projected contributions of all participating members, 
actuarially determined. This information was provided by the Systems in reports provided to the County 
and College. For ERS, the Library is under the County’s plan. The County determined a percentage 
allocated to the Library for their portion of the County’s net pension liability/(asset). 
 

TRS

Governmental Business-type Primary Business-type

Activities Activities Government Activities

Measurement date March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 June 30, 2022

Net pension liability/(asset) (83,810)$             (6,951)$                (90,761)$              1,791$                

County's portion of the Plan's total

net pension liability 1.0252385% 0.085032% 1.110271% 0.093321%

ERS

 
For the year ended December 31, 2022, the County recognized ERS pension expense of $2,087,723 and 
$172,389 for governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively. The County recognized 
TRS pension expense of $2,289,596 for business-type activities. The aggregate amount of pension expense 
for the primary government for ERS and TRS for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $4,549,708.  At 
December 31, 2022 and August 31, 2022 (as to the College), the County reported deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources as shown on the 
following page. 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 85 of 187



 

- 55 - 

 

Differences between expected and

actual experiences 6,347$        526$           6,873$        1,876$       

Changes in assumptions 139,869      11,601        151,470       3,474        

Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan investments -             -              -                 2,314        

Changes in proportion and differences

between the County's contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 8,223         679             8,902          464           

County contributions subsequent

to the measurement date 23,892        1,099          24,991        1,350        

Total 178,331$    13,905$       192,236$     9,478$       

Business-type

Activities

Deferred Outflows of Resources

TRS

Activities Activities

Governmental Business-type Primary

Government

ERS

 

Differences between expected and

actual experiences 8,232$        683$           8,915$        36$           

Changes in assumptions 2,360         196             2,556          721           

Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan investments 274,443      22,762        297,205       -            

Changes in proportion and differences

between the County's contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 11,837        980             12,817        238           

Total 296,872$    24,621$       321,493$     995$         

Business-type

Activities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

TRS

Activities Activities

Governmental Business-type Primary

Government

ERS

 
The County’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the 
net pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2023 and August 31, 2023 (as to the College). 
 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as shown below. 
 

TRS

Year Ending December 31, Governmental Business-type Primary Business-type

(*August 31,) Activities Activities* Government Activities*

2023 (22,637)$      (1,878)$        (24,515)$       1,372$          

2024 (32,052)        (2,659)          (34,711)        704              

2025 (72,455)        (6,010)          (78,465)        (284)             

2026 (15,289)        (1,268)          (16,557)        4,614           

2027 -               -               -               655              

Thereafter -               -               -               72                

ERS

 
 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 86 of 187



 

- 56 - 

 

Actuarial Assumptions—The total pension liability as of the measurement date was determined by using 

actuarial valuations as noted in the table below, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension 

liability to the respective measurement dates. The actuarial valuations used the actuarial assumptions 

presented below: 

ERS TRS

Measurement date March 31, 2022 June 30, 2022

Actuarial valuation date April 1, 2021 June 30, 2021

Interest rate 5.90% 6.95%

Salary scale 4.40% 1.95%-5.18%

Decrement tables April 1, 2015- July 1, 2015-

March 31, 2020 June 30, 2020

Inflation rate 2.7% 2.4%

Cost-of-living adjustment 1.4% 1.3%
 

 

 

 

For TRS, annuitant mortality rates are based on July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 System experience with 

adjustments for mortality improvements based on the Society of Actuaries Scale MP2021, applied on a 

generational basis. For ERS, annuitant mortality rates are based on April 1, 2015 – March 31, 2020 System’s 

experience with adjustments for mortality improvements based on the Society of Actuaries’ Scale MP-

2020.  

 

For TRS, the actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation are based on the results of an 

actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020. For ERS, the actuarial assumptions 

used in the April 1, 2020 valuation are based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period 

April 1, 2015 – March 31, 2020. 

 

The long-term rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block method in 

which the best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns net of investment 

expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the 

long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by each the target 

asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of the arithmetic real rates of 

return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation are summarized in the table on the 

following page. 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 87 of 187



 

- 57 - 

 

TRS ERS

Measurement date

Asset class: 

Domestic equities 33.0 % 32.0 % 6.5 % 3.3 %

International equities 16.0 15.0 7.2 5.9

Global equities 4.0 0.0 6.9 0.0

Private equity 8.0 10.0 9.9 6.5

Real estate 11.0 9.0 6.2 5.0

Absolute return strategies 0.0 4.0 0.0 3.8

Domestic fixed income securities 16.0 0.0 1.1 0.0

Global fixed income securities 2.0 0.0 0.6 0.0

High-yield fixed income securities 1.0 0.0 3.3 0.0

Opportunistic portfolio 0.0 3.0 0.0 4.1

Private debt 2.0 0.0 5.3 0.0

Real assets 0.0 3.0 2.4 5.6

Bonds and mortgages 6.0 23.0 3.3 0.0

Cash 1.0 1.0 (0.3) (1.0)

Total 100.0 % 100.0 %

Long-Term Expected

Target Allocation

June 30, 2022 March 31, 2022

ERSTRS

Real Rate of Return

 
Discount Rate—The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability/(asset) was 6.95% for TRS 
and 5.90% for ERS. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that the 
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from 
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially. Based upon the assumptions, the Systems’ 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability/(asset). 
 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to the Discount Rate 

Assumption—The chart on the following page presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability/(asset) calculated using the discount rate of 6.95% for TRS and 5.90% for ERS, as well as what 
the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (5.95% for TRS and 4.90% for ERS) or one percentage-
point higher (7.95% for TRS and 6.90% for ERS) than the current assumption. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 88 of 187



 

- 58 - 

 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Assumption Increase

ERS (4.90%) (5.90%) (6.90%)

Governmental Activities:

Employer's proportionate share

of the net pension liability/(asset) 215,726$        (83,810)$      (334,357)$      

Business-type Activities:

Employer's proportionate share

of the net pension liability/(asset) 17,892$         (6,951)$        (27,731)$       

Primary Government:

Employer's proportionate share

of the net pension liability/(asset) 233,618$        (90,761)$      (362,088)$      

1% Current 1%

Decrease Assumption Increase

TRS (5.95%) (6.95%) (7.95%)

Business-type Activities (College):

Employer's proportionate share

of the net pension liability/(asset) 16,511$         1,791$         (10,589)$        
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position—The components of the current-year net pension liability/(asset) of 
the employers as of the respective valuation dates, were as follows:  
 

TRS ERS

Valuation date June 30, 2021 April 1, 2021

Employers' total pension liability 133,883,474$   223,874,888$    

Plan fiduciary net position 131,964,582     232,049,476      

Employers' net pension liability/(asset) 1,918,892$       (8,174,588)$       

System fiduciary net position as a percentage

of total pension liability 98.6% 103.7%  
 

Payables to the Pension Plan—For TRS, employer and employee contributions for the fiscal year ended 
August 31, 2022 are paid to the System in September, October and November 2022. Accrued retirement 
contributions as of August 31, 2022 represent employee and employer contributions for the fiscal year 
ended August 31, 2022 based on paid TRS wages multiplied by the employer’s contribution rate, by tier, 
and employee contributions for the fiscal year as reported to the TRS System. The College reports accrued 
retirement contributions as of August 31, 2022 of $1,924,544. 

 
For ERS, employer contributions are paid annually based on the System’s fiscal year which ends of March 
31st. Accrued retirement contributions as of August 31, 2022 represent the projected employer contribution 
for the period of April 1, 2022 through August 31, 2022 based on paid ERS wages multiplied by the 
employer’s contribution rate, by tier. The College reports accrued retirement contributions as of August 31, 
2022 of $1,124,224. 
 

  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 89 of 187



 

- 59 - 

 

Defined Contribution Plan 

 
Teachers’ Insurance and Annuity Association – College Retirement Equities Fund 

Plan Description—TIAA/CREF is a college Optional Retirement Program (“ORP”) and offers benefits 
through annuity contracts. The TIAA/CREF issues a publicly available financial report that contains 
financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. The Report may be obtained 
by writing to the Teachers’ Insurance and Annuity Association – College Retirement Equities Fund, 730 
Third Avenue, New York, New York, 10017. 

 
Funding Policy—TIAA/CREF provides benefits through annuity contracts and provides retirement and 
death benefits to those employees who elected to participate in the ORP. Benefits are determined by the 
amount of individual accumulations and the retirement income option selected. All benefits generally vest 
after the completion of one year of service if the employee is retained thereafter. TIAA/CREF is 
contributory for employees who joined after July 27, 1976, who contribute 3 percent (3.0%) of their salary. 
For employees enrolled after July 27, 1992, the College contributes 8 percent (8.0%) of salary for the first 
seven years of employment and 10 percent (10.0%) of salary thereafter. For employees enrolled between 
July 27, 1976 and July 17, 1992, the College contributes 9 percent (9.0%) of the first $16,500 in salary and 
12 percent (12.0%) thereafter. Those joining after April 1, 2013 contribute a percentage ranging from 3 
percent (3.0%) to 6 percent (6.0%), based on salary for their entire length of service. Employee 
contributions are deducted from their salaries and remitted on a current basis to TIAA/CREF.  
 
The College’s contributions to TIAA/CREF for the most recent three fiscal years are as follows: 

 

Employer Employee

Year Ended August 31, Contributions Contributions

2022 1,675,488$           68,037$               

2021 1,456,391             59,140                 

2020 1,904,697             70,584                  
 
The College’s contribution made to the TIAA/CREF was equal to 100 percent of the contributions required 
for each year.  

 
9. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (“OPEB”) OBLIGATION 

 
All tables within this note present dollars in thousands. 
 

Plan Description—The County provides continuation of medical insurance coverage to employees if they 
have been continuously employed by the County for the equivalent of at least five years at the time of 
retirement through a single employer defined benefit plan. The obligation of the County to contribute to the 
cost of these benefits has been established pursuant to legislative resolution and various collective 
bargaining agreements. The retiree and his or her beneficiaries receive this coverage for the life of the 
retiree. Healthcare benefits for non-union employees are similar to those of union employees. The retiree’s 
share of premium costs in most instances range from 0% to 50% depending on the employee group, length 
of service and year of retirement. 
 
  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 90 of 187



 

- 60 - 

 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms—At January 1, 2022, the valuation date, the following employees 
were covered by the benefit terms: 

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities

Active employees 4,131            635               

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 3,734            474               

Total 7,865            1,109            
 

 

Under GASB Statement No. 75, the total OPEB liability represents the sum of expected future benefit 
payments which may be attributed to past service (or “earned”), discounted to the end of the fiscal year 
using the current discount rate. The total OPEB liability is analogous to the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (“UAAL”) under GASB Statement No. 45. 

Total OPEB Liability—The County’s governmental activities and business-type activities total OPEB 
liabilities of $1,131,782,282 and $187,920,331, respectively, were measured as of December 31, 2021, and 
were determined by actuarial valuations as of January 1, 2022. 

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions—Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the 
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new 
estimates are made about the future. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on 
the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the 
employer and the plan members) and on the historical pattern of cost sharing between the employer and 
plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value 
of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. Included coverages are “experience-
rated” and annual premiums for experience-rated coverages were used as a proxy for claims costs with age 
adjustments for pre-65 and post-65 participants.  
 
In the January 1, 2022 actuarial valuation, the liabilities were computed using the entry age normal actuarial 
cost method, over a level percent of pay was used.  The actuarial assumptions utilized an inflation rate of 
2.25%. The single discount rate changed from 2.00% effective January 1, 2020 to 1.84% effective 
December 31, 2021 which is based on the projected long-term earning rate of the assets expected to be 
available to pay benefits.  Because the County does not currently segregate funding for these benefits, the 
rate selected is the expected return on the County’s assets.  The expected rate of compensation increase was 
assumed to be 2.25%. The valuation assumes healthcare cost trends as follows: pre-65 medical, 7.00%; 
post-65 medical, 4.50% and prescription, 7.00%.  Healthcare trends are reduced by decrements to reach a 
rate of 3.78% in 2075.  

 

Medical Reimbursements—The County’s Medicare Part D prescription drug subsidy, which reduces the 
cost of retiree healthcare premiums, is accrued as revenue only in the current year.  Projected subsidies for 
future years cannot be recognized as a reduction to the actuarial accrued liability.  

 
Business-type activities— In the January 1, 2022 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost 
method, over a level percent of pay was used. The single discount rate changed from 2.00% effective 
January 1, 2021 to 1.84% effective December 31, 2021. The salary scale assumed to increase at 2.25% per 
year. The sex-distinct and job category-specific headcount weighted Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality Tables for employees and healthy retirees, adjusted for mortality improvements with scale MP-
2021 mortality improvement scale on a generational basis were used for mortality rates. In order to estimate 
the change in the cost of healthcare, the actuaries initial healthcare cost trend rate used is 7.00% while the 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 91 of 187



 

- 61 - 

 

ultimate healthcare cost trend rate is 3.78%. An inflation rate of 2.25% was assumed for developing the 
rate of increase in healthcare costs. 
 
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability—The following table presents the changes to the total OPEB liability 
during the fiscal year, by source: 
 

Governmental Business-type Primary

Activities Activities* Government

Balance at December 31, 2021 (August 31, 2021*) 1,342,066$         219,563$            1,561,629$         

Changes for the year:

Service cost 31,264                6,912                  38,176                

Interest 27,135                4,486                  31,621                

Changes of assumptions 25,201                9,457                  34,658                

Differences between expected and actual experience (260,700)             (48,156)               (308,856)             

Benefit payments (33,184)               (4,342)                 (37,526)               

Net changes (210,284)             (31,643)               (241,927)             

Balance at December 31, 2022 (August 31, 2022*) 1,131,782$         187,920$            1,319,702$         

Total OPEB Liability

 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to the Change in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend 

Rate—The discount rate assumption can have an impact on the total OPEB liability. The following table 
presents the effect a 1% change in the discount rate assumption would have on the total OPEB liability: 

 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(0.84%) (1.84%) (2.84%)

Governmental activities:

Total OPEB liability 1,334,152$     1,131,782$     970,029$        

Business-type activities:

Total OPEB liability 220,395$        187,920$        161,797$        

Primary Government:

Total OPEB liability 1,554,547$     1,319,702$     1,131,826$      

Additionally, healthcare costs can be subject to considerable volatility over time. The following table 
presents the effect on the OPEB liability of a 1% change in the initial (7.00%)/ultimate (3.78%) healthcare 
cost trend rates. 
 

Healthcare

1% Cost Trend 1%

Decrease Rates Increase

(6.0%/2.78%) (7.0%/3.78%) (8.0%/4.78%)

Governmental activities:

Total OPEB liability 956,658$      1,131,782$    1,357,182$    

Business-type activities:

Total OPEB liability 159,701$      187,920$      223,762$      

Primary Government:

Total OPEB liability 1,116,359$    1,319,702$    1,580,944$     
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 92 of 187



 

- 62 - 

 

Funding Policy—Governmental activities—Authorization for the County to pay all, a portion, or none of 
retiree health insurance premiums was enacted by resolution of the Legislature or through union contracts, 
which are ratified by the Legislature. Retirees hired on or prior to August 7, 2014 with fifteen or more 
years’ service and retire on or prior to December 31, 2022 will have 100% of their retiree health insurance 
premium paid by Erie County. Retirees hired on or prior to August 7, 2014 with less than fifteen years’ 
service and retire on or prior to December 31, 2022 will pay an adjusted percentage based on years of 
service per the ratified contract. Retirees hired on or prior to August 7, 2014 and retire after January 1, 2022 
will have 95% of their retiree health insurance paid by the County. The County has no contribution 
requirement for employees hired after August 7, 2014. The County currently pays for governmental 
activities post-employment health care benefits on pay-as-you-go basis, primarily from the General Fund 
(81%). The remainder is allocated to Emergency Response, Road, Sewer, E-911, Grants, Community 
Development, and Pharmaceutical Settlements Litigation Special Revenue Funds. These financial 
statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.  The County contributed $33,183,540 for the 
year ended December 31, 2022 and recognized an OPEB expense of $13,243,573. 

 
Funding Policy—Business-type activities—Authorization for the College to pay a portion, or all, of retiree 
health insurance premiums was enacted by resolution of the Board of Trustees or through union contracts, 
which are ratified by the Board. Retirees responsible for a portion of their health insurance premiums pay 
based on one of two scenarios. Employees who retired prior to January 1, 2003, pay approximately 50% of 
health insurance costs while the College pays the remainder. Individuals who retired on or after January 1, 
2003 pay between 0% and 25% of premiums based on the amount of sick leave the retiree has banked as 
of their retirement date. The remainder of the retirees make no contribution and the College pays 100% of 
premiums. The College recognizes the cost of providing these benefits by expensing the annual insurance 
premiums when invoiced by the County or by the health insurance provider. The College contributed 
$4,341,962 for the year ended August 31, 2022 and recognized an OPEB expense of $2,855,788. 
 
The aggregate amount of OPEB expense for the primary government for the year ended December 31, 2022 
(August 31, 2022 to the College) was $16,099,361. 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 

OPEB—The County reports deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources due to 
differences during the measurement period between the employer’s contributions and its proportionate 
share of the total of certain contributions from employers included in the collective total OPEB liability. 
The table below presents the County’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for 
governmental activities and business-type activities at December 31, 2022 and August 31, 2022, 
respectively. 

Governmental Business-type Primary Governmental Business-type Primary 

Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government

Differences between expected 

and actual experience 1,615$            814$               2,429$            387,134$        70,344$          457,478$     

Changes of assumptions 233,793          43,216            277,009          57,979            8,577              66,556         

Benefit payments subsequent to 

the measurement date 33,690            3,309              36,999            -                 -                 -              

Total 269,098$        47,339$          316,437$        445,113$        78,921$          524,034$     

Deferred Outflows of Resources Deferred Inflows of Resources

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 93 of 187



 

- 63 - 

 

County contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB 
liability in the year ending December 31, 2023 and August 31, 2023 for governmental and business-type 
activities, respectively. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

 

Year ending December 31, Governmental Business-type Primary

(*August 31) Activities Activities* Government

2023 (45,155)$      (8,542)$        (53,697)$      

2024 (62,161)        (8,835)          (70,996)        

2025 (40,926)        (7,257)          (48,183)        

2026 (13,429)        (2,294)          (15,723)        

2027 (21,991)        (4,133)          (26,124)        

Thereafter (26,043)        (3,830)          (29,873)         
 

10. CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 

 

Construction Commitments—The County has a number of active construction projects at December 31, 
2022. The amounts spent to date and remaining commitments (encumbrances) presented by major project 
groupings are as follows (dollars in thousands): 
 

Construction
Capital Projects Fund Spent-to-date Commitments

General Government Buildings, Equipment, and Improvements 105$                15,486$           

Highways, Roads, Bridges and Equipment 43                    8,111               
Sewers, Facilities, Equipment 396                  15,530             
Special Capital Projects 55                    5,457               

Total 599$                44,584$           
 

 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

Insurance—The County assumes the liability for most risk including, but not limited to, property damage, 
personal injury liability, medical malpractice, and workers’ compensation. Asserted and incurred but not 
reported judgments and claims are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability 
has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Such recording is consistent with 
the requirements of GAAP. Governmental fund type estimated current contingent loss liabilities for 
property damage, personal injury liability, medical malpractice, and workers’ compensation are reported 
within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Loss contingency liabilities arising from operations of the College are recorded in accordance with GASB 
by the County and are reported in full within governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements and in the General Fund when payment is due. They are only recognized as a College liability 
when invoiced from the County. 

 

Self-Insurance Programs—The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, 
damage to, and destruction of assets; business interruption; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; and 
natural disasters. The County assumes the liability for risks relating to property damage, personal injury 
liability, medical malpractice and workers’ compensation. The County has also elected to purchase some 
minor policies from commercial insurers to provide for items such as comprehensive crime and 
boiler/machinery coverage, as well as protection of valuable papers and records; settled claims have not 
exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 94 of 187



 

- 64 - 

 

Judgments and claims are recognized as liabilities in the government-wide financial statements when it is 
probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated. These liabilities include an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not 
reported, and the effects of both specific, incremental claims adjustment expenditures/expenses and 
estimated recoveries on unsettled claims, if any. Judgments and claims reportable as part of the County’s 
governmental type fund activities are recognized as expenditures and liabilities in the General Fund when 
payment is due. 

 
The County Attorney is responsible for analyzing the County’s judgments and claims and providing an 
opinion regarding the County’s ability to cover its liabilities in the self-insurance programs. Based on this 
analysis, judgments and claims of $50,888,192 were recorded as governmental activities long-term 
liabilities at December 31, 2022. 

 
In addition, the County has claims in the range of $647,500 to $230,194,000 for which there is a reasonable 
possibility of a future loss. No accrual has been recorded for such possible losses as of December 31, 2022.  

 
The amounts and classifications of the judgments and claims noted above are based upon information and 
opinions from the County Attorney. 
 
The changes since December 31, 2019 in the County’s judgment and claims liability for risk financing 
activities were as follows (dollars in thousands): 
 

Year Liability, Claims Liability,

Ended Beginning and Claim End

December 31, of Year Adjustments Payments of Year

2022 48,814$           11,963$        9,889$          50,888$           

2021 51,268             5,923           8,377           48,814             

2020 52,576             7,640           8,948           51,268              
 

Erie County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”) 

 
Losses from asserted and unasserted claims identified under ECMCC’s incident reporting system are 
accrued based on actuarial estimates that incorporate ECMCC’s past experience, the nature of each claim 
or incident, relevant trend factors, and estimated recoveries on unsettled claims. Approximately 
$30,975,000 has been accrued at December 31, 2022, discounted at 2.00% and included as liabilities in the 
accompanying statement of net position. ECMCC has recorded liabilities of approximately $27,264,000 for 
workers’ compensation related exposure, discounted at 1.75%. Effective April 1, 2016, ECMCC became 
self-insured for workers’ compensation through a combination of self-insurance and a high-deductible plan.  
 

12. LEASE LIABILITY 

 

Lease Liability—The County is a lessee for a noncancellable leases of buildings, vehicles, and parking 
space. The County recognizes a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in the 
financial statements. The County recognizes lease liabilities with an initial, individual value of $100,000 or 
more. 

At the commencement of a lease, the County initially measures the lease liability at the present value of 
payments expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the 
principal portion of lease payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the 
lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus certain 
initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 95 of 187



 

- 65 - 

 

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the County determines (1) the discount rate it 
uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments. 

 The County uses the interest rates charged by the lessor as the discount rate. When the interest rate 
charged by the lessor is not provided, the County generally uses its estimated incremental 
borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases. 

 The lease terms include the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease payments included in the 
measurement of the lease liability are composed of fixed payments and purchase option price that 
the County is reasonably certain to exercise. 

The County monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will 
remeasure the right-to-use asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect 
the amount of the lease liability. 

Right-to-use assets are reported with other capital assets and lease liabilities are reported with long-term 
debt on the statement of net position. 

During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2020, 2021, and 2022, the County’s governmental activities 
entered into long-term, lease agreements as the lessee for the acquisition and use of various buildings and 
vehicles. As a result of the implementation of the GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, the County reports these 
as lease liabilities. As of December 31, 2022, the value of the lease liabilities was $25,597,401 in 
governmental funds. The County is required to make annual principal and interest payments ranging from 
$53,330 to $3,379,683. The leases have interest rates ranging from 3.12% to 4.15%. The value of the right-
to-use lease assets as of the end of the current fiscal year was $37,160,000 and had accumulated 
amortization of $12,438,000 for governmental activities. 

During the year ended August 31, 2019, the County’s business-type activities, (the “College”), entered into 
a long-term, lease agreement as the lessee for the use of parking space. As a result of the implementation 
of the GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, the College now reports this as a lease liability. As of August 31, 
2022, the value of the lease liability was $207,515. The College is required to make eight monthly principal 
and interest payments of $13,500 per year. The lease has an interest rate of 3.0%. The value of the right-to-
use lease assets as of the end of the current fiscal year was $515,424 and reported accumulated amortization 
of $309,254.  
 
The future principal and interest payments for governmental activities as of December 31, 2022, were as 
follows: 

Fiscal Year

Ending

December 31, Principal Interest Total

2023 6,394$          766$             7,160$          

2024 5,610            580               6,190            

2025 4,919            414               5,333            

2026 3,858            273               4,131            

2027 2,569            133               2,702            

Thereafter 2,247            38                2,285            

Total 25,597$        2,204$          27,801$         

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 96 of 187



 

- 66 - 

 

The future principal and interest payments for business-type activities as of August 31, 2022, were as 
follows: 

Fiscal Year

Ending

August 31, Principal Interest Total

2023 102$          6$             108$           

2024 105            3               108             

Total 207$          9$             216$            

13. LONG-TERM DEBT 

 

Bonded Indebtedness 
 
Bonded indebtedness is reported in the government-wide financial statements.  
 
On August 25, 2022, the County issued $27,095,000 in Series 2022A, and $1,095,000 in Series 2022B 
general obligation serial bonds, all of which were issued for governmental activities. The serial bonds were 
issued at a premium of $4,826,920 and at an interest rate of 5.0 percent. Principal payments on the bonds 
begin September 15, 2023 and will be fully matured on September 15, 2037. 
 
Under current law, provision is made for contract creditors, including bondholders and noteholders of the 
County to enforce payments upon such contracts, if necessary, through court action, although the present 
statute limits interest on the amount adjudged due to creditors to nine per centum per annum from the date 
due to the date of payment. 
 
The table as shown on the following page is a summary of bond transactions of the County for the year 
ended December 31, 2022 (dollars in thousands). 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 97 of 187



 

- 67 - 

 

Interest Balance Balance Due Within
Purpose (1) Issue Maturity Rate (%) 1/1/22 Additions Reductions 12/31/22 One Year

Governmental activities general obligation bonds issued by County of Erie:

Capital 2001 2031 0.00 1,849$        -$         175$      1,674$      177$          
Capital 2002 2031 1.362-5.082 520 -           50          470           50              
Capital 2002 2024 2.521-6.181 920             -           295        625           305            
Capital 2003 2032 1.031-4.901 615             -           50          565           50              
Capital 2003 2029 2.549-6.259 4,255 -           860        3,395        900            

Capital 2003 2032 0.00 185 -           16          169           16              
Capital 2003 2032 0.790-4.612 560 -           45          515           45              
Capital 2004 2033  1.02-4.63 540             -           40          500           40              
Capital 2005 2034  1.56-4.57 1,637          -           105        1,532        110            
Capital 2005 2033  2.06-4.13 1,285          -           90          1,195        95              
Capital 2006 2035 0.00 965             -           70          895           70              
Capital 2007 2036 3.63-4.79 3,020          -           170        2,850        175            
Capital 2010 2023  2.00-4.99 32,255        -           16,050   16,205      16,205       
Refunding 2010 2022 2.001-5.00 90               -           90          -           -             
Capital 2011 2040 0.00 338             -           18          320           18              
Capital 2011 2023 3.00-5.00 3,495          -           1,705     1,790        1,790         
Capital 2012 2026 2.00-5.00 1,730          -           1,730     -           -             
Capital 2012 2042 0.27-4.27 2,435          -           80          2,355        85              
Capital 2013 2024 2.726-5.00 8,870          -           2,810     6,060        2,955         
Refunding 2013 2024 2.00-5.00 545             -           230        315           235            
Capital 2013 2023 2.00-5.00 8,580          -           4,185     4,395        4,395         
Capital 2014 2026 2.00-5.00 9,385          -           2,180     7,205        2,285         
Capital 2014 2028 2.00-5.00 735             -           170        565           180            
Capital 2015 2028 5.00 18,295        -           2,245     16,050      2,360         
Refunding 2015 2029 5.00 10,815        -           1,890     8,925        2,010         
Capital 2015 2028 3.00-5.00 1,295          -           165        1,130        170            
Capital 2016 2029 4.00-5.00 22,380        -           2,345     20,035      2,460         

Capital 2016 2028 3.00-5.00 1,430          -           175        1,255        185            
Capital 2017 2031 3.00-5.00 26,400        -           2,085     24,315      2,195         
Refunding 2017 2036 2.00-5.00 9,430          -           475        8,955        495            
Capital 2017 2047 0.96-3.98 13,570        -           430        13,140      435            
Capital 2018 2031 4.00-5.00 32,785        -           2,605     30,180      2,735         
Capital 2018 2033 3.375-5.00 1,960          -           125        1,835        130            
Capital 2019 2034 4.00-5.00 37,584        -           2,620     34,964      2,750         
Capital 2020 2035 4.00-5.00 34,785        -           2,150     32,635      2,260         
Refunding 2020 2028 1.07-1.71 12,175        -           320        11,855      2,100         
Refunding 2020 2039 3.23-4.60 3,590          -           155        3,435        155            
Capital 2021 2036 3.00-5.00 24,395        -           1,565     22,830      1,315         
Capital 2021 2036 3.00-5.00 1,260          -           70          1,190        60              
Refunding 2021 2041 3.26-4.89 10,185        -           475        9,710        485            
Capital 2022 2037 5.00 -              28,190     -         28,190      1,240         

Total 347,143      28,190     51,109   324,224    53,721        
(continued) 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 98 of 187



 

- 68 - 

 

Interest Balance Balance

Due 

Within
  Purpose (1) Issue Maturity Rate (%) 1/1/22 Additions Reductions 12/31/22 One Year

    Totals brought forward 347,143$  28,190$ 51,109$     324,224$    53,721$    

Less bonds issued by the County to ECFSA (mirror bonds):

Capital 2010 2023 2.00-4.99 (32,255)    -         (16,050)     (16,205)       (16,205)    
Refunding 2010 2022 2.00-5.00 (90)           -         (90)            -              -           
Capital 2011 2023 3.00-5.00 (3,495)      -         (1,705)       (1,790)         (1,790)      
Capital 2013 2024 2.726-5.00 (8,870)      -         (2,810)       (6,060)         (2,955)      
Refunding 2013 2024 2.00-5.00 (545)         -         (230)          (315)            (235)         
Capital 2013 2023 2.00-5.00 (8,580)      -         (4,185)       (4,395)         (4,395)      
Capital 2017 2031 3.00-5.00 (26,400)    -         (2,085)       (24,315)       (2,195)      
Refunding 2017 2036 0.96-3.98 (9,430)      -         (475)          (8,955)         (495)         

      Total mirror bonds (89,665)    -         (27,630)     (62,035)       (28,270)    

Net general obligation bonds
issued by County of Erie 257,478    28,190   23,479       262,189      25,451      

Governmental activities general obligation bonds issued by ECFSA:

Refunding 2010 2022 2.0-5.0 90             -         90              -              -           
Capital 2011 2023 2.00-5.00 3,495        -         1,705         1,790          1,790        
Capital 2013 2024 2.00-5.00 8,870        -         2,810         6,060          2,955        
Refunding 2013 2024 2.00-5.00 545           -         230            315             235           
Capital 2013 2023 2.00-5.00 8,580        -         4,185         4,395          4,395        

Refunding 2016 2023 3.375-5.00 30,295      -         14,765       15,530        15,530      
Capital 2017 2031 4.00-5.00 26,400      -         2,085         24,315        2,195        
Refunding 2017 2036 2.00-5.00 9,430        -         475            8,955          495           
ECMCC facility 2017 2034 3.00-5.00 51,950      -         3,045         48,905        3,195        
ECMCC capital 2017 2039 3.00-5.00 88,650      -         2,040         86,610        2,115        

      Total general obligation bonds issued by ECFSA 228,305    -         31,430       196,875      32,905      

Total general obligation bonds
issued by County of Erie and ECFSA 485,783    28,190   54,909       459,064      58,356      

  Premium on bond issuance 34,221      4,828     3,994         35,055        -           
  Premium on bond issuance-ECFSA 22,810      -         3,992         18,818        -           

542,814    33,018   62,895       512,937      58,356      

Governmental activities bonds issued by ETASC(2):

Tobacco refunding 2005   varies    varies  219,585    -         6,640         212,945      -           
Subordinate CABs 2005   varies    varies  32,870      -         -            32,870        -           
Subordinate CABs 2006   varies    varies  17,695      -         -            17,695        -           
Subordinate CABs 2005-06   varies    varies  97,642      10,316   -            107,958      -           

          Subtotal bonds issued by ETASC 367,792    10,316   6,640         371,468      -           

  Discount on ETASC bonds (8,992)      -         (100)          (8,892)         -           
  Discount on ETASC subordinate CABs (1,380)      -         (21)            (1,359)         -           

357,420    10,316   6,519         361,217      -           

Governmental activities bonds payable
for financial statement purposes 900,234$  43,334$ 69,414$     874,154$    58,356$    

Total County of Erie and ECFSA bonds payable-net

      Total ETASC bonds payable-net

 

(concluded) 
(1)  Capital–Capital acquisition and construction. 
(2)  Refer to discussion following this table regarding outstanding ETASC bonds payable, including Capital Appreciation 

Bonds (CABs). 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 99 of 187



 

- 69 - 

 

Erie Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation (“ETASC”) 

 

In 2000, ETASC issued $246,325,000 of tobacco settlement asset-backed bonds, Series 2000, pursuant to 
an indenture dated as of September 1, 2000. The $246,325,000 bond issuance was comprised of 
$196,985,000 tobacco settlement asset-backed bonds Series 2000A and $49,340,000 tobacco settlement 
asset-backed bonds Series 2000B. The net proceeds of the Series 2000 Bonds were used to purchase from 
the County all of the County’s right, title, and interest to TSR to which the County would otherwise be 
entitled under the MSA and the Decree. 

 
On August 15, 2005, ETASC issued $318,834,680 in tobacco settlement asset-backed bonds (Series 2005A, 
E) and capital appreciation bonds (“CABs”) (Series 2005B, C, D), with interest rates ranging from 5.00% 
to 6.75% to advance refund $239,060,000 of outstanding Series 2000 Bonds bearing interest rates ranging 
from 5.0% to 6.5% originally issued in 2000. The net proceeds amounted to $305,330,026 after original 
issuance discount and payment of $13,504,654 for underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs, 
of which $267,037,311 was used to fund an irrevocable trust to defease the remaining original bonds. This 
transaction enabled ETASC to release $55,231,709 in previously restricted funds for debt service and 
trapping events to the County. 
 
On September 15, 2005, ETASC entered into an agreement with the bondholders to replace the government 
securities in the irrevocable trust with government agency securities. This transaction generated a savings 
of $2,802,806. Of this, $1,331,893 was transferred to the County and the remainder less costs of sale was 
paid to the bondholders for their concessions. During 2010, the bonds were called and the balance in the 
irrevocable trust was used to satisfy all required debt payments. 
 
On January 5, 2006, ETASC issued $17,694,720 of tobacco settlement asset-backed CABs, Series 2006A, 
with an interest rate of 7.65%. ETASC entered into a purchase and sale agreement with the County on 
January 1, 2006, in which ETASC purchased the County’s sole undivided beneficial interest in and to the 
trust established by ETASC pursuant to the Declaration and Agreement of Trust dated September 1, 2000, 
between ETASC and the Wilmington Trust Company (“2000 Residential Trust”), in its capacity as trustee, 
including the County’s right to receive residual tobacco settlement revenues payable to the County, as sole 
beneficiary of the 2000 Residential Trust. The net proceeds of $15,638,465 were transferred to the County. 
 
The payment of the Series 2005 and Series 2006 Bonds is dependent on the receipt of TSRs. The amount 
of TSRs actually collected is dependent on many factors, including cigarette consumption and the continued 
operations of the OPMs. Such bonds are secured by and payable solely from TSRs and investment earnings 
pledged under the Indenture and amounts established and held in accordance with the Indenture. ETASC 
has no financial assets other than the collections and reserves and amounts held in the other funds and 
accounts established under the Bond Indenture. 
 
ETASC has covenanted to apply 100% of funds not used to make principal and interest payments, if any, 
in the turbo redemption account to the special mandatory redemption (“Turbo Redemption”) of the 
authorized denominations of the Series 2005 Bonds in order of maturity and then to the Series 2006A Bonds 
to the extent that there exists excess funds. Any such surplus revenues shall be applied on each distribution 
date beginning on June 1, 2006. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 100 of 187



 

- 70 - 

 

Interest on the Series 2005A and E bonds are payable each June 1 and December 1. The 2005 Series B, C, 
and D and the Series 2006A are subordinate CABs and accrete interest throughout the life of the bonds but  
is payable at redemption. Series 2005B, C, and D CABs were subject to redemption at the option of ETASC 
beginning in years after 2016. The Series 2006A CABs were subject to redemption after May 31, 2017. 
The Series 2005E bonds were fully redeemed in 2022.  
 
Details of long-term debt as of December 31, 2022, are as follows: 
 

Final

Issue Redemption

Amount Rate Description Date

30,330,000$   5.000 %  Series 2005A Bonds due June 1, 2031, June 1, 2031

  semiannual interest-only payments through maturity,

  may be redeemed at the option of ETASC at

  anytime in whole or in part after June 1, 2015.

74,685,000     5.000   Series 2005A Bonds due June 1, 2038, June 1, 2038

  semiannual interest-only payments through maturity,

  may be redeemed at the option of ETASC at

  anytime in whole or in part after June 1, 2015.

111,480,000   5.000   Series 2005A Bonds due June 1, 2045, June 1, 2045

  semiannual interest-only payments through maturity,

  may be redeemed at the option of ETASC at

  anytime in whole or in part after June 1, 2015.

9,163,000      5.750   Series 2005B Bonds due June 1, 2047, June 1, 2047

  semiannual interest accrued but not payable until

  maturity, subject to redemption at the option of ETASC

  anytime after June 1, 2015 at accreted values as follows:

  June 1, 2015 through May 31, 2016, 102%; June 1, 2016

  through May 31, 2017, 101%; and June 1, 2017 and

  thereafter, 100%.

12,565,080     6.250   Series 2005C Bonds due June 1, 2050, June 1, 2050

  semiannual interest accrued but not payable until

  maturity, subject to redemption at the option of ETASC

  anytime after June 1, 2015 at accreted values as follows:

  June 1, 2015 through May 31, 2016, 102%; June 1, 2016

  through May 31, 2017, 101%; and June 1, 2017 and

  thereafter, 100%.

Term Bond

Series 2005

$318,834,680

 
 

(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 101 of 187



 

- 71 - 

 

 
 
 

(concluded) 
 

11,141,600     6.750  Series 2005D Bonds due June 1, 2055, June 1, 2055

  semiannual interest accrued but not payable until

  maturity, subject to redemption at the option of ETASC

  anytime after June 1, 2015 at accreted values as

  follows: June 1, 2015 through May 31, 2016, 102%;

  June 1, 2016 through May 31, 2017, 101%; and

  June 1, 2017 and thereafter, 100%.

69,470,000     6.000  Series 2005E Taxable Bonds due June 1, 2028, June 1, 2028

  semiannual interest only payments through maturity,

  redeemed in June 2022. 

Final

Issue Redemption

Amount Rate Description Date

17,694,720$       7.650 % Series 2006A Taxable Bonds due June 1, 2060, June 1, 2060

  semiannual interest accrued but not payable until

  maturity, subordinate to the Series 2005A-E Bonds,

  subject to redemption at the option of ETASC anytime

  after June 1, 2016 at accreted values as follows:

  June 1, 2016 through May 31, 2017, 102%; June 1, 2017

  through May 31, 2018, 101%; and June 1, 2018 and

  thereafter, 100%.

Series 2006

$17,694,720

Term Bond

 
 

Changes in ETASC bonded indebtedness for the year ended December 31, 2022 were as follows 
(dollars in thousands): 
 

Tobacco

Settlement Subordinate
Bonds CABs Total

Bonds payable at January 1, 2022  219,585$       148,207$       367,792$       

Principal payments during 2022  (6,640)            -                 (6,640)            

Annual net interest accretion  -                 10,316           10,316           
 

Bonds payable at December 31, 2022  212,945$       158,523$       371,468$       
 

  
 
 

  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 102 of 187



 

- 72 - 

 

The ETASC’s debt service requirements for the Series 2005A as of December 31, 2022 are as follows 
(dollars in thousands): 
 

Year Ending

December 31, Principal Interest Total

2023 -$               10,647$         10,647$         

2024 -                10,647           10,647           

2025 -                10,647           10,647           

2026 -                10,647           10,647           

2027 -                10,647           10,647           

2028-2032 26,780           52,568           79,348           

2033-2037 -                46,541           46,541           

2038-2042 74,685           33,471           108,156         

2043-2045 111,480         19,509           130,989         

Total 212,945$        205,324$        418,269$         
 

Amortization of Bond Premiums and Discounts—The total unamortized discount as of December 31, 2022 
was $10,250,995. The County’s governmental funds report the effect of premiums when the debt is first 
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized within governmental activities. The total 
unamortized premium as of December 31, 2022 was $53,872,482. ETASC issued serial bonds and CABs 
which included a bond discount. The discounts are being amortized using the effective interest rate and 
straight-line methods over the life of the bonds, with maturity dates ranging from 2028 to 2060. 
 
Erie County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”) 

 

Bonds Payable—The following is a summary of long-term bonded debt at December 31, 2022: 
 

   

Erie County—Guaranteed Senior Revenue Bonds,
Series 2004 (interest of 4.1% to 5.7%)  61,135$          

 
 
The Series 2004 bonds are secured by a pledge of the gross receipts of ECMCC and amounts on deposit in 
certain debt service reserve funds. To the extent that the debt service reserve funds fall below their 
requirements, the County has agreed to restore such accounts to their requirement. 

 
Pursuant to a Guaranty Agreement, the County has unconditionally guaranteed to ECMCC the punctual 
payment of the principal, interest and redemption premium, if any, on the Series 2004 Bonds, as the same 
shall become due and payable, and has pledged the faith and credit of the County for the performance of 
such guaranty. A municipal bond insurance policy has been purchased by ECMCC to guarantee all debt 
service payments in case of default by ECMCC and the County. 

 
The Series 2004 Bonds require ECMCC to make monthly payments to certain debt service accounts for the 
semiannual payment of interest and the annual payment of principal (principal payments commenced 
November 1, 2009). 
 
  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 103 of 187



 

- 73 - 

 

Other Long-Term Liabilities 

 
Retirement Liabilities—The College’s total liability relating to retirement is $3,120,898 as of August 31, 
2022. Of this, $2,850,875 is recorded in current liabilities as of August 31, 2022, and $270,023 is recorded 
as noncurrent liabilities as of August 31, 2022.  
 
Lease Liability—The County entered into leases for acquisition and use of various buildings and vehicles. 
The outstanding balance at December 31, 2022 was $25,597,401. Refer to Note 12 for additional 
information related to the County’s leases. 
 
The College entered into a lease for parking space during 2019. The lease matures on May 31, 2024 with 
payments due monthly and the lease carries an interest rate of 3%. The outstanding balance at August 31, 
2022 was $207,515. Refer to Note 12 for additional information related to the College’s leases. 
 
Compensated Absences—The value recorded in the government-wide financial statements for 
compensated absences at December 31, 2022, for governmental activities is $30,231,579 classified as a 
long-term liability in the accompanying financial statements, which includes $16,992,863 due within one 
year. The following governmental funds have been used in prior years to liquidate this liability: General 
Fund and the Road, Sewer, E-911, Grants and Community Development Special Revenue Funds. 
 
Compensated absences of $3,628,764 have been reported for business-type activities, classified as fringe 
benefits payable, on the fund financial statements, which includes $400,000 due within one year. 

 
Compensated absences of the Library component unit totaling $1,589,167 have been reported as a long-
term liability, which includes $785,137 due within one year. Compensated absences of the ECMCC 
component unit totaling approximately $15,295,000 have been reported as an accrued liability.  
 
Judgments and Claims—As explained in Note 11, the County is self-insured. Liabilities are established 
for workers’ compensation, general and malpractice claims in accordance with GAAP. Estimated long-term 
contingent loss liabilities of governmental fund types total $50,888,192 and have been reported as long-
term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements.  
 
Also, as further explained in Note 11, ECMCC is self-insured and has recorded approximately $30,975,000 
and $27,264,000 for the long-term portions of medical malpractice and workers’ compensation liability 
related exposures, respectively. 

 

OPEB Obligation—As discussed in Note 9, the County’s net OPEB obligation at December 31, 2022 is 
estimated to be $1,131,782,282 and $187,920,331 for governmental activities and business-type activities, 
respectively. 
 

Net Pension Liability—The County reports a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability 
for the Employees’ Retirement System. The net pension liability is estimated to be $1,790,725 in the 
business-type activities. Refer to Note 8 for additional information related to the County’s net pension 
liability. 
 
Accrued Derivative Liability (“ETASC”)—At December 31, 2022, ETASC reported deferred outflows of 
resources in the amounts of $3,865,725 on the government-wide financial statements, relating to the 
accumulated increase in fair value of its forward purchase agreement swap. 
 
  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 104 of 187



 

- 74 - 

 

Summary of Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

 
A summary of the County’s long-term debt at December 31, 2022 follows: 
 

Balance

1/1/2022 Balance Due Within

(as restated) Additions Reductions 12/31/2022 One Year

Governmental activities:

Serial bonds 485,783$        28,190$        (54,909)$        459,064$        58,356$        

Unamortized bond premiums 57,031            4,828            (7,986)            53,873            -                

ETASC bonds payable-net 357,420          10,316          (6,519)            361,217          -                

Lease liability 26,577            5,510            (6,490)            25,597            6,394            

Compensated absences* 28,403            1,829            -                 30,232            16,993          

Judgments and claims 48,814            11,963          (9,889)            50,888            10,804          

Other postemployment benefits obligation 1,342,066       83,601          (293,885)        1,131,782       -                

Net pension liability* 987                 -                (987)               -                  -                

Accrued derivative liability-ETASC 13,604            -                (9,738)            3,866              -                

Total governmental activities 2,360,685$     146,237$      (390,403)$      2,116,519$     92,547$        

 
The General Fund or applicable special revenue funds are the governmental funds that generally have been 
used in prior years to liquidate compensated absences, judgments and claims, other postemployment 
benefits obligation and net pension liabilities. 
 

Balance Balance Due Within

9/1/2021 Additions Reductions 8/31/2022 One Year

Business-type activities:

Retirement liabilities 4,054$          5,735$         (6,667)$        3,122$          2,851$         

Lease liability -               306             (99)               207               102             

Compensated absences 5,042            -              (1,414)          3,628            400             

Other postemployment benefits obligation 219,563        -              (31,643)        187,920         -              

Net pension liability* 93                1,698          -               1,791            -              

Total business-type activities 228,752$      7,739$         (39,823)$       196,668$       3,353$         

*Additions to the net pension liability are shown net of reductions.

 

Component Units 

 

The Buffalo and Erie County Public Library (the “Library”) 

 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2022 
(dollars in thousands): 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
1/1/22 Additions Reductions 12/31/22 One Year

 1,912$          -$                  (323)$           1,589$          785$             
 91,164          5,960            (19,389)        77,735          -                

44                 -                (44)               -                -                

Library Component Unit  
   long-term liabilities  93,120$        5,960$          (19,756)$      79,324$        785$             

OPEB liability
Compensated absences*

Net pension liability*

 *Reductions to the compensated abseces and net pension liability are shown net of additions.  
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 105 of 187



 

- 75 - 

 

Erie County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”) 

 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2022 
(dollars in thousands): 

Balance
1/1/22 Balance Due Within

(as restated) Additions Reductions 12/31/22 One Year

      statement purposes 65,080$      -$            3,945$         61,135$      4,165$       
Long-term loan (1) 157,884      -              6,990           150,894      7,170         
Medicare Advance Payment program 20,879        -              20,879         -              -             
Leases 28,330        2,157           -               30,487        7,297         
Finance obligations 2,710          -              382              2,328          381            
Judgments and claims (2) 47,561        1,322           -               48,883        -             
OPEB obligation* 379,106      -              107,711       271,395      
Net pension liability * 915             -              915              -              -             
Other 5,307          150              -               5,457          -             

ECMCC Component Unit
   long-term liabilities 707,772$    3,629$         140,822$     570,579$    19,013$     

*  Reductions to the OPEB obligation and the net pension liability are shown net of additions.

(1) Refer to discussion within Note 15 regarding long-term loan due to primary government.
(2) Refer to discussions within Note 11 regarding judgments and claims of ECMCC.

Bonds payable for financial 

 

Additional judgments and claims liabilities for workers’ compensation and medical malpractice, along with 
other post-employment benefits have been recorded by ECMCC as accrued liabilities in the amounts of 
$7,556,000, $1,800,000 and $12,770,000 respectively. 
 
Maturity Schedules 

 

The table below presents the primary government’s remaining annual maturities of long-term liabilities as 
of December 31, 2022 (dollars in thousands): 
 

Accrued

Net Derivative
Compensated Judgments Pension Liability -

Year Total Bonds Leases Retirement Absences and Claims OPEB Liability ETASC

2023 95,900$        58,356$     6,496$      2,851$        17,393$        10,804$       -$                 -$              -$            

2024 44,120          38,134       5,715        271             -                    -                  -                   -                -              
2025 41,039          36,120       4,919        -                  -                    -                  -                   -                -              
2026 39,215          35,357       3,858        -                  -                    -                  -                   -                -              

2027 34,519          31,950       2,569        -                  -                    -                  -                   -                -              
2028-2032 174,068        171,821     2,247        -                  -                    -                  -                   -                -              
2033-2037 82,177          82,177       -                -                  -                    -                  -                   -                -              

2038-2042 103,449        103,449     -                -                  -                    -                  -                   -                -              
2043-2047 114,645        114,645     -                -                  -                    -                  -                   -                -              
2048-2052 -                    -                 -                -                  -                    -                  -                   -                -              

2053-2057 -                    -                 -                -                  -                    -                  -                   -                -              
2058-2062 -                    -                 -                -                  -                    -                  -                   -                -              

Various (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1,540,434     158,524     -                -                  16,467          40,084         1,319,702    1,791        3,866      

2,269,566     830,533     25,804$    3,122$        33,860$        50,888$       1,319,702$  1,791$      3,866$    
 
Discount - ETASC (10,252)         (10,252)      

Premium - County 35,055          35,055       
Premium - ECFSA 18,818          18,818       

2,313,187$   874,154$   

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 106 of 187



 

- 76 - 

 

(1) Payment of Subordinate CABs, compensated absences, judgments and claims, OPEB, and net pension 
liabilities are dependent upon many factors; therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable. 
 
The table below presents the primary government’s remaining annual interest payments due on serial bonds 
as of December 31, 2022 (dollars in thousands): 
 

Primary ECMCC

Year Government Component Unit

2023  31,550$          3,468$               

2024  29,054 3,239

2025  27,348 2,997

2026 25,666 2,733

2027 24,148 2,454

2028-2032  97,198 7,493

2033-2037  64,157 412                   

2038-2042  36,396 -                    

2043-2047  19,830            -                    

Totals  355,347$        22,796$              
 

The table below presents the remaining principal and interest payments due on County mirror bonds to 
ECFSA as of December 31, 2022 (dollars in thousands): 
 

Year Principal Interest

2023  28,270$          2,492$            

2024  6,015 1,482

2025  2,975 1,258

2026  3,130 1,106

2027 3,290 946

2028-2032  15,670 2,124

2033-2037 2,685              177                 

        Totals  62,035$          9,585$             
 

The table below presents the remaining annual maturities of long-term liabilities of the Library (County 
Component Unit) as of December 31, 2022 (dollars in thousands): 

 
Compensated

Year Total Absences OPEB

2023  785$           785$              -$               

Various (1) 78,539        804                77,735           

        Totals  79,324$      1,589$           77,735$         
 

 
(1) Payment of compensated absences and OPEB liability are dependent on many factors; 

therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable. 
 

  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 107 of 187



 

- 77 - 

 

The table below presents the remaining annual maturities of long-term liabilities of ECMCC (County 
Component Unit) as of December 31, 2021 (dollars in thousands): 
 

Long-term Judgments Finance
Year Total Serial Bonds Loan Lease and Claims Obligations OPEB Other

2023  19,013$     4,165$            7,170$       7,297$       -$             381$            -$           -$       

2024  17,882       4,390              7,357         6,135         -               -               -             -         
2025  17,624       4,635              7,549         5,440         -               -               -             -         

2026  15,683       4,895              7,749         3,039         -               -               -             -         
2027 15,035       5,175              7,951         1,909         -               -               -             -         

2028-2032  78,238       30,655            43,064       4,519         -               -               -             -         
2033-2037  61,743       7,220              52,375       2,148.00    -               -               -             -         

2038-2042  17,679       -                  17,679       -             -               -               -             -         
Various (1)  327,682     -                  -             -             48,883         1,947           271,395     5,457     

Totals  570,579$   61,135$          150,894$   30,487$     48,883$       2,328$         271,395$   5,457$   

 
(1) Payment of the judgments and claims and OPEB liability is dependent on many 

factors; therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable. 
 

Permanent Financing Requirements 
 
Under New York State statutes, permanent bonding of general County improvements must take place within 
five to seven years of the date of initial financing. Specially assessed improvements, (e.g., sewer), have no 
limitation as to their period of temporary financing, except that a three-year limitation exists where such 
financing has been obtained through the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation. The County 
has permanently financed all significant indebtedness subject to this permanent financing statute. 

 

Constitutional Debt Limit 
 
The County constitutional debt limit at December 31, 2022 is computed as follows (dollars in thousands): 

 

Five-year average full valuation

of taxable real estate (2018-2022)  70,898,164$ 

Debt limit @ 7%  4,962,871$   

Net indebtedness (after statutory  

exclusions)  319,430       *

Net debt contracting margin  4,643,441$   

Percentage of debt contracting  

power exhausted  6.44%  
 

*Net indebtedness includes general obligation bonds of $258,295,000 and ECMCC bond guaranty of 
$61,135,000 (excludes ETASC bonds of $371,467,278 to be paid with tobacco settlement proceeds by 
ETASC, sewer bonds for self-supporting districts of $65,928,634, and ECFSA bonds of $86,610,000 for 
capital projects and $48,905,000 for the nursing home refunding, totaling $135,515,000 to be paid by 
ECMCC. The capital projects bonds will mature in September 2039 while the refunding bonds will mature 
in September 2034). 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 108 of 187



 

- 78 - 

 

Defeasance 
 
In prior years, the ECFSA defeased serial bonds by placing the proceeds of the new bonds in an irrevocable 
trust account to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account 
assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the ECFSA’s financial statements. At 
December 31, 2022, $56,945,000 of defeased bonds remains outstanding. 

 
ECFSA Transactions 

 

The County entered into a loan agreement and a capitalized interest liability assumption agreement in the 
year ended December 31, 2017, with the Erie County Medical Center, with the assistance of the Erie County 
Fiscal Stability Authority. The proceeds of the loan were used to finance the construction of a new Level 1 
Adult Trauma Center and Emergency Department, fund various other capital projects on the Erie County 
Medical Center’s campus as well as refinance the 2011 loan. The loan has an interest rate of 3.377% with 
monthly principal and interest payments ranging from $223,000 to $930,000 during the term of the loan. In 
addition to the loan, the Erie County Medical Center assumed the liability related to funds borrowed to pay 
capitalized interest during construction on the various projects noted above. The capitalized interest liability 
assumption has an interest rate of 3.377% with monthly principal and interest payments ranging from 
$40,000 to $77,000 during the term of the loan. The new money portion of the loan and the capitalized 
interest assumption agreement is fully amortized and matures in 2039. The refinancing component of the 
loan has an interest rate of 2.649% with monthly principal and interest payments ranging from $333,000 to 
$460,000 during the term of the loan and is fully amortized and maturing in 2034. 

 
In September 2017, the Authority issued $62,745,000 in sales tax and State aid secured refunding bonds 
with interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% to advance refund $70,355,000 of outstanding Series 2011C 
serial bonds with interest rates of 5.0%. Proceeds of $79,884,255 (including a premium of $11,621,859 and 
other debt set-aside funds of $5,517,396) were used to purchase U.S. Government Securities of $79,491,279 
and to fund estimated costs of issuance in the amount of $392,976. The securities were placed in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to pay for all future debt service payments of the original bonds until 
their call date of December 1, 2021. As a result, the original bonds are considered to be defeased and the 
liability has been removed from the financial statements. The amount outstanding on the original bonds at 
December 31, 2022 was $56,945,000. 
 

14. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCE 

 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net 
position is categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted. 
 

 Net Investment In Capital Assets—This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, 
into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation/amortization and the outstanding 
balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets 
reduce the balance in this category. 
 

 Restricted Net Position—This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors, 
grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 

 Unrestricted Net Position—This category represents net position of the County not restricted for 
any project or other purpose. 

 
In the governmental fund financial statements, nonspendable amounts represent net current financial 
resources that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 109 of 187



 

- 79 - 

 

required to be maintained intact. Nonspendable fund balance maintained by the County at December 31, 
2022 includes prepaid items and long-term due from other funds.  
 

 Prepaid Items—$15,048,000 representing amounts prepaid to vendors that are applicable to future 
accounting periods. The County reported prepaid items in the amount of $15,048,000 at December 
31, 2022. 
 

 Long-term Due from Other Funds—$5,551,000 represents a long-term interfund loan from the 
Utilities Fund to the General Fund to cover a receivable due from Erie County Medical Center 
Corporation (“ECMCC”) for utility billings. 

 
In the fund financial statements, restricted fund balances are amounts constrained to specific purposes (such 
as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government) through constitutional provisions or by enabling 
legislation. Restricted fund balance of the County at December 31, 2022 includes: 

 

 Handicapped Parking—$154,504 representing monies restricted for education, advocacy and 
increased public awareness of handicapped parking laws. 
 

 Community Development Loans—$27,351,434 representing amounts offset for community 
development loans receivable, which are legally required to be maintained intact. 
 

 Opioid Prevention—$7,203,967 representing amounts restricted for specific public health 
measures to combat opioid abuse. 

 

 Debt Service—$40,753,272 representing funds to be used toward the future repayment of bonded 
debt service. 
 

 Capital Expenditures—$233,824,052 representing funds that have been reserved to fund capital 
projects and the purchase of capital assets. This amount includes commitments (encumbrances) of 
$80,566,454 for capital projects currently in process. 

 
The County Legislature authorizes assigned amounts of fund balance. Assigned funds represent amounts 
intended to be used for a specific purpose. In the fund financial statements, assignments by the County at 
December 31, 2022 include: 
 

 Subsequent Year’s Expenditures—Represents available fund balance of $15,377,356 appropriated 
to meet expenditure requirements in the 2023 fiscal year. 
 

 Judgments and Claims—Represents amounts to fund future settlements of various claims and 
litigation in the amount of $3,520,262. 

 

 Other Purposes—Includes amounts assigned for supplemental appropriations ($254,922,185) 
within the 2023 year which were approved by the Legislature subsequent to the adoption of the 
2023 budget in the General Fund, General Fund encumbrances ($9,533,252), positive residual 
balance of ($525,411) in the ECFSA General Fund, encumbrances ($4,418,655), and positive 
residual balances of ($61,703,304) in the Special Revenue Funds. 

 
Accounting prescription set by the Erie County Comptroller provides for a sunset provision of one fiscal 
year for all fund balance assignments. Legislature approval is required to establish and subsequently 
appropriate fund balance assignments.  
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 110 of 187



 

- 80 - 

 

The County considers encumbrances to be significant for amounts that are encumbered in excess of 
$1,000,000 for a particular purpose.  As of December 31, 2022, significant encumbrances are as follows 
(dollars in thousands):  

Other
Governmental

Purpose Funds

Countywide Capital Overlay Program 23,070,325$  
Countywide Sewer Costs 15,529,655    
Countywide Road Construction and Preservation 10,111,175    
Countywide Workforce Development 4,450,000      

    Total 53,161,155$  
 

 

In circumstances where an expenditure is to be made for a purpose for which amounts are available in 
multiple fund balance classifications, it is the County’s policy that the order in which resources will be 
expended is as follows: restricted fund balance, followed by committed fund balance, assigned fund 
balance, and lastly, unassigned fund balance. 

 

15. INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY 

 
Interfund receivables and payables are short term in nature and exist because of temporary advances or 
payments made on behalf of other funds. All interfund balances are expected to be collected/paid within 
the subsequent year.  
 
The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2022 is shown below:  
 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund ECFSA General  69,277$         

Nonmajor Governmental Funds  22,065           
College  972                
Nonmajor Proprietary Fund  12,809           

 
 105,123         

 
Emergency Response Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 52,038           

ECFSA General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 16                  

Nonmajor Governmental Funds Nonmajor Governmental Funds  24,919           

 
College General Fund  98                  

Nonmajor Proprietary Fund College 264                
General Fund  76                  

 340                

       Total receivables  182,534         
       Less: timing differences  (495)               

 
Total payables  182,039$       

 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 111 of 187



 

- 81 - 

 

Interfund receivables exceed interfund payables by $495,000. This difference represents interfund 
receivables recorded by the County and the College that are not reflected as interfund payables in the 
corresponding balance sheets because of the difference between the County and the College fiscal year end. 
All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided 
or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) 
payments between funds are made. 

 

Due To/From Component Unit and Primary Government—Amounts due between the component units 
and the primary government at December 31, 2022, consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):  
 

Receivable Entity Payable Entity Amount

Primary Government-General Fund ECMCC Component Unit 57$                

Primary Government-Governmental 

   Activities ECMCC Component Unit 150,893$        

Primary Government-Nonmajor

    Governmental Fund ECMCC Component Unit 1$                  

Primary Government-Nonmajor

   Proprietary Fund ECMCC Component Unit 11,812$          

 
During 2011, the ECFSA issued serial bonds in the amount of $86,250,000 to assist ECMCC in the 
construction of a new residential health care facility.  Loan agreements were executed whereby the ECFSA 
loaned the proceeds and net premium of $10,614,413 to the County, who in turn loaned the monies to 
ECMCC. In 2017, these serial bonds were refunded through a similar agreement. The par amount of the 
refunded bonds issued was $62,745,000. Although the amortization schedules on the bonds and the loan 
are approximately the same in total, the principal and interest components vary. On a monthly basis, 
ECMCC pays the County directly, while the ECFSA withholds sales tax revenue that otherwise would be 
transferred to the County. The ECFSA retains these monies until the semi-annual debt service on the bonds 
are due. Principal and interest payments on long-term obligations between the ECFSA and the County are 
reported as transfers in and transfers out in the fund financial statements. 
 
Principal payments received from ECMCC during 2022 totaling $6,975,367 are recorded within 
miscellaneous revenues in the County’s Debt Service Fund and eliminated in the government-wide 
statements. The remaining amount due from ECMCC in the amount of $150,893,000 is reported on the 
government-wide financial statements only. This balance is shown as a reconciling item on the 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position. 
 
The remaining principal and interest payments on ECMCC’s long-term loan payable to the County are as 
follows (dollars in thousands): 
 

Year Principal Interest Total

2023  7,170$       4,499$    11,669$     

2024  7,357 4,288 11,645

2025  7,549 4,072 11,621

2026 7,749 3,850 11,599

2027 7,951 3,622 11,573

2028-2032  43,064 14,477 57,541

2033-2037 52,375 7,358 59,733

2038-2042  17,678       459         18,137      

        Totals  150,893$    42,625$   193,518$    

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 112 of 187



 

- 82 - 

 

The County made the following transfers during the year ended December 31, 2022: 
 

Transfers Out Transfers In Amount Purpose - provide financial resources:

General Fund Emergency Response Fund 25,181$        For emergency response operations

Nonmajor Governmental Funds  6,454            For the local share of grant programs
Nonmajor Governmental Funds  20,740          For highway improvements

Nonmajor Governmental Funds  5,636            To support E-911 operations
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 154               To support community development grants
Nonmajor Governmental Funds  56,275          For general debt service

Nonmajor Governmental Funds  53,707          To support various capital projects
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 14,311          For highway maintenance

Nonmajor Governmental Funds -                    For College projects
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 90                 For Library projects

Library 227               To support Library operations
College  21,430          To support College operations

  204,205        

Emergency Response Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 25,199          

 
ECFSA General Fund  582,639        For general operations from sales tax receipts

 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds  23,192          To support various capital projects

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 6,828            For sewer debt service
Nonmajor Governmental Funds  275               For general debt service

Nonmajor Governmental Funds  43,156          For ECFSA debt service
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 200               For ETASC debt service
General Fund  6                   For general operations

 
 73,657          

Total transfers out/transfers in  885,700$      

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

 
16. TAX ABATEMENTS 

 

As of December 31, 2022, the County provides property tax abatements through a Housing for Low and 
Very Low Income Households Payment in Lieu of Taxes (“PILOT”) program.  The program was 
established to stimulate development of affordable housing in the region, especially for those with the 
lowest level of incomes. 

 
The State of New York passed Articles 5 and 11 of the New York State Private Housing Finance Law and 
section 421-e of the New York State Real Property Tax Law, which allows municipal governments to enter 
into agreements with developers to make a PILOT agreement. In 1999, the Erie County PILOT Policy was 
approved by the Erie County Legislature through resolution 21E-26. This policy defined two PILOT 
agreements for low income households in Erie County. 

 
PILOT A refers to PILOT agreements that are used with housing for low income households. The criteria 
for PILOT A agreements is that 60% of units are affordable (no more than 30% of resident’s imputed 
income) to people earning no more than 60% median income for the area.  
 
PILOT B refers to PILOT agreements that are used with housing for very low income households. The 
criteria for PILOT B agreements is that 60% of units are affordable (no more than 30% of resident’s imputed 
income) to people earning no more than 50% median income for the area.  

  
Both PILOTs A & B must have a fifteen year commitment for low-income use that includes appropriate 
regulatory restrictions. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 113 of 187



 

- 83 - 

 

 
Applicants for a PILOT agreement must supply the Erie County Department of Environment and Planning 
and the local taxing jurisdiction with information that includes, but is not limited to, the percentage of units 
for low and very low income residents, the planned development’s five year operating budget, the number 
of residential units and square footage and a letter indicating community support from the chief elected 
official.  

 
Once the application is received by Erie County, the Commissioner of Environment and Planning will 
respond within fifteen business days with a letter acknowledging the receipt of the application. The 
Commissioner will then write a letter of recommendation to approve or disapprove the PILOT request 
within thirty days of receipt of the completed application. If recommended for approval, the Commissioner 
will submit the PILOT agreement to the County Legislature within forty days of receipt of the application. 
Once approved by the Legislature, the PILOT agreement will be submitted to the County Executive for his 
signature. It is expected that the applicant will concurrently seek approval from the local taxing jurisdiction 
in which the planned development is located. 

 
The initial PILOT payment will be 5% of the housing project’s Total Effective Income for PILOT A 
agreements, and 3% of the housing project’s Total Effective Income for PILOT B agreements. Under both 
PILOT agreements, in each and every subsequent year, a 3% escalator will be applied to the previous year’s 
PILOT payment. Payments will continue for 15 years, after which time the property will be subject to full 
taxation. Of the PILOT payments, 75% will be paid directly to the local taxing jurisdiction in which the 
Development is located, and 25% of will be paid directly to the County. 

 
During 2022, the County received payments for 49 PILOT agreements from within the City of Buffalo, 
which encompassed 153 properties. The County real property taxes for these properties totaled $1,011,659 
while $306,463 was received for PILOT payments. This resulted in tax abatements totaling $705,196. 
 
There were also two additional agreements with properties in the Town of Amherst that were not covered 
under an IDA. The County real property taxes for these properties totaled $46,860 while $25,850 was 
received for PILOT payments. This resulted in tax abatements totaling $21,010. 
 
The County also is subject to tax abatements granted by six (6) Industrial Development Agencies (“IDA’s”), 
entities created under New York State Law.  The IDA’s in Erie County have adopted a Countywide 
Industrial Development Agency Uniform Tax Exemption Policy to provide for uniform policies for the 
claiming of IDA incentives.  Permissible business activities include traditional manufacturing, distributive 
services, business services, and arts, entertainment and recreation.   
 
Property tax abatements for the year ended December 31, 2022 were as follows: 
 

Real Property PILOT Tax 

IDA* Taxes Payments Abatements

Amherst 836,142$      481,474$     354,668$      

Clarence 229,889        162,133       67,756          

Erie County (ECIDA) 3,220,034     1,706,332    1,513,702     

Hamburg 454,013        252,378       201,635        

Lancaster 519,662        319,138       200,524        

Total 5,259,740$   2,921,455$  2,338,285$    
 

*Concord IDA property tax abatement information is not available for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 114 of 187



 

- 84 - 

 

17. CONTINGENCIES 

 

Litigation—The County is involved in litigation in the ordinary course of its operations. Various legal 
actions are pending against the County. The outcome of these matters is not presently determinable but, in 
the opinion of management, the ultimate liability will not have a material adverse effect on the County’s 
financial condition or results of operation. 
 
Sales Tax Audits—The State of New York periodically audits its distribution of sales tax revenues to 
counties throughout the State. Subsequent revisions to the revenues recorded as of December 31, 2022, if 
any, would be reflected in the operating statement in the year that they are calculated. 
 

Supplemental 1% Sales Tax— Through legislation approved by the County and the State of New York, 
first effective in March of 1985, the County extended an additional 1% sales and compensating use tax.  An 
added requirement of this legislation commencing in 2007, is that the County is required to share 
$12,500,000 of this tax with other local municipalities.  This tax generated approximately $213,156,227 
(gross) for the year ended December 31, 2022.  The enabling legislation allowing this additional tax expired 
November 30, 2023. Legislative approval by both New York State and the County is required for the 
continuation of this revenue source. 
 
Supplemental 0.25% Sales Tax—Through legislation approved by the County and the State of New York, 
the County initiated an additional 0.25% sales and compensating use tax effective July 1, 2005.  This tax 
generated approximately $53,280,954 for the year ended December 31, 2022. The enabling legislation 
allowing this additional tax expired November 30, 2023. Legislative approval by both New York State and 
the County is required for the continuation of this revenue source. 
 
Supplemental 0.50% Sales Tax—The County Legislature approved a home rule message requesting 
approval of the New York State Legislature to raise the sales tax 0.50%, to 8.75%.  The New York State 
Legislature approved the Sales Tax Request in January 2006 and the County Legislature enacted the tax 
increase effective January 15, 2006.  This tax generated approximately $105,561,908 for the year ended 
December 31, 2022. The enabling legislation allowing this additional tax expired November 30, 2023.  
Legislative approval by both New York State and the County is required for the continuation of this revenue 
source. 
 
Federal and State Aid—The County receives federal aid, state aid, or both for a portion of its mandated 
social services program expenditures (reported in the Economic Assistance and Opportunity category in 
the financial statements), such as Medicaid, Family Assistance and Safety Net.  The County appropriates 
only the local share of state administered Medicaid expenditures.  Conversely, the County appropriates total 
expenditures for Family Assistance and Safety Net programs, and budgets state and/or federal aid as 
revenue. Federal and state aid represents approximately 44% of 2022 County appropriations for social 
services programs. 
 
The County also receives certain federal, state and private grants. These grants are used primarily to 
augment current operations, and for special demonstration projects and programs. Should funding of any 
such grant be stopped at any point, the County may assume the cost thereof in its operating budget or 
suspend the programs funded by such grant. 
 
The Federal and State governments are not constitutionally obligated to maintain or continue current levels 
of federal and state aid to the County. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that present federal and state 
aid levels will be maintained in the future. Federal and state budgetary restrictions which may eliminate or 
substantially reduce federal or state aid could have a material adverse effect upon the County, requiring 
either a counterbalancing increase in revenues from other sources or a curtailment of non-mandated 
expenditures. Social Services and Medicaid expenditures are generally mandated by New York State law. 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 115 of 187



 

- 85 - 

 

Financial Assistance Audits—As discussed on the previous page, the County receives significant financial 
assistance from numerous federal and state governmental agencies and third-party payors. The 
disbursement of monies received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and 
conditions specified in the related agreements and are subject to audit by the funding agencies or payors. 
Any disallowed expenditures resulting from such audits could become a liability of the governmental or 
proprietary funds. At December 31, 2022, ECMCC, a component unit of the County, has recorded 
$2,736,000 as an accrued liability for probable third-party payor settlements. The amount of any other 
expenses that may be disallowed cannot be determined at this time, although ECMCC expects such other 
amounts to be immaterial. 
 
Pollution Remediation—The County has identified two pollution remediation sites that trigger the 
obligating event criteria relating to GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Pollution Remediation Obligations. The County is aware that the New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation has classified these sites as Class 2, meaning that remediation action is 
required due to a significant threat posed to the public health or environment.  Although a loss is probable, 
it is not possible at this time to reasonably estimate the amount of any obligation for remediation that would 
be material to the County's financial statements because the extent of environmental impact, allocation 
among the potentially responsible parties, remediation alternatives (which could involve no or minimal 
efforts), and concurrence of the regulatory authorities have not yet advanced to the stage where a reasonable 
estimate of any loss that would be material to the County can be made. 
 

18. JOINT VENTURES 

 

Western Regional Off-Track Betting—Pursuant to authority provided by New York State statute, a 
regional off-track betting corporation was established in 1973 to operate a system of off-track pari-mutuel 
betting within the Western New York area. This public benefit corporation, known as the Western Regional 
Off-Track Betting Corporation (“OTB”), is governed by a Board of Directors comprised of one member 
from each participating county and city. The OTB net revenue is divided among the participating counties, 
with one-half being distributed based on population and the remainder based on each entity’s share of the 
total wagering in the region. A county containing an eligible city that has elected to participate in the OTB 
must relinquish a portion of the revenue to which it would otherwise be entitled to such city in an amount 
equal to the percentage of the county population attributable to the city. In the case of Erie County, both 
the County and the City of Buffalo participate in the OTB. 

 
The OTB has the power to issue bonds and notes to carry out the purposes for which it was formed. Such 
bonds, notes or other, obligations are not a debt of the participating municipalities, and they may only be 
paid from the OTB’s funds. 
 
OTB total undistributed net revenue increased by $7,368,597 for the year ended December 31, 2022. The 
OTB reported net revenue available for distribution to participating municipalities of $9,008,526. Separate 
financial statements for this joint venture can be obtained from the OTB Comptroller at 8315 Park Road, 
Batavia, New York, 14020. 
 
Buffalo Erie Niagara Land Improvement Corporation—The Buffalo Erie Niagara Land Improvement 
Corporation (“BENLIC”) was established on June 6, 2012 under New York State’s Land Bank Act (Article 
16 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law). BENLIC’s mission is to confront and alleviate the problems 
distressed properties cause to communities by supporting municipal and regional revitalization efforts and 
strategically acquiring, improving, assembling, and selling distressed, vacant, abandoned, and/or tax-
delinquent properties. BENLIC was formed through a joint venture of the County of Erie and Cities of 
Buffalo, Lackawanna, and Tonawanda and is governed by a Board of Directors comprised of 11 members. 

 
BENLIC has the power to incur debt to carry out the purposes for which it was formed. Such debt is not an 
obligation of the participating municipalities, and may only be paid from BENLIC funds. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 116 of 187



 

- 86 - 

 

BENLIC is eligible to receive financial assistance from federal and state governmental agencies in the form 
of grants. BENLIC reported revenues and other support totaling $1,643,388 and expenses totaling 
$2,382,432 for year ended December 31, 2022. BENLIC reported net assets of $3,819,821 at December 31, 
2022, all of which was reported as net assets without donor restrictions.  
 
Separate financial statements for this joint venture can be obtained from the BENLIC Executive Director 
at 403 Main Street, Buffalo, New York, 14203. 
 

19. RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the County implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, as 
a result of the implementation, the County’s capital assets and long-term liabilities were restated as of 
December 31, 2021. Accordingly, net position for governmental activities at December 31, 2021 has been 
restated by $581,000.   

During the year ended December 31, 2022, ECMCC adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This change 
in accounting principles established new requirements for calculating and reporting the Corporation’s lease 
activities. Beginning net position as of January 1, 2022 was restated by $543,000. 
 

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 16, 2023, which is the date the financial 
statements are available for issuance, and have determined that there are no subsequent events that require 
disclosure under generally accepted accounting principles. 
 

* * * * * * 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 117 of 187



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 118 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 119 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 120 of 187



 

- 87 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset)— 

Employees’ Retirement System—Primary Government 

Last Nine Fiscal Years* 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Measurement date March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

County's proportion of the net pension liability/(asset) 1.1102710% 1.0851610% 1.0832760% 1.0962539% 1.0292170% 1.0072770% 0.9999660% 0.9912870% 0.9912870%

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) (90,761)$            1,080$                286,911$            74,100$              33,217$              94,646$              160,497$            33,488$              44,795$              

County's covered payroll 301,198$            288,533$            287,023$            276,331$            259,301$            250,626$            244,605$            228,878$            232,489$            

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll (30.1%) 0.4% 100.0% 26.8% 12.8% 37.8% 65.6% 14.6% 19.3%

Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 103.7% 100.0% 86.4% 96.3% 98.2% 94.7% 90.7% 97.9% 97.2%

Year Ended December 31,

     
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Information prior to the year ended December 31, 2014 is not available. 
 
The notes to the Required Supplementary Information is an integral part of this schedule. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 121 of 187



 

- 88 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of the County’s Contributions— 

Employees’ Retirement System—Primary Government 

Last Nine Fiscal Years* 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contributions 24,991$             33,146$             29,509$             28,657$             33,443$             36,452$             35,896$             35,997$             29,608$             

Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (24,991)              (33,146)              (29,509)              (28,657)              (33,443)              (36,452)              (35,896)              (35,997)              (29,608)              

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

County's covered payroll 275,589$           260,318$           257,564$           238,181$           233,337$           232,041$           227,722$           224,514$           220,536$           

Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 9.1% 12.7% 11.5% 12.0% 14.3% 15.7% 15.8% 16.0% 13.4%

Year Ended December 31,

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

*Information prior to the year ended December 31, 2014 is not available. 
 
The notes to the Required Supplementary Information is an integral part of this schedule. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 122 of 187



 

- 89 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset)— 

Teachers’ Retirement System—Primary Government 

Last Nine Fiscal Years* 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Measurement date June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

College's proportion of the net pension liability/(asset) 0.093321% 0.101297% 0.100454% 0.099898% 0.093727% 0.097612% 0.095057% 0.092554% 0.095618%

College's proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) 1,791$               (17,554)$           2,776$               (2,595)$             (712)$                1,045$               (9,873)$              (10,651)$            (609)$                 

College's covered payroll 14,929$             15,730$             16,557$             16,066$             15,317$             15,568$             14,377$             14,243$             13,674$             

College's proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset)

as a percentage of its covered payroll 12.0% (111.6%) 16.8% (16.2%) (4.7%) 6.7% (68.7%) (74.8%) (4.5%)

Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 98.6% 113.2% 97.8% 102.2% 100.7% 99.0% 110.5% 111.5% 100.7%

Year Ended August 31,

     
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*Information prior to the year ended August 31, 2014 is not available. 
 
The notes to the Required Supplementary Information is an integral part of this schedule. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 123 of 187



 

- 90 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of the County’s Contributions— 

Teachers’ Retirement System—Primary Government 

Last Nine Fiscal Years* 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contributions 1,620$             1,639$             1,511$             1,705$             1,737$             1,997$             2,503$             2,295$             1,605$             

Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (1,620)             (1,639)             (1,511)             (1,705)             (1,737)             (1,997)             (2,503)             (2,295)             (1,605)             

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                

College's covered payroll 14,932$           15,784$           16,615$           16,354$           15,591$           14,912$           15,544$           14,483$           14,350$           

Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 10.8% 10.4% 9.1% 10.4% 11.1% 13.4% 16.1% 15.8% 11.2%

Year Ended August 31,

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
*Information prior to the year ended August 31, 2014 is not available. 
 
The notes to the Required Supplementary Information is an integral part of this schedule. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 124 of 187



 

- 91 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of Changes in the County’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Last Five Fiscal Years* 

(dollars in thousands) 

 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Primary Government —Governmental Activities (the "County")

Total OPEB liability

Service cost 31,264$            25,279$            24,887$            30,702$            25,746$          

Interest 27,135              32,016              47,915              47,483              48,380            

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 25,201              161,270            154,973            (167,270)           116,772          

Differences between expected and actual experience (260,700)           704                   (323,707)           1,799                2,736              

Changes in benefit terms -                    -                    (16)                    (17,014)             -                 

Benefit payments (33,184)             (32,250)             (31,252)             (34,573)             (33,172)          

Net changes in total OPEB liability (210,284)           187,019            (127,200)           (138,873)           160,462          

Total OPEB liability—beginning 1,342,066         1,155,047         1,282,247         1,421,120         1,260,658       

Total OPEB liability—ending 1,131,782$       1,342,066$       1,155,047$       1,282,247$       1,421,120$     

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions—employer 33,184$            32,250$            31,252$            34,573$            33,172$          

Benefit payments (33,184)             (32,250)             (31,252)             (34,573)             (33,172)          

Net change in plan fiduciary net position -                    -                    -                    -                    -                 

Plan fiduciary net position—beginning -                    -                    -                    -                    -                 

Plan fiduciary net position—ending -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$               

County's net OPEB liability—ending 1,131,782$       1,342,066$       1,155,047$       1,282,247$       1,421,120$     

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage 

of the total OPEB liability 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Covered-employee payroll 275,589$          260,317$          257,564$          238,181$          209,308$        

County's net OPEB liability as a percentage 

of covered-employee payroll 410.7% 515.6% 448.5% 538.3% 679.0%

(continued)

Year Ended December 31,

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
*Information prior to the year ended December 31, 2018 is not available. 
 
The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 125 of 187



 

- 92 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of Changes in the County’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Last Five Fiscal Years* 

(dollars in thousands) 

 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Primary Government—Business-type Activities (the "College")

Total OPEB liability

Service cost 6,912$            5,605$            4,987$            5,845$            4,955$          

Interest 4,486              5,319              7,949              7,644              7,830            

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 9,457              23,214            28,714            (25,585)           17,319          

Differences between expected and actual experience (48,156)           74                  (58,675)           1,732              666              

Benefit payments (4,342)            (4,897)            (4,000)            (6,918)            (5,500)          

Net changes in total OPEB liability (31,643)           29,315            (21,025)           (17,282)           25,270          

Total OPEB liability—beginning 219,563          190,248          211,273          228,555          203,285        

Total OPEB liability—ending 187,920$        219,563$        190,248$        211,273$        228,555$      

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions—employer 4,342$            4,897$            4,000$            6,918$            5,500$          

Benefit payments (4,342)            (4,897)            (4,000)            (6,918)            (5,500)          

Net change in plan fiduciary net position -                 -                 -                 -                 -               

Plan fiduciary net position—beginning -                 -                 -                 -                 -               

Plan fiduciary net position—ending -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

College's net OPEB liability—ending 187,920$        219,563$        190,248$        211,273$        228,555$      

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage 

of the total OPEB liability 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Covered-employee payroll 59,549$          61,220$          64,443$          61,609$          58,951$        

College's net OPEB liability as a percentage 

of covered-employee payroll 315.6% 358.6% 295.2% 342.9% 387.7%

(continued)

Year Ended August 31,

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
*Information prior to the year ended August 31, 2018 is not available. 
 
The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 126 of 187



 

- 93 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of Changes in the County’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Last Five Fiscal Years* 

(dollars in thousands) 

 
(concluded)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Primary Government—Total

Total OPEB liability

Service cost 38,176$          30,884$          29,874$          36,547$          30,701$        

Interest 31,621            37,335            55,864            55,127            56,210          

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 34,658            184,484          183,687          (192,855)         134,091        

Differences between expected and actual experience (308,856)         778                (382,382)         3,531              3,402            

Changes in benefit terms -                 -                 (16)                 (17,014)           -               

Benefit payments (37,526)           (37,147)           (35,252)           (41,491)           (38,672)         

Net changes in total OPEB liability (241,927)         216,334          (148,225)         (156,155)         185,732        

Total OPEB liability—beginning 1,561,629       1,345,295       1,493,520       1,649,675       1,463,943     

Total OPEB liability—ending 1,319,702$     1,561,629$     1,345,295$     1,493,520$     1,649,675$   

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions—employer 37,526$          37,147$          35,252$          41,491$          38,672$        

Benefit payments (37,526)           (37,147)           (35,252)           (41,491)           (38,672)         

Net change in plan fiduciary net position -                 -                 -                 -                 -               

Plan fiduciary net position—beginning -                 -                 -                 -                 -               

Plan fiduciary net position—ending -$               -$               -$               -$               -$             

Primary Government's net OPEB liability—ending 1,319,702$     1,561,629$     1,345,295$     1,493,520$     1,649,675$   

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage 

of the total OPEB liability 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Covered-employee payroll 335,138$        321,537$        322,007$        299,790$        268,259$      

Primary Government's net OPEB liability as a percentage 

of covered-employee payroll 393.8% 485.7% 417.8% 498.2% 615.0%

 Year Ended December 31, (August 31,)* 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
*Information prior to the year ended December 31, 2018 (August 31, 2018 as to the College) is not available. 
 
The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 127 of 187



 

- 94 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 
1. NET PENSION LIABILITY/(ASSET) 

 

The schedules of local government’s proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) and local 
government’s contributions presents trend information of the components of the net pension 
liability/(asset) and related ratios for each retirement system the County participates in, including the 
pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability, and the contributions as 
a percentage of covered-employee payroll. 
 

2. OPEB LIABILITY 

 
Changes of Assumptions—Changes of assumptions reflect the effects of changes in the discount rate and 
the medical healthcare cost trend rate. The following summarizes the changes of assumptions for the 
governmental activities and business-type activities: 
 
The discount rate was 1.84% as of December 31, 2021, as compared to 2.00% as of January 1, 2020. The 
salary scale assumed to increase at 2.25% per year. The sex-distinct and job category-specific headcount 
weighted Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables for employees and health retirees, adjusted 
for mortality improvements with Scale MP-2021 mortality improvement scale on a generational basis, 
were used for mortality rates. In order to estimate the change in the cost of healthcare, the valuation 
assumes healthcare cost trends as follows: pre-65 medical, 7.00%; post-65 medical, 4.50% and 
prescription, 7.00%. Healthcare trends are reduced by decrements to reach a rate of 3.78% in 2075. An 
inflation rate of 2.25% was assumed for developing the rate of increase in healthcare costs. Business-type 
activities utilizes an initial health initial healthcare cost trend rate used is 7.00% while the ultimate 
healthcare cost trend rate is 3.78%. 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 128 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 129 of 187



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 

 

These financial statements and schedules provide more detailed information 

than is presented in the basic financial statements. 

 

Combining statements are presented for the nonmajor governmental funds. 

 

Individual fund statements and schedules present the following: 

 

- Comparisons of budgetary and actual data for certain Special 

Revenue Funds and the Debt Service Fund.  

 

- Fund financial statements for the discretely presented Library 

component unit.  

 

Combining statements are presented for the discretely presented Other 

Component Units. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 130 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 131 of 187



 

 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 

These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to 

expenditures for specific purposes. These funds include the Road, Sewer, Downtown Mall, E-911, Grants, 

Community Development Funds, and the Pharmaceutical Litigation Settlements Fund. In addition, the Erie 

Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation (“ETASC”) General Fund is presented as a nonmajor Special Revenue 

Fund. 
 

 Road Fund 
 

Used to account for all revenues and expenditures related to the maintenance of County roads and 

bridges, snow removal, construction and reconstruction of County roads not required to be recorded 

in a Capital Projects Fund. 
 

 Sewer Fund 
 

Used to account for the activities of the various sewer districts currently in operation within the 

County. 
 

 Downtown Mall Fund 
 

Used to account for revenues raised through a special district charge levy and the subsequent 

expenditure of these monies for the operation and maintenance of a downtown pedestrian/transit 

mall. 
 

 E-911 Fund 
 

Used to account for revenues raised through a telephone access line surcharge and the subsequent 

expenditure of these monies for the establishment and maintenance of an enhanced 911 emergency 

telephone system. 
 

 Grants Fund 
 

Used to account for federal and state operating grants (except the Community Development Block 

Grant) earmarked for specific programs, so that grantor accounting and reporting requirements can 

be satisfied. 
 

 ETASC General Fund 
 

Used to account for all financial resources associated with ETASC except for those required to be 

accounted for in another fund. 
 

 Community Development Fund 
 

Used to assist participating municipalities in the development of locally approved community or 

economic development activities that are eligible under federal program regulations. 

 

 Pharmaceutical Litigation Settlements Fund 
 

Used to account for the County’s receipt and spending of pharmaceutical litigation settlement funds 

from national, state and County litigation against pharmaceutical companies. The County started 

receiving revenue from the Office of the New York State Attorney General in 2022. Much of the 

settlement funding is restricted and has to be spent on specific public health measures to combat 

opioid abuse. The Fund reports separate breakdowns for the usages of restricted funds and 

unrestricted funds. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 132 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 133 of 187



 

 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
 

Debt Service Funds are used to account for current payments of principal and interest on general obligation long-

term debt, and for financial resources that have been accumulated to make future principal and interest payments 

on general long term indebtedness. 

 

 Debt Service Fund 

 

Used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and for the payment of, long-term bond 

principal, interest and related costs of the County. 

 

 ETASC Debt Service Fund 
 

Used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and for the payment of, long-term bond 

principal, interest and related costs of the ETASC. 

 

 ECFSA Debt Service Fund 

 
Used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and for the payment of, long-term bond 

principal, interest and related costs of the ECFSA. 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
 

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction 

of major capital facilities. 

 

 General Government Buildings, Equipment and Improvements Fund 

 

Used to account for capital projects administered by the Department of Public Works involving the 

acquisition, construction, or reconstruction of major or permanent facilities having a relatively long 

useful life and equipment purchased from the proceeds of long-term debt. 

 

 Highways, Roads, Bridges and Equipment Fund 
 

Utilized to account for capital projects administered by the Department of Public Works for the 

construction or reconstruction of County roads and bridges and the acquisition of equipment not 

accounted for in the Road Fund. 

 

 Sewers, Facilities, Equipment and Improvements Fund 
 

Used to account for capital projects relating to the construction and acquisition of sewer facilities 

and equipment by the operating sewer districts. 

 

 Tobacco Proceeds Fund 
 

Used to account for the net proceeds from the County’s securitization of its share of the 1998 Master 

Settlement Agreement with the tobacco industry that will be used to fund capital projects that 

otherwise would have been supported by operating funds or the issuance of bonds. 

 

 Special Capital Projects Fund 
 

Utilized to account for capital projects administered by departments other than Public Works that 

are primarily for the acquisition or construction of buildings, improvements and equipment. 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 134 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 135 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 136 of 187



 

- 95 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

Pharmaceutical 

Downtown ETASC Community Litigation 

Road Sewer Mall E-911 Grants General Development Settlements Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 22,301$       41,644$       2$               1,473$        -$               6$               -$                -$                65,426$             

Restricted investments -              -              -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  -                    

Restricted cash and cash equivalents -              -              -             -             64                  -             -                  7,223               7,287                

Receivables (net of allowance):

Real property taxes, interest, penalties and liens -              -              38               -             -                 -             -                  -                  38                     

Other -              3                 -             152             577                -             27,385             -                  28,117               

Due from other funds -              1,848          -             -             -                 200             -                  -                  2,048                

Due from component units 1                 -              -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  1                       

Intergovernmental receivables 9,038          -              -             990             25,527           -             2,486               -                  38,041               

Prepaid items 327             2,689          -             173             374                15               22                   -                  3,600                

Total assets 31,667$       46,184$       40$             2,788$        26,542$          221$           29,893$           7,223$             144,558$           

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 946$           978$           -$            28$             5,574$           2$               832$                -$                8,360$               

Accrued liabilities 897             662             40               335             1,765             -             35                   19                   3,753                

Due to other funds -              -              -             -             14,141           -             456                  -                  14,597               

Due to component units -              -              -             -             -                 20               -                  -                  20                     

Due to other governments -              -              -             -             23                  -             1                     -                  24                     

Retained percentages payable -              58               -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  58                     

Unearned revenue -              -              -             -             5,039             -             1,218               -                  6,257                

Total liabilities 1,843          1,698          40               363             26,542           22               2,542               19                   33,069               

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 327             2,689          -             173             374                15               22                   -                  3,600                

Restricted -              -              -             -             -                 -             27,351             7,204               34,555               

Assigned 29,497        41,797        -             2,252          -                 184             -                  -                  73,730               

Unassigned -             -             -             -             (374)               -             (22)                  -                  (396)                  

Total fund balances 29,824        44,486        -             2,425          -                 199             27,351             7,204               111,489             

Total liabilities and fund balances 31,667$       46,184$       40$             2,788$        26,542$          221$           29,893$           7,223$             144,558$           

Special Revenue

 
           (continued) 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 137 of 187



 

- 96 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

Debt ETASC ECFSA

Service Debt Service Debt Service Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents -$                -$                -$                -$                

Restricted investments -                  19,286             -                  19,286             

Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                  1,683               24,320             26,003             

Receivables (net of allowance):

Real property taxes, interest, penalties and liens -                  -                  -                  -                  

Other -                  -                  -                  -                  

Due from other funds 22,871             -                  -                  22,871             

Due from component units -                  -                  -                  -                  

Intergovernmental receivables -                  -                  -                  -                  

Prepaid items -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total assets 22,871$           20,969$           24,320$           68,160$           

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable -$                -$                -$                -$                

Accrued liabilities 73                   -                  7                     80                   

Due to other funds 4,098               200                  23,028             27,326             

Due to component units -                  -                  -                  -                  

Due to other governments -                  -                  -                  -                  

Retained percentages payable -                  -                  -                  -                  

Unearned revenue -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total liabilities 4,171               200                  23,035             27,406             

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable -                  -                  -                  -                  

Restricted 18,700             20,769             1,285               40,754             

Assigned -                  -                  -                  -                  

Unassigned -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total fund balances 18,700             20,769             1,285               40,754             

Total liabilities and fund balances 22,871$           20,969$           24,320$           68,160$           

Debt Service

 
 

         (continued) 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 138 of 187



 

- 97 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

            (concluded) 

General 

Government Sewers, 

Buildings, Highways, Facilities, Special Total

Equipment and Roads, Bridges Equipment and Tobacco Capital  Nonmajor

Improvements  and Equipment Improvements Proceeds Projects Total Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 38,920$                3,763$                  20,409$                -$                     -$                     63,092$               128,518$             

Restricted investments -                       -                       -                       200                      -                       200                      19,486                 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 125,524                63,263                  33,850                  16                        12,357                  235,010               268,300               

Receivables (net of allowance):

Real property taxes, interest, penalties and liens -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      38                       

Other 4,024                    -                       -                       -                       -                       4,024                   32,141                 

Due from other funds -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      24,919                 

Due from component units -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      1                         

Intergovernmental receivables 450                       3,220                    1,554                    -                       874                      6,098                   44,139                 

Prepaid items -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      3,600                   

Total assets 168,918$               70,246$                55,813$                216$                     13,231$                308,424$             521,142$             

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 7,853$                  3,181$                  2,340$                  -$                     92$                      13,466$               21,826$               

Accrued liabilities 1,024                    453                       49                         -                       336                      1,862                   5,695                   

Due to other funds 33,633                  2,751                    19,441                  -                       1,290                   57,115                 99,038                 

Due to component units -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      20                       

Due to other governments -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      24                       

Retained percentages payable 884                       598                       133                       -                       542                      2,157                   2,215                   

Unearned revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      6,257                   

Total liabilities 43,394                  6,983                    21,963                  -                       2,260                   74,600                 135,075               

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      3,600                   

Restricted 125,524                63,263                  33,850                  216                      10,971                  233,824               309,133               

Assigned -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      73,730                 

Unassigned -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      (396)                    

Total fund balances 125,524                63,263                  33,850                  216                      10,971                  233,824               386,067               

Total liabilities and fund balances 168,918$               70,246$                55,813$                216$                     13,231$                308,424$             521,142$             

Capital Projects

 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 139 of 187



 

- 98 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

Pharmaceutical 

Downtown ETASC Community Litigation 

Road Sewer Mall E-911 Grants General Development Settlements Total

REVENUES

Real property taxes and tax items -$            22,342$       1,812$        -$            -$               -$            -$                -$                24,154$             

Sales and use taxes -              -              -             4,044          -                 -             -                  -                  4,044                

Transfer and other taxes 21,777        -              -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  21,777               

Intergovernmental 17,367        -              -             32               57,821           -             7,654               7,364               90,238               

Departmental 150             31,842        -             -             4,549             -             -                  -                  36,541               

Interest -              174             -             -             -                 -             -                  24                   198                   

Miscellaneous -              1,016          -             -             288                -             -                  -                  1,304                

Total revenues 39,294        55,374        1,812          4,076          62,658           -             7,654               7,388               178,256             

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General government support -              -              1,812          -             22,420           94               -                  -                  24,326               

Public safety -              -              -             7,638          14,805           -             -                  52                   22,495               

Health -              -              -             1,502          12,487           -             -                  105                  14,094               

Transportation 35,848        -              -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  35,848               

Economic assistance and opportunity -              -              -             -             17,980           -             467                  27                   18,474               

Culture and recreation -              -              -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  -                    

Education -              -              -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  -                    

Home and community services -              44,608        -             -             1,420             -             7,022               -                  53,050               

Debt service:

Principal retirement -              -              -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  -                    

Interest and fiscal charges -              -              -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  -                    

Capital outlay -              -              -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  -                    

Total expenditures 35,848        44,608        1,812          9,140          69,112           94               7,489               184                  168,287             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures 3,446          10,766        -             (5,064)         (6,454)            (94)             165                  7,204               9,969                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of general obligation debt -              -              -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  -                    

Premium on bond issuance -              -              -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  -                    

Transfers in 20,740        -              -             5,636          6,454             200             154                  -                  33,184               

Transfers out (16,423)       (12,228)       -             -             -                 -             -                  -                  (28,651)             

Total other financing sources and (uses) 4,317          (12,228)       -             5,636          6,454             200             154                  -                  4,533                

Net change in fund balances 7,763          (1,462)         -             572             -                 106             319                  7,204               14,502               

Fund balances—beginning 22,061        45,948        -             1,853          -                 93               27,032             -                  96,987               

Fund balances—ending 29,824$       44,486$       -$            2,425$        -$               199$           27,351$           7,204$             111,489$           

Special Revenue

   

         (continued) 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 140 of 187



 

- 99 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

 

Debt ETASC ECFSA

Service Debt Service Debt Service Total

REVENUES

Real property taxes and tax items -$                -$                -$                -$                

Sales and use taxes -                  -                  -                  -                  

Transfer and other taxes -                  -                  -                  -                  

Intergovernmental 94                   17,201             -                  17,295             

Departmental -                  -                  -                  -                  

Interest 6,430               292                  -                  6,722               

Miscellaneous 6,976               -                  -                  6,976               

Total revenues 13,500             17,493             -                  30,993             

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General government support 197                  -                  -                  197                  

Public safety -                  -                  -                  -                  

Health -                  -                  -                  -                  

Transportation -                  -                  -                  -                  

Economic assistance and opportunity -                  -                  -                  -                  

Culture and recreation -                  -                  -                  -                  

Education -                  -                  -                  -                  

Home and community services -                  -                  -                  -                  

Debt service:

Principal retirement 23,479             6,640               31,430             61,549             

Interest and fiscal charges 11,301             10,412             10,441             32,154             

Capital outlay -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total expenditures 34,977             17,052             41,871             93,900             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures (21,477)            441                  (41,871)            (62,907)            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of general obligation debt -                  -                  -                  -                  

Premium on bond issuance 228                  -                  -                  228                  

Transfers in 63,378             -                  43,156             106,534           

Transfers out (43,156)            (200)                -                  (43,356)            

Total other financing sources and (uses) 20,450             (200)                43,156             63,406             

Net change in fund balances (1,027)              241                  1,285               499                  

Fund balances—beginning 19,727             20,528             -                  40,255             

Fund balances—ending 18,700$           20,769$           1,285$             40,754$           

Debt Service

 
      (continued) 

 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 141 of 187



 

- 100 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

 

(concluded) 

General 

Government Sewers, 

Buildings, Highways, Facilities, Special Total

Equipment and Roads, Bridges Equipment and Tobacco Capital  Nonmajor

Improvements  and Equipment Improvements Proceeds Projects Total Funds

REVENUES

Real property taxes and tax items -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                        -$                        -$                        24,154$                  

Sales and use taxes -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          4,044                      

Transfer and other taxes -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          21,777                    

Intergovernmental 4,722                       3,888                       -                           -                          3,363                       11,973                    119,506                  

Departmental -                           842                          -                           -                          -                          842                         37,383                    

Interest 13                            -                           228                          -                          -                          241                         7,161                      

Miscellaneous 101                          -                           -                           -                          -                          101                         8,381                      

Total revenues 4,836                       4,730                       228                          -                          3,363                       13,157                    222,406                  

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General government support -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          24,523                    

Public safety -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          22,495                    

Health -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          14,094                    

Transportation -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          35,848                    

Economic assistance and opportunity -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          18,474                    

Culture and recreation -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          -                          

Education -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          -                          

Home and community services -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          53,050                    

Debt service:

Principal retirement -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          61,549                    

Interest and fiscal charges -                           -                           -                           -                          -                          -                          32,154                    

Capital outlay 36,412                     33,050                     14,273                     -                          8,561                       92,296                    92,296                    

Total expenditures 36,412                     33,050                     14,273                     -                          8,561                       92,296                    354,483                  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures (31,576)                    (28,320)                    (14,045)                    -                          (5,198)                     (79,139)                   (132,077)                 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of general obligation debt 11,106                     14,700                     1,095                       -                          1,289                       28,190                    28,190                    

Premium on bond issuance 1,813                       2,400                       176                          -                          211                          4,600                      4,828                      

Transfers in 69,884                     27,896                     18,629                     -                          90                            116,499                  256,217                  

Transfers out -                           (310)                         (1,340)                      -                          -                          (1,650)                     (73,657)                   

Total other financing sources and (uses) 82,803                     44,686                     18,560                     -                          1,590                       147,639                  215,578                  

Net change in fund balances 51,227                     16,366                     4,515                       -                          (3,608)                     68,500                    83,501                    

Fund balances—beginning 74,297                     46,897                     29,335                     216                          14,579                     165,324                  302,566                  

Fund balances—ending 125,524$                 63,263$                   33,850$                   216$                        10,971$                   233,824$                386,067$                

Capital Projects

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 142 of 187



 

- 101 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances— 

Budget and Actual—Road Special Revenue Fund 

Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

 
Original Final Budgetary Variance with

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

REVENUES  

 14,300$         14,300$         21,777$         7,477$           

 12,000           12,000           17,367           5,367             

 180                180                150                (30)                

 26,480           26,480           39,294           12,814           

 

EXPENDITURES  

Current:

Transportation  35,962           36,797           36,154           643                

35,962           36,797           36,154           643                

Excess (deficiency) of revenues  

over expenditures  (9,482)            (10,317)          3,140             13,457           

 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  

 20,055           20,740           20,740           -                

 (10,573)          (16,423)          (16,423)          -                

Total other financing sources (uses)  9,482             4,317             4,317             -                

 

Net change in fund balances  -$              (6,000)$          7,457$           13,457$         

Transfer and other taxes

Intergovernmental 

Departmental 

Total revenues

Total expenditures

Transfers in

Transfers out

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 143 of 187



 

- 102 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances— 

Budget and Actual—Sewer Special Revenue Fund 

Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

 
 Original Final Budgetary Variance with

 Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

REVENUES  

 22,343$         22,343$         22,342$         (1)$                

 32,864           32,864           31,842           (1,022)            

 36                 36                 174                138                

 -                -                1,016             1,016             

Total revenues  55,243           55,243           55,374           131                

 

 

Current:  

Home and community service  54,908           54,898           40,294           14,604           

Debt service:  

Interest and fiscal charges  10                 10                 -                10                 

Total expenditures  54,918           54,908           40,294           14,614           

Excess of revenues  

over expenditures  325                335                15,080           14,745           

 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  

 (12,505)          (12,515)          (12,228)          287                

 (12,505)          (12,515)          (12,228)          287                

 

Net change in fund balances *  (12,180)$        (12,180)$        2,852$           15,032$         

Real property taxes and tax items

Departmental

Interest

Miscellaneous

EXPENDITURES

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

 
*   The net change in fund balances was included in the budget as an appropriation (i.e., spenddown) of fund balance. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 144 of 187



 

- 103 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances— 

Budget and Actual—Downtown Mall Special Revenue Fund 

Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

 

 

Original Final Budgetary Variance with

 Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

REVENUES  

 1,807$           1,812$           1,812$           -$              

Total revenues  1,807             1,812             1,812             -                

 

EXPENDITURES  

Current:

General government support  1,807             1,812             1,812             -                

Total expenditures  1,807             1,812             1,812             -                

 

Net change in fund balances  -$              -$              -$              -$              

Real property taxes and tax items

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 145 of 187



 

- 104 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances— 

Budget and Actual—E-911 Special Revenue Fund 

Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

 

 

Original Final Budgetary Variance with

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

REVENUES  

Sales and use taxes  4,050$           4,050$           4,044$           (6)$                

Intergovernmental  25                 25                 32                 7                   

Total revenues  4,075             4,075             4,076             1                   

 

EXPENDITURES  

Current:

Public safety  7,894             8,026             7,638             388                

Health  1,643             1,685             1,502             183                

Total expenditures  9,537             9,711             9,140             571                

(Deficiency) of revenues  

over expenditures  (5,462)            (5,636)            (5,064)            572                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES  

Transfers in  5,462             5,636             5,636             -                

 5,462             5,636             5,636             -                

 

Net change in fund balances  -$              -$              572$              572$              

Total other financing sources

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 146 of 187



 

- 105 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances— 

Budget and Actual—Pharmaceutical Litigation Settlements Special Revenue Fund 

Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

 

 

Original Final Budgetary Variance with

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

REVENUES:  

Intergovernmental  -$              427$              7,364$           6,937$           

 -                -                24                 24                 

Total revenues  -                427                7,388             6,961             

 

EXPENDITURES  

Current:

Public safety -                173                52                 121                

Health  -                254                105                149                

Economic assistance and opportunity  -                -                27                 (27)                

Total expenditures  -                427                184                243                

 

Net change in fund balances  -$              -$              7,204$           6,718$           

Interest

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 147 of 187



 

- 106 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances— 

Budget and Actual—Debt Service Fund 

Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

 

 
 

Original Final Budgetary Variance with

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

REVENUES  

 94$                94$                94$                -$              

Interest  866                10,443           6,430             (4,013)            

Miscellaneous  -                13,951           6,976             (6,975)            

Total revenues  960                24,488           13,500           (10,988)          

 

EXPENDITURES  

Current:

General government support  -                393                197                196                

Debt service:  

Principal retirement  52,946           31,144           23,479           7,665             

Interest and fiscal charges  15,721           18,523           11,301           7,222             

Total expenditures  68,667           50,060           34,977           15,083           

(Deficiency) of revenues  

over expenditures  (67,707)          (25,572)          (21,477)          4,095             

 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  

Premium on bond issuance  -                418                228                (190)              

Transfers in  63,394           63,404           63,378           (26)                

Transfers out  -                (42,563)          (43,156)          (593)              

 63,394           21,259           20,450           (809)              

 

Net change in fund balances *  (4,313)$          (4,313)$          (1,027)$          3,285$           

Intergovernmental

Total other financing sources (uses)

 
 
*   The net change in fund balances was included in the budget as an appropriation (i.e., spenddown) of fund 
balance. 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 148 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 149 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LIBRARY COMPONENT UNIT 
 
The financial data shown for the Buffalo and Erie County Public Library (the 
“Library”) is derived from records maintained on its behalf by the County. The 
Library does not issue separate financial statements. The inclusion of the Library as 
a component unit in the County’s basic financial statements reflects the County’s 
financial accountability for this legally separate entity.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 150 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 151 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 152 of 187



 

- 107 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Balance Sheet—Library Component Unit 

December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

 
Library

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 19,317$       

Receivables (net of allowances) 271             

Intergovernmental receivables 283             

Prepaid items 532             

Total assets 20,403$       

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 1,009$         

Accrued liabilities 851             

Retainaged percentages payable 23               

Unearned revenue 3,063          

Total liabilities 4,946          

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 532             

Committed 3,597          

Assigned 11,328         

Total fund balances 15,457         

Total liabilities and fund balances 20,403$        
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 153 of 187



 

- 108 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet—Library Component Unit to the 

Government-wide Statement of Net Position 

December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

 
Library

Total fund balance - Library component unit 15,457$      

3,701          

16,777        

     Deferred outflows related to employer contribution, experience, 

changes of assumptions,investment earnings and changes in proportion 8,214$          

     Deferred outflows related to OPEB 13,717          

     Deferred inflows related to pension plans (13,109)         

     Deferred inflows related to OPEB (29,131)         (20,309)       

(79,324)       

Net position of Library component unit (63,698)$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are

different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and other

postemployment benefits ("OPEB") are applicable to future periods and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Net pension assets are not current financial resources and, therefore, are not

reported in the funds. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 154 of 187



 

- 109 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance— 

Library Component Unit 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

 
Library

REVENUES

Real property taxes and tax items 26,436$       

Intergovernmental 3,807          

Departmental 214             

Interest 25               

Miscellaneous 301             

Total revenues 30,783         

EXPENDITURES

Culture and recreation 30,522         

Total expenditures 30,522         

Excess of revenues over expenditures 261             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in 227             

Total other financing sources 227             

Net change in fund balance 488             

Fund balances—beginning 14,969         

Fund balances—ending 15,457$        
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 155 of 187



 

- 110 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and  

Changes in Fund Balance—Library Component Unit to the  

Government-wide Statement of Activities 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

 
Library

Net change in fund balance - Library component unit 488$           

Amounts reported for library component unit in the statement of activities are different because:

x

x

x

Capital outlays, net of disposals of $164 1,833$          

Depreciation expense (2,526)           (693)            
x

Direct pension contributions (1,397)$         

Cost of benefits earned net of employee contributions (586)              

Changes in OPEB assumptions (11,766)         (13,749)       

17,497        

Change in net position of Library component unit 3,543$        

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives and depreciated. This is the amount by which capital

outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current period.

Net differences between pension contributions recognized on the fund

financial statements and the government-wide statements are as follows:

Certain expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use

of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures

in governmental funds.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 156 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 157 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
OTHER COMPONENT UNITS 

 
Other Component Units of Erie County include: 
 
The financial data shown for the Erie Community College Foundation, Inc. and the 
Auxiliary Services Corporation of Erie Community College, Inc. is derived from 
their separately issued financial statements. Both of these entities are included as 
component units in the County’s basic financial statements, based on the fact that 
they are legally separate entities for which the College and County are financially 
accountable. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 158 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 159 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 160 of 187



 

- 111 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Combining Statement of Net Position— 

Other Component Units 

December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 

 

Auxiliary Total

College Services Other

Foundation Corporation Component 

(August 31, 2022) (August 31, 2022) Units

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 268$                       1,617$                    1,885$           

Investments 5,515                      -                          5,515            

Other receivables 94                           42                           136               

Inventories -                          16                           16                 

Prepaid items 54                           -                          54                 

Total current assets 5,931                      1,675                      7,606            

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets -                          1,029                      1,029            

Less: accumulated depreciation -                          (806)                        (806)              

Net assets held on behalf of others -                          1,004                      1,004            

Total noncurrent assets -                          1,227                      1,227            

Total assets 5,931                      2,902                      8,833            

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 17                           16                           33                 

Accrued liabilities -                          60                           60                 

Unearned revenue -                          93                           93                 

Total current liabilities 17                           169                         186               

Noncurrent liabilities:

Net assets held on behalf of others -                          1,004                      1,004            

Total noncurrent liabilities -                          1,004                      1,004            

Total liabilities 17                           1,173                      1,190            

NET POSITION

Restricted:

With donor restrictions 3,719                      6                             3,725            

Without donor restrictions 2,195                      1,723                      3,918            

Total net position 5,914$                    1,729$                    7,643$           

Other Component Units

 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 161 of 187



 

- 112 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position— 

Other Component Units 

Year Ended December 31, 2022 

(dollars in thousands) 
 

 

 

Auxiliary Total

College Services Other

Foundation Corporation Component 

(August 31, 2022) (August 31, 2022) Units

OPERATING REVENUES

Other sources 125$                       331$                       456$             

Contributions 960                         -                          960               

Support from Erie Community College 5                             -                          5                   

Food service revenue, net -                          128                         128               

Bookstore revenue -                          138                         138               

Childcare service revenue -                          760                         760               

Loan forgiveness -                          147                         147               

Total operating revenues 1,090                      1,504                      2,594            

OPERATING EXPENSES

Scholarships 335                         -                          335               

Supplies, services and general 807                         368                         1,175            

Depreciation -                          45                           45                 

Food service -                          252                         252               

Childcare service -                          753                         753               

Total operating expenses 1,142                      1,418                      2,560            

Operating income (loss) (52)                          86                           34                 

NONOPERATING REVENUES

Miscellaneous revenue -                          67                           67                 

Net realized and unrealized loss (1,016)                     -                          (1,016)           

Total nonoperating revenues (1,016)                     67                           (949)              

Change in net position (1,068)                     153                         (915)              

Net position—beginning 6,982                      1,576                      8,558            

Net position—ending 5,914$                    1,729$                    7,643$           

Other Component Units

 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 162 of 187



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 163 of 187



 

 

STATISTICAL SECTION 
 

 

This part of Erie County’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as 

a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and 

required supplementary information says about the County’s overall financial health. 

 

Contents                       Page 

 

Financial Trends……………………………………………………………………………113 
 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand 

how the County’s financial performance and well-being have changed 

over time.  

 

Revenue Capacity…………………………………………………………………………..120 
 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess two of the 

County’s most significant revenue sources; sales and use taxes and 

property taxes.  

 

Debt Capacity……………………………………………………………………………….125 
 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the 

affordability of the County’s current levels of outstanding debt and the 

County’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.  

 

Demographic and Economic Information………………………………………………...130 
 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 

reader understand the environment within which the County’s financial 

activities take place.  

 

Operating Information……………………………………………………………………..132 
 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the 

reader understand how the information in the County’s financial report 

relates to the services the County provides and the activities it performs.  

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 164 of 187



 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 165 of 187



 

- 113 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Net Position by Component 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
(dollars in thousands) 

 
 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 (1) 2018 2019 2020 2021 (2) 2022

Governmental activities:

Net investment in capital assets  395,657$   411,226$   443,834$    455,145$    451,024$        454,464$        475,918$        480,108$        486,065$        500,682$        

Restricted  40,914       45,924       75,151        64,928        84,055            82,025            80,411            111,876          139,114          228,974          
Unrestricted (deficit)  (472,024)    (493,690)    (523,858)    (574,135)    (1,421,468)      (1,424,284)      (1,439,738)      (1,540,872)      (1,332,693)      (1,175,919)      

Total governmental activities net position  (35,453)$    (36,540)$    (4,873)$      (54,062)$    (886,389)$       (887,795)$       (883,409)$       (948,888)$       (707,514)$       (446,263)$       

 

Business-type activities:  

Net investment in capital assets  23,349$     27,069$     32,148$      32,809$      37,520$          32,342$          31,004$          28,560$          26,327$          24,488$          
Restricted  -             -             -              -              208                 205                 221                 206                 652                 608                 
Unrestricted (deficit)  (34,406)      (39,058)      (43,798)      (52,059)      (173,278)         (179,612)         (190,046)         (208,362)         (205,261)         (194,870)         

Total business-type activities net position  (11,057)$    (11,989)$    (11,650)$    (19,250)$    (135,550)$       (147,065)$       (158,821)$       (179,596)$       (178,282)$       (169,774)$       

 

Primary government:  

Net investment in capital assets  419,006$   438,295$   475,982$    487,954$    488,544$        486,806$        506,922$        508,668$        512,392$        525,170$        
Restricted  40,914       45,924       75,151        64,928        84,263            82,230            80,632            112,082          139,766          229,582          
Unrestricted (deficit)  (506,430)    (532,748)    (567,656)    (626,194)    (1,594,746)      (1,603,896)      (1,629,784)      (1,749,234)      (1,537,954)      (1,370,789)      

Total primary government net position  (46,510)$    (48,529)$    (16,523)$    (73,312)$    (1,021,939)$    (1,034,860)$    (1,042,230)$    (1,128,484)$    (885,796)$       (616,037)$       

Source: Erie County Basic Financial Statements  

Fiscal Year

(1) During the year ended December 31, 2018, the County implemented GASB Statement No.75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions. As a result, net position as 

of December 31, 2017 was restated to be $(886,389) and $(135,550) for governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively. 

(1) During the year ended December 31, 2022, the County implemented GASB Statement No.87, Leases. As a result, net position as of December 31, 2021 was restated to be $(707,514) for governmental 

activities.

 

 

 

 

 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 166 of 187



 

- 114 - 
 

 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Changes in Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
(dollars in thousands) 

 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

EXPENSES:

Primary government: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 426,627$        444,564$        424,884$        432,365$        444,172$        461,861$        474,170$        493,026$        545,831$        563,319$        
Public safety 157,278          158,867          170,293          183,969          179,735          176,129          178,216          181,426          180,322          193,748          

Health 72,137            73,687            78,789            86,713            97,574            92,076            94,365            170,829          104,764          108,537          
Transportation 71,592            83,361            79,804            82,061            101,601          92,075            97,446            91,030            95,994            112,044          
Economic assistance and opportunity 594,354          616,548          609,415          620,669          629,158          612,324          621,673          644,893          538,427          568,411          

Culture and recreation 18,156            22,516            19,828            20,002            22,674            24,907            21,351            29,576            25,317            28,671            
Education 68,208            67,907            72,947            72,784            69,060            70,572            84,592            73,839            73,019            80,687            
Home and community service 53,704            52,410            51,506            59,475            62,452            60,981            61,465            90,835            68,503            101,460          
Interest and fiscal charges 39,515            36,859            36,115            45,001            33,870            35,425            37,189            38,486            37,123            36,103            

Total governmental activities expenses 1,501,571       1,556,719       1,543,581       1,603,039       1,640,296       1,626,350       1,670,467       1,813,940       1,669,300       1,792,980       

Business-type activities: 

College (fiscal year ending August 31,) 132,318          131,991          129,053          138,975          134,468          140,049          134,427          139,415          115,785          117,960          
ILDC -                  -                  -                  475                 524                 274                 1,521              769                 1,006              2,755              
Purchase and resale of utilities aggregation 25,398            29,199            18,758            15,105            16,114            18,972            17,275            15,973            23,464            35,022            

Total business-type activities expenses 157,716          161,190          147,811          154,555          151,106          159,295          153,223          156,157          140,255          155,737          

Total primary government expenses 1,659,287$     1,717,909$     1,691,392$     1,757,594$     1,791,402$     1,785,645$     1,823,690$     1,970,097$     1,809,555$     1,948,717$     

PROGRAM REVENUES:

Primary government: 
Governmental activities: 

Charges for services:
General government 26,702$          26,684$          25,624$          27,143$          30,649$          28,474$          28,345$          26,664$          30,594$          28,362$          

Public safety 7,239              6,591              6,065              5,059              5,002              4,739              4,846              3,368              5,085              8,154              
Health 2,192              2,103              2,237              2,302              2,597              2,514              2,207              2,004              2,221              2,236              
Economic assistance and opportunity 23,723            22,037            23,431            28,857            25,636            22,296            21,261            25,869            22,210            19,536            

Culture and recreation 1,322              1,350              1,406              1,456              1,453              1,525              1,483              1,156              1,718              1,824              
Education 95                   95                   95                   95                   95                   95                   95                   95                   739                 666                 
Home and community service 9,630              10,521            10,381            17,961            29,797            31,776            31,783            32,566            33,479            31,894            

Operating grants and contributions 395,047          419,988          418,078          403,575          396,823          399,656          399,873          486,180          477,946          559,271          
Capital grants and contributions 17,185            21,276            14,274            9,177              23,807            14,600            14,160            16,561            12,049            12,814            

Total governmental activities

     program revenues 483,135          510,645          501,591          495,625          515,859          505,675          504,053          594,463          586,041          664,757          

(Continued)

Fiscal Year

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 167 of 187



 

- 115 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Changes in Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
(dollars in thousands) 

 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Business-type activities: 
Charges for services:

College (fiscal year ending August 31,) 36,868            35,807            35,914            35,726            36,246            37,342            36,626            28,409            27,593            22,617            

ILDC -                  -                  -                  445                 484                 84                   71                   390                 11                   204                 
Purchase and resale of utilities aggregation 25,438            29,409            18,867            14,342            16,077            18,673            17,231            15,987            22,732            34,964            

Operating grants and contributions 5,282              5,707              6,002              9,982              15,457            7,563              6,469              13,077            22,220            35,003            

Total business-type activities

     program revenues 67,588            70,923            60,783            60,495            68,264            63,662            60,397            57,863            72,556            92,788            

Total primary government program revenues 550,723$        581,568$        562,374$        556,120$        584,123$        569,337$        564,450$        652,326$        658,597$        757,545$        

NET (EXPENSE) / REVENUE:

Governmental activities  (1,018,436)$    (1,046,074)$    (1,041,990)$    (1,107,414)$    (1,124,437)$    (1,120,675)$    (1,166,414)$    (1,219,477)$    (1,083,259)$    (1,128,223)$    
Business-type activities (90,128)           (90,267)           (87,028)           (94,060)           (82,842)           (95,633)           (92,826)           (98,294)           (67,699)           (62,949)           

Total primary government net expense (1,108,564)$    (1,136,341)$    (1,129,018)$    (1,201,474)$    (1,207,279)$    (1,216,308)$    (1,259,240)$    (1,317,771)$    (1,150,958)$    (1,191,172)$    

(Continued)

Fiscal Year

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 168 of 187



 

- 116 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Changes in Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
(dollars in thousands) 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER CHANGES

IN NET POSITION:

Governmental activities:

Taxes
Property taxes levied for mall, sewer, and general purposes 269,809$        274,900$        277,889$        283,647$        290,884$        299,933$        309,801$        320,608$        329,267$        333,107$        

Sales and use taxes 724,680          743,220          754,966          756,591          779,855          813,134          846,543          819,939          963,524          1,032,034       
Transfer and other taxes 9,719              12,010            11,888            14,054            13,167            15,059            15,522            14,632            20,177            22,026            

Unrestricted interest earnings 1,352              810                 632                 694                 1,373              2,223              7,899              3,551              2,574              9,831              

Gain on sale of capital assets 152                 482                 253                 168                 274                 157                 520                 1,103              640                 567                 
Miscellaneous 11,287            30,994            24,206            21,125            27,525            7,317              9,199              12,969            27,981            13,566            
Transfers (17,343)           (17,429)           (17,554)           (18,054)           (18,054)           (18,554)           (18,684)           (18,804)           (18,949)           (21,657)           

Total governmental activities 999,656          1,044,987       1,052,280       1,058,225       1,095,024       1,119,269       1,170,800       1,153,998       1,325,214       1,389,474       

Business-type activities: 

Unrestricted state and local appropriations 32,590            33,343            32,867            32,760            32,098            31,640            31,863            30,344            29,977            29,203            
Federal and state student financial aid 38,690            38,511            38,172            35,585            33,699            33,764            30,136            28,270            20,216            20,813            

Unrestricted interest earnings 75                   52                   30                   31                   71                   160                 267                 101                 11                   11                   

Miscellaneous 491                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Transfers 17,343            17,429            17,554            18,054            18,054            18,554            18,804            18,804            18,809            21,430            

Total business-type activities 89,189            89,335            88,623            86,430            83,922            84,118            81,070            77,519            69,013            71,457            

Total primary government 1,088,845$     1,134,322$     1,140,903$     1,144,655$     1,178,946$     1,203,387$     1,251,870$     1,231,517$     1,394,227$     1,460,931$     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION:

Governmental activities (18,780)$         (1,087)$           10,290$          (49,189)$         (29,413)$         (1,406)$           4,386$            (65,479)$         241,955$        261,251$        
Business-type activities (939)                (932)                1,595              (7,630)             1,080              (11,515)           (11,756)           (20,775)           1,314              8,508              

Total change in net position (19,719)$         (2,019)$           11,885$          (56,819)$         (28,333)$         (12,921)$         (7,370)$           (86,254)$         243,269$        269,759$        

(Concluded)

Source: Erie County Basic Financial Statements  

Fiscal Year

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 169 of 187



 

- 117 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 
(dollars in thousands) 

 
    

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

General Fund:

Nonspendable x 10,292$          10,231$          9,087$            8,595$            8,603$            8,301$            1,320$            9,725$            11,028$          16,996$          
Restricted x 138                 140                 154                 171                 162                 160                 160                 155                 156                 155                 
Assigned x 20,289            26,576            20,400            11,192            28,072            53,933            69,370            20,095            183,094          260,489          
Unassigned x 89,650            92,218            99,859            100,154          101,939          102,490          102,898          104,050          113,395          136,463          

x
Total general fund x 120,369$        129,165$        129,500$        120,112$        138,776$        164,884$        173,748$        134,025$        307,673$        414,103$        

x
x

All Other Governmental Funds: x
Nonspendable x 3,539$            3,408$            34,774$          3,295$            3,648$            3,476$            1,844$            3,549$            3,589$            3,603$            

Restricted x 152,860          121,468          119,522          148,734          173,264          175,524          186,708          214,643          232,611          309,133          
Assigned x 31,933            37,272            38,026            44,347            42,840            49,266            54,261            58,037            68,868            89,511            
Unassigned x (543)                (654)                (548)                (6,868)             (444)                (400)                -                  (460)                (508)                (396)                

Total all other governmental funds x 187,789$        161,494$        191,774$        189,508$        219,308$        227,866$        242,813$        275,769$        304,560$        401,851$        

Source: Erie County Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 170 of 187



 

- 118 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 
(dollars in thousands) 

 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

REVENUES:

Real property taxes and tax items 271,757$        274,742$        280,406$        283,732$        291,149$        300,193$        308,781$        314,527$           325,043$           343,700$           

Sales and use taxes 724,680          743,220          754,966          756,591          779,855          813,134          846,543          819,939             963,524             1,032,034          

Transfer and other taxes 9,719              12,010            11,888            14,054            13,167            15,059            15,522            14,632               20,177               22,026               

Intergovernmental 405,194          434,138          416,188          423,586          409,571          408,427          411,147          500,621             485,455             566,001             
Interfund revenues 310                 228                 206                 730                 299                 920                 241                 402                    644                    -                    

Departmental 72,756            70,012            69,247            83,086            96,226            91,876            90,165            92,314               95,388               92,930               

Interest 6,334              5,336              4,900              4,965              12,195            6,326              8,351              7,906                 6,486                 13,842               
Miscellaneous 15,337            35,425            28,372            22,678            28,141            10,926            12,411            16,885               18,796               20,557               

Total revenues 1,506,087       1,575,111       1,566,173       1,589,422       1,630,603       1,646,861       1,693,161       1,767,226          1,915,513          2,091,090          

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General government support 384,065          393,501          402,264          407,302          418,945          437,215          454,028          459,446             533,845             560,727             

Public safety 150,138          151,308          157,404          158,624          155,063          160,533          170,714          168,992             176,631             192,481             
Health 71,832            72,696            73,569            76,812            87,306            89,235            92,725            164,136             105,051             111,808             

Transportation 45,527            50,227            50,534            52,425            53,172            55,133            58,048            54,368               60,912               75,403               

Economic assistance and opportunity 588,819          616,018          603,687          602,921          609,499          595,888          612,228          620,368             539,284             572,948             

Culture and recreation 16,497            16,954            17,722            17,333            18,411            19,406            20,886            26,461               22,775               26,806               

Education 65,867            66,159            71,177            70,846            69,886            72,153            79,570            69,990               70,903               79,830               
Home and community service 46,685            45,267            45,733            50,360            50,330            52,193            51,480            75,420               56,297               91,394               

Capital outlay 58,042            98,279            66,645            72,025            66,081            60,854            67,023            61,733               67,531               92,296               

Debt service:   

Principal retirement 50,359            57,915            88,040            76,913            58,070            59,952            58,280            64,076               55,854               68,039               

Other - advance refunding escrow -                  -                  -                  -                  5,517              -                  -                  -                    -                    -                    
Interest and fiscal charges 39,426            39,230            37,971            43,418            34,100            39,061            38,642            35,281               37,297               33,075               

Total expenditures 1,517,257       1,607,554       1,614,746       1,628,979       1,626,380       1,641,623       1,703,624       1,800,271          1,726,380          1,904,807          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures (11,170)           (32,443)           (48,573)           (39,557)           4,223              5,238              (10,463)           (33,045)             189,133             186,283             

(Continued)

Fiscal Year

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 171 of 187



 

- 119 - 

 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 
(dollars in thousands) 

 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Issuance of general obligation debt 61,470            27,405            32,000            32,765            15,331            42,420            42,990            34,785               25,655               28,190               

Refunding bonds issued 31,135            -                  24,615            44,335            62,745            -                  -                  16,181               10,185               -                    

Payments to refunded bond escrow agent (35,895)           -                  -                  (46,295)           (86,938)           -                  -                  (16,545)             (10,185)             -                    

Premium on bond issuance 14,430            4,486              8,822              14,984            19,545            5,405              9,448              9,558                 5,960                 4,828                 

Payment from Erie County - advance loan refunding -                  -                  -                  -                  79,491            -                  -                  -                    -                    -                    

Purchase of loan by Erie County - advance loan refunding -                  -                  -                  -                  (73,974)           -                  -                  -                    -                    -                    

Proceeds on bond issuance -                  -                  -                  -                  135,780          -                  -                  -                    -                    -                    

Premium on obligations -                  -                  -                  -                  23,984            -                  -                  -                    -                    -                    

Discount on purchase of mirror bonds -                  -                  -                  -                  (6,718)             -                  -                  -                    -                    -                    

Purchase of loan by Erie County -                  -                  -                  -                  (92,115)           -                  -                  -                    -                    -                    

Discount on loan to Erie County -                  -                  -                  -                  (6,829)             -                  -                  -                    -                    -                    

Issuance of leases -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    -                    5,510                 

Sale of property 152                 482                 253                 168                 274                 157                 520                 1,103                 640                    567                    

Transfer to Trustee - debt service reserve -                  -                  -                  -                  (8,281)             -                  -                  -                    -                    -                    

Transfers in 663,321          589,751          607,492          613,113          654,881          629,551          650,325          668,778             734,765             864,043             

Transfers out (680,664)         (607,180)         (625,046)         (631,167)         (672,935)         (648,105)         (669,009)         (687,582)           (753,714)           (885,700)           

Total other financing 

   sources (uses) 53,949            14,944            48,136            27,903            44,241            29,428            34,274            26,278               13,306               17,438               

Net change in fund balances 42,779$          (17,499)$         (437)$              (11,654)$         48,464$          34,666$          23,811$          (6,767)$             202,439$           203,721$           

Debt service as a percentage of

non-capital expenditures 6.1% 6.4% 8.1% 7.7% 6.2% 6.3% 5.9% 5.5% 5.6% 5.5%

(Concluded)

Source: Erie County Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 172 of 187



 

- 120 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Taxable Sales by Category (1) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(dollars in thousands) 

 

Category  (2) 2013 2014 (3) 2015 (3) 2016 (3) 2017 (3) 2018 (3) 2019 (3) 2020 (3) 2021 (3) 2022 (3)(4)

Utilities (excluding residential energy) 215,137$         -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                
Construction 263,192           302,282           312,989           350,168           338,751           420,593           431,169           552,186           598,685           687,214           
Manufacturing 507,377           505,746           513,112           539,075           536,291           891,419           965,244           1,059,120        1,153,933        1,331,521        
Wholesale trade 603,582           823,460           821,596           815,940           798,842           850,041           894,517           958,423           909,336           1,134,410        
Retail trade total 5,990,508        8,105,009        8,195,701        8,060,594        8,131,763        8,017,519        8,192,013        8,642,121        9,055,193        10,266,241      
Information 670,161           714,504           725,298           716,610           755,901           661,059           647,610           646,687           617,395           649,922           
Professional, scientific, and technical 215,302           237,551           245,129           273,361           268,948           280,312           302,471           350,371           374,465           432,368           
Administrative/support services 297,761           327,805           354,062           408,457           402,667           422,294           450,717           536,376           438,444           492,544           
Health care 14,594             22,568             23,697             25,069             13,393             15,329             17,269             2,026               16,731             23,137             
Arts, entertainment, and recreation 138,331           169,495           178,011           187,551           200,990           205,739           199,206           212,969           69,965             215,057           
Accommodation and food services 1,693,772        1,751,920        1,823,917        1,954,805        2,021,714        2,086,351        2,145,300        2,227,780        1,531,143        2,261,801        
Other services total 395,122           426,800           437,025           608,815           591,115           611,889           685,289           693,918           590,583           770,680           
Agriculture, mining, transportation, fire, education, government 534,342           -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Agriculture, forestry, fishing, and hunting -                  16,507             16,673             18,312             19,290             20,071             21,957             23,143             29,840             33,390             
Mining, quarry, and oil and gas extraction -                  14,913             21,313             23,875             18,291             19,857             19,236             22,370             25,069             28,850             
Transportation and warehousing -                  73,093             74,908             77,221             70,135             75,603             74,866             85,172             55,571             82,197             
Finance and insurance -                  54,827             46,565             53,800             68,458             70,381             75,158             84,937             100,657           118,652           
Real estate and rental and leasing -                  375,059           349,303           361,075           370,141           377,875           417,905           441,412           368,707           430,603           
Management of companies and enterprises -                  27,611             26,188             26,853             21,974             23,462             19,768             23,779             15,952             25,017             
Educational services -                  12,734             13,051             13,421             14,934             13,468             14,440             13,704             9,646               11,195             
Public administration -                  2,302               2,466               2,159               2,168               160,623           167,256           194,586           251,559           311,698           
Utilities -                  918,704           938,766           779,985           749,502           850,599           915,192           938,392           979,428           1,151,533        
Unclassified by industry 11,432             49,823             50,980             62,314             18,744             56,785             4,973               7,546               7,433               11,998             

Total 11,550,613$    14,932,713$    15,170,750$    15,359,460$    15,414,012$    16,131,269$    16,661,556$    17,717,018$    17,199,735$    20,470,028$    

County Direct Sales Tax Rate 2.81% 2.81% 2.81% 2.81% 2.81% 2.81% 2.81% 2.81% 2.81% 2.81%

Source:  New York State Department of Taxation and Finance

Notes:

(1)  NYS Department of Taxation & Finance's reporting period is March to February. Data represents the reporting periods beginning March 1, 2012 and ending February 28, 2022.

(2)  Detailed information regarding payers or remitters is not available.  Prior to the 2014 reporting period, utilities sales excluded residential energy purchases.

(4)  Taxable Sales for fiscal year 2022 are preliminary.

(3) As of the 2013-2014 tax period (the County's 2014 Fiscal Year), the NYS Department of Taxation and Finance re-registered all sales tax vendors, which resulted in a change in

total sales and sales distribution by industry.  The new reporting system contains more up-to-date and accurate information.

Fiscal Year

 
 
 
 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 173 of 187



 

- 121 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Assessed and Equalized Full Value of Taxable Property (1) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(dollars in thousands) 

 

Total Total Total Actual Assessed Value

Assessed Less: Total Taxable Direct Taxable as a Percentage

Residential Commercial Property Tax-Exempt Assessed Tax Equalized of Equalized

Fiscal Year Property Property Value Property Value Rate (2) Full Value Full Value (1)

2013 28,269,007$       9,684,510$       37,953,517$       2,193,126$       35,760,391$       6.57$       47,138,287$       75.86%
2014 29,011,563         10,174,472       39,186,035         2,147,709         37,038,326         6.59         47,996,864         77.17%
2015 30,634,675         10,693,215       41,327,890         2,088,451         39,239,439         6.59         49,214,694         79.73%

2016 31,420,866         10,956,886       42,377,752         2,088,451         40,289,301         6.50         51,961,517         77.54%
2017 31,874,701         11,091,876       42,966,577         1,974,692         40,991,885         6.44         54,929,481         74.63%
2018 33,265,365         11,630,059       44,895,424         1,914,651         42,980,773         6.33         58,098,574         73.98%

2019 33,931,405         11,759,913       45,691,318         1,880,078         43,811,240         6.13         60,970,410         71.86%
2020 33,453,607         12,527,487       45,981,094         2,016,575         43,964,519         5.98         64,771,315         67.88%
2021 38,786,015         14,123,537       52,909,552         2,098,309         50,811,243         5.57         70,645,602         71.92%

2022 41,278,295         14,639,061       55,917,356         2,096,839         53,820,517         5.43         74,148,295         72.58%

Source: Erie County Department of Real Property Tax Services

Notes:

(2)  Per $1,000 of assessed value.

(1) Equalization rates are provided by New York State and applied by the County to the assessed valuation of taxable real estate to arrive at equalized

full value which is comparable to estimated actual value.

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 174 of 187



 

- 122 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(rate per $1,000 of assessed value) 

 

Special Cities, City

 General Revenue Total Towns & School Special of

Fiscal Year  Fund Funds Direct Villages Districts Districts Buffalo (1)

2013  5.03$      1.54$         6.57$      3.92$      18.53$     5.03$       21.58$          

2014  5.04        1.55           6.59        3.89        18.81       4.91         21.17            
2015  5.00        1.59           6.59        3.85        18.87       4.85         20.52            

2016  4.96        1.54           6.50        3.74        18.55       4.77         18.26            
2017  4.95        1.49           6.44        3.68        17.91       4.63         16.84            

2018  4.95        1.38           6.33        3.66        17.48       4.54         14.89            
2019  4.84        1.29           6.13        3.65        17.19       4.52         14.48            

2020  4.71        1.27           5.98        3.54        16.60       4.31         13.85            
2021  4.42        1.15           5.57        3.52        16.15       4.15         10.98            

2022  4.32        1.11           5.43        3.27        15.60       4.03         10.86            

Source: Erie County Department of Real Property Tax Services

Note:

Erie County Direct Rates Overlapping Rates

(1) City of Buffalo is presented separately and is, therefore, not included in the column for cities, towns,

and villages. The rate shown for the City of Buffalo includes the levy for the Buffalo Public School

District, which receives funding from the City and is unable to levy taxes.  

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 175 of 187



 

- 123 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Principal Taxpayers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
 

Percentage Percentage

of of

Equalized Equalized Equalized Equalized

Full Full Full Full

Taxpayer  Value Rank Value (1) Value Rank Value (1)

National Grid / Niagara Mohawk  1,187,922,393$    1 1.60% 695,541,671$       2 1.48%
Benderson Development Company  896,405,875         2 1.21% 486,137,175         3 1.03%

National Fuel Gas  853,288,192         3 1.15% 697,625,214         1 1.48%
Ellicott Group LLC  380,068,321         4 0.51% 100,129,428         10 0.21%

Uniland Development  330,466,987         5 0.45% 108,097,805         9 0.23%
NY State Electric & Gas Corporation  315,215,222         6 0.43% 249,103,215         5 0.53%

Norfolk/Conrail/CSX  252,801,779         7 0.34% 147,453,929         8 0.31%
Ciminelli International  203,273,543         8 0.27% n/a n/a n/a

MJ Peterson Real Estate 182,539,983         9 0.25% n/a n/a n/a
Verizon New York Inc  181,810,240         10 0.25% 301,489,437         4 0.64%

DDR MDT LLC  n/a n/a n/a 177,389,714         7 0.38%
Pyramid Company of Buffalo  n/a n/a n/a 180,928,487         6 0.38%

Totals  4,783,792,535$    6.45% 3,143,896,075$    6.67%

Source:  Erie County 2022 & 2013 Annual Reports published by the Department of Real Property Tax Services

Note:

2022 2013

(1)  Percentage of equalized full value is calculated by dividing the valuation shown for each of the listed taxpayers by the 

County's total equalized full value (excluding exemptions).  
 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 176 of 187



 

- 124 - 

 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 

County All Other Collections

 Property Taxes Property Taxes Total Property Percentage in Subsequent Percentage

Fiscal Year  Levied (1) Levied (2) Taxes Levied Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy

2013  237,270,828$    418,170,150$    655,440,978$    637,052,431$    97.19% 17,039,089$   654,091,520$    99.79%

2014  241,721,087      420,052,940      661,774,027      644,024,505      97.32% 16,443,937     660,468,442      99.80%

2015  245,876,811      428,290,819      674,167,630      655,940,466      97.30% 16,828,546     672,769,012      99.79%

2016  257,638,097      437,982,920      695,621,017      677,125,859      97.34% 16,743,654     693,869,513      99.75%

2017  272,002,597      447,195,930      719,198,527      700,924,354      97.46% 16,098,693     717,023,047      99.70%

2018  287,386,093      457,147,623      744,533,716      725,368,656      97.43% 16,126,604     741,495,260      99.59%

2019  295,096,353      469,825,980      764,922,333      745,093,535      97.41% 15,824,456     760,917,991      99.48%

2020  305,272,912      481,191,141      786,464,053      765,776,625      97.37% 13,082,056     778,858,681      99.03%

2021  312,095,683      492,768,043      804,863,726      785,705,522      97.62% 8,108,812       793,814,334      98.63%

2022  319,959,718      498,290,359      818,250,077      800,581,184      97.84% N/A 800,581,184      97.84%

Sources:

Erie County Department of Real Property Tax Services

Erie County Govern Tax Collection System

Notes:

N/A = Not Available

Collected within the

Total Collections to Date

(2) Totals shown are primarily comprised of taxes levied for the benefit of County towns, re-levy of uncollected school and village taxes, and sewer district

taxes and user charges.  See Note 4 - Property Taxes beginning on page 46 for more information on the annual property tax levy process.

(1) Totals shown exclude amounts levied in accordance with State law to recover election expenditures from the municipalities that were incurred by the

County.

Fiscal Year of the Levy

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 177 of 187



 

- 125 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(dollars in thousands, except per capita) 

 
Business-type 

Activities

General ETASC

Obligation Tobacco

 General Bonds - Securitization Total Percentage

Obligation Sewer & Asset Backed Capital Primary of Personal Per

Fiscal Year  Bonds (1) ECMCC (2) Bonds Leases Government Income (3)(4) Capita (3)(4)

2013  454,789$   156,801$      338,715$       5,907$              956,212$        1.09% 494
2014  429,288     151,826        339,938         4,430                925,482          1.04% 465
2015  405,903     146,051        344,218         2,954                899,126          0.94% 440
2016  390,827     139,928        333,159         1,477                865,391          0.89% 424
2017  390,238     235,244        338,649         -                    964,131          0.85% 422
2018  376,799     230,072        343,419         -                    950,290          0.79% 410
2019  369,588     224,567        349,555         -                    943,710          0.75% 402
2020  349,588     219,087        354,718         -                    923,393          0.67% 381
2021  332,154     210,660        357,420         -                    900,234          0.61% 349
2022  311,493     201,444        361,217         -                    874,154                    N/A 328

Source: Erie County Basic Financial Statements 2013-2022

Notes:

N/A = Not Available

(3) Calculation excludes self-supporting debt (i.e., ETASC tobacco settlement bonds, sewer district bonds, ECMCC related 

bonds and ECC capital leases). ETASC bonds are not legal obligations of the County.  The County operates sewer districts in 

select areas of the County only.  ECMCC related debt and ECC capital leases are repaid solely by ECMCC and ECC, 

respectively.

(4)  See the "Demographic and Economic Statistics" schedule on page 130 for personal income and population data. 

Governmental
Activities

(2) Includes self-supporting sewer district bonds for the years 2013 to 2022 and bonds issued by the ECFSA in 2011 to assist 

ECMCC in the construction of a new residential health care facility.  Loan agreements were executed whereby ECMCC will 

fund the repayment of the bonds in future years ($82,505 was outstanding at December 31, 2013; $78,615 was outstanding 

December 31, 2014; $74,565 was outstanding December 31, 2015; and $70,355 was outstanding December 31, 2016). In 2017, 

the 2011 bonds issued by ECFSA for ECMCC's health care facility were refunded. ECFSA also issued bonds to assist ECMCC's 

capital projects in 2017. Similar loan agreements were executed, as mentioned above. As of December 31, 2022, $48,905 was 

outstanding for the ECMCC facility bonds and $86,610 was oustanding for the ECMCC capital projects bonds. 

(1) Amounts shown are net of related premiums, discounts and adjustments. Amounts exlcude sewer bonds and ECMCC facility 

and capital bonds.

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 178 of 187



 

- 126 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(dollars in thousands, except per capita) 

 

General Net Percentage of

Bonded Debt Actual Taxable

 Outstanding Value (4) of Per

Fiscal Year  (1,2,3) Property Capita (5)

2013  445,928$        1.25% 485$               
2014  422,687 1.14% 458

2015  397,283 1.01% 431
2016  380,066 0.94% 412

2017  369,884 0.90% 400

2018  361,994 0.84% 394
2019  359,459 0.82% 391

2020 338,638 0.77% 369
2021 332,154 0.53% 339

2022 311,493 0.56% 316

Source: Erie County Basic Financial Statements 2013-2022

Notes:

$72,365 for 2019, $68,820 for 2020, $65,080 for 2021, and $61,135 for 2022. 

(2)  Excludes ECMCC bond guaranty of $90,085 for 2013, $87,500 for 2014,

(1)  Does not include sewer bonds which are considered self-supporting debt.

(3)  Net of resources restricted for principal repayment of general bonded debt 

of $11,624 at December 31, 2022.

(4)  See the "Assessed and Equalized Full Value of Taxable Property" schedule 

on page 121 for property value data. 

(5)  See the "Demographic and Economic Statistics" schedule on page 130 for 

population data. 

 $84,790 for 2015, $81,930 for 2016, $78,910 for 2017, $75,725 for 2018,

 
 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 179 of 187



 

- 127 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Legal Debt Margin Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(dollars in thousands) 

 
Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2022 (1)  

Full value (average five-year valuation) (2)   70,898,164$  

Debt limit (7% of assessed value) (3)   4,962,871$    

Debt applicable to limit:   
General obligation bonds and guaranty  385,359$        

Less: sewer bond exclusions  (65,929)           

Total net debt applicable to limit   319,430         

Legal debt margin   4,643,441$    

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
 

Debt limit  3,242,613$     3,293,213$     3,336,526$     3,409,653$      3,517,372$     3,670,816$    3,852,445$    4,070,748$    4,331,815$   4,962,871$   
Total net debt applicable to limit  576,666          552,316          524,451          499,668           486,699          393,960         383,195         360,625         341,530        319,430        

Legal debt margin  2,665,947$     2,740,897$     2,812,075$     2,909,985$      3,030,673$     3,276,856$    3,469,250$    3,710,123$    3,990,285$   4,643,441$   
 

Total net debt applicable to the limit  
as a percentage of debt limit  17.78% 16.77% 15.72% 14.65% 13.84% 10.73% 9.95% 8.86% 7.88% 6.44%

Sources:

Property value - NYS Office of the State Comptroller - Data Management Unit

Indebtedness and exclusions - Erie County Comptroller's Office

Erie County Basic Financial Statements

Notes:

(1)  The computation of net debt-contracting margin performed by municipalities in New York State is akin to the computation of legal debt margin performed by municipalities in other states.

(2)  Equalization rates are provided by New York State and applied by the County to the assessed valuations of taxable real estate to arrive at equalized full value.

(3)  Per New York State constitution, the County's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 7 percent of total average five-year assessed property value.   

Fiscal Year

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 180 of 187



 

- 128 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Pledged-Revenue Coverage 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(dollars in thousands) 

 

Carry-forward of 

Prior Year

 Tobacco Fund Balance Less: Net 

 Settlement Interest Operating Restricted for Future Operating Available 

Fiscal Year  Revenue Earnings Transfer-Out Debt Service Expenses Resources Principal Interest Coverage

2013  15,388$        42$               -$                 19,991$                      (1)$               35,420$        1,785$          12,901$        2.41
2014  17,409          12                 -               20,734                        (1)                 38,154          4,855            12,697          2.17
2015  14,898          12                 (400)             20,602                        -               35,112          2,220            12,520          2.38

2016  30,091          166               -               20,372                        -               50,629          18,015          12,053          1.68
2017  13,176          271               -               20,561                        -               34,008          1,950            11,553          2.52
2018  14,267          459               (200)             20,505                        -               35,031          3,190            11,656          2.36

2019  13,518          617               -               20,185                        -               34,320          2,380            11,649          2.45
2020  15,508          365               (100)             20,291                        -               36,064          3,950            10,794          2.45
2021  16,771          17                 (95)               21,320                        -               38,013          7,050            10,435          2.17

2022  17,201          292               (200)             20,528                        -               37,821          6,640            10,412          2.22

Source: ETASC Financial Statements

Note:

Debt Service

(1)Tobacco settlement bonds are payable only from the assets of ETASC and are not legal obligations of the County. 

Tobacco Securitization Asset Backed Bonds (1)

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 181 of 187



 

- 129 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Direct And Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt (1) 

As of December 31, 2022 
(dollars in thousands) 

 
Estimated

Fiscal Estimated Share of

 Year Debt Percentage Overlapping

Governmental Unit  Ended Outstanding Applicable Debt

Cities  06/30/21 341,263$        100% 341,263$       

Towns  12/31/21 547,495          100% 547,495         
Villages  05/31/21 100,682          100% 100,682         

School districts  06/30/21 1,482,207       100% 1,482,207      
Fire districts  12/31/21 17,534            100% 17,534           

 

         Subtotal, overlapping debt  2,489,181       

County direct debt  512,937         

ETASC direct debt  361,216         

         County and ETASC direct debt  874,153         

Total direct and overlapping debt  3,363,334$    

 

Sources:

Net debt outstanding of Erie County - Erie County Comptroller's Office

All other information - Latest available from the New York State Office of the State Comptroller

Note:

(1)  Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of 

the County.  This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments 

that is borne by the residents and businesses of Erie County.  This process recognizes that, when 

considering the County's ability to issue and re-pay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the 

residents and businesses should be taken into account.  However this does not imply that every taxpayer is 

a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.
 

 
 
 
 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 182 of 187



 

- 130 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Calendar Years 

 

Personal Per

Income Capita School

(thousands Personal Enrollment Unemployment

Year Population of dollars) Income (Grades K-12) Rate

2013 919,866 41,850,059$     45,496$       144,334 7.4%

2014 922,835 41,287,539       44,740         137,617 6.1%

2015 922,578 43,164,184       46,786         138,391 5.3%
2016 921,046 43,804,180       47,559         140,620 4.9%
2017 925,528 45,656,251       49,330         137,587 5.1%

2018 919,719 47,401,067       51,539         138,055 4.4%
2019 918,702 49,148,494       53,498         137,067 4.3%
2020 917,241 52,051,398       56,748         135,527 9.1%
2021 950,683 54,783,277       57,625         130,183 5.5%

2022 950,312      N/A    N/A    N/A    3.6%

Unemployment Rate:  NYS Department of Labor.

Note:

N/A = Not Available

Sources:

Population: The 2013 to 2021 estimates were compiled by the NYS Department of Commerce

and the NYS Department of Economic Development, respectively, using data provided by the

United States Bureau of the Census. 2022 is the estimated population provided by the United

States Bureau of the Census. 

Personal Income: United States Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis;

material compiled by NYS Department of Commerce. 

School Enrollment: NYS Education Department, Information Center on Education. School

enrollment data represents the 2012-2013 to 2021-2022 school years. 

 
 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 183 of 187



 

- 131 - 

 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Principal Employers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

 

Percentage Percentage

of Total County of Total County

Employer  Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

 

State of New York  23,497 1 5.48% 15,123 1 3.54%

U.S. Government  9,725 2 2.27% 11,183 2 2.62%

Kaleida Health  8,191 4 1.91% 10,000 3 2.34%

M&T Bank  8,000 5 1.87% 5,140 8 1.20%

City of Buffalo (1)  7,961 3 1.86% 7,945 4 1.86%

Catholic Health System  7,256 6 1.69% 6,628 6 1.55%

University at Buffalo  6,368 7 1.49% 6,733 5 1.57%

Tops Markets LLC  5,300 8 1.24% 5,058 9 1.18%

Walmart 5,100 9 1.19% n/a n/a n/a

County of Erie 4,179 10 0.98% 3,906 10 0.91%

Employer Services Corp  n/a n/a 6,363          7 1.49%

Total  85,577        19.97% 78,079        18.26%

Sources:
Total Employed Within Erie County:  NYS Department of Labor. 

All Other Employer Data:  Business First  - Book of Lists

Notes:

(1)  Includes Buffalo Public School District.

2022 2013

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 184 of 187



 

- 132 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Full-time County Government Employees by Function (1) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 
 

Function  2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

 

General government support  610 606 615 637 637 674 653 682 691 719
Public safety  1,213 1,235 1,243 1,264 1,326 1,267 1,283 1,301 1,264 1,287
Health  210 215 219 295 230 298 297 316 328 329

Transportation  141 151 173 175 170 166 181 175 183 185
Economic assistance and opportunity  1,353 1,388 1,386 1,392 1,394 1,386 1,253 1,273 1,300 1,314
Culture and recreation  50 53 57 60 64 66 68 66 78 82

Education  84 86 98 27 27 27 25 27 26 27
Home and community service  245            240            229            241            236            229            242            247            229        236        

Total  3,906         3,974         4,020         4,091         4,084         4,113         4,002         4,087         4,099     4,179     

Source: Erie County Comptroller's Office

Note: 

(1)  Excludes SUNY Erie Community College.

Fiscal Year

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 185 of 187



 

- 133 - 

 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 

 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

General government support:  

Major construction projects successfully completed  8 15 14 12 12 3 17 19 8 10

Motor vehicle registrations processed by County Clerk  278,409 274,936 286,500 283,895 279,172 255,736 263,119 197,345 209,315 240,133

Cases prosecuted or arraigned by the District Attorney's Office  29,605 31,172 32,225 24,798 22,838 28,928 27,609 15,146 17,173 17,304

Public safety:  

Sheriff's calls for service  88,659 88,944 89,941 98,881 105,384 101,788 101,788 86,341 92,603 96,036

Vehicle and traffic arrests  10,988 9,406 11,446 10,900 11,112 7,573 6,897 2,135 2,437 2,469

Inmate population-Holding Center (average per day)  517 497 544 493 426 414 417 243 345 339

Inmate population-Correctional Facility (average per day)  852 742 712 690 644 543 433 296 337 394

Probation cases-supervised  7,092 6,245 5,799 5,424 4,938 5,239 5,185 4,400 4,187 4,091

Fire personnel trained  7,782 7,657 7,266 8,357 7,815 8,246 7,750 6,153 6,394 6,394

Health:  

Persons served by Mental Health agencies (per month)  2,325 2,901 3,023 3,341 3,949 2,352 2,729 3,145 3,195 3,890

Transportation:  

Bridges inspected  78 234 77 231 76 213 126 254 74 224

Miles of roads receiving surface treatment  12 114 147 199 158 131 178 39 78 54

Economic assistance and opportunity:  

Home Energy Assistance Program payments administered  174,777 206,518 122,938 157,902 105,892 141,132 181,245 82,733 148,472 145,263

Number of clients enrolled in Medicaid Managed Care programs  125,580 160,983 171,752 170,189 173,550 170,001 168,836 199,798 213,464 225,197

Senior services home care to frail elderly (hours)  67,450 71,566 86,969 74,982 80,405 58,244 79,705 77,002 61,415 76,883

Culture and recreation:  

Park attendance  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Rounds of golf played  N/A N/A 56,339 54,627 47,748 46,971 44,734 45,709 52,035 54,373

Education:  

Children with special needs receiving service  3,835 3,821 3,933 3,833 3,907 3,982 4,039 4,133 3,899 4,333

Erie Community College full-time student headcount (1)  9,116 8,514 7,862 7,422 7,077 6,702 6,168 5,768 4,593 4,316

Home and community service:  

Sewer flow per day (millions of gallons)  49 48 46 45 52 51 52 52 52 49

Source: Various County Departments

Notes:

(1) Average per semester.

N/A = Not Available

Function/Program

Fiscal Year

 

 

 

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 186 of 187



 

- 134 - 
 

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

 

Public safety:  

Emergency communication stations  1                1                1                1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Training centers operated by the County  3                3                3                3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Correctional facilities  1                1                1                1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Holding centers  1                1                1                1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Health:  

Health Department clinics / in County-owned buildings  4 / 1 4 / 1 4 / 1 4 / 1 4 / 1 4 / 1 4 / 4 4 / 4 4 / 4 4 / 4
Transportation:  

Miles of roads  1,187         1,187         1,187         1,187         1,187         1,179         1,177         1,177         1,177         1,177         

Highway maintenance facilities  5                5                5                5                5                5                5                5                5                5                
Culture and recreation:  

Parks  23              23              23              23              23              23              23              23              23              23              

Park and forest acreage  10,247       10,247       10,247       10,486       10,486       10,486       9,875         9,875         9,875         9,875         

Golf courses  2                2                2                2                2                2                2                2                2                2                
Education:  

SUNY Erie Community College campuses  3                3                3                3                3                3                3                3                3                3                

SUNY Erie Community College library volumes  112,651     109,198     110,945     107,702     104,453     102,613     97,304       92,971       92,358       94,309       
Home and community service:  

Miles of sanitary sewer  1,071         1,071         1,074         1,074         1,080         1,082         1,085         1,141         1,140         1,140         

Miles of storm sewer  48              48              48              48              48              48              48              53              53              53              

Pumping stations  96              96              96              93              93              93              95              96              96              96              

Grinder pumps  452            452            466            466            458            458            459            459            461            473            

Source: Various County Departments

Note:

Function (1)

Fiscal Year

(1) No capital asset indicators are available for general government support and economic assistance and opportunity functions.

 

COMM. 14E-5 
Page 187 of 187



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-6  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  EC Emergency Medical Services Advisory
Board  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-6



COMM. 14E-6 
Page 1 of 1



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 
COMM. 14E-7  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Appointments to the Youth Services Board  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-7



COMM. 14E-7 
Page 1 of 5



COMM. 14E-7 
Page 2 of 5



COMM. 14E-7 
Page 3 of 5



COMM. 14E-7 
Page 4 of 5



COMM. 14E-7 
Page 5 of 5



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-8  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Authorization to Enter Into Contract with
Buffalo AKG for Mural at 608 William  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-8



COMM. 14E-8 
Page 1 of 5



COMM. 14E-8 
Page 2 of 5



COMM. 14E-8 
Page 3 of 5



COMM. 14E-8 
Page 4 of 5



COMM. 14E-8 
Page 5 of 5



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-9  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  
Update to the EC Forest Management Plan -
Authorization to Enter Into an Agreement with
a Consultant

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-9



COMM. 14E-9 
Page 1 of 10



COMM. 14E-9 
Page 2 of 10



COMM. 14E-9 
Page 3 of 10



COMM. 14E-9 
Page 4 of 10



COMM. 14E-9 
Page 5 of 10



COMM. 14E-9 
Page 6 of 10



COMM. 14E-9 
Page 7 of 10



COMM. 14E-9 
Page 8 of 10



COMM. 14E-9 
Page 9 of 10



COMM. 14E-9 
Page 10 of 10



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-10  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  
Authorization to Enter Into Contracts for
Mandated Special Education Preschool
Services

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-10



COMM. 14E-10 
Page 1 of 3



COMM. 14E-10 
Page 2 of 3



COMM. 14E-10 
Page 3 of 3



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-11  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  
Authorization to Enter Into Contract for Rath
Building - ErieNet POP Server RM 15th Floor
Project

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-11



COMM. 14E-11 
Page 1 of 7



COMM. 14E-11 
Page 2 of 7



COMM. 14E-11 
Page 3 of 7



COMM. 14E-11 
Page 4 of 7



COMM. 14E-11 
Page 5 of 7



COMM. 14E-11 
Page 6 of 7



COMM. 14E-11 
Page 7 of 7



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-12  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  EC Medical Examiner's Office Renovations -
Phase 7  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-12



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 1 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 2 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 3 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 4 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 5 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 6 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 7 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 8 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 9 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 10 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 11 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 12 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 13 of 14



COMM. 14E-12 
Page 14 of 14



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-13  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  
2021-2022 Large Culvert & Pedestrian Bridge
Condition Inspections - Extension to 2023-
2024

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-13



COMM. 14E-13 
Page 1 of 6



COMM. 14E-13 
Page 2 of 6



COMM. 14E-13 
Page 3 of 6



COMM. 14E-13 
Page 4 of 6



COMM. 14E-13 
Page 5 of 6



COMM. 14E-13 
Page 6 of 6



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-14  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  
Cultural Capital Grant Program -
Authorization to Enter Into a Contract with
Hispanic Heritage Council of WNY

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-14



COMM. 14E-14 
Page 1 of 7



COMM. 14E-14 
Page 2 of 7



COMM. 14E-14 
Page 3 of 7



COMM. 14E-14 
Page 4 of 7



COMM. 14E-14 
Page 5 of 7



COMM. 14E-14 
Page 6 of 7



COMM. 14E-14 
Page 7 of 7



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-15  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Authorization to Enter Into Contracts for
Holistic Mental Health Interventions  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-15



COMM. 14E-15 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 14E-15 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 14E-15 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 14E-15 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-16  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  2022 Storm Damage Restoration - Various
Towns  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-16



COMM. 14E-16 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 14E-16 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 14E-16 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 14E-16 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-17  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  608 William Lease for Endeavor Health
Services  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-17



COMM. 14E-17 
Page 1 of 5



COMM. 14E-17 
Page 2 of 5



COMM. 14E-17 
Page 3 of 5



COMM. 14E-17 
Page 4 of 5



COMM. 14E-17 
Page 5 of 5



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-18  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  
Authorization to Submit Agricultural &
Farmland Protection Planning Grant
Application & Provide Matching Funds

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-18



COMM. 14E-18 
Page 1 of 5



COMM. 14E-18 
Page 2 of 5



COMM. 14E-18 
Page 3 of 5



COMM. 14E-18 
Page 4 of 5



COMM. 14E-18 
Page 5 of 5



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-19  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Watershed Regulation Review Grant Contract
& Monsanto Settlement Funding  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-19



COMM. 14E-19 
Page 1 of 7



COMM. 14E-19 
Page 2 of 7



COMM. 14E-19 
Page 3 of 7



COMM. 14E-19 
Page 4 of 7



COMM. 14E-19 
Page 5 of 7



COMM. 14E-19 
Page 6 of 7



COMM. 14E-19 
Page 7 of 7



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-20  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  SUNY ECC North Campus Sports Playing
Fields - Term Agreement  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-20



COMM. 14E-20 
Page 1 of 8



COMM. 14E-20 
Page 2 of 8



COMM. 14E-20 
Page 3 of 8



COMM. 14E-20 
Page 4 of 8



COMM. 14E-20 
Page 5 of 8



COMM. 14E-20 
Page 6 of 8



COMM. 14E-20 
Page 7 of 8



COMM. 14E-20 
Page 8 of 8



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-21  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Buffalo & EC Central Library Electrical
Switchgear Replacement  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-21



COMM. 14E-21 
Page 1 of 8



COMM. 14E-21 
Page 2 of 8



COMM. 14E-21 
Page 3 of 8



COMM. 14E-21 
Page 4 of 8



COMM. 14E-21 
Page 5 of 8



COMM. 14E-21 
Page 6 of 8



COMM. 14E-21 
Page 7 of 8



COMM. 14E-21 
Page 8 of 8



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-22  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Teamsters Local 264, 2024-2026 Collective
Bargaining Agreement  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-22



COMM. 14E-22 
Page 1 of 11



COMM. 14E-22 
Page 2 of 11



COMM. 14E-22 
Page 3 of 11



COMM. 14E-22 
Page 4 of 11



COMM. 14E-22 
Page 5 of 11



COMM. 14E-22 
Page 6 of 11



COMM. 14E-22 
Page 7 of 11



COMM. 14E-22 
Page 8 of 11



COMM. 14E-22 
Page 9 of 11



COMM. 14E-22 
Page 10 of 11



COMM. 14E-22 
Page 11 of 11



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-23  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  
Indigent Legal Services Grant - 2nd Upstate
Family Defense (Child Welfare) Quality
Improvement & Caseload Reduction

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-23



COMM. 14E-23 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 14E-23 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 14E-23 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 14E-23 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-24  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Authorization to Re-Appropriate ARPA
Funding for Affordable Housing Development  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-24



COMM. 14E-24 
Page 1 of 6



COMM. 14E-24 
Page 2 of 6



COMM. 14E-24 
Page 3 of 6



COMM. 14E-24 
Page 4 of 6



COMM. 14E-24 
Page 5 of 6



COMM. 14E-24 
Page 6 of 6



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-25  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  
Authorization to Contract with EC Soil &
Water Conservation District for Admin. of the
Nov. 2022 Storm Lake Effect Storm Damage
Fund Program

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-25



COMM. 14E-25 
Page 1 of 6



COMM. 14E-25 
Page 2 of 6



COMM. 14E-25 
Page 3 of 6



COMM. 14E-25 
Page 4 of 6



COMM. 14E-25 
Page 5 of 6



COMM. 14E-25 
Page 6 of 6



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-26  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Indigent Legal Services Grant - Counsel at
First Appearance #4  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-26



COMM. 14E-26 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 14E-26 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 14E-26 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 14E-26 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-27  COUNTY EXECUTIVE  Indigent Legal Services Grant - 3rd Upstate
Quality Improvement & Caseload Reduction  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-27



COMM. 14E-27 
Page 1 of 4



COMM. 14E-27 
Page 2 of 4



COMM. 14E-27 
Page 3 of 4



COMM. 14E-27 
Page 4 of 4



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14E-28  COMPTROLLER  
EC Comptroller's Office - Audit of the County
Clerk's Office, Registrar Division Operating
Budget Revenues 1/1/2022-12/31/2022

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14E-28



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 1 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 2 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 3 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 4 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 5 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 6 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 7 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 8 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 9 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 10 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 11 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 12 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 13 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 14 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 15 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 16 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 17 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 18 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 19 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 20 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 21 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 22 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 23 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 24 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 25 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 26 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 27 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 28 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 29 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 30 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 31 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 32 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 33 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 34 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 35 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 36 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 37 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 38 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 39 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 40 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 41 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 42 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 43 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 44 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 45 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 46 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 47 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 48 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 49 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 50 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 51 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 52 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 53 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 54 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 55 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 56 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 57 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 58 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 59 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 60 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 61 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 62 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 63 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 64 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 65 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 66 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 67 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 68 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 69 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 70 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 71 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 72 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 73 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 74 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 75 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 76 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 77 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 78 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 79 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 80 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 81 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 82 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 83 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 84 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 85 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 86 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 87 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 88 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 89 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 90 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 91 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 92 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 93 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 94 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 95 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 96 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 97 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 98 of 99



COMM. 14E-28 
Page 99 of 99



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14D-1  COUNTY ATTORNEY  
Filing for Local Law No. 5-1-2023 - A Local
Law in relation to Ensuring that Service-
Disabled Veterans have Greater Participation in
Erie County Contracts

 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14D-1



COMM. 14D-1 
Page 1 of 7



COMM. 14D-1 
Page 2 of 7



COMM. 14D-1 
Page 3 of 7



COMM. 14D-1 
Page 4 of 7



COMM. 14D-1 
Page 5 of 7



COMM. 14D-1 
Page 6 of 7



COMM. 14D-1 
Page 7 of 7



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14D-2  DIRECTOR OF BUDGET
& MANAGEMENT  2023 Mid-Year Budget Hearings Data  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14D-2



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 1 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 2 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 3 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 4 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 5 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 6 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 7 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 8 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 9 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 10 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 11 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 12 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 13 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 14 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 15 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 16 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 17 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 18 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 19 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 20 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 21 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 22 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 23 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 24 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 25 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 26 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 27 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 28 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 29 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 30 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 31 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 32 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 33 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 34 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 35 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 36 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 37 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 38 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 39 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 40 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 41 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 42 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 43 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 44 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 45 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 46 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 47 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 48 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 49 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 50 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 51 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 52 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 53 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 54 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 55 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 56 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 57 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 58 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 59 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 60 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 61 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 62 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 63 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 64 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 65 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 66 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 67 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 68 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 69 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 70 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 71 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 72 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 73 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 74 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 75 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 76 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 77 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 78 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 79 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 80 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 81 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 82 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 83 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 84 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 85 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 86 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 87 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 88 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 89 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 90 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 91 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 92 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 93 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 94 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 95 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 96 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 97 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 98 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 99 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 100 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 101 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 102 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 103 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 104 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 105 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 106 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 107 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 108 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 109 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 110 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 111 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 112 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 113 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 114 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 115 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 116 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 117 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 118 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 119 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 120 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 121 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 122 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 123 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 124 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 125 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 126 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 127 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 128 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 129 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 130 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 131 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 132 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 133 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 134 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 135 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 136 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 137 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 138 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 139 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 140 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 141 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 142 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 143 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 144 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 145 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 146 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 147 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 148 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 149 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 150 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 151 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 152 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 153 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 154 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 155 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 156 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 157 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 158 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 159 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 160 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 161 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 162 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 163 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 164 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 165 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 166 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 167 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 168 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 169 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 170 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 171 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 172 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 173 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 174 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 175 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 176 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 177 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 178 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 179 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 180 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 181 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 182 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 183 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 184 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 185 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 186 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 187 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 188 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 189 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 190 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 191 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 192 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 193 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 194 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 195 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 196 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 197 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 198 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 199 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 200 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 201 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 202 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 203 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 204 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 205 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 206 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 207 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 208 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 209 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 210 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 211 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 212 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 213 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 214 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 215 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 216 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 217 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 218 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 219 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 220 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 221 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 222 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 223 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 224 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 225 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 226 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 227 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 228 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 229 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 230 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 231 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 232 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 233 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 234 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 235 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 236 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 237 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 238 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 239 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 240 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 241 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 242 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 243 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 244 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 245 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 246 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 247 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 248 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 249 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 250 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 251 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 252 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 253 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 254 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 255 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 256 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 257 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 258 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 259 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 260 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 261 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 262 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 263 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 264 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 265 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 266 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 267 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 268 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 269 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 270 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 271 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 272 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 273 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 274 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 275 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 276 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 277 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 278 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 279 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 280 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 281 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 282 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 283 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 284 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 285 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 286 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 287 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 288 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 289 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 290 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 291 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 292 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 293 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 294 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 295 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 296 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 297 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 298 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 299 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 300 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 301 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 302 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 303 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 304 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 305 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 306 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 307 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 308 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 309 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 310 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 311 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 312 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 313 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 314 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 315 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 316 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 317 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 318 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 319 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 320 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 321 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 322 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 323 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 324 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 325 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 326 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 327 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 328 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 329 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 330 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 331 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 332 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 333 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 334 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 335 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 336 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 337 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 338 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 339 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 340 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 341 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 342 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 343 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 344 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 345 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 346 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 347 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 348 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 349 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 350 of 351



COMM. 14D-2 
Page 351 of 351



  
Erie County LegislatureErie County Legislature             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 07/06/2023  
SU BJECTSU BJECT
 

COMM. 14M-1  NYS AGRICULTURE &
MARKETS  EC Agricultural District No. C8 - Eight-Year

Review Notice  

A ttachmentsA ttachments
23COMM. 14M-1



COMM. 14M-1 
Page 1 of 2



COMM. 14M-1 
Page 2 of 2


	Agenda
	AI 716 Minutes for Meeting No. 13
	       ATT_Meeting No. 13 Minutes
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT
	114GIVE2324
	July 1, 2023– June 30, 2024
	500000 Full Time Salaries   $ 668,142      $629,184            $1,297,326
	502000 Fringe Benefits      327,390        254,845       582,235
	516020 Professional Services                                                                  $   40,000
	561410 Lab & Technical Equipment                                                            60,000
	559000 County Share Contribution                                                           (100,000)
	$       - 0 -


	AI 706 Honoring Buffalo Urban League Young Professionals (BULYPNY) - Celebrating 10 Years of Service in the Western New York Community
	       ATT_BULYPNY
	AI 740 Acknowledging and Honoring Barbara Glover
	       ATT_BARBARA GLOVER
	AI 741 In Remembrance of Steven Christopher Smith - Successful Business Owner of Steve's Landscaping Service
	       ATT_Steven Christopher Smith
	AI 742 Recognizing Amherst High School Pit Orchestra - Kenny Award Recipients
	       ATT_Kenny Award Recipients  
	AI 743 In Remembrance of William Bauer - Graduate of SUNY at Buffalo School of Dental Medicine
	       ATT_William Bauer
	AI 744 Honoring National Minority Mental Health Awareness Month
	       ATT_Minority Mental Health
	AI 745 Recognizing Linda Ullmark-Nichols School, 2022-23 - Named Gatorade New York Girls Soccer Player of the Year
	       ATT_Linda Ullmark-Nichols
	AI 746 Honoring Sage Sabatino, Amherst High School Quarterback Co-Player of the Year - Section IV Girls Flag Football
	       ATT_Sage Sabatino
	AI 747 Recognizing the 40th Annual Taste of Buffalo
	       ATT_Taste of Buffalo
	AI 748 Honoring Amherst Police Detective Herbert Leising on His Retirement
	       ATT_Herbert Leising
	AI 749 Honoring Marvinâ€™s Bar and Grill on National Dive Bar Day
	       ATT_Marvin_s Bar and Grill
	AI 750 Honoring Taffyâ€™s Hot Dog Stand on National Hot Dog Day
	       ATT_Taffy_s Hot Dog Stand
	AI 751 Honoring Georgeâ€™s Hot Dog Stand on National Hot Dog Day
	       ATT_George_s Hot Dog Stand
	AI 752 Honoring Connorâ€™s Hot Dog Stand on National Hot Dog Day
	       ATT_Connor_s Hot Dog Stand
	AI 753 Honoring Lucas William Thornton on Earning the Rank of Eagle Scout
	       ATT_Lucas William Thornton
	AI 754 Honoring Coda Mulligan for His Courage
	       ATT_Coda Mulligan
	AI 755 Recognizing Rick Penny for His Commitment to the Alden Central School District and Community
	       ATT_Rick Penny
	AI 756 Honoring Zorbaâ€™s Texas Hots Stand on National Hot Dog Day
	       ATT_Zorba_s Texas Hots
	AI 757 Honoring Tedâ€™s Hot Dog Stand on National Hot Dog Day
	       ATT_Ted_s Hot Dog Stand
	AI 758 Honoring the Life of Father Joseph Bayne
	       ATT_Father Joseph Bayne
	AI 759 Honoring Sheila McMahon Curry on Her Retirement from Erie County
	       ATT_Sheila McMahon Curry
	AI 760 Congratulating Quentin Musty - Drafted by the San Jose Sharks (2023 National Hockey League Draft)
	       ATT_Quentin Musty
	AI 761 Congratulating Jonah Heim - Named Starting Catcher (2023 MLB All-Star Game)
	       ATT_Jonah Heim
	AI 762 Congratulating Lily Zhang - Second Youngest Golfer to Win NYS Womenâ€™s Amateur
	       ATT_Lily Zhang
	AI 697 A Local Law Authorizing Twelve and Thirteen-Year-Old Licensed Hunters to Hunt Deer with a Firearm or Crossbow During Hunting Season with the Supervision of a Licensed Adult
	       ATT_LL INTRO. 1-1 (2022)
	AI 698 The Erie County Language Access Act
	       ATT_LL INTRO. 3-1 (2022)
	AI 699 The Occupancy Tax Modernization Act
	       ATT_LL INTRO. 3-1 (2023)
	AI 700 A Local Law Providing for the Extended Lease of Real Property Located at 13 Centre Drive, Orchard Park, NY, 14127
	       ATT_LL INTRO. 6-1 (2023)
	AI 710 Public Safety Committee Report
	       ATT_PS Report No. 10
	AI 711 Economic Development Committee Report
	       ATT_ED Report No. 10
	AI 712 Energy & Environment Committee Report
	       ATT_EE Report No. 8
	AI 713 Finance & Management Committee Report
	       ATT_FM Report No. 6
	AI 714 Health & Human Services Committee Report
	       ATT_HHS Report No. 7
	AI 715 Government Affairs Committee Report
	       ATT_GA Report No. 1
	AI 701 Award Correctional Health Optometry Services RFP & Authorize Contract
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-1
	AI 702 Contracts for Incarcerated Individual Programming
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-2
	AI 703 Apportionment & Distribution Report - Sales & Compensating Use Tax
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-3
	AI 707 Report on Audit of the EC Department of Law Contract Expenditures for Indigent Services - 1/1/2022-12/31/2022
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-4
	AI 708 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - 2022
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-5
	si budget.pdf (p.94-99)

	AI 717 EC Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-6
	AI 718 Appointments to the Youth Services Board
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-7
	AI 719 Authorization to Enter Into Contract with Buffalo AKG for Mural at 608 William
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-8
	AI 720 Update to the EC Forest Management Plan - Authorization to Enter Into an Agreement with a Consultant
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-9
	AI 721 Authorization to Enter Into Contracts for Mandated Special Education Preschool Services
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-10
	AI 722 Authorization to Enter Into Contract for Rath Building - ErieNet POP Server RM 15th Floor Project
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-11
	AI 723 EC Medical Examiner's Office Renovations - Phase 7
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-12
	AI 724 2021-2022 Large Culvert & Pedestrian Bridge Condition Inspections - Extension to 2023-2024
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-13
	AI 725 Cultural Capital Grant Program - Authorization to Enter Into a Contract with Hispanic Heritage Council of WNY
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-14
	AI 726 Authorization to Enter Into Contracts for Holistic Mental Health Interventions
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-15
	AI 727 2022 Storm Damage Restoration - Various Towns
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-16
	AI 728 608 William Lease for Endeavor Health Services
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-17
	AI 729 Authorization to Submit Agricultural & Farmland Protection Planning Grant Application & Provide Matching Funds
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-18
	AI 730 Watershed Regulation Review Grant Contract & Monsanto Settlement Funding
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-19
	AI 731 SUNY ECC North Campus Sports Playing Fields - Term Agreement
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-20
	AI 732 Buffalo & EC Central Library Electrical Switchgear Replacement
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-21
	AI 733 Teamsters Local 264, 2024-2026 Collective Bargaining Agreement
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-22
	AI 734 Indigent Legal Services Grant - 2nd Upstate Family Defense (Child Welfare) Quality Improvement & Caseload Reduction
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-23
	AI 735 Authorization to Re-Appropriate ARPA Funding for Affordable Housing Development
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-24
	AI 736 Authorization to Contract with EC Soil & Water Conservation District for Admin. of the Nov. 2022 Storm Lake Effect Storm Damage Fund Program
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-25
	AI 737 Indigent Legal Services Grant - Counsel at First Appearance #4
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-26
	AI 738 Indigent Legal Services Grant - 3rd Upstate Quality Improvement & Caseload Reduction
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-27
	AI 739 EC Comptroller's Office - Audit of the County Clerk's Office, Registrar Division Operating Budget Revenues 1/1/2022-12/31/2022
	       ATT_23COMM. 14E-28
	AI 705 Filing for Local Law No. 5-1-2023 - A Local Law in relation to Ensuring that Service-Disabled Veterans have Greater Participation in Erie County Contracts
	       ATT_23COMM. 14D-1
	AI 709 2023 Mid-Year Budget Hearings Data
	       ATT_23COMM. 14D-2
	AI 704 EC Agricultural District No. C8 - Eight-Year Review Notice
	       ATT_23COMM. 14M-1

